
 
1 of  4 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 4, 2018 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 
 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 21, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Special Order of Business: 
 
1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 

2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published May 25, 2018) 

 
b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 

 
c. Oral comments. 

 
2. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 

the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. 
 

F. Old Business: 
 
1. Pass Ordinance #2923, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all 

property located within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Area, in the City of Cedar Falls, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, 
County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, 
and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, 
monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the city 
in connection with the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 
(Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan), upon its 
third & final consideration. 
 

2. Pass Ordinance #2924, amending Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to 
sanitary sewer rates, upon its third & final consideration. 
 

3. Pass Ordinance #2925, amending Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to 
storm water management rates, upon its third & final consideration. 
 

4. Pass Ordinance #2926, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all 
property located within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, 
County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School 



 
2 of  4 

 

District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on 
loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by 
the City in connection with the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, upon its second 
consideration. 
 

5. Pass Ordinance #2927, amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Greenhill Road from Hudson 
Road to West 27th Street, upon its second consideration. 
 

G. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of MaraBeth Soneson 

to the Utilities Board of Trustees, term ending 08/31/2024. 
 

b. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of May 21, 2018 relative to the 
following items: 
(1) Utilities Board of Trustees Interview - MaraBeth Soneson.  
(2) Visitors & Tourism Initiatives/Update. 
(3) Speed limit on South Main Street-University Avenue to Greenhill Road. 
(4) Bills & Payroll. 
 

c. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of May 14, 2018. 
 

d. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of April 2018. 
 

e. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
(1) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street. 
(2) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard. 
(3) SUDS, 2223 1/2 College Street. 
(4) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street. 
 

f. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
(2) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
(3) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
(4) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal. 
(5) Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(6) Los Cabos Mexican Restaurant, 112-114 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
(7) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(8) Target, 214 Viking Plaza Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(9) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (June 22-24, 2018) 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution directing the advertisement for sale of $6,585,000 General Obligation Bonds, 

Series 2018, and approving electronic bidding procedures and Official Statement. 
 

b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Engagement Letter with Eide Bailly, 



 
3 of  4 

 

LLP to perform the audit of FY18 financial statements and programs compliance. 
 

c. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Actuarial Services Agreement with 
SilverStone Group, Incorporated relative to Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) 75. 
 

d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC relative to a Job Classification Review, in conjunction 
with the City’s pay plan study. 
 

e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC relative to a Performance Development Program, in 
conjunction with the City’s pay plan study. 
 

f. Resolution designating the dates and locations for the annual Sturgis Falls Celebration and 
Cedar Basin Jazz Festival Inc. 
 

g. Resolution approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the purchase of two dump 
trucks. 
 

h. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Municipal Pipe 
Tool Company, LLC for the 2017 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 

i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Maintenance and Repair Agreement 
with CF Gateway Park, Inc. relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan on 
Lots 1 and 2 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 
 

j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 7 with 
AECOM Technical Services, Inc. relative to the Downtown Levee Improvements Project. 
 

k. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of K. Cunningham Construction 
Co. Inc. for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. 
 

l. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of 
Improvements with CF Gateway Park, Inc. relative to the final plat of Gateway Business Park 
at Cedar Falls I. 
 

m. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates for 2018 construction observation and testing services 
relative to new subdivisions. 
 

n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates for construction observation and testing services relative to 
Gateway Business Park. (Contingent upon approval of Item G-2.m.) 
 

o. Resolution approving a Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay Zoning District 
development site plan for construction of a hotel and conference center on Lot 1, Gateway 
Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 
 

p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Developmental Procedures Agreement 
with CF Gateway Park, Inc. relative to public improvements in Gateway Business Park at 
Cedar Falls I. 
 

q. Resolution approving the final plat of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 
 

r. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Rehabilitation Contract with To Jo 



 
4 of  4 

 

Construction Inc., relative to a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) emergency 
repair project. 
 

s. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Rehabilitation Contract with Curran 
Plumbing Inc., relative to a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) emergency repair 
project. 
 

t. Resolution setting June 18, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the City's FY18-19 
Consolidated Annual Plan for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME 
Program. 
 

H. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

I. City Council Referrals. 
 

J. City Council Updates. 
 

K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

L. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MAY 21, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
51902 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of May 7, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
The Mayor then recognized his daughter’s 18th birthday. 

 
51903 - City Clerk Danielsen announced a revision to the FY19 Fee Schedule, Item G-2(d), 

noting a correction on page 4. 
 
51904 -  Mayor Brown announced the continuation of the public hearing on a proposed plan 

for the proposed South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area.  Planner II Graham 
provided a brief summary of proposal.  Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, expressed 
concerns and Greater Cedar Valley Alliance and Chamber representative Lisa 
Skubal, commended Council and expressed support. There being no one else 
present to speak either for or against the proposed plan, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
51905 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,109, 

determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that the 
rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a combination thereof, 
of such area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the 
residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal 
projects; and adopting the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan, be adopted. 
Following questions by Councilmember Green and responses from Planner II 
Graham, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,109 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51906 -   It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2926, providing 
that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located 
within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, County 
of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of 
Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for 
payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, 
including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in connection with the 
South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, be passed upon its first consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
 
51907 -   It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2923, providing 

that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located 
within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, 
in the City of Cedar Falls, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for 
payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, 
including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the city in connection with the 
amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area 
(Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Plan), be passed upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
51908 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2924, amending 

Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to sanitary sewer rates, be 
passed upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
 

51909 -   It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2925, amending 
Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to storm water management 
rates, be passed upon its second consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
 

51910 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that the following items and 
recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 

 
Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of 
members to Boards and Commissions: 

(1) Katy Susong, Board of Appeals, indefinite term. 
 (2) Phyllis Carter, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 

06/30/2021. 
 (3) Betty Danielson, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 

06/30/2021. 
(4) Clare Struck, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 06/30/2021. 
(5) Mary Carlson, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021. 
(6) Annie Gougler, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021. 
(7) Leslie Prideaux, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2021. 

 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of May 7, 2018 relative to the 
following items: 

(1) Public Safety Awards. 
(2) University Avenue Update. 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

(3) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file the bids received for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. 

 
Approve the following special event related requests: 

(1) Street closure, College Street, June 7, 2018 (with an alternate date of June 14, 
2018). 
(2) Street closure, East 10th Street, June 8, 2018. 
(3) Parking variances, College Hill Arts Festival, June 15-16, 2018. 
(4) Street closures & parking variances, Gran Fondo Cedar Valley Bike Ride & 
FondoFest, August 18, 2018. 

 
Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits: 

(1) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road. 
(2) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street. 
(3) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue. 
(4) Casey's General Store, 5908 Nordic Drive. 
(5) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street. 
(6) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way. 
(7) Electric Underground, 5901 University Avenue. 
(8) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street. 
(9) Thunder Ridge Ampride, 2425 Whitetail Drive. 
(10) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive. 

 
Approve the following applications for liquor licenses: 

(1) Carlos O'Kelly's Mexican Café, 6507 University Avenue, Class C liquor & 
outdoor service - renewal. 
(2) Harry's Five and Dime, 123 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(3) Montage, 222-224 Main Street, Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
(4) Old Chicago Pizza and Taproom, College Square Mall, Class C liquor & 
outdoor service - renewal. 
(5) The Other Place, 2214 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(6) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E liquor. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
51911 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah to receive and file the plans, 

specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & 
Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project. Following comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 
Clay Street, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
51912 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,110, rescheduling the date of the regularly scheduled Cedar Falls 
City Council meeting of July 2, 2018 to July 9, 2018. 
 

 Resolution #21,111, approving and authorizing execution of a Lease Agreement with 
the Cedar Falls Historical Society relative to the Behrens/Rapp Gas Station. 

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,112, approving and authorizing execution of a Lease Agreement with 
the Cedar Falls Historical Society relative to the Bennington Township Schoolhouse. 
 
Resolution #21,113, approving and accepting the low bid of K. Cunningham 
Construction Company, Inc., in the amount of $457,535.03, for the Center Street 
Recreational Trail Project. 
 
Resolution #21,114, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the Campus Street Box Culvert Project. 
 
Resolution #21,115, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's 
Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the 2018 Permeable Alley Project. 
 
Resolution #21,116, approving and accepting the low bid, and approving and 
authorizing execution of two Rehabilitation Contracts with Kirvan Enterprises LLC, 
relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) housing rehabilitation 
projects. 
 
Resolution #21,117, approving and authorizing execution of a Subcontract for 
Consulting Services with Tallgrass Archaeology LLC relative to a Certified Local 
Government Grant to prepare a nomination for the Wild Historic District to the 
National Register of Historic Places. 
 
Resolution #21,118, approving the River Place 3rd Addition Lot 4 Minor Plat. 
 
Resolution #21,119, approving and authorizing execution of a Surface 
Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Programming Agreement with Black Hawk 
County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) relative to the reconstruction of 
Cedar Heights Drive. 

 
Resolution #21,120, approving an amendment to the preliminary plat and phasing 
plan for The Arbors. 
 
Resolution #21,121, approving and authorizing execution of a Keep Vacant 
Agreement for property located at 714 West 1st Street, in conjunction with the West 
1st Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,122, approving and authorizing execution of a Keep Vacant 
Agreement for property located at 810 West 1st Street, in conjunction with the West 
1st Street Reconstruction Project. 
 

 Resolution #21,123, of support for Community Main Street, Inc. and approving and 
authorizing execution of a Main Street Iowa Program Agreement with the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority and Community Main Street, Inc. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,110 through #21,123 duly passed and 

-4-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

adopted. 
 

51913 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,124, approving 
and adopting the City's FY19 Budget Appropriations, be adopted. Following a 
question by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #21,124 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51914 -   It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,125, approving 
and adopting the City's FY19 Payroll Resolution, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,125 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51915 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,126, approving 
and adopting the City's FY19 Fee Schedule, be adopted.  
 

  It was then moved by Green and seconded by Miller that the motion be amended to 
waive barricade fees for neighborhood associations and street meetings.  Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Blanford, Green, Darrah and 
Miller, and responses by Public Safety Services Director Olson and Finance & 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, the motion to amend was withdrawn by 
Councilmember Green.  

 
  It was then moved by Green that the original motion be amended to include staff 

discounted Wellness rates.  Following a question by Councilmember Miller and 
response from Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, the motion to 
amend failed due to lack of a second. 

 
  The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, the 

following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,126 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51916 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,127, 
approving and authorizing execution of a Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) Programming Agreement with Black Hawk County Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) relative to the reconstruction of the Union Road recreational 
trail, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Green and Miller, and 
responses by Planner III Sturch and Community Development Director Sheetz, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,127 
duly passed and adopted. 
 

51917 -   It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,128, 
approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Agreement for 
Private Development with River Place Properties LC relative to the River Place 

-5-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

Development Project, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,128 
duly passed and adopted. 
 

51918 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,129, setting 
June 4, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, 
form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail 
Improvement Project, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,129 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
51919 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2927, amending 

Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Greenhill Road from Hudson Road to 
West 27th Street, be passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration 
by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
51920 -     It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse that the bills and payroll be 

allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue 
City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. 
Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
51921 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Darrah that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:37 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 
 

-6-

Item C. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 17, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project 
  SW-000-3148 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement 
Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, June 4, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, June 12, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. as the date 
and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to Bidders 
be published by May 25, 2018. It is anticipated that the Plans and Specifications will be 
ready for distribution to contractors on May 25, 2018 allowing more than two (2) weeks 
of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk and trails on City property, and also 
will provide sidewalk and trail infills around the City where none currently exist.  
 
The total estimated cost of the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement 
Project is $132,429.38. The funding for the project will be provided by the GO Bonds 
and Hotel/Motel Tax funds. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or at the Engineering Division of the Department of 
Community Development. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer  

-7-

Item E.1. 



 



 

 -1-

ORDINANCE NO. _2923_ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 1923, 2122, 
2461, 2696 AND 2785, PROVIDING THAT GENERAL 
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR 
ON ALL PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE AMENDED 
CEDAR FALLS UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN 
RENEWAL AREA, IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, CEDAR 
FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HUDSON 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING 
DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT 
OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES 
ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS 
ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED BY THE CITY IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE AMENDED CEDAR FALLS 
UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 
AREA (AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO THE CEDAR FALLS 
UNIFIED HIGHWAY 58 CORRIDOR URBAN RENEWAL 
PLAN) 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, has heretofore, in 

Ordinance No. 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696 and 2785, provided for the division of taxes within the 
Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area ("Area" or "Urban Renewal 
Area"), pursuant to Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa; and 
 

WHEREAS, taxable property now has been removed from the Cedar Falls Unified 
Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area through the adoption of Amendment No. 4 to the 
Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, indebtedness has been incurred by the City, and additional indebtedness is 
anticipated to be incurred in the future, to finance urban renewal project activities within the 
amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, and the continuing 
needs of redevelopment within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Area are such as to require the continued application of the incremental tax resources of 
the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the following enactment is necessary to accomplish the objectives described 
in the premises. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA, THAT: 
 

-9-

Item F.1. 



 

 -2-

Ordinance Number(s) 1923, 2122, 2461, 2696 and 2785 are hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 

Section 1. For purposes of this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 

a) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, 
State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban 
Renewal Area approved by Resolution No. 8196 on the 12th day of November, 1990, which 
Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 
Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 
North Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 
Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 
3rd Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 
extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 
1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 
corner of Viking Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 
of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 
section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 
thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 
of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 
distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 
of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 
line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 
thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 
west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 

 
b) Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) means that 

portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the 
Cedar Falls Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995) approved 
by Resolution No. 10,224 on the 13th day of November, 1995, which Area includes the lots and 
parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
All of Sections 35 and 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. 
and that part of Sections 2 and 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth 
P.M. lying North of U.S. Highway No. 20. 
 
And also that part of the West 2 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 
West of the Fifth P.M. lying West of Iowa Highway No. 58. 
 
And also that part of the East 2 of the southeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 
North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. described as beginning at the East 1/4 
corner of said Section 26; thence Southwest to the Southeast corner of Viking 
Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the Southwest corner of the Southeast 1/4 of 

-10-

Item F.1. 



 

 -3-

the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26; thence East to the Southeast corner of said 
Section 26; thence North to the point of beginning. 
 
Except that portion described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the West right-of-way line of the proposed 
Relocated Highway #58 and the east-west centerline of Section 36 Township 89 
North Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Thence 
Northerly along said West right-of-way line to the South line of Eldorado Heights 
3rd Addition to said City of Cedar Falls; thence Westerly along said South line 
extended to the West line of Section 25 T89N R14W; thence Southerly to the East 
1/4 corner of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Southwesterly to the Southeast 
corner of Viking Hills 2nd Addition; thence South to the SW corner of the SE 1/4 
of the SE 1/4 of Section 26 T89N R14W; thence Easterly on the South line of said 
Section 26 to a point 630 feet West of the Southeast corner of said Section 26; 
thence Southerly parallel with the east line of Section 35 T89N R14W a distance 
of 700 feet; thence Easterly parallel with the North line of said Section 35 a 
distance of 310 feet; thence Southerly to a point 350 feet South and 310 feet West 
of the Southwest corner of the Industrial Park Plat; thence Easterly to the West 
line of Section 36; thence Southerly to the West 1/4 corner of said Section 36; 
thence Easterly to the point of beginning.  Except, the creek running along the 
west boundary and all lands lying west of said creek. 
 
c) Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) means that portion of 

the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Cedar Falls 
Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 2 (2003) approved by Resolution No. 
13862 on the 17th day of November, 2003, which Area includes the lots and parcels located 
within the area legally described as follows: 

 
The Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) and the North One-half (N1/2) of the North One-
half (N1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 
Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., 
Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the following described parcels: 
 
Parcel 1:  The East Eight Hundred Forty-three (843) feet of the West One 
Thousand Eighty-three (1,083) feet of the North Five Hundred Fifty (550) feet of 
the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine 
(89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, 
Iowa; 
 
Parcel 2:  The West Two Hundred Forty (240) feet of the North Five Hundred 
Fifty (550) feet of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section Thirty-four (34), 
Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 5th P.M. 
Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 
 

-11-

Item F.1. 



 

 -4-

Parcel 3:  Commencing at the Northeast corner of the said Section 34; thence 
South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East, on the East line of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 34, 70.00 feet, to the point of beginning; thence continuing 
South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds East on the East line of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 34, 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 19 minutes 13 
seconds West, 85.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 seconds West, 
1,888.00 feet, to the present South right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 
89 degrees 19 minutes 13 seconds East, on the present South right-of-way line of 
Viking Road, 85.00 feet, to the point of beginning. The East line of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 34 is assumed to bear South 00 degrees 39 minutes 19 
seconds East for the purpose of this description, and 
 
A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and the 
Southeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, Township 89 North, Range 14 
West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, more 
particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 00°39’19” 
East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 
feet to the point of beginning of the parcel herein described; thence continuing 
South 00°39’19” East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a 
distance of 1,888.00 feet; thence South 89°19’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; 
thence North 00°39’19” West a distance of 1,888.00 feet to the present South 
right-of-way line of Viking Road; thence North 89°19’13” East on the present 
South right-of-way line of Viking Road a distance of 85.00 feet to the point of 
beginning; containing 3.68 acres. 
 
Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 
assumed to bear South 00°39’19” East for the purpose of this description. 
 
A parcel of land located in the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Section 34; thence South 00°39’19” 
East on the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 70.00 
feet; thence South 89°19’13” West a distance of 85.00 feet; thence North 
80°54’49” West a distance of 218.13 feet to the present South right-of-way line of 
Viking Road; thence North 00°40’47” West a distance of 33.00 feet to the North 
line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34; thence North 89°19’13” East on the 
North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 a distance of 300.00 feet to the 
point of beginning; containing 0.39 acre, of which 0.23 acre is within existing 
road right-of-way. 
 
Basis of Bearings: The East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34 is 
assumed to bear South 00°39’19” East for the purpose of this description. 

-12-

Item F.1. 



 

 -5-

 
d) Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) means that portion 

of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in the Urban Renewal Plan for the Northern 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009) approved by Resolution No. 16,631 on 
the 28th day of September, 2009, which Area includes the lots and parcels located within the area 
legally described as follows: 

 
That part of Section 6 and Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 West and that 
part of Section 31, Township 90 North, Range 13 West of the Fifth P.M. in the 
City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa described as beginning at the 
Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence Southerly 
along the East line of said Southeast Quarter to the Southeast corner of said 
Southeast Quarter; thence continue Southerly along the East line of said Section 6 
to the Southeast corner of said Section 6; thence continue Southerly along the 
East line of said Section 7 to the South Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; 
thence Westerly along said South Right-of-way line to the Easterly Right-of-way 
line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along said Easterly Right-of-way line 
to the Easterly Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; thence Northerly along 
said Easterly Right-of-way line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said 
Section 31; Thence Easterly along said North line to the point of beginning. 
 
e) Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 1 
to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 
No. 18,377 on the 10th day of December, 2012, which Amendment No. 1 Area includes the lots 
and parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
South of the present North Right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 
follows: 
All that part of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of 
Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 
South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 
of the Northwest fractional 1/4 and the Northeast fractional 1/4 of Section 2, 
Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 
the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa.  
 
And also, 
 
North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 
A parcel of land situated in part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County 
of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 
 

-13-

Item F.1. 



 

 -6-

Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence Northerly on the 
East line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 
Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East Viking 
Road to the East line of GENCOM Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said East line and the Southerly prolongation of 
said East line to the South line of said Section 25; Thence Easterly on said South 
line to the point of beginning. 
 
And also, 
 
North of the centerline of Viking Road, described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 
Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, 
City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of 
said Section 26; Thence Northerly on the East line of the Southwest 1/4 of the 
Southeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the present North Right-of-way line of West 
Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of  West 
Viking Road to the present East Right-of-way line of Hudson Road; Thence South 
on a line that is normal to the South line of said Section 26, Township 89 North, 
Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., to the South line of said Section 26; Thence 
Easterly on said South line to the point of Beginning. 
 
And also, 
 
Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 
described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 26, Township 89 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., City of Cedar Falls, County of Black 
Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southeast Corner of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, Thence 
Westerly on the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26, a distance of 
270.00 feet; Thence northerly to the Southeast corner of Greenhill Village Fourth 
Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly 
on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village Fourth Addition to the Southeasterly 
corner of Greenhill Village Sixth Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa; Thence Northeasterly on the Easterly line of said Greenhill Village 
Sixth Addition to the East line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26; Thence 
Southerly on said East line to the point of beginning. 
 
And also, 
 

-14-

Item F.1. 



 

 -7-

From Viking Road to the North line of Sections 25 Township 89 North, Range 14 
West of the 5th P.M. (Greenhill Road), described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in part of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 
West of the 5th Principal Meridian, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 
State of Iowa, described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 25; Thence westerly on the 
South line of said Section 25, a distance of 1878.5 feet to the point of beginning 
of the parcel of land herein described; Thence Northerly on a line that is normal to 
the South line of said Section 25, to the present North Right-of-way line of East 
Viking Road; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-way line of East 
Viking Road to the Southwest corner of Blain’s Corner, an official plat in the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the Southwest of Blain’s Corner is on the present North 
Right-of-way line of East Viking Road); Thence Northerly and Northwesterly and 
Northerly on the West line of said Blain’s Corner to the Northwest corner of said 
Blain’s Corner; Thence Westerly on the Westerly prolongation of the North line 
of said Blain’s Corner and the North line of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase III, 
an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-
way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northwesterly and Northerly and 
Northeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, to 
the present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence Easterly on the 
present South Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the Northwesterly Right-of-
way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property; 
Thence Northeasterly on said Northwesterly Right-of-way line to the North line 
of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of 
the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on said North line to the present Westerly Right-
of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southerly and Southeasterly and 
Southerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 
South line of said Section 25; thence Easterly on the South line of said Section 25 
to the point of beginning. 
 
And also, 
 
From the North line of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 
P.M. (Greenhill Road) to the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 
14 West of the 5th P.M. (University Avenue), described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former 
Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property and the North line of the 
Northwest 1/4 of Section 25, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 
Thence Westerly on said North line to the Northeast corner of Section 26, 
Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 
North line of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 26 to the Southerly prolongation of 
the West line of the East 40 acres of the East 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 
23, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Northerly on said 

-15-

Item F.1. 



 

 -8-

West line to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road; Thence 
Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road to the present 
Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly on the 
present Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of the 
Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; 
Thence Easterly on said North line to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of 
Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present Easterly Right-of-way 
line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill 
Road; Thence Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Greenhill Road 
to the Northwesterly Right-of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western 
Railway Company property; Thence Southwesterly on the Northwesterly Right-
of-way line of the former Chicago, Great Western Railway Company property to 
the point of beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, 
State of Iowa. 
 
And also, 
 
From the North line of Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th 
P.M. (University Avenue) to the Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 
Northern Railway, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, 
Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M. and the Southerly 
prolongation of a line that is 100.00 feet West of and parallel with the West line 
of Lot 45 in Fairvalley Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 
Thence Northerly on the Southerly prolongation of said parallel line and said 
parallel line to the present North Right-of-way line of University Avenue; Thence 
Easterly on the North Right-of-way line of University Avenue to the present 
Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the 
Westerly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present South Right-of-
way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-
of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the West 
line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition; Thence Northerly on the Northerly 
prolongation of the West line of Lot 46 in said Fairvalley Addition to the present 
North Right-of-way line of East Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the 
present North Right-of-way line of east Seerley Boulevard to the present East 
Right-of-way line of Main Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-
way line of Main Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 
Street; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 22nd 
Street and its Easterly prolongation to the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 
Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northerly on the present Westerly Right-of-way line of 
Iowa Highway 58 to the East line of Taylor 2nd Addition, an official plat in the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on said East line to the South line of 
Block 16 in said Taylor 2nd Addition; Thence Westerly on said South line to the 
East line of the West 1/2 of said Block 16; Thence Northerly on said East line to 
the present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street; Thence Westerly on the 

-16-

Item F.1. 



 

 -9-

present South Right-of-way line of East 17th Street to the present East Right-of-
way line of State Street; Thence Northerly on the present East Right-of-way line 
of State Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street; Thence 
Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 15th Street to the present 
East Right-of-way line of Bluff Street; Thence Northerly on the present East 
Right-of-way line of Bluff Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 
14th Court; Thence Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 14th 
Court to the West line of Behrens’ Addition, an official plat in the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on said West line to the South line of said Behrens’ 
Addition; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Behrens’ Addition, 34.50 feet 
to the Southwesterly corner of the parcel of land described in City Lot Deed Book 
619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office; Thence 
Northeasterly on the Northwesterly line of the parcel of land described in City Lot 
Deed Book 619, Page 476 and recorded in the Black Hawk County Recorder’s 
Office and its Northeasterly prolongation to the present Northeasterly Right-of-
way line of Waterloo Road; Thence Northwesterly on the present Northeasterly 
Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road to the present Southeasterly Right-of-way 
line of Utility Parkway; Thence Northeasterly on the present Southeasterly Right-
of-way line of Utility Parkway to the point of intersection of the present 
Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Utility Parkway and the Southerly 
prolongation of the West line of Lot 6 of Block 6 in T. Mullarky’s Addition (part 
vacated), an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Northerly on the 
Southerly prolongation of the West line of said Lot 6 to the Southwesterly corner 
of said Lot 6; Thence Easterly on the South line of said Lot 6 to the Easterly 
Right-of-way line of the Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later 
the Chicago, Great Western Railway Company now the Northwestern 
Transportation Company); Thence Northerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of 
the former Wisconsin Iowa and Nebraska Railroad Company (later the Chicago, 
Great Western Railway Company now the former Northwestern Transportation 
Company) to the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street; Thence 
Easterly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 9th Street to the present 
Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s 
property; Thence Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 
the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property to the present Southeasterly 
Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Southwesterly on the present 
Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present North Right-
of-way line of Grand Boulevard; Thence Westerly on the present North Right-of-
way line of Grand Boulevard to the Northerly prolongation of the present West 
Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the Northerly prolongation 
of the present West Right-of-way line of East Street and the West Right-of-way 
line of East Street to the Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 
Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa 
Highway 58 to the present Northeasterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; 
Thence continuing Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line 
of Iowa Highway 58 to the North line of Lot 534 in Pacific Addition, an official 
plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Westerly on said North line to a 

-17-

Item F.1. 



 

 -10-

point that is 85.00 feet Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 534; Thence 
Southerly to a point that is on the North line of Lot 2 in Block 2 of Bixby’s 
Subdivision, an official plat in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 85.53 feet 
(85.00 feet record) Easterly of the Northwest corner of said Lot 2; Thence 
Easterly on the North line of Lots 2 and 1 in said Block 2 of Bixby’s Subdivision 
to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road; Thence 
Southeasterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of Waterloo Road 
to the present West Right-of-way line of East Street; Thence Southerly on the 
present West Right-of-way line of East Street to the present Northerly Right-of-
way line of 18th Street; Thence continuing Southerly on the present West Right-
of-way line of East Street to the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 
Street; Thence Westerly on the present South Right-of-way line of East 19th 
Street to a line that is 12.50 feet West of and parallel with the East line of Lots 
550, 551, 552 and 553 of said Pacific Addition; Thence Southerly on said parallel 
line to the South line of the North 58.00 feet of Lot 551 of said Pacific Addition; 
Thence Westerly on said South line to the East line of Lot 526 of said Pacific 
Addition; Thence Southerly on the East line of Lots 526 and 525 to the South line 
of said Pacific Addition, also being the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 
13, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M.; Thence Westerly on the 
South line of said Pacific Addition and the North line of Southeast 1/4 of said 
Section 13 and the North line of Galloway Addition, an official plat in the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; 
Thence Southerly on the Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the 
Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition; Thence continuing Southerly 
on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also being the 
Westerly line of Lot 4 of said Fairvalley Addition, to the present North Right-of-
way line of Seerley Boulevard; Thence Southerly to the Northeast corner of Lot 
41 of said Fairvalley Addition, being on the present South Right-of-way line of 
Seerley Boulevard; Thence Westerly, 44.45 feet on the present South Right-of-
way line of Seerley Boulevard, also being the North line of Lot 41 of said 
Fairvalley Addition to the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 
58; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 
58 to the North line of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 24, Township 89 North, 
Range 14 West of the 5th P.M; Thence Westerly on said North line to the point of 
beginning; all in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 
 
And also, 
 
From the Iowa Northern Railway in Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 
West of the 5th P.M. to Lincoln Street, described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of 
the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 
18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. and the present 
Northwesterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58; Thence Northeasterly and 
Northwesterly and Northeasterly on the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line 

-18-

Item F.1. 



 

 -11-

of Iowa Highway 58 and the present Northwesterly Right-of-way line of U.S. 
Highway 218 to the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street; Thence 
Easterly on the present North Right-of-way line of Lincoln Street to the Easterly 
Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence South on the present Right-of-
way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present South Right-of-way line of Lincoln 
Street, also being the Northwest corner of Maplewood Addition, an official plat in 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the West line of said 
Maplewood Addition and its Southerly prolongation to the South line of the 
Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 7, Township 89 North, Range 13 
West; Thence Easterly on said South line to the present Easterly Right-of-way 
line of U.S. Highway 218; Thence Southeasterly on the present Easterly Right-of-
way line of U.S. Highway 218 to the present Easterly city limits of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa; Thence Southerly on the present Easterly city limits of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 
218; Thence Southwesterly on present South Right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 
218 and the present Southeasterly Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58, also 
being the present Easterly city limits of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to the 
center of the Cedar River; Thence Southwesterly on the present Southeasterly 
Right-of-way line of Iowa Highway 58 to the present Southwesterly Right-of-way 
line of the Iowa Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of 
Section 18, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. Thence 
Northwesterly on the present Southwesterly Right-of-way line of the Iowa 
Northern Railway Company’s property in the Northwest 1/4 of Section 18, 
Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. to the point of beginning, all 
in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa. 
 
f) Amendment No. 2 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 
 
g) Amendment No. 3 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area did not add or remove land. 
 
h) Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 

Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, described in Amendment No. 4 
to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Resolution 
No. _21,079__ on the 7th day of May, 2018, which Amendment No. 4 Area removes the lots and 
parcels located within the area legally described as follows: 

 
That part of Section 35, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 
Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Southerly right 
of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 

-19-

Item F.1. 



 

 -12-

 thence along said Southerly right of way to the Northwest corner of Parcel 
D described in Plat of Survey recorded in File 2018-00009903 in the Office of the 
Black Hawk County Recorder; 
 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D South to the South line of 
the North 700 feet of said Section 35; 
 thence along said Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said South line 
of the North 700 feet East to the West line of the East 320 feet of the Northwest 
Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 35; 
 thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel D and along said West line of 
the East 320 feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter South to the 
Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9; 
 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 9 
South to the Northwest corner of Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13; 
 thence along the West line of said Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase 13 
South to the Northwest corner of Lot 4 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 1; 
 thence along the West line of said Lot 4 South to the Northerly right of 
way line of Technology Parkway; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 
said Section 35; 
 thence along said West line North to the Point of Beginning; 
 
and also, 
 
That part of Section 36, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal 
Meridian and that part of Section 2, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 
5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 36; 
 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Northerly right 
of way line of Viking Road, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along the East line of said Section 36 South to the Southeast corner 
of said Section 36; 
 thence along the South line of said Section 36 West to the Northeast 
corner of said Section 2; 

thence along the East line of said Section 2 South to the Northerly right of 
way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Northerly to the Southerly 
right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence Northerly to the Southwest corner of Parcel No. 1 as described in 
Land Deed Book 563 Page 674 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder, 
point being on the Southerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Parcel No. 1 Northerly to the 
Southeast corner of Parcel No. 3 as described in in Land Deed Book 559 Page 446 
in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

-20-

Item F.1. 



 

 -13-

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel No. 3 Northerly to the 
Southeasterly corner of Tract B as described in Land Deed Book 558 Page 715 in 
the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Parcel B Northerly to the South line 
of Tract A as described in said Land Deed Book 558 Page 715; 

thence along said South line East to the Southeast corner of said Tract A; 
thence along the East line of said Tract A North to the Southeast corner of 

a parcel of land described in Land Deed Book 559 Page 532 in the Office of the 
Black Hawk County Recorder; 

thence along the Easterly line of said parcel of land described in Land 
Deed Book 559 Page 532 Northerly to the Southwest corner of East Viking Plaza 
Addition; 

thence along the Westerly line of said East Viking Plaza Addition 
Northerly to the Southwesterly corner of Tract B in said East Viking Plaza 
Addition; 

thence along the Southeasterly line of said Tract B Northeasterly to the 
Northeasterly corner of said Tract B, being on the Southerly right of way line of 
Viking Road; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Point of 
Beginning; 
 
and also, 
 
South of the present North right-of-way line U.S. Highway 20, described as 
follows: 
All that part of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of 
Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying 
South of the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20 and all that part 
of the Northwest fractional ¼ and the Northeast fractional ¼ of Section 2, 
Township 88 North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian lying south of 
the present North Right-of-way line of US Highway 20, all in the City of Cedar 
Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa; 
 
And also, 

 
That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 
of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 
of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 
extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 
said Lot 20; 

-21-

Item F.1. 



 

 -14-

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 
line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 
East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 
Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 
right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 
of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 
Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 
Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 
to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 
said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 
Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 
right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Westerly to the West line of 
said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 
3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 
of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 
 

i) Amended Area means that portion of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, 
included within the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, the Expanded Industrial Park 
Urban Renewal Area Amendment No. 1 (1995), the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area 
Amendment No. 2 (2003), the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area 
(2009), and the Amendment No. 1 to Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Area, except the portions removed by Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls 
Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, which Amended Area includes the 
lots and parcels located within the area legally described in Subsections (a)-(h). 

Section 2. The taxes levied on the taxable property in the Amended Area, legally 
described in Section 1 hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, County of Black Hawk, 
Iowa, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, and all other 
taxing districts from and after the effective date of this Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter 
in this Ordinance provided. 

-22-

Item F.1. 



 

 -15-

Section 3. As to the Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area, that portion of the taxes which 
would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the taxing 
districts taxing property in such Area upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable 
property in such Area as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 1989, being January 1 of 
the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 1923, shall be allocated to and 
when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing district as taxes by or for the taxing 
district into which all other property taxes are paid.  The taxes so determined shall be referred 
herein as the "base period taxes" for such area. 

As to Expanded Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (1995) Amendment No. 1 Area, 
base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 
the assessment roll as of January 1, 1994, being the first day of the calendar year preceding the 
effective date of Ordinance No. 2122, minus the total assessed value shown on the assessment 
role as of January 1, 1994 for the taxable property removed from the area by Amendment No. 4 
to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area.   
 

As to Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2003) Amendment No. 2 Area, 
base period taxes shall be computed in the same manner using the total assessed value shown on 
the assessment roll as of January 1, 2002, being the assessment roll applicable to property in such 
area as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2461. 
 
 As to the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Urban Renewal Area (2009), that portion 
of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by or for 
each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in 
such Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of January 1, 2009, such date being January 1 of 
the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Cedar Falls, State of 
Iowa, certified to the Auditor of Black Hawk County, Iowa the amount of loans, advances, 
indebtedness, or bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue for such Area. 
 
 As to Amendment No. 1 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal 
Area, base period taxes shall be computed using the total assessed value shown on the 
assessment roll as of January 1, 2012, being the assessed value applied to property in such area 
as of January 1 of the calendar year preceding the effective date of Ordinance No. 2785. 
 

Section 4. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes for the 
Amended Area, determined for each sub-area thereof as provided in Section 3 of this Ordinance, 
shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the special tax increment fund previously 
established by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to pay the principal of and interest on loans, 
monies advanced to, or indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including 
bonds issued under authority of Section 403.9 or Section 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, incurred 
by the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban 
renewal projects undertaken within the Amended Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, as 
amended, except that (i) taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment 
levy of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2  and taxes for the 
instructional support program of a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 
257.19  (but in each case only to the extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2)); (ii) 
taxes for the payment of bonds and interest of each taxing district; (iii)  taxes imposed under 

-23-

Item F.1. 



 

 -16-

Iowa Code Section 346.27(22) related to joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any other 
exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall be collected against all taxable property within 
the Amended Area without any limitation as hereinabove provided. 

Section 5. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the areas 
of the Amended Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the areas shown 
by the assessment rolls referred to in Section 3 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes levied and 
collected upon the taxable property in the Amended Area shall be paid into the funds for the 
respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner as all other 
property taxes. 

Section 6. At such time as the loans, monies advanced, bonds and interest thereon and 
indebtedness of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 4 hereof have been 
paid, all monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Amended Area 
shall be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all 
other property. 

Section 7. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 
construed so as to continue the division of taxes from property within the various subareas, under 
the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as authorized in Ordinance No. 1923, 
2122, 2461, 2696 and 2785 as amended by this Ordinance.  Notwithstanding any provisions in 
any prior Ordinances or other documents, the provisions of this Ordinance and all prior 
Ordinances relating to the Urban Renewal Area, as amended, shall be construed to continue the 
division of taxes from property within the Area to the maximum period of time allowed by 
Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa.  In the event that any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
determined to be contrary to law it shall not affect other provisions or application of this 
Ordinance which shall at all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions of Section 403.19 
of the Code of Iowa with reference to the Amended Area and the territory contained therein. 

Section 8. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2018. 
  

 
 
  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
City Clerk 

 

 

-24-

Item F.1. 



 

 -17-

 
 
Read First Time:   May 7  , 2018  
 
 
Read Second Time: _______May 21 ______, 2018  
 
 
Read Third Time: ___________________, 2018  
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED: ____________________, 2018. 
 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and 
approved by the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2018, 
signed by the Mayor on ____________________, 2018, and published in the Waterloo-Cedar 
Falls Courier on ____________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
01465666-1\10283-159 

-25-

Item F.1. 



 



ORDINANCE NO. 2924 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, SEWERS AND 
SEWAGE DISPOSAL, OF CHAPTER 27, UTILITIES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 1, 
GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL, PROVIDING FOR AN 
INCREASE IN SEWER RENTAL FEE RATES, AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Sec. 1. Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, of Chapter 27, Utilities, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new Division 
1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, providing for an increase in sewer rental fee 
rates, and other miscellaneous changes, is enacted in lieu therefore, as follows: 

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY 

Sec. 27-26. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Contributor means any person responsible for the production of domestic, commercial or industrial 
waste which is directly or indirectly discharged into the city's sanitary sewer system.  

Sewage disposal plant means any and all units of the municipal disposal plant owned and operated 
by the city, including any and all intercepting and outlet sewers delivering or discharging sewage to or 
from the plant.  

Sewer rental means any and all rates, charges, fees or rentals levied against and payable by 
contributors.  

Water reclamation manager means the person delegated with the responsibility of the management 
and operation of the sewage disposal plant subject to such rules and regulations as the council may from 
time to time by resolution prescribe.  

Cross reference— Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2. 

Sec. 27-27. - Water reclamation division.  

The water reclamation division of the department of community development is hereby created. The 
water reclamation division shall be under the control of the water reclamation manager, who shall be 
appointed by and be directly responsible to the director of community development.  

Sec. 27-28. - Supervision of sewage disposal plant.  

The water reclamation manager shall have complete charge of the operation of the sewage disposal 
plant. The water reclamation manager shall employ and have direct charge of all employees of the 
sewage disposal plant.  

Sec. 27-29. - Sewage rental fund.  

All moneys received by the controller/city treasurer from any source on account of the sewage 
disposal plant shall be kept in a separate and distinct fund, to be known as the sewer rental fund, and 
shall be paid out by him/her only by legal checks of the city.  

-27-

Item F.2. 



Sec. 27-30. - Rental fees generally.  

(a)  Monthly rental fee: determination generally. Subject to the exceptions hereinafter provided, each 
metered dwelling which uses city water, shall pay to the city a monthly sewer rental fee, the same to 
be determined by the amount of city water used, as follows: For up to and including the first 200 
cubic feet of water used, hereinafter referred to as the "base rate," the monthly sewer rental fee shall 
be as shown in the column of the chart set forth below, entitled, "Base Rate," commencing on the 
date set forth in the corresponding row of the column entitled, "Date of Rate Change."  

For water uses over 200 cubic feet, hereinafter referred to as the "incremental rate," the monthly 
sewer rental fee shall be as shown in the column of the chart set forth below, entitled, "Incremental 
Rate," commencing on the date set forth in the corresponding row of the column entitled, "Date of 
Rate Change."  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  
SEWER RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE  

Date of Rate Change  Base Rate  Incremental Rate  

July 1, 2018  $18.52 per 200 cubic feet of water used  $3.32 per 100 cubic feet of water used  

July 1, 2019 $19.45 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.49 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

July 1, 2020 $20.42 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.66 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

July 1, 2021 $21.44 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.84 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

  

(b)  Maximum fees for residential use. Residential sewer rental fees during the months of May through 
November shall not exceed the average amount charged for usage during the previous January 
through March period.  

(c)  Reduction for low-income households. Each payor of the monthly sewer rental fee who meets the 
low-income requirement, as set by the U.S. Government, contained in the Section 8 Housing 
Assistance Program of the city, may apply annually to the director of community development for, 
and be granted, a $3.00 per month reduction in the monthly sewer rental fee for the first 200 cubic 
feet of water used.  

(d)  Users without city water service. Each user of city sanitary sewer which does not have water 
provided and metered by the city utilities shall be charged a monthly sewer rental fee which is two 
times the base rate which is provided for in subparagraph (a) of this section. That user may, 
however, through certified metering of well water for residential use or provision of receipts from a 
recognized adjoining public water jurisdiction, provide to the director of community development 
documentation of actual water usage. If water usage can be verified, that user will be charged the 
monthly sewer rental fee as provided in subparagraphs (a) and (b), above.  

(e)  Mobile home parks. Mobile home parks utilizing a central water metering system shall be charged 
the same monthly sewer rental fees for each dwelling unit connected to the public sewage disposal 
system as are provided for in subparagraph (a) of this section.  

(f)  Determination of multiple dwelling rental fees. Multiple dwellings using a single water meter shall pay 
at the same rates listed in subparagraph (a) above, with the usage for each individual dwelling unit 
determined by dividing the amount of water metered by the number of dwelling units, regardless of 
occupancy of said units.  

-28-

Item F.2. 



(g)  Determination of commercial, industrial rental fees. Commercial and industrial sewer rental fees 
shall be based on actual water usage, metered or unmetered, including water added to the sewage 
disposal system by the commercial or industrial users, at the same rates described in subparagraph 
(a) above. However, the director of community development may establish reduced sewer rental 
fees, to be reviewed on an annual basis, for commercial and industrial users which have unique 
discharges requiring very little actual treatment, such as the discharge of cooling water or boiler 
blowdown.  

(h)  Residential monthly fee for certain commercial, industrial users. Commercial and industrial users 
that use higher volumes of water in the months May through November each year exclusively for 
purposes such as watering lawns, and can demonstrate to the director of community development 
that said water does not enter the sanitary sewer system may have their sewer bills adjusted such 
that sewer user fees billed for usage May through November each year will not exceed the average 
bills for usage in the months December through April each year.  

(i)  Industrial surcharge. An industrial user, as defined in division 4, of article III, shall be surcharged at 
the rate of $0.10 for each pound of both biochemical oxygen demand, as defined in said division 4 of 
article III, and total suspended solids for all discharges to the sanitary sewer system which exceed a 
concentration of 300 milligrams per liter.  

(j)  Inclusion of state sales tax. State sales tax is computed and included in the rates included in this 
section.  

(k)  Billing adjustments. Billing adjustments may be made for any residential, commercial or industrial 
users that can demonstrate to the director of community development that water used does not enter 
the sanitary sewer system.  

(l)  Payment. All fees required to be paid by this section shall be paid at the same time the payment for 
city water service is made or on the first day of the month for those users of sewer service who do 
not use city water service. All required payments are to be made at the office of the municipal 
utilities.  

(m)  Sanitary sewer surcharge for discharge of storm water to city sanitary sewer system. The owner of 
any property in the city who fails to comply with the provisions of section 7-264 or section 7-265 of 
this Code, relating to discharge of storm water or groundwater into the city sanitary sewer system, 
shall be assessed a surcharge fee, to be added to the property owner's city sewer bill, in the amount 
of $100.00 per month, as provided in section 7-266 of this Code.  

Sec. 27-31. - Failure to pay rental fees; authority to terminate service.  

(a)  Where a consumer is a contributor of city water, or is a user of city sanitary sewer service who does 
not use city water service, the sewer rentals, rates or charges shall be subject to the following rules 
of delinquency and suspension of service:  

(1)  Whenever any of the rules and regulations of this article are violated, the sewer service shall 
be cut off and shall not be turned on again except by order of the council and water reclamation 
manager and upon payment of the expense of shutting it off and turning it on, and on such other 
terms as the council may determine upon and a satisfactory understanding with the account 
holder that no further complaint shall arise. Such sewer service shall not be discontinued unless 
prior written notice is sent to the account holder by ordinary mail, informing the account holder 
of the nature of the delinquency and affording the account holder the opportunity for a hearing 
prior to discontinuance of service. If the account holder is a tenant, and if the owner or landlord 
of the property has made a written request for notice, the notice shall also be given to the owner 
or landlord.  

(2)  In case of violation of this article, the council shall have the right to declare any payment made 
for the sewer service by the person committing such violation to be forfeited, and the service 
shall thereupon be forfeited.  

-29-

Item F.2. 



(b)  (1)  In addition to the rules of delinquency and suspension of service mentioned in subsection (a) 
of this section, the city shall have a lien upon the property served by such sanitary utility for all 
delinquent rate or rental payments in accordance with I.C.A. § 384.84.  

(2)  A lien shall not be placed upon a mobile home, modular home, or manufactured home served 
by any of the services described in this division if the mobile home, modular home, or 
manufactured home is owned by a tenant of and is located in a mobile home park or 
manufactured home community and the mobile home park or manufactured home community 
owner or manager is the account holder, unless the lease agreement specifies that the tenant is 
responsible for payment of a portion of the rates or charges billed to the account holder.  

(3)  Notwithstanding subsection (b)(2), except for mobile home parks or manufactured home 
communities where the mobile home park or manufactured home community owner or manager 
is responsible for paying the rates or charges for services described in this division, a lien shall 
not be filed against the land if the premises receiving any of the services described in this 
division are located on leased land. If the premises are located on leased land, a lien may be 
filed against the premises only. For the purposes of this division, "premises" includes a mobile 
home, modular home, or manufactured home as defined in I.C.A. § 435.1.  

(4)  Prior written notice of intent to certify a lien shall be given to the account holder of the 
delinquent account at least 30 days prior to certification. If the account holder is a tenant, and if 
the owner or landlord of the property has made a written request for notice, the notice shall also 
be given to the owner or landlord. The notice shall be sent to the appropriate persons by 
ordinary mail not less than 30 days prior to the certification of the lien to the county treasurer. 
After compliance with the foregoing provisions, the city clerk shall certify for taxation purposes 
and the establishing of the property lien to the county treasurer all delinquent rent, rate or rental 
payments, together with an administrative expense of $5.00. The lien shall not be certified to the 
county treasurer for a delinquent charge of less than $5.00. For the purpose of the certification 
and for no other purpose whatsoever, rent, rate or rental payments shall be designated as 
delinquent when the payments are shown and appear on the books carrying rent, rate or rental 
payments to have been unpaid for a period of six months following their due date.  

(c)  Where the contributor is an operator of a private water supply, failure to pay rentals shall be subject 
to similar rules as to delinquency and suspension of service, property lien, certification of 
delinquency and definition of delinquency as set out in this section.  

Secs. 27-32—27-50. - Reserved.  

INTRODUCED:     May 7, 2018    
 

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   May 7, 2018    
 

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   May 21, 2018    
 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:        
 

ADOPTED:           
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 

      James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-30-

Item F.2. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2925 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ARTICLE III, STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, OF 
CHAPTER 27, UTILITIES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW ARTICLE III, STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM, PROVIDING FOR AN INCREASE IN STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT FEES, AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Article III, Storm Water Management Program, of Chapter 27, Utilities of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new Article III, Storm Water 
Management Program, providing for an increase in storm water management fees, and other 
miscellaneous changes, is enacted in lieu therefore, as follows: 

ARTICLE III. - STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

Sec. 27-113. - Acronyms.  

The following acronyms when used in this chapter shall have the following designated meaning:  

BMP  Best Management Practice  

CFR  Code of Federal Regulations  

CWA  Clean Water Act  

FEMA  Federal Emergency Management Agency  

HHW  Household Hazardous Waste  

IDNR  Iowa Department of Natural Resources  

IDOT  Iowa Department of Transportation  

MS4  Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System  

NOI  Notice of Intent  

NOT  Notice of Termination  

NOV  Notice of Violation  

NPDES  National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System  

NPS  Non-Point Source  

-31-

Item F.3. 



NRCS  National Resource Conservation Service  

RCRA  Resource Conservation Recovery Act of 1976  

SMCRA  Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977  

SWPPP  Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan  

TMDL  Total Maximum Daily Load  

USDA  United States Department of Agriculture  

US EPA  United States Environmental Protection Agency  

USGS  United States Geodetic Survey  

 

Sec. 27-114. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Adverse impacts: Any negative impact on plant, soil, air or water resources affecting their beneficial 
uses including recreation, aesthetics, aquatic habitat, quality, and quantity.  

Allowable non-storm water discharges: Discharge from fire fighting activities that are necessary due 
to an immediate danger to life or property; fire hydrant flushing; potable water sources; water line flushing; 
uncontaminated groundwater; uncontaminated pumped ground water; crawl space pump water; natural 
springs; natural riparian habitat or wetland flows; irrigation water (except for wastewater irrigation); air 
conditioning condensation; exterior building wash water when no detergents or other surfactants are 
used; pavement wash waters where spills or leaks of toxic or hazardous materials have not occurred and 
when no detergents or other surfactants are used (unless all spilled material has been removed); diverted 
stream flows; storm sewer system cleaning water; residential or non-commercial washing of vehicles; de-
chlorinated swimming pool discharge less than one part per million (PPM) chlorine; residual street wash 
water; de-chlorinated water from reservoir discharges; foundation or footing drains where flows are not 
contaminated with process materials such as solvents (not including active groundwater dewatering 
systems); discharges specified in writing by the city engineer, or designated representative, as being 
necessary to protect public health and safety of citizens; dye-testing procedures (requires a verbal 
notification to the city engineer, or designated representative, prior to the time of the test); and any other 
water source not containing pollutants, as approved by the city engineer, or designated representative.  

Animal waste: See Pet Waste.  

Applicant: Any person, firm, or governmental agency who executes the necessary forms to procure 
official approval of a development or permit. In gaining official approval, the person, firm or governmental 
agency intends to carry out construction of a new development or re-development.  

Base flood elevation: The elevation at all locations delineating the level of flooding resulting from the 
100-year frequency flood event. The 100-year flood event has a one percent probability of being equaled 
or exceeded in any given year.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs): Schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance 
procedures and other management practices to prevent or reduce the pollution of waters of the state. 

-32-

Item F.3. 



BMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures and practices to control facility site 
runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal or drainage from raw material storage.  

Building official: City official or other designated authority charged with the administration and 
enforcement of the city building codes.  

Building permit: Permit issued for the construction, erection or alteration of a structure or building and 
the related ground and surface preparation prior to and after completion of construction, erection or 
alteration of a structure or building.  

By-pass flow: Storm water runoff from upstream properties tributary to a property's drainage system 
but not under its control.  

Calendar quarter: Each of the following periods: December through February, March through May, 
June through August, and September through November.  

Certify or certification: Formally attesting that the specific inspections and tests were performed, and 
that such inspections and tests comply with the applicable requirements of this chapter.  

Channel: Any defined river, stream, creek, brook, natural or artificial depression, ponded area, on-
stream lake or impoundment, abandoned mine, flowage, slough, ditch, conduit, culvert, gully, ravine, 
wash, or natural or manmade drainage way, which has a definite bed and bank or shoreline, in or into 
which surface or groundwater flows, either perennially or intermittently.  

Channel modification: The alteration of a channel by changing the physical dimensions or materials 
of its bed or banks. Channel modification includes, but is not limited to, damming, placement of riprap (or 
other armoring), filling, widening, deepening, straightening, relocating, lining, and significant removal of 
bottom or woody rooted vegetation. Channel modification does not include the clearing of debris or 
removal of trash.  

City engineer: The professional engineer registered in the State of Iowa who is designated as city 
engineer by the city council.  

Clean Water Act (CWA): The Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.), and 
any subsequent amendments thereto. (Formerly referred to as the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972).  

Clearing: Any activity which removes vegetative ground cover.  

Commercial: Pertaining to any business, trade, industry, or other activity engaged in for profit.  

Compensatory storage: An artificially excavated, hydraulically equivalent volume of storage within 
the floodplain used to balance the loss of natural flood storage capacity when fill or structures are placed 
within the floodplain.  

Conduit: Any channel, pipe, sewer or culvert used for the conveyance or movement of water, 
whether open or closed.  

Construction site: Any location where clearing, grading, filling, paving, construction, or other activity 
occurs related to a change or improvement of property.  

Contaminated: Containing harmful quantities of pollutants.  

Contractor: Any person or firm performing or managing construction work at a construction site, 
including any construction manager, general contractor or subcontractor. Also includes, but is not limited 
to, earthwork, paving, building, plumbing, mechanical, electrical or landscaping contractors, and material 
suppliers delivering materials to the site.  

Department: The Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) or an authorized representative.  

Detention basin: A facility constructed or modified to provide for the temporary storage of storm 
water runoff and the controlled release of this runoff at a prescribed rate during and after a flood or storm.  

Detention time: The amount of time storm water is held within a detention basin.  

-33-

Item F.3. 



Developed property: Land that is altered from a natural state by grading and/or construction activity 
for the purpose of constructing residential, commercial, industrial, or institutional facilities such that the 
hydrology of the property is affected.  

Development or redevelopment: Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, 
including but not limited to building or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, 
excavation, or drilling operations.  

Discharge: The release of water, and any elements, compounds and particles contained within or 
upon released water, from property owned or controlled by any person.  

Discharger: Any person who causes, allows, permits, or is otherwise responsible for a discharge, 
including, without limitation, any owner of a construction site or industrial facility.  

Domestic sewage: Sewage originating primarily from kitchen, bathroom and laundry sources, 
including waste from food preparation, dishwashing, garbage grinding, toilets, baths, showers and sinks.  

Drainage plan: A plan, including engineering drawings and supporting calculations, which describes 
the existing storm water drainage system and environmental features, including grading, as well as 
proposed alterations or changes to the drainage system and environment of a property. Also see Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).  

Dry basin: A detention basin designed to drain after temporary storage of storm water flows and to 
normally be dry over much of its bottom area.  

Earthwork: The disturbance of soils on a site associated with clearing, grading, or excavation 
activities.  

Erosion: The general process whereby soil or earth is moved by rainfall, flowing water, wind or wave 
action.  

Excavation: Any act by which organic matter, earth, sand, gravel, rock or any other similar material is 
cut into, dug, quarried, uncovered, removed, displaced, re-located or bulldozed, and shall include the 
conditions resulting from such actions.  

Excess storm water runoff: The volume and rate of flow of storm water discharged from a new 
development or re-development, which is or will be in excess of that volume and rate which existed 
before development or re-development.  

Existing grade: The vertical location of the existing ground surface prior to excavation or filling.  

Facility: An entity which discharges storm water.  

Fertilizer: A substance or compound that contains an essential plant nutrient element in a form 
available to plants and is used primarily for its essential plant nutrient element content in promoting or 
stimulating growth of a plant or improving the quality of a crop, or a mixture of two or more fertilizers.  

Fill: Any act by which earth, sand, gravel, rock, or any other material is deposited, placed, replaced, 
pushed, dumped, pulled, transported or moved by man to a new location, and shall include the conditions 
resulting therefrom.  

Final grade: The vertical location of the ground surface after grading work is completed in 
accordance with the plans.  

Fire protection water: Any water, and any substances or materials contained therein, used by any 
person to control or extinguish a fire, or to inspect or test fire equipment.  

Garbage: Animal and vegetable waste materials from the handling, preparation, cooking or 
consumption of food, including waste materials from markets, storage facilities, and the handling and sale 
of produce and other food products. Also, refuse and other unwanted and useless material.  

Grading: Any act of excavation or fill of land surface to a desired slope or elevation, or any 
combination thereof, and shall include the conditions resulting from any excavation or fill.  

-34-

Item F.3. 



Groundwater: Any water residing below the surface of the ground or percolating into or out of the 
ground.  

Harmful quantity: The amount of any substance that the appropriate official determines will cause an 
adverse impact to storm drainage system or will contribute to the failure of the jurisdiction to meet the 
water quality based requirements of the NPDES permit for discharges from the MS4.  

Hazardous substance: Any substance listed in Table 302.4 of 40 CFR Part 302.  

Hazardous waste: Any substance identified or listed as a hazardous waste by the EPA pursuant to 
40 CFR Part 261.  

Household hazardous waste (HHW): Any material generated in a household (including single and 
multiple residences) that would be classified as hazardous by the IDNR or US EPA or by any rule or 
regulation promulgated by either agency.  

Hydrograph: A graph showing, for a given location on a stream or conduit, the flow rate with respect 
to time.  

Hydrograph method: A method that estimates runoff volume and runoff hydrographs for a point of 
interest by generating hydrographs for individual sub areas, combining them, and routing them through 
stream lengths and reservoir structures. Factors such as rainfall amount and distribution, runoff curve 
number, time of concentration, and travel time are included.  

Illegal discharge: See Illicit Discharge below.  

Illicit connection: Any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which allow an 
illicit discharge to enter the MS4.  

Illicit discharge: Any discharge to the MS4 that is prohibited under this chapter of the Code of 
Ordinances.  

Impervious surface: A hard-surfaced area that prevents or retards the entry of water into the soil. An 
impervious surface may cause water to run off the surface in greater quantities, or at an increased rate of 
flow, than was present under natural conditions. Impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to, roof 
tops, asphalt or concrete streets, sidewalks, driveway paving, parking lots, walkways, patio areas, storage 
areas, gravel, bituminous substances or other surfaces which similarly affect the natural infiltration, or 
runoff patterns, of real property in the natural state with existing ground cover.  

Industrial waste (commercial waste): Any wastes produced as a by-product of any industrial, 
institutional or commercial process or operation, other than domestic sewage.  

Infiltration: The passage or movement of water into the ground.  

Land disturbing activity: The process of disturbing existing groundcover, excavation of existing site 
material, or the placement of fill material on a site, related to a man-made change to improved or 
unimproved real estate, including but not limited to building or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, 
grading, paving, excavation, or drilling operations.  

Loessal soil: Sediment, commonly non-stratified and unconsolidated, composed predominately of 
silt-sized particles with accessory clay and sand.  

Lot: A parcel of land of at least sufficient size to meet minimum zoning requirements for use, 
coverage and area to provide such yards and other open space as are herein required. No portion of an 
established floodway area lying within a lot or any access drive through a property shall be used in 
computing the number of dwelling units to be constructed. Such lot shall have frontage on a public street 
or private street and may consist of:  

(a)  A single lot of record;  

(b)  A portion of a lot of record;  

(c)  A combination of complete lots of record, of complete lots of record and portions of lots of 
record, or of portions of lots of record; and  

-35-

Item F.3. 



(d)  A parcel of land described by metes and bounds;  

Provided that in no case of division or combination shall any residential lot or parcel be created 
which does not meet the requirements of this chapter.  

Major drainage system: That portion of a drainage system needed to store and convey flows beyond 
the capacity of the minor drainage system.  

May: Signifies an act that is discretionary.  

Mechanical fluid: Any fluid used in the operation and maintenance of machinery, vehicles and any 
other equipment, including lubricants, antifreeze, petroleum products, oil and fuel.  

Minor drainage system: Portion of a drainage system designed for the convenience of the public. It 
consists of street gutters, storm sewers, small open channels and swales.  

Mitigation: Activity necessary when the prescribed controls are not sufficient and additional 
measures are required to offset the development, including those measures necessary to minimize the 
negative effects which storm water drainage and development activities might have on the public health, 
safety and welfare. Examples of mitigation include, but are not limited to, compensatory storage, soil 
erosion and sedimentation control, and channel restoration.  

Mobile commercial cosmetic cleaning (or mobile washing): Power washing, steam cleaning, and any 
other method of mobile cosmetic cleaning of vehicles and/or exterior surfaces, engaged in for commercial 
purposes or related to a commercial activity.  

Municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4): The conveyance or system of conveyances, 
including storm sewers, roadways, roads with drainage systems, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, 
constructed channels and storm drains, owned or operated by the city.  

Natural: Conditions resulting from physical, chemical, and biological processes without intervention 
by man.  

Natural drainage: Channels formed in the existing surface topography of the earth prior to changes 
made by unnatural causes.  

NPDES: The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.  

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Phase II Permit: A permit issued by the 
US EPA or by a state under authority delegated pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b) that authorizes the 
discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States, whether the permit is applicable on an individual, 
group, or general area-wide basis.  

Non-storm water discharge: Any discharge that to the MS4 that is not composed entirely of storm 
water.  

Notice of violation: A written notice detailing any violations of this chapter and any action expected of 
the violators.  

Oil: Any kind of oil in any form, including but not limited to petroleum, fuel oil, crude oil, synthetic oil, 
motor oil, cooking oil, grease, sludge, oil refuse, and oil mixed with waste.  

One hundred-year event: A rainfall, runoff, or flood event having a one percent probability of being 
equaled or exceeded in any given year. Twenty-four-hour storm duration is assumed unless otherwise 
noted.  

One-year event: A rainfall, runoff, or flood event having a 100 percent probability of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. Twenty-four-hour storm duration is assumed unless otherwise noted.  

Outfall: The point at which water or any other material leaves or may leave the MS4 and also means 
the point at which water or any other material leaves or may leave an enclosed conveyance that is part of 
the MS4 and enters an open conveyance that is also part of the MS4.  

Owner: The person who owns a facility, part of a facility, or land.  

-36-

Item F.3. 



Parcel: A contiguous lot or tract of land under one ownership. A lot or tract of land is land intended as 
a unit for the purpose of use, development or transfer of ownership.  

Peak flow: The maximum rate of flow of water at a given point in a channel or conduit.  

Permittee: The city.  

Person: Any individual, partnership, firm, company, corporation, association, joint stock company, 
trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other legal entity, or their legal representatives, agents, or 
assigns, including all federal, state, and local governmental entities.  

Pesticide: A substance or mixture of substances intended to prevent, destroy, repel, or migrate any 
pest.  

Pet waste (or animal waste): Excrement and other waste from domestic animals.  

Petroleum product: A product that is obtained from distilling and processing crude oil and that is 
capable of being used as a fuel or lubricant in a motor vehicle or aircraft, including motor oil, motor 
gasoline, gasohol, other alcohol-blended fuels, aviation gasoline, kerosene, distillate fuel oil, and #1 and 
#2 diesel.  

Point source: Any discernible, confined, and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to, any 
pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal 
feeding operation, landfill leachate collection system, vessel or other floating craft from which pollutants 
are or may be discharged. This term does not include return flows from irrigated agriculture or agricultural 
storm water runoff.  

Pollutant: Any item that may alter storm water from a natural state. Pollutants may include, but are 
not limited to, paints, varnishes, solvents, oil, automotive fluids, solid wastes, yard wastes, refuse, 
rubbish, garbage, litter, discarded or abandoned objects, pesticides, herbicides, fertilizers, sewage, fecal 
coliform, heavy metals, animal wastes, sediment from construction sites, and noxious or offensive matter 
of any kind.  

Pollution: The alteration of the physical, thermal, chemical, or biological quality of, or the 
contamination of, any water that renders the water harmful, detrimental, or injurious to humans, animal 
life, plant life, property, or public health, safety, or welfare, or impairs the usefulness or the public 
enjoyment of the water for any lawful or reasonable purpose.  

Positive drainage: Provision for overland paths for all areas of a property including depression areas 
that may also be drained by storm sewer.  

Potable water: Water that has been treated to drinking water standards and is safe for human 
consumption.  

Private drainage system: All privately or publicly owned ground, surfaces, structures or systems, 
excluding the MS4, that contribute to or convey storm water, including but not limited to roofs, gutters, 
downspouts, lawns, driveways, pavement, roads, streets, curbs, gutters, ditches, inlets, drains, catch 
basins, pipes, tunnels, culverts, channels, detention basins, ponds, draws, swales, streams and any 
ground surface.  

Public improvement plans: Engineering drawings subject to approval by the city engineer for the 
construction of public improvements.  

Qualified person: A person who possesses the required certification, license, or appropriate 
competence, skills, and ability as demonstrated by sufficient education, training, and/or experience to 
perform a specific activity in a timely and complete manner consistent with the regulatory requirements 
and generally accepted industry standards for such activity.  

Release: To dump, spill, leak, pump, pour, emit, empty, inject, leach, dispose or otherwise introduce 
into the storm drainage system.  

Re-developed property: Developed property that is altered or expanded by grading and/or 
construction activity at a time period following initial construction.  

-37-

Item F.3. 



Retention facility: Facility designed to hold storm water for a sufficient length of time to provide for 
the storm water to be consumed by evaporation into the air and/or infiltration into the immediate soil.  

Rubbish: Solid waste, including ashes, that consist of (i) combustible waste materials, including 
paper, rags, cartons, wood, excelsior, furniture, rubber, plastics, yard trimmings, leaves, and similar 
materials; and/or (ii) noncombustible waste materials, including glass, crockery, tin cans, aluminum cans, 
metal furniture, and similar materials that do not burn at ordinary incinerator temperatures (1,600 to 1,800 
degrees Fahrenheit).  

Sanitary sewage: The domestic sewage and/or industrial waste that is discharged into the city 
sanitary sewer system and passes through the sanitary sewer system to the city sewage treatment plant 
for treatment.  

Sanitary sewer: The system of pipes, conduits, and other conveyances which carry industrial waste 
and domestic sewage from residential dwellings, commercial buildings, industrial and manufacturing 
facilities and institutions, whether treated or untreated, to the city sewage treatment plant (and to which 
storm water, surface water, and groundwater are not intentionally admitted).  

Sediment: Soil (or mud) that has been disturbed or eroded and transported naturally by water, wind, 
gravity, or equipment tracking (tires, vehicles).  

Sedimentation: The process that deposits soils, debris, and other materials either on other ground 
surfaces or in bodies of water or storm water drainage systems.  

Septic tank waste: Any domestic sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets, 
campers, trailers, septic tanks and aerated tanks.  

Shall: Signifies an act that is mandatory.  

Significant materials: Includes, but is not limited to, raw materials; fuels; materials such as solvents, 
detergents, and plastic pellets; finished materials such as metallic products; raw materials used in food 
processing or production; hazardous substances designated under Section 101(14) of Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA); any chemical the facility is required 
to report pursuant to Section 313 of Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA); 
fertilizers; pesticides; and waste products such as ashes, slag and sludge that have the potential to be 
released with storm water discharges.  

Site: The land or water area where any facility or activity is physically located or conducted, including 
adjacent land used in connection with the facility or activity.  

Slope disturbance line: The line which delineates relatively level building areas from areas where 
slopes exceed seven percent and where special precautions must be taken.  

Small quantity generator waste: Any hazardous waste generated by a small quantity generator as 
defined by the US EPA.  

Solid waste: Any garbage, rubbish, refuse and other discarded material, including solid, liquid, 
semisolid, or contained gaseous material, resulting from industrial, municipal, commercial, construction, 
mining or agricultural operations, and residential, community and institutional activities.  

Storm sewer: A closed conduit for conveying collected storm water.  

Storm water: Storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage consisting 
entirely of water from any form of natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation.  

Storm water discharge associated with industrial activity: The discharge from any conveyance that is 
used for collecting and conveying storm water and that is directly related to manufacturing, processing or 
raw materials storage areas at an industrial plant. The term does not include discharges from facilities or 
activities excluded from the NPDES program. For the categories of industries identified in paragraphs (1) 
through (10) of this definition, the term includes, but is not limited to, storm water discharges from 
industrial plant yards; immediate access roads and rail lines used or traveled by carriers of raw materials, 
manufactured products, waste material, or by-products used or created by the facility; material handling 
sites; refuse sites; sites used for the application or disposal of process waste waters (as defined at 40 

-38-

Item F.3. 



CFR Part 401); sites used for the storage and maintenance of material handling equipment; sites used for 
residual treatment, storage, or disposal; shipping and receiving areas; manufacturing buildings; storage 
areas (including tank farms) for raw materials, and intermediate and finished products; and areas where 
industrial activity has taken place in the past and significant materials remain and are exposed to storm 
water. For the categories of industries identified in paragraph (11) of this definition, the term includes only 
storm water discharges from all areas (except access roads and rail lines) listed in the previous sentence 
where material handling equipment or activities, raw materials, intermediate products, final products, 
waste materials, by-products, or industrial machinery are exposed to storm water. For the purposes of this 
paragraph, material handling activities include the storage, loading and unloading, transportation, or 
conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, finished product, by-product or waste product. The 
term excludes areas located on plant lands separate from the plant's industrial activities, such as office 
buildings and accompanying parking lots, as long as the drainage from the excluded areas is not mixed 
with storm water drained from the above-described areas. Industrial facilities (including industrial facilities 
that are federally, state, or municipally-owned or operated that meet the description of the facilities listed 
in paragraphs (1) to (11) of this definition) include those facilities designated under 40 CFR § 
122.26(a)(1)(v). The following categories of facilities are considered to be engaging in "industrial activity" 
for purposes of this subsection:  

(1)  Facilities subject to storm water effluent limitations guidelines, new source performance 
standards, or toxic pollutant effluent standards under 40 CFR Subchapter N (except facilities 
with toxic pollutant effluent standards that are exempted under category (11) of this definition);  

(2)  Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 24 (except 2434), 26 (except 265 and 
267), 28 (except 283 and 285), 29, 311, 32 (except 323), 33, 3441, or 373;  

(3)  Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 10 through 14 (mineral industry) 
including active or inactive mining operations (except for areas of coal mining operations no 
longer meeting the definition of a reclamation area under 40 CFR 434.11(l) because the 
performance bond issued to the facility by the appropriate SMCRA authority has been released, 
or except for areas of non-coal mining operations that have been released from applicable state 
or federal reclamation requirements after December 17, 1990) and oil and gas exploration, 
production, processing, or treatment operations, or transmission facilities that discharge storm 
water contaminated by contact with, or that has come into contact with, any overburden, raw 
material, intermediate products, finished products, by-products or waste products located on the 
site of such operations; inactive mining operations are mining sites that are not being actively 
mined, but that have an identifiable owner/operator;  

(4)  Hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities, including those that are operating 
under interim status or a permit under Subtitle C of RCRA;  

(5)  Landfills, land application sites, and open dumps that have received any industrial wastes 
(waste that is received from any of the facilities described under this subsection) including those 
that are subject to regulation under Subtitle D of RCRA;  

(6)  Facilities involved in the recycling of materials, including metal scrap yards, battery reclaimers, 
salvage yards, and automobile junkyards, including but limited to those classified as Standard 
Industrial Classification 5015 or 5093;  

(7)  Steam electric power generating facilities, including coal handling sites;  

(8)  Transportation facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 40, 41, 42 (except 
4221-4225), 43, 44, 45 or 5171 that have vehicle maintenance shops, equipment cleaning 
operations, or airport deicing operations. Only those portions of the facility that are either 
involved in vehicle maintenance (including vehicle rehabilitation, mechanical repairs, painting, 
fueling, and lubrication), equipment cleaning operations, airport deicing operations, or that are 
otherwise identified under paragraphs (1) to (7) or (9) to (11) of this subsection are associated 
with industrial activity;  

(9)  Treatment works treating domestic sewage or any other sewage sludge or wastewater 
treatment device or system, used in the storage treatment, recycling, and reclamation of 

-39-

Item F.3. 



municipal or domestic sewage, including land dedicated to the disposal of sewage sludge that 
are located within the confines of the facility, with a design flow of 1.0 mgd or more, or required 
to have an approved pretreatment program under 40 CFR Part 403. Not included are farm 
lands, domestic gardens or lands used for sludge management where sludge is beneficially 
reused and that are not physically located in the confines of the facility, or areas that are in 
compliance with 40 CFR Part 503;  

(10)  Construction activity including clearing, grading and excavation activities that result in the 
disturbance of one acre or more of total land area or which result in the disturbance of less than 
one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development or sale of one acre or more;  

(11)  Facilities under Standard Industrial Classifications 20, 21, 22, 23, 2434, 25, 265, 267, 27, 283, 
285, 30, 31 (except 311), 323, 34 (except 3441), 35, 36, 37 (except 373), 38, 39, or 4221-4225 
(and that are not otherwise included within categories (1) to (10) above).  

Storm water drainage system: Any publicly or privately owned or operated surface, system, facility, 
structure, improvement, development, equipment, property or interest therein, or other structural or 
nonstructural element made, constructed, used or acquired, for the purpose of collecting, containing, 
storing, conveying and controlling storm water, including but not limited to storm sewers, curbs, street 
drains, conduits, lakes, rivers, creeks, other natural or manmade channels, pipes, culverts and detention 
ponds.  

Storm water management fee: Fee levied within the boundaries of the storm water drainage system 
district for use in the development and daily maintenance of the city's storm water management program 
and the city's storm sewer system.  

Storm water management program: Overall strategy and plan for the management of storm water 
drainage within the city as outlined originally in the city's notice of intent dated March 2003.  

Storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP): A document that describes the Best Management 
Practices to be implemented at a site, to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants.  

Storm water runoff: That portion of rainfall that drains into the storm sewer drainage system.  

Stream: Any river, creek, brook, branch, flowage, ravine, or natural or man-made drainage way 
which has a definite bed and banks or shoreline, in or into which surface or groundwater flows, either 
perennially or intermittently.  

Stripping: Any activity which removes the vegetative surface cover, including trees, by spraying or 
clearing, and storage or removal of topsoil.  

Subdivision development: Includes activities associated with the platting of any parcel of land into 
two or more lots and includes all construction activity taking place thereon.  

Surface water: Water bodies and any water temporarily residing on the surface of the ground, 
including oceans, lakes, reservoirs, rivers, ponds, streams, puddles, channelized flow and runoff.  

Ten-year event: A runoff, rainfall, or flood event having a ten percent probability of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. Twenty-four-hour storm duration is assumed unless otherwise noted.  

Time of concentration: The elapsed time for storm water to flow from the most hydraulically remote 
point in a drainage basin to a particular point of interest in that watershed.  

Tributary watershed: All of the land surface area that contributes runoff to a given point.  

Two-year event: A runoff, rainfall, or flood event having two percent probability of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year. Twenty-four-hour storm duration is assumed unless otherwise noted.  

Uncontaminated: Not containing harmful quantities of pollutants.  

Used motor oil (or used oil): Any oil that as a result of use, storage, or handling, has become 
unsuitable for its original purpose because of impurities or the loss of original properties.  

Used oil: See Used Motor Oil.  

-40-

Item F.3. 



Utility agency: Private utility companies, city departments, or contractors working for private utility 
companies or city departments, engaged in the construction or maintenance of utility distribution lines and 
services, including water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, electric, gas, telephone, television and 
communication services.  

Vacant: Land on which there are no structures or only structures which are secondary to the use or 
maintenance of the land itself.  

Waste water: Any water or other liquid, other than uncontaminated storm water, discharged from a 
facility.  

Water quality standard: The designation of a body or segment of surface water in the State for 
desirable uses and the narrative and numerical criteria deemed by state or federal regulatory standards to 
be necessary to protect those uses.  

Waters of the state: Any river, stream, lake, pond, marsh, watercourse, waterway, well, spring, 
reservoir, aquifer, irrigation system, drainage system and any other body or accumulation of water, 
surface or underground, natural or artificial, public or private, which are contained within, flow through or 
border upon the state or any portion thereof, but not including any waters of the United States.  

Waters of the United States: All waters which are currently used, were used in the past, or may be 
susceptible to use in interstate or foreign commerce, including all waters which are subject to the ebb and 
flow of the tide; all interstate waters, including interstate wetlands; all other waters the use, degradation, 
or destruction of which would affect or could affect interstate or foreign commerce; all impoundments of 
waters otherwise defined as waters of the United States under this definition; all tributaries of waters 
identified in this definition; all wetlands adjacent to waters identified in this definition; and any waters 
within the federal definition of "Waters of the United States" at 40 CFR Section 122.2; but not including 
any waste treatment systems treatment ponds, or lagoons designed to meet the requirements of the 
Federal Clean Water Act.  

Watershed: All land area drained by, or contributing water to, the same channel, lake, marsh, storm 
water facility, groundwater or area of depression.  

Wet basin: A detention basin designed to maintain a permanent pool of water after the temporary 
storage of storm water runoff.  

Wetlands: Those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or groundwater at a frequency 
and duration sufficient to support, and under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of 
vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, 
marshes, bogs, and similar areas. For general, but not inclusive locations of designated wetlands refer to 
mapping prepared jointly by the U.S. Department of Interior and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.  

Yard waste: Leaves, grass clippings, tree limbs, brush, soil, rocks or debris that result from 
landscaping, gardening, yard maintenance or land clearing operations.  

Sec. 27-115. - Purpose, intent and objectives.  

(a)  The purpose of this article and other ordinances adopted under this chapter is to address mandates 
of the federal government, including but not limited to the Clean Water Act and National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Phase II permit regulations regarding the desired reduction 
of pollution in storm water runoff.  

(b)  The intent of this article and other ordinances adopted under this chapter is to establish policies to 
comprehensively manage and reduce the potential for storm water runoff pollution in a safe and 
economical manner within the city, for the purpose of promoting the health, safety and general 
welfare of the population, and for the protection of property. This article is also intended to provide 
for the study of, design, operation, construction, equipping, and maintenance of the storm water 
drainage system within the city limits.  

(c)  Following are objectives of the storm water management program:  

-41-

Item F.3. 



(1)  To maintain and improve the quality of water impacted by the storm drainage system of the 
city,  

(2)  Maintain emergency vehicle movement during storm or flood events,  

(3)  Protect, maintain and enhance the environment of the city, and the short-term and long-term 
public health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the city,  

(4)  Reduce pollutant discharge to the city's storm sewer system from construction sites, as well as 
the discharge of pollutants from industrial, commercial and residential areas of the city,  

(5)  Preserve the value of existing buildings and other assets by developing infrastructure that will 
assist in the reduction of storm event related losses,  

(6)  Assure that new developments and redevelopments do not increase flood or drainage potential 
or create unstable conditions susceptible to erosion,  

(7)  Facilitate compliance of construction site permits with regard to state and federal standards,  

(8)  Preserve the city's watercourses in good condition,  

(9)  Address and minimize obstruction of the city's watercourses,  

(10)  Enhance urban water resource management techniques, including both the reduction of 
pollution, and the enhancement of the urban environment, required by the NPDES permit and 
such other regulations of the city, state and federal government,  

(11)  Maintain temporary and permanent public storm water storage facilities within the city in good 
operational condition.  

(12)  Promote public awareness of the impact of improper discharge of garbage, hazardous 
substances and sediment to the storm water drainage system,  

(13)  Encourage the recycling and proper disposal of household hazardous wastes, and  

(14)  Maintain and improve the quality of the community water into which the storm water outfalls 
flow, including, without limitation, the lakes, rivers, streams, ponds, wetlands, sinkholes, and 
groundwater of the city, waters of the state and waters of the United States. 

Sec. 27-116. - Duties and authority of the city engineer in general.  

(a)  The city engineer, or designated representative, shall exercise all lawful powers necessary and 
appropriate to administer the storm water management program. The duties and authority herein 
described are in addition to other applicable legal duties and authority. The duties and authority of 
the city engineer, or designated representative, shall include, but are not limited to:  

(1)  Administration of the regulations contained in the NPDES permit and in this chapter of the 
Code,  

(2)  Development and administration of all phases of a comprehensive storm water management 
program, including, establishing, studying, planning, designing, developing, acquiring land for, 
constructing, administering, operating, improving, maintaining, and reconstructing the city's 
storm sewer system as necessary,  

(3)  Administration of the accounting, budgeting, record-keeping and support personnel necessary 
for the efficient operation of the storm water management program,  

(4)  Development of educational materials to increase public awareness that would improve the 
public's knowledge and reduce the introduction of pollution to the storm water drainage system 
by the general public,  

(5)  Coordinate enforcement of the regulations contained in this article and other ordinances 
adopted under this chapter with other city departments,  

-42-

Item F.3. 



(6)  Seek the cooperation of counties and municipalities in communities adjacent to the city with the 
goal of reducing storm water drainage system flooding,  

(7)  Cooperate with other affected political jurisdictions in preparing and implementing master 
drainage plans,  

(8)  Provide an exchange of information between the public and city employees on flooding areas 
and storm water drainage problems within the city,  

(9)  Perform studies and evaluation required to establish, maintain and/or modify the storm water 
management program,  

(10)  Require the preservation and enhancement of certain natural environmental features,  

(11)  Require submittal of appropriate federal, state and local permitting to perform work within the 
city limits,  

(12)  Review the installation of drainage improvements in new developments and in 
redevelopments,  

(13)  Administration of a program to periodically review erosion control features placed within new 
construction sites,  

(14)  Administration of a program to periodically review erosion control features placed during initial 
construction to ensure that they remain in good condition and are not removed without proper 
authorization,  

(15)  Recommend to the city council the establishment, and periodic adjustment of, storm water 
management fees,  

(16)  Review and recommend modification to the collection procedure for storm water management 
fees,  

(17)  Hear and consider challenges to the application of this article, the application of other 
ordinances adopted under this chapter, and the calculation of storm water management fees, 
and  

(18)  Recommend to the mayor and the city council policies for establishing additional storm water 
drainage services, preserving or expanding existing services and making changes in service for 
the benefit of the city.  

Sec. 27-117. - City council discretion to provide for, and approve improvements to, the storm 
water drainage system.  

(a)  Determination of storm water services to be provided by the city, and construction of storm water 
facilities and improvements to the storm water drainage system, shall be made at the sole discretion 
of the city council.  

(b)  The city engineer, or designated representative, shall recommend storm water services to be 
provided by the city, and construction of the storm water facilities and improvements to the storm 
water drainage system, to the city council based upon engineering analysis, taking into consideration 
frequency of flooding events, potential loss of life, potential property damage, effect upon the general 
public and other factors affecting the purpose of this chapter. 

Sec. 27-118. - Storm water management authority.  

(a)  All areas within the city limits of the city are hereby declared and designated as a storm water 
drainage system district within the meaning and intent of, and for the purposes authorized by, § 
384.84 of the Code of Iowa. Said district shall be governed by a storm water management authority.  

(b)  In furtherance of the purposes for which a storm water drainage system district is authorized, and to 
protect and promote the public health, safety, welfare, and convenience of the city and its citizens, 
charges shall be levied upon and collected from the owners of all real estate that discharges storm 

-43-

Item F.3. 



water, directly or indirectly, to the storm water drainage system. The proceeds of such charges shall 
be deposited in a storm water management enterprise fund and used for purposes authorized by this 
article.  

(c)  The city council shall be the governing body of the storm water management authority, and the 
authority shall be under the direction, management and control of the city engineer. The city 
engineer shall oversee the daily operation of the storm water management authority, shall enforce 
the provisions of this article and all other ordinances adopted under this chapter, and shall carry out 
the policy directives of the city council acting in its role as governing body of the storm water 
management authority.  

Sec. 27-119. - Storm water management enterprise fund.  

(a)  A storm water management enterprise fund shall be established and maintained for the purpose of 
identifying, receiving and controlling all revenues and expenses attributable to the city's storm water 
management program, and to meet applicable local, state and federal regulations, including, but not 
limited to, the city's NPDES permit requirements. Storm water charges, loans, grants or funds 
received for the administration, operation, construction and improvement of the city storm water 
drainage system and facilities and the city's storm water management program shall be deposited in 
such fund.  

(b)  The following expenditures shall be acceptable uses of storm water management enterprise funds:  

(1)  NPDES permit fees,  

(2)  Development of public outreach and education materials,  

(3)  Costs associated with public involvement and participation related to the storm water 
management program,  

(4)  Storm water policy development assistance,  

(5)  Illicit discharge detection and elimination procedures, equipment, testing, and investigation,  

(6)  Water collection and sampling fees and related equipment,  

(7)  Planning, design, engineering, construction, maintenance, operation, and improvement of 
drainage services, facilities and structures, which shall include but are not limited to conduits, 
drains, manholes, storm water detention devices, flow impediments, ponds, ditches, sloughs, 
streams, filter strips, rip-raps, and erosion control devices,  

(8)  Construction site and post-construction site inspection costs,  

(9)  Staff time related to the storm water management program,  

(10)  Employee training, and  

(11)  Consulting fees related to the storm water management program and construction of storm 
water related projects.  

(c)  Additional expenditures and disbursements from the storm water management enterprise fund shall 
be at the direction and discretion of the city engineer, or designated representative, with approval of 
the city council.  

Sec. 27-120. - Establishment of storm water management fee.  

(a)  Monthly fee. Subject to the exemptions provided for in section 27-121, each owner or tenant of 
property within the city shall pay to the city a monthly storm water management fee, as follows:  

(1)  Residential property . Each single-unit residential dwelling shall be assessed a fee in 
accordance with the following table: 

 

-44-

Item F.3. 



Effective Date of Rate Rate 

July 1, 2006 $3.00 per month 

July 1, 2018 $3.15 per month 

July 1, 2019 $3.31 per month 

July 1, 2020 $3.48 per month 

July 1, 2021 $3.65 per month 

 

For every two-unit and multi-unit residential property, a fee in accordance with the following 
table  shall be assessed to each individual dwelling unit located on said property:  

Effective Date of Rate Rate 

July 1, 2006 $3.00 per month 

July 1, 2018 $3.15 per month 

July 1, 2019 $3.31 per month 

July 1, 2020 $3.48 per month 

July 1, 2021 $3.65 per month 

 

(2)  Commercial, industrial, institutional or other non-residential property . Each commercial, 
industrial, institutional or other non-residential property shall be assessed a base fee in 
accordance with the following table, plus an additional fee in accordance with the following table  
for the first 10,000 square feet, or any part thereof, of impervious surface (as such term is 
defined in section 27-114(55) of this article), and a fee in accordance with the following table  for 
each additional 10,000 square feet, or any part thereof, of impervious surface, located on the 
property.  

Effective Date of Rate Base Rate 1st 10,000 sq. ft of 
impervious area 

Each additional 10,000 sq. ft of 
impervious area 

July 1, 2006 $3.00 per month $5.00 per month $5.00 per month 

July 1, 2018 $3.15 per month $5.25 per month $5.25 per month 

July 1, 2019 $3.31 per month $5.51 per month $5.51 per month 

July 1, 2020 $3.48 per month $5.79 per month $5.79 per month 

July 1, 2021 $3.65 per month $6.08 per month $6.08 per month 

 

(3)  Mixed uses . For each property which has mixed residential, commercial, industrial, institutional 
or other non-residential uses located on the same property, the residential portions shall be 
assessed the residential rate, and the commercial, industrial, institutional or other non-
residential portions shall be assessed the commercial, industrial, institutional or other non-
residential rate, as set forth in this subsection.  

(b)  Effective date . Storm water management fees shall be assessed beginning on July 1, 2006, and 
shall be billed and paid on a monthly basis.  

-45-

Item F.3. 



(c)  Inclusion of state sales tax. State sales tax is computed and included in the rates set forth in this 
section.  

(d)  Billing adjustments. Billing adjustments may be made for any residential, commercial, industrial, 
institutional or other non-residential user that can demonstrate to the city engineer that storm water 
from that owner's property does not directly or indirectly enter the MS4 of the city.  

(e)  Payment. All storm water management fees required to be paid by this section shall be paid at the 
same time the payment for city water service is made, or on the first day of the month for those users 
of sewer service who do not use city water service, or for those property owners whose property is 
served by neither city water nor city sewer service. All required payments are to be made at the 
office of the municipal utilities. Amounts collected shall be deposited in the storm water management 
enterprise fund for use as authorized by this article.  

(f)  Periodic review . The storm water management fees provided for in this section shall be reviewed by 
the city council at least annually, and shall be revised as necessary to ensure that such fees 
generate sufficient revenues to pay all costs and expenses of operation and maintenance of the 
city's storm water management program created under this article, including capital improvements, 
debt service and including but not limited to those expenditures described in section 27-119(b), and 
to ensure that such costs are properly apportioned among the users and classes of users identified 
in this section.  

(g)  Reduction for low-income households. The owner or occupant of every household unit which meets 
the low-income requirement, as set by the U.S. Government, contained in the Section 8 Housing 
Assistance Program of the city, may apply annually to the director of community development for, 
and be granted, a 50 percent reduction in the monthly storm water management fee.  

Sec. 27-121. - Storm water management fee exemptions.  

Storm water management fees shall not be imposed on the following types of property:  

(1)  City, county, state and federal roads, bridges, highways, streets, rights-of-way, sidewalks, 
pathways, parks and open spaces.  

(2)  Agricultural use property, and any undeveloped property that has no impervious surface 
located within the boundaries of the property.  

Sec. 27-122. - Collection of storm water management fees.  

(a)  The office of the municipal utilities is hereby authorized and directed to render and collect storm 
water management fees in accordance with the fees established in this article. Storm water 
management fees shall be collected with the property owner's regular municipal utilities bill, and shall 
be shown as a separate item on the bill.  

(b)  The city shall have a lien upon the property served by the city storm water utility established by this 
article, for all delinquent fees, in accordance with Iowa Code § 384.84. Prior written notice of intent to 
certify a lien shall be given to the account holder of the delinquent account at least 30 days prior to 
certification. If the account holder is a tenant, and if the owner or landlord of the property has made a 
written request for notice, the notice shall also be given to the owner or landlord. The notice shall be 
sent to the appropriate persons by ordinary mail not less than 30 days prior to the certification of the 
lien to the county treasurer. After compliance with the foregoing provisions, the city clerk shall certify 
for taxation purposes and for the purpose of establishing the property lien to the county treasurer all 
delinquent storm water management fees, together with an administrative expense of $5.00. The lien 
shall not be certified to the county treasurer for a delinquent charge of less than $5.00. For the 
purpose of the certification and for no other purpose whatsoever, storm water management fees 
shall be designated as delinquent when the payments are shown and appear on the books carrying 
such fee payments to have been unpaid for a period of six months following their due date.  

(c)  In the event that any person, firm or corporation shall tender as payment of water, sewer, refuse and 
storm water management fees an amount insufficient to pay in full all of the charges so billed, 
payment shall be credited proportionately among all charges.  

-46-

Item F.3. 



(d)  The provision for collection of fees provided herein shall be in addition to any rights or remedies that 
the city may have under the laws of the State of Iowa or this Code.  

Sec. 27-123. - Appeal or adjustment of storm water management fee.  

(a)  Any user who considers storm water management fees to be inaccurate or erroneous may request 
review thereof by the city engineer, or designated representative.  

(b)  The determination of the city engineer, or designated representative, shall be in writing and may be 
appealed to the city council by written notice of appeal stating the reason and basis for the appeal. 
The appeal shall be filed with the city engineer, or designated representative, and the city clerk within 
30 days of the date of notice of the determination of the city engineer, or designated representative. 
Hearing on the appeal before the city council, or a designated committee of the city council, shall 
take place within 30 days from the date of the notice of appeal was filed with the city clerk. The 
decision of the city council or its designated committee, shall be considered final.  

Sec. 27-124. - Severability.  

The provisions of this article are hereby declared to be severable. If any provision, clause, sentence, 
or paragraph of this article or the application thereof to any person, establishment, or circumstances shall 
be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or applications of this article.  

Secs. 27-125—27-200. - Reserved.  

 

INTRODUCED:     May 7, 2018    
 

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   May 7, 2018    
 

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   May 21, 2018    
 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:        
 

ADOPTED:           
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 

      James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-47-

Item F.3. 



 



 

 -1-

ORDINANCE NO. __2926___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING THAT GENERAL PROPERTY 
TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR ON ALL 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA, IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, STATE OF IOWA, BY AND 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, CEDAR 
FALLS COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HUDSON 
COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING 
DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT 
OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES 
ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS 
ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED, INCURRED BY THE CITY IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE SOUTH CEDAR FALLS URBAN 
RENEWAL AREA  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, after public notice 

and hearing as prescribed by law and pursuant to Resolution No. _21,109___ passed and 
approved on the 21st day of May, 2018, adopted an Urban Renewal Plan (the "Urban Renewal 
Plan") for an urban renewal area known as the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area (the 
"Urban Renewal Area"), which Urban Renewal Area includes the lots and parcels located within 
the area legally described as follows: 
 

That part of Section Nos. 35 and 36, lying in Township 89 North, Range 14 West 
of the 5th Principal Meridian and that part of Section No. 2 and 3, Township 88 
North, Range 14 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, described as follows: 
 Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 35; 
 thence along the West line of said Section 35 South to the Northerly right 
of way line of Technology Parkway, being the Point of Beginning; 
 thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Northerly 
extension of the Westerly line of Lot 20 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along said extension Southwesterly to the Northwesterly corner of 
said Lot 20; 

thence along the Westerly line of said Lot 20 Southwesterly to the South 
line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

thence along the South line of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2 
East to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 19 in said Cedar Falls Technology Park 
Phase 2; 

thence along the Easterly line of said Lot 19 Northwesterly to Southerly 
right of way line of said Technology Parkway; 

thence along said Southerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Waterway Avenue; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southeasterly to the South line 
of said Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase 2; 

-49-

Item F.4. 



 

 -2-

thence along said South line East to the Northwest corner of Tract B in 
Ridgeway Park Addition, point also being the Northwest right of way corner of 
Commerce Drive; 

thence along the Northerly right of way line of said Commerce Drive East 
to the Northerly extension of the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along said Northerly extension South to the Northeast corner of 
said Ridgeway Park Addition; 

thence along the East line of said Ridgeway Park Addition South to the 
Northerly right of way line of Ridgeway Avenue; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the Easterly right 
of way line of Iowa Highway 58; 

thence along said Easterly right of way line Southerly to the Northerly 
right of way line of U.S. Highway 20; 

thence along said Northerly right of way line Easterly to the East line of 
said Section 2; 

thence along said East line South to the South Corporate Limits line of the 
City of Cedar Falls; 

thence along said South Corporate Limits line West to the West line of 
said Section 3; 

thence along said West line North to the Northwest corner of said Section 
3; 

thence along the North line of said Section 3 East to the Southwest corner 
of said Section 35; 

thence along the West line of said Section 35 to the Point of Beginning. 
 

WHEREAS, expenditures and indebtedness are anticipated to be incurred by the City of 
Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, in the future to finance urban renewal project activities carried out in 
furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, desires to provide 
for the division of revenue from taxation in the Urban Renewal Area, as above described, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as amended. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 
 

Section 1. That the taxes levied on the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area 
legally described in the preamble hereof, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of 
Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson 
Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after the effective date of this 
Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter in this Ordinance provided. 

Section 2. That portion of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax 
is levied each year by or for each of the taxing districts upon the total sum of the assessed value 
of the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area, as shown on the assessment roll as of 
January 1 of the calendar year preceding the first calendar year in which the City of Cedar Falls, 
State of Iowa, certifies to the Auditor of Black Hawk County, Iowa the amount of loans, 

-50-

Item F.4. 



 

 -3-

advances, indebtedness, or bonds payable from the division of property tax revenue described 
herein, shall be allocated to and when collected be paid into the fund for the respective taxing 
district as taxes by or for the taxing district into which all other property taxes are paid. 

Section 3. That portion of the taxes each year in excess of the base period taxes 
determined as provided in Section 2 of this Ordinance shall be allocated to and when collected be 
paid into a special tax increment fund of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 
established, to pay the principal of and interest on loans, monies advanced to, indebtedness, 
whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including bonds or obligations issued under the 
authority of Section 403.9 or 403.12 of the Code of Iowa, as amended, incurred by the City of 
Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban renewal projects 
undertaken within the Urban Renewal Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, except that (i) 
taxes for the regular and voter-approved physical plant and equipment levy of a school district 
imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 298.2 and taxes for the instructional support program of 
a school district imposed pursuant to Iowa Code Section 257.19 (but in each case only to the 
extent required under Iowa Code Section 403.19(2)); (ii) taxes for the payment of bonds and 
interest of each taxing district; (iii) taxes imposed under Iowa Code Section 346.27(22) related to 
joint county-city buildings; and (iv) any other exceptions under Iowa Code Section 403.19 shall 
be collected against all taxable property within the Urban Renewal Area without any limitation 
as hereinabove provided. 

Section 4. Unless or until the total assessed valuation of the taxable property in the Urban 
Renewal Area exceeds the total assessed value of the taxable property in the Urban Renewal 
Area as shown by the assessment roll referred to in Section 2 of this Ordinance, all of the taxes 
levied and collected upon the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be paid into the 
funds for the respective taxing districts as taxes by or for the taxing districts in the same manner 
as all other property taxes. 

Section 5. At such time as the loans, advances, indebtedness, bonds and interest thereon 
of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, referred to in Section 3 hereof have been paid, all 
monies thereafter received from taxes upon the taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall 
be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all other 
property. 

Section 6. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed.  The provisions of this Ordinance are intended and shall be 
construed so as to fully implement the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, as 
amended, with respect to the division of taxes from property within the Urban Renewal Area as 
described above.  In the event that any provision of this Ordinance shall be determined to be 
contrary to law, it shall not affect other provisions or application of this Ordinance which shall at 
all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa with 
reference to the Urban Renewal Area and the territory contained therein. 

Section 7. This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law. 

-51-

Item F.4. 



 

 -4-

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of _______________, 2018. 
  

 
 
  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
City Clerk 

 

 
 
 
Read First Time: __May 21  ___________, 2018  
 
 
Read Second Time: __________________, 2018  
 
 
Read Third Time: ___________________, 2018  
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED: ____________________, 2018. 
 

I, ____________________, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. __________ passed and 
approved by the City Council of the City at a meeting held ____________________, 2018, 
signed by the Mayor on ____________________, 2018, and published in the Waterloo-Cedar 
Falls Courier on ____________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
01484032-1\10283-158 

-52-

Item F.4. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: Matthew Tolan, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2927 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ENUMERATED SPEED LIMIT AS 35 
MILES PER HOUR ON GREENHILL ROAD FROM HUDSON ROAD WEST TO 
WEST TWENTY SEVENTH STREET IN SUBSECTION 26-207(7) OF DIVISION 
5, SPEED, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF CHAPTER 26, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1. Subsection 7, Thirty-five miles per hour, of Section 26-207, Speed limits 

enumerated, of Division 5, Speed, of Article III, Operation, of Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor 
Vehicles, is hereby amended by adding the following unnumbered paragraph: 

 
Greenhill Road, from Hudson Road west and north to West 27th Street. 

 
 

 
INTRODUCED:     May 21, 2018______    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   May 21, 2018_____    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
ADOPTED:      ____________    
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                             James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-53-

Item F.5. 



 



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Office of the Mayor

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: May 22, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Appointments/Reappointments 

 

I am recommending the following appointments and reappointments: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
MaraBeth Soneson Utilities Board of Trustees (reappointment) 08/31/2024 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

 
 

-55-

Item G.1.a. 



 



-57-

Item G.1.a. 



-58-

Item G.1.a. 



-59-

Item G.1.a. 



-60-

Item G.1.a. 



-61-

Item G.1.a. 



-62-

Item G.1.a. 



-63-

Item G.1.a. 



-64-

Item G.1.a. 



-65-

Item G.1.a. 



 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

May 21, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 6:00 p.m. on May 21, 
2018, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland. Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Tom Nelson with the 
Waterloo Courier, MaraBeth Soneson and other members of the community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda of 
Utilities Board of Trustee Interview – MaraBeth Soneson.  Mayor Brown stated the 
administrative interview of Ms. Soneson was held on April 19, 2018.  Ms. Soneson 
stated this is a reappointment and she has served six years.  She answered questions 
with regards to solar energy expansion and overhead to underground utilities.  

Mayor Brown introduced the second item on the agenda Visitor and Tourism 
Initiatives/Updates.  Kim Manning, Visitor & Tourism/Cultural Program Manager, stated 
this is the 30th anniversary of Visitor and Tourism and, in 2000, it became a city division.  
She reviewed the revenues and expenditures over the past 10 years.  She stated they 
continue partnerships with other entities and strongly use a network of volunteers.  Ms. 
Manning stated they did a re-branding with ZLR Ignition; We Know How To Weekend.  
She said they use social media and internet to advertise as well as visitor guides. She 
stated they provide $70,000 in grant funding annually.  Ms. Manning said the V&T 
Center is open 362 days a year thanks to volunteers and said in addition to herself there 
are four permanent part-time employees and usually one intern from the university.  A 
brief discussion was held.   

Mayor Brown introduced the third item on the agenda Speed Limit on South Main Street 
– University Avenue to Greenhill Road.  Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor, 
reviewed the history of the corridor and the posted speed limits.  He stated the speed 
limit from Greenhill Road to 12th Street is 35 mph, except the from University Avenue to 
Orchard Drive is 30 mph and then from 12th  Street to 6th Street is 25 mph.  He said this 
corridor was reviewed during the construction of the Aquatic Center in 2005 and the 
limit was lowered at that time due to additional pedestrian traffic. He stated there were 
traffic studies done in 2010 and 2014 which had the 85% at 37 mph and 36 mph 
respectively. He said the 85% is the speed used in engineering studies and the majority 
of drivers feel is a safe traveling speed for the roadway. He stated staff recommendation 
is to keep the speed limit at 30 mph from University Avenue to Orchard Drive.  Mayor 
Brown opened it up for discussion.  Mr. Schrage stated drivers will drive approximately 
5 mph over the posted speed limit.  Curt Olson, 3707 S. Main Street, said he would like 
to see a better police presence especially during peak times during the day.  Rosemary 
Beach, 5018 Sage Road, would like the speed limit the same from the Western Home 
Community to University Avenue at 35 mph.  Mike Halverson, 3627 S. Main Street, 
would like the speed limit along S. Main Street to be 30 mph.  Jeff Olson, Public Safety 
Services Director/Police Chief, stated the speed trailers do not do a traffic count or issue 
tickets, it will just inform drivers of their speed and what the posted speed is.  He also 

-67-

Item G.1.b. 



stated there are only a few spots they can park to patrol the roadway. Officers will do 
more patrolling and the radar trailer will be placed on South Main. 

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda bills and payroll.  Rob Green 
moved to approve the bills as presented and Daryl Kruse seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:40 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-68-

Item G.1.b. 



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls Public Works Facility Conference Room  

May 14, 2018 
 

The City Council held a special work session in the Cedar Falls Public Works Facility 
Conference Room at 5:03 p.m. on May 14, 2018, with the following persons in 
attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom Blanford, Frank Darrah, Mark Miller, Rob Green, 
Daryl Kruse, and David Wieland. Staff members attended from all City Departments, 
including City Attorney Rogers.  Nathan Overberg and Kristine Stone from Ahlers and 
Cooney and Tom Nelson with the Waterloo Courier attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Ex Parte Communication. Mayor Brown opened the discussion on proper legal notice of 
these council work sessions.  He stated this meeting was posted on the City Hall 
television board on Friday, the same 24 hour notice as a regular meeting. Rob Green 
commented it should be on the City website and calendar as a governmental meeting.  
Mayor Brown stated a 24 hour notice with a tentative agenda with the time, date and 
location is necessary.  Council members discussed these are work session, for problem 
solving and don’t want to have the work session hi-jacked for any reason.  They also 
discussed the lack of attendance at the Committee of the Whole meetings and stated 
work sessions should remain untelevised.  Mayor Brown gathered from the council 
discussion that the council work sessions will be posted on the city website and 
calendar as well as the City Hall notice on the television board. 

Mayor Brown introduced Nathan Overberg and Kristine Stone from Ahlers and Cooney.  
Ms. Stone reviewed through a PowerPoint presentation the City of Cedar Falls 
governance structure; elected Mayor and City Council and appointed City Administrator; 
and each body’s roles. Based on City code, Cedar Falls has established a framework by 
which the City Council will set policies and the City Administrator and/or Mayor shall 
implement those policies.  Ms. Stone stated a council member is a member of a 
governing body and should make decisions as a whole.   

Ms. Stone reviewed the definition of conflict of interest.  She reviewed Iowa Code 
Chapter 362 and Chapter 68B.  She reviewed a few court cases and examples when a 
conflict of interest may apply. She explained per city policy an annual declaration of 
compliance is required and said when in doubt the potential conflict should be disclosed 
and do not take action on the matter.    

Ms. Stone reviewed ex parte communication and stated it is due process, which 
requires fundamental fairness in a judicial proceeding guaranteed by the United States 
and Iowa Constitutions.  She stated due process applies in situations where a city 
council is performing a quasi-judicial function, such as proceedings of a public hearing, 
rezoning matters, license revocations, nuisance abatement and any and all appeals.  
Ms. Stone stated ex parte communications can lead to one party being heard more than 
the other or lead to partial decision maker.   She stated the council should receive the 
information on a topic from City Staff and not conduct their own investigation on the 
topic.   

-69-

Item G.1.c. 



Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion.  Council members discussed receiving 
questions, concerns and information from constituents.  City Attorney Kevin Rogers 
stated they need to forward to City Staff and need to notify the constituent they are 
decision maker on this and they should bring their concerns to the public hearing or 
council meeting. Council also discussed their understanding of the whole governing 
body considering the same facts, and relying on city staff reports and information.  City 
Administrator Ron Gaines stated this same training session will be given with the Board 
of Adjustment and Planning & Zoning Commission, and it may be televised.  Mr. 
Overberg stated council members should not conduct their own research in addition to 
the staff report.  He stated if there is a concern of a conflict of interest, they should 
review this with the City Attorney.   

There being no further discussion, David Wieland motioned to adjourn and Frank 
Darrah seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.  Mayor Brown adjourned 
the meeting at 6:43 p.m.  

 

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-70-

Item G.1.c. 



-71-

Item G.1.d. 



-72-

Item G.1.d. 



-73-

Item G.1.d. 



-74-

Item G.1.d. 



-75-

Item G.1.d. 



-76-

Item G.1.d. 



-77-

Item G.1.d. 



-78-

Item G.1.d. 



-79-

Item G.1.d. 



-80-

Item G.1.d. 



-81-

Item G.1.d. 



-82-

Item G.1.d. 



-83-

Item G.1.d. 



-84-

Item G.1.d. 



-85-

Item G.1.d. 



-86-

Item G.1.d. 



-87-

Item G.1.d. 



-88-

Item G.1.d. 



-89-

Item G.1.d. 



-90-

Item G.1.d. 



-91-

Item G.1.d. 



-92-

Item G.1.d. 



-93-

Item G.1.d. 



-94-

Item G.1.d. 



-95-

Item G.1.d. 



-96-

Item G.1.d. 



-97-

Item G.1.d. 



-98-

Item G.1.d. 



-99-

Item G.1.d. 



-100-

Item G.1.d. 



-101-

Item G.1.d. 



-102-

Item G.1.d. 



-103-

Item G.1.d. 



-104-

Item G.1.d. 



-105-

Item G.1.d. 



-106-

Item G.1.d. 



-107-

Item G.1.d. 



-108-

Item G.1.d. 



-109-

Item G.1.d. 



-110-

Item G.1.d. 



-111-

Item G.1.d. 



-112-

Item G.1.d. 



-113-

Item G.1.d. 



-114-

Item G.1.d. 



-115-

Item G.1.d. 



-116-

Item G.1.d. 



-117-

Item G.1.d. 



-118-

Item G.1.d. 



-119-

Item G.1.d. 



-120-

Item G.1.d. 



-121-

Item G.1.d. 



-122-

Item G.1.d. 



-123-

Item G.1.d. 



-124-

Item G.1.d. 



-125-

Item G.1.d. 



-126-

Item G.1.d. 



-127-

Item G.1.d. 



-128-

Item G.1.d. 



-129-

Item G.1.d. 



-130-

Item G.1.d. 



-131-

Item G.1.d. 



-132-

Item G.1.d. 



-133-

Item G.1.d. 



-134-

Item G.1.d. 



-135-

Item G.1.d. 



-136-

Item G.1.d. 



-137-

Item G.1.d. 



-138-

Item G.1.d. 



-139-

Item G.1.d. 



-140-

Item G.1.d. 



-141-

Item G.1.d. 



-142-

Item G.1.d. 



-143-

Item G.1.d. 



-144-

Item G.1.d. 



-145-

Item G.1.d. 



 



-147-

Item G.1.e. 



-148-

Item G.1.e. 



-149-

Item G.1.e. 



-150-

Item G.1.e. 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  May 30, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

(1) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
 
(2) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
 
(3) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

 
(4) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal. 

(5) Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - 
renewal. 

 
(6) Los Cabos Mexican Restaurant, 112-114 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal. 
 
(7) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

(8) Target, 214 Viking Plaza Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 

(9) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (June 22-24, 2018) 
 

-151-

Item G.1.f. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council Members  

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: 2018 Bond Sales 

 
On June 18th, the City is scheduled to sell General Obligation Bonds for various 
purposes and projects (attached is the list that was provided in the council packet for 
the 4/16 council meeting).  The attached resolution directs the notice of the sale and 
allows for electronic bidding procedure for the sale.   
 
Also attached is the Preliminary Official Statement (POS) that was emailed out ahead 
of time to Council members for review.  This POS includes various financial information 
about the City and is subject to Federal Securities Law regulation. Staff has worked with 
Public Financial Management, our financial advisors and Ahlers Cooney Law Firm, our 
bond counsel to prepare this document.  
 

 
If you have any questions regarding the bond sale, please feel free to contact me.  

-153-

Item G.2.a. 



 



-155-

Item G.2.a. 



 



 

 

T
hi

s 
P

re
li

m
in

ar
y 

O
ff

ic
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

he
re

in
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n,

 a
m

en
dm

en
t o

r 
ot

he
r 

ch
an

ge
 w

it
ho

ut
 n

ot
ic

e.
  T

he
 B

on
ds

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

so
ld

 n
or

 m
ay

 o
ff

er
s 

to
 b

uy
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 p

ri
or

 to
 th

e 
ti

m
e 

th
e 

P
re

li
m

in
ar

y 
O

ff
ic

ia
l 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 i
n 

fi
na

l 
fo

rm
.  

U
nd

er
 n

o 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

sh
al

l 
th

is
 P

re
li

m
in

ar
y 

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
en

t 
co

ns
ti

tu
te

 a
n 

of
fe

r 
to

 s
el

l 
or

 t
he

 s
ol

ic
it

at
io

n 
of

 a
n 

of
fe

r 
to

 b
uy

, n
or

 s
ha

ll
 t

he
re

 b
e 

an
y 

sa
le

 o
f 

th
e 

B
on

ds
 in

 a
ny

 ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

 in
 w

hi
ch

 s
uc

h 
of

fe
r,

 s
ol

ic
it

at
io

n 
or

 s
al

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

un
la

w
fu

l p
ri

or
 to

 r
eg

is
tr

at
io

n 
or

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
un

de
r 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 s

ec
ur

it
ie

s 
la

w
s 

of
 a

ny
 s

uc
h 

ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
on

. 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JUNE 4, 2018 
 

New Issue Rating:  Application Made to Moody’s Investors Service 
 
Assuming compliance with certain covenants, in the opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Bond Counsel, under present law and assuming continued compliance with 
the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes.  Interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for federal alternative minimum tax purposes, but is included in the adjusted current earnings of 
corporations for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax applicable to taxable years beginning before January 1, 2018.  Interest on the Bonds is included in 
gross income for State of Iowa income tax purposes.  The Bonds will be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations”.  See “TAX MATTERS” herein for a more 
detailed discussion. 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

$6,585,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 
 

BIDS RECEIVED: Monday, June 18, 2018, 10:00 A.M., Central Time 
AWARD: Monday, June 18, 2018, 7:00 P.M., Central Time 

 

Dated:  Date of Delivery (July 16, 2018) Principal Due:  June 1, as shown inside front cover 
 

The $6,585,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 (the “Bonds”) of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) are being 
issued pursuant to Division III of Chapter 384 of the Code of Iowa and a resolution to be adopted by the City Council of the 
City.  The Bonds are being issued to provide funds to pay costs of opening, widening, extending, grading and draining of the 
right-of-way of streets, highways, avenues, alleys, public grounds and market places, and the removal and replacement of 
dead or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street improvements, the acquisition, 
installation, and repair of sidewalks, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, street lighting and traffic control devices; the acquisition 
of any real estate needed for any of the foregoing purposes; equipping the fire department; construction, reconstruction and 
repair of cemetery facilities; rehabilitation and improvement of parks already owned, construction of improvements 
commonly found in city parks; construction of recreational trails; acquisition, construction, reconstruction, enlargement, 
improvement and equipping of recreation grounds, recreation buildings, and juvenile playgrounds and parks.  The Bonds are 
general obligations of the City for which the City will pledge its power of levy direct ad valorem taxes against all taxable 
property within the City without limitation as to rate or amount to the repayment of the Bonds. 
 

The Bonds will be issued as fully registered Bonds without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede 
& Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”).  DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  
Individual purchases may be made in book-entry-form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof.  
Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased.  Principal of the Bonds, payable 
annually on each June 1, beginning June 1, 2019 and interest on the Bonds, payable initially on December 1, 2018 and 
thereafter on each June 1 and December 1, will be paid to DTC by the City’s Controller/City Treasurer (the “Registrar”).  
DTC will in turn remit such principal and interest to its participants for subsequent disbursements to the beneficial owners of 
the Bonds as described herein. Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of a bond as shown on the records 
of ownership maintained by the Registrar on the 15th day of the month preceding such interest payment date (the “Record 
Date”). 
 

 
THE BONDS WILL MATURE AS LISTED ON THE INSIDE FRONT COVER 

 
 

MINIMUM BID: $6,532,320 

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT: Required of Purchaser Only 

TAX MATTERS: Federal:  Tax-Exempt 
State:  Taxable 
See “TAX MATTERS” section 
for more information. 

 

The Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, withdrawal or modification, when, as, and if issued subject to the legal opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, 
P.C., Bond Counsel, of Des Moines, Iowa, to be furnished upon delivery of the Bonds.  It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery 
on or about July 16, 2018.  This Preliminary Official Statement will be further supplemented by offering prices, interest rates, selling 
compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal amount per maturity, anticipated delivery date, and underwriter, together with any other 
information required by law, and shall constitute a final “Official Statement” of the City with respect to the Bonds, as defined in Rule 15c2-12 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 
 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

-157-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

$6,585,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 

MATURITY: The Bonds will mature June 1 in the years and amounts as follows: 

Year Amount* Year Amount* 
    

2019 $525,000 2024 $665,000 
2020 610,000 2025 685,000 
2021 625,000 2026 710,000 
2022 640,000 2027 725,000 
2023 650,000 2028 750,000 

*PRINCIPAL 
    ADJUSTMENT: Preliminary; subject to change.  The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the 

aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and to increase or decrease each scheduled 
maturity thereof after the determination of the successful bidder.  The City may increase 
or decrease each maturity in increments of $5,000 but the total amount to be issued, will 
not exceed $6,700,000.  Interest rates specified by the successful bidder for each maturity 
will not change.  Final adjustments shall be in the sole discretion of the City. 
 

The dollar amount of the purchase price proposed by the successful bidder will be 
changed if the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds is adjusted as described above.  
Any change in the principal amount of any maturity of the Bonds will be made while 
maintaining, as closely as possible, the successful bidder's net compensation, calculated 
as a percentage of bond principal.  The successful bidder may not withdraw or modify its 
bid as a result of any post-bid adjustment.  Any adjustment shall be conclusive, and shall 
be binding upon the successful bidder. 

INTEREST: Interest on the Bonds will be payable on December 1, 2018 and semiannually thereafter. 

REDEMPTION: The Bonds due after June 1, 2026 will be subject to call prior to maturity in whole, or 
from time to time in part, in any order of maturity and within a maturity by lot on said 
date or on any date thereafter upon terms of par plus accrued interest to date of call.  
Written notice of such call shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed 
for redemption to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown 
on the registration books. 

 

-158-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH S.E.C. RULE 15c2-12 
 
Municipal obligations (issued in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000) are subject to General Rules and Regulations, 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 15c2-12 Municipal Securities Disclosure. 
 
Preliminary Official Statement: This Preliminary Official Statement was prepared for the City for dissemination to 
prospective bidders.  Its primary purpose is to disclose information regarding the Bonds to prospective bidders in the 
interest of receiving competitive bids in accordance with the NOTICE OF BOND SALE and the TERMS OF 
OFFERING contained herein.  Unless an addendum is received prior to the sale, this document shall be deemed the near 
final “Official Statement”. 
 
Review Period: This Preliminary Official Statement has been distributed to the City’s staff as well as to prospective 
bidders for an objective review of its disclosure.  Comments, omissions or inaccuracies must be submitted to PFM 
Financial Advisors LLC (the “Municipal Advisor”) at least two business days prior to the sale.  Requests for additional 
information or corrections in the Preliminary Official Statement received on or before this date will not be considered a 
qualification of a bid received.  If there are any changes, corrections or additions to the Preliminary Official Statement, 
prospective bidders will be informed by an addendum at least one business day prior to the sale. 
 
Final Official Statement: Upon award of sale of the Bonds, the legislative body will authorize the preparation of a final 
Official Statement that includes the offering prices, interest rates, selling compensation, aggregate principal amount, 
principal amount per maturity, anticipated delivery date and other information required by law and the identity of the 
underwriter (the “Syndicate Manager”) and syndicate members.  Copies of the final Official Statement will be delivered 
to the Syndicate Manager within seven business days following the bid acceptance. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to make any 
representations, other than those contained in the Preliminary Official Statement.  This Preliminary Official Statement 
does not constitute any offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any 
person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.  The 
information, estimates and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of 
this Preliminary Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication 
that there has been no change in the affairs of the City since the date hereof.  This Preliminary Official Statement is 
submitted in connection with the sale of the securities referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or 
in part, for any other purpose. 
 
This Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda thereto were prepared relying on information from the City and 
other sources, which are believed to be reliable. 
 
Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Preliminary Official Statement and is not expressing any 
opinion as to the completeness or accuracy of the information contained therein. 
 
Compensation of the Municipal Advisor, payable entirely by the City, is contingent upon the sale of the issue. 
 

-159-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

City Council 
 
   Term Expires: 
  

Jim Brown Mayor December 31, 2019 
Mark Miller Council Member – 1st Ward  December 31, 2021 
Susan deBuhr Council Member – 2nd Ward  December 31, 2019 
Daryl Kruse Council Member – 3rd Ward December 31, 2021 
Tom Blanford Council Member – 4th Ward December 31, 2019 
Frank Darrah Council Member – 5th Ward December 31, 2021 
Rob Green Council Member – At Large December 31, 2021 
David Wieland Council Member – At Large December 31, 2019 

  
 

Administration 
 

Ron Gaines – City Administrator 
Jennifer Rodenbeck – Director of Finance & Business Operations 

Lisa Roeding – Controller/City Treasurer 
Jacque Danielsen - City Clerk 

 
 

City Attorney 
 

Kevin Rogers 
Cedar Falls, Iowa  

 
 

Bond Counsel 
 

Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Des Moines, Iowa 

 
 

Municipal Advisor 
 

PFM Financial Advisors LLC 
Des Moines, Iowa 

 

-160-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
NOTICE OF BOND SALE .......................................................................................................................................... i 
 

TERMS OF OFFERING ............................................................................................................................................ ii 

SCHEDULE OF BOND YEARS ............................................................................................................................... ix 
        EXHIBIT 1 - FORM OF ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 
 

INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................................................... 1 
Authority and Purpose ............................................................................................................................................... 1 
Interest ....................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
Optional Redemption ................................................................................................................................................ 2 
Payment of and Security for the Bonds ..................................................................................................................... 2 
Book-Entry-Only System .......................................................................................................................................... 2 
Future Financing ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Litigation ................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Debt Payment History ............................................................................................................................................... 4 
Legality...................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Tax Matters ............................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Bondholder's Risks .................................................................................................................................................... 7 
Rating ........................................................................................................................................................................ 9 
Municipal Advisor ................................................................................................................................................... 10 
Continuing Disclosure ............................................................................................................................................. 10 
Certification ............................................................................................................................................................. 10 

CITY PROPERTY VALUES ................................................................................................................................... 11 
Iowa Property Valuations ........................................................................................................................................ 11 
Property Valuations (1/1/2017 Valuations for Taxes payable July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019) ....................... 11 
2017 Gross Taxable Valuation by Class of Property ............................................................................................... 11 
Trend of Valuations ................................................................................................................................................. 12 
Larger Taxpayers ..................................................................................................................................................... 12 
Property Tax Legislation ......................................................................................................................................... 13 

CITY INDEBTEDNESS............................................................................................................................................ 14 
Debt Limit ............................................................................................................................................................... 14 
Direct Debt .............................................................................................................................................................. 14 
Sewer Utility Revenue Debt  ................................................................................................................................... 16 
Communications and Electric Utility Revenue Debt ............................................................................................... 17 
Indirect General Obligation Debt ............................................................................................................................ 17 
Debt Ratios .............................................................................................................................................................. 17 
Levies and Tax Collections; Tax Rates; Levy Limits .............................................................................................. 18 
Funds on Hand (Cash and Investments as of April 30, 2016) ................................................................................. 19 

THE CITY .................................................................................................................................................................. 20 
City Government ..................................................................................................................................................... 20 
Employees and Pensions ......................................................................................................................................... 20 
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) .............................................................................................................. 22 
Union Contracts ....................................................................................................................................................... 23 
Insurance ................................................................................................................................................................. 24 

GENERAL INFORMATION ................................................................................................................................... 25 
Location and Transportation .................................................................................................................................... 25 
Larger Employers .................................................................................................................................................... 25 
U.S. Census Data ..................................................................................................................................................... 25 
Building Permits; Unemployment Rates ................................................................................................................. 26 
Education ................................................................................................................................................................. 26 
Financial Services.................................................................................................................................................... 27 
Financial Statements ................................................................................................................................................ 27 

APPENDIX A - FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 
APPENDIX B - JUNE 30, 2017 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
APPENDIX C - FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
OFFICIAL BID FORM 

-161-

Item G.2.a. 



 

i 

NOTICE OF BOND SALE 

Time and Place of Sealed Bids:  Bids for the sale of Bonds of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, hereafter described, 
must be received at the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613; Telephone: 319-273-8600 (the 
"Issuer") before 10:00 o'clock A.M., on the 18th day of June, 2018.  The bids will then be publicly opened and referred for action to 
the meeting of the City Council in conformity with the TERMS OF OFFERING. 
 

The Bonds:  The Bonds to be offered are the following: 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2018, in the amount of $6,585,000*, to be dated 
July 16, 2018 (the "Bonds") 

 
 *Subject to principal adjustment pursuant to official Terms of Offering. 
 

Manner of Bidding:  Open bids will not be received.  Bids will be received in any of the following methods: 
 

 Sealed Bidding:  Sealed bids may be submitted and will be received at the office of the City Clerk at City Hall, 
220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. 

 
 Electronic Internet Bidding:  Electronic internet bids will be received at the office of the City's Municipal 

Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa 50309.  The bids must 
be submitted through the PARITY® competitive bidding system. 

 
 Electronic Facsimile Bidding:  Electronic facsimile bids will be received at the office of the City's Municipal 

Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 (facsimile 
number: 515-243-6994). Electronic facsimile bids will be treated as sealed bids. 

 
Consideration of Bids:  After the time for receipt of bids has passed, the close of sealed bids will be announced.  Sealed 

bids will then be publicly opened and announced.  Finally, electronic internet bids will be accessed and announced. 
 

Sale and Award:  The sale and award of the Bonds will be held at the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar 
Falls, Iowa at a meeting of the City Council on the above date at 7:00 o'clock P.M. 
 

Official Statement:  The Issuer has issued an Official Statement of information pertaining to the Bonds to be offered, 
including a statement of the Terms of Offering and an Official Bid Form, which is incorporated by reference as a part of this notice.  
The Official Statement may be obtained by request addressed to the City Clerk, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
50613; Telephone: 319-273-8600 or the Issuer's Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, 
Des Moines, Iowa, 50309; Telephone:  515-243-2600. 
 

Terms of Offering:  All bids shall be in conformity with and the sale shall be in accordance with the Terms of Offering as 
set forth in the Official Statement. 
 

Legal Opinion:  The Bonds will be sold subject to the opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., Attorneys of Des Moines, Iowa, 
as to the legality and their opinion will be furnished together with the printed Bonds without cost to the purchaser and all bids will 
be so conditioned.  Except to the extent necessary to issue their opinion as to the legality of the Bonds, the attorneys will not 
examine or review or express any opinion with respect to the accuracy or completeness of documents, materials or statements made 
or furnished in connection with the sale, issuance or marketing of the Bonds. 
 

Rights Reserved:  The right is reserved to reject any or all bids, and to waive any irregularities as deemed to be in the best 
interests of the public. 
 

By order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 
 
 
 City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 

-162-

Item G.2.a. 



 

ii 

TERMS OF OFFERING 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

Bids for the purchase of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa’s (the “City”) $6,585,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 
2018 (the “Bonds”) will be received on Monday, June 18, 2018, before 10:00 A.M. Central Time after which time they 
will be tabulated.  The City Council will consider award of the Bonds at 7:00 P.M. Central Time, on the same day.  
Questions regarding the sale of the Bonds should be directed to the City’s Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors 
LLC, 801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309 or by telephoning 515-243-2600. 
 
In addition to the provisions of the official NOTICE OF BOND SALE, this section sets forth the description of certain 
terms of the Bonds as well as the TERMS OF OFFERING with which all bidders and bid proposals are required to 
comply, as follows: 
 

DETAILS OF THE BONDS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2018 in the principal amount of $6,585,000*, will be dated the date of 
delivery (anticipated to be July 16, 2018), in the denomination of $5,000 or multiples thereof, and will mature June 1 as 
follows: 

Year Amount* Year Amount* 
    

2019 $525,000 2024 $665,000 
2020 610,000 2025 685,000 
2021 625,000 2026 710,000 
2022 640,000 2027 725,000 
2023 650,000 2028 750,000 

ADJUSTMENT TO BOND MATURITY AMOUNTS 

The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and to increase or reduce 
each scheduled maturity thereof after the determination of the successful bidder.  The City may increase or decrease 
each maturity in increments of $5,000 but the total amount to be issued will not exceed $6,700,000.  Interest rates 
specified by the successful bidder for each maturity will not change.  Final adjustments shall be in the sole discretion of 
the City. 
 
The dollar amount of the purchase price proposed by the successful bidder will be changed if the aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds is adjusted as described above.  Any change in the principal amount of any maturity of the Bonds 
will be made while maintaining, as closely as possible, the successful bidder's net compensation, calculated as a 
percentage of bond principal.  The successful bidder may not withdraw or modify its bid as a result of any post-bid 
adjustment.  Any adjustment shall be conclusive, and shall be binding upon the successful bidder. 

INTEREST 

Interest on the Bonds will be payable on December 1, 2018 and semiannually on the 1st day of June and December 
thereafter.  Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of a bond as shown on the records of ownership 
maintained by the Registrar as of the 15th day of the month (whether or not a business day) preceding such interest 
payment date (the “Record Date”).  Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months 
and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

-163-

Item G.2.a. 



 

iii 

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION 

Bonds due after June 1, 2026 will be subject to call prior to maturity in whole, or from time to time in part, in any order 
of maturity and within a maturity by lot on said date or on any date thereafter at the option of the City, upon terms of 
par plus accrued interest to date of call.  Written notice of such call shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
date fixed for redemption to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration 
books. 

TERM-BOND OPTION 

Bidders shall have the option of designating the Bonds as serial bonds or term bonds, or both.  The bid must designate 
whether each of the principal amounts shown above represent a serial maturity or a mandatory redemption requirement 
for a term bond maturity.  (See the OFFICIAL BID FORM for more information.)  In any event, the above principal 
amount scheduled shall be represented by either serial bond maturities or mandatory redemption requirements, or a 
combination of both. 

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT 

A good faith deposit in the amount of $65,850 (the “Deposit”) is required from the lowest bidder only.  The lowest 
bidder is required to submit such Deposit payable to the order of the City, not later than 12:00 P.M. Central Time on the 
day of the sale of the Bonds and in the form of either (i) a cashier’s check provided to the City or its Municipal Advisor 
or (ii) a wire transfer as instructed by the City’s Municipal Advisor.  If not so received, the bid of the lowest bidder may 
be rejected and the City may direct the second lowest bidder to submit a Deposit and thereafter may award the sale of 
the Bonds to the same.  No interest on a Deposit will accrue to the successful bidder (the “Purchaser”).  The Deposit 
will be applied to the purchase price of the Bonds.  In the event a Purchaser fails to honor its accepted bid proposal, the 
Deposit will be retained by the City. 

FORM OF BIDS AND AWARD 

All bids shall be unconditional for the Bonds for a price not less than $6,532,320, plus accrued interest, and shall 
specify the rate or rates of interest in conformity to the limitations set forth under the “BIDDING PARAMETERS” 
section.  Bids must be submitted on or in substantial compliance with the OFFICIAL BID FORM provided by the City.  
The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest rate to be determined on a true interest cost (the 
“TIC”) basis assuming compliance with the “ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE” and “GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT” 
sections.  The TIC shall be determined by the present value method, i.e., by ascertaining the semiannual rate, 
compounded semiannually, necessary to discount to present value as of the dated date of the Bonds, the amount payable 
on each interest payment date and on each stated maturity date or earlier mandatory redemption, so that the aggregate of 
such amounts will equal the aggregate purchase price offered therefore.  The TIC shall be stated in terms of an annual 
percentage rate and shall be that rate of interest, which is twice the semiannual rate so ascertained (also known as the 
Canadian Method).  The TIC shall be as determined by the Municipal Advisor based on the TERMS OF OFFERING 
and all amendments, and on the bids as submitted.  The Municipal Advisor’s computation of the TIC of each bid shall 
be controlling.  In the event of tie bids for the lowest TIC, the Bonds will be awarded by lot. 
 
The City will reserve the right to: (i) waive non-substantive informalities of any bid or of matters relating to the receipt 
of bids and award of the Bonds, (ii) reject all bids without cause and (iii) reject any bid which the City determines to 
have failed to comply with the terms herein. 

-164-

Item G.2.a. 



 

iv 

BIDDING PARAMETERS 

Each bidder’s proposal must conform to the following limitations: 
 

1. Each annual maturity must bear a single rate of interest from the dated date of the Bonds to the date of maturity. 
 

2. Rates of interest bid must be in multiples of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one percent. 
 

3. The initial price to the public for each maturity must be 98% or greater. 

RECEIPT OF BIDS 

Forms of Bids:  Bids must be submitted on or in substantial compliance with the NOTICE OF BOND SALE, TERMS 
OF OFFERING and OFFICIAL BID FORM provided by the City or through PARITY® competitive bidding system 
(the “Internet Bid System”).  Neither the City or its agents shall not be responsible for malfunction or mistake made by 
any person, or as a result of the use of an electronic bid or the means used to deliver or complete a bid.  The use of such 
facilities or means is at the sole risk of the prospective bidder who shall be bound by the terms of the bid as received. 
 
No bid will be accepted after the time specified in the NOTICE OF BOND SALE.  The time as maintained by the 
Internet Bid System shall constitute the official time with respect to all bids submitted.  A bid may be withdrawn before 
the bid deadline using the same method used to submit the bid.  If more than one bid is received from a bidder, the last 
bid received shall be considered. 
 
Sealed Bids:  Sealed bids may be submitted and will be received at the office of the City Clerk at City Hall, 220 Clay 
Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. 
 
Electronic Internet Bidding:  Electronic internet bids will be received at the office of the City’s Municipal Advisor, 
PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand Ave, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309; Telephone: 515-243-2600.  The 
electronic internet bids must be submitted through the Internet Bid System.  Information about the Internet Bid System 
may be obtained by calling (212) 849-5021. 
 
Each bidder shall be solely responsible for making necessary arrangements to access the Internet Bid System for 
purposes of submitting its electronic internet bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of the 
NOTICE OF BOND SALE, TERMS OF OFFERING and OFFICIAL BID FORM.  The City is permitting bidders to use 
the services of the Internet Bid System solely as a communication mechanism to conduct the electronic internet bidding 
and the Internet Bid System is not an agent of the City.  Provisions of the NOTICE OF BOND SALE, TERMS OF 
OFFERING and OFFICIAL BID FORM shall control in the event of conflict with information provided by the Internet 
Bid System. 
 
Electronic Facsimile Bids:  Electronic facsimile bids will be received at the office of the City’s Municipal Advisor, 
PFM Financial Advisors LLC, Des Moines, Iowa (facsimile number: (515) 243-6994).  Electronic facsimile bids will be 
treated as sealed bids. 
 
Electronic facsimile bids received after the deadline will be rejected.  Bidders electing to submit bids via electronic 
facsimile transmission bear full responsibility for the transmission of such bid.  Neither the City nor its agents shall be 
responsible for malfunction or mistake made by any person, or as a result of the use of the electronic facsimile facilities 
or any other means used to deliver or complete a bid.  The use of such facilities or means is at the sole risk of the 
prospective bidder who shall be bound by the terms of the bid as received.  Neither the City nor its agents will assume 
liability for the inability of the bidder to reach the above named facsimile numbers prior to the time of sale specified 
above.  Time of receipt shall be the time recorded by the facsimile operator receiving the bids. 

-165-

Item G.2.a. 



 

v 

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE  
 

The Bonds will be issued by means of a book-entry only system with no physical distribution of bond certificates made 
to the public.  The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form and one bond certificate, representing the aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds maturing in each year will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, which will act as securities depository of the Bonds.  
Individual purchases of the Bonds may be made in the principal amount of $5,000 or any multiple thereof of a single 
maturity through book entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants.  Principal and interest are 
payable by the Registrar to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the Bonds.  Transfer of principal and interest 
payments to participants of DTC will be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to 
beneficial owners by participants will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial owners.  
The Purchaser, as a condition of delivery of the Bonds, will be required to deposit the bond certificates with DTC. 

MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE AT PURCHASER’S OPTION 

If the Bonds qualify for issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance or commitment therefore at the option of 
the bidder, the purchase of any such insurance policy or the issuance of any such commitment shall be at the sole option 
and expense of the Purchaser.  Any increased costs of issuance of the Bonds resulting from such purchase of insurance 
shall be paid by the Purchaser, except that, if the City has requested and received a rating on the Bonds from a rating 
agency, the City will pay that initial rating fee.  Any other rating agency fees shall be the responsibility of the Purchaser.  
Failure of the municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the Bonds have been awarded to the Purchaser shall not 
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the Purchaser to accept delivery on the Bonds.  The City reserves the right in its 
sole discretion to accept or deny changes to the financing documents requested by the insurer selected by the Purchaser. 

DELIVERY 

The Bonds will be delivered to the Purchaser through DTC in New York, New York, against full payment in 
immediately available cash or federal funds.  The Bonds are expected to be delivered within forty-five days after the 
sale.  Should delivery be delayed beyond sixty days from date of sale for any reason except failure of performance by a 
Purchaser, the Purchaser may withdraw their bid and thereafter their interest in and liability for the Bonds will cease.  
When the Bonds are ready for delivery, the City may give the Purchaser five working days’ notice of the delivery date 
and the City will expect payment in full on that date, otherwise reserving the right of its option to determine that the 
Purchaser has failed to comply with the offer of purchase. 

ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE 

The Purchaser shall assist the City in establishing the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the City 
at closing an “issue price” or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public 
or the sales price or prices of the Bonds, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications.  In 
the event lesser than three bids are received, an “issue price” or similar certificate, substantially in the form attached 
hereto as EXHIBIT 1 to the TERMS OF OFFERING, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary in the 
reasonable judgment of the Purchaser, the City and Bond Counsel, will need to be signed by the Purchaser.  If more 
than three bids are received, an alternative “issue price” or similar certificate will be provided to the Purchaser.  All 
actions to be taken by the City under the TERMS OF OFFERING to establish the issue price of the Bonds may be taken 
on behalf of the City by the Municipal Advisor identified herein and any notice or report to be provided to the City may 
be provided to the Municipal Advisor. 
 
The City intends the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining “competitive sale” for 
purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) will apply to the initial sale of the Bonds (the “competitive sale 
requirements”) because:  (i) the City shall disseminate this TERMS OF OFFERING to potential underwriters in a 
manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters; (ii) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to 
bid; (iii) the City may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal bonds who have established industry 
reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; and (iv) the City anticipates awarding the sale of the 

-166-

Item G.2.a. 



 

vi 

Bonds to the bidder who submits a firm offer to purchase the Bonds at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set 
forth in the TERMS OF OFFERING. 
 
Any bid submitted pursuant to the NOTICE OF BOND SALE and TERMS OF OFFERING shall be considered a firm 
offer for the purchase of the Bonds, as specified in the bid. 
 
In the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, the City shall so advise the Purchaser.  The City 
may determine to treat (i) the first price at which 10% of a maturity of the Bonds (the “10% test” is sold to the public as 
the issue price of that maturity under the circumstances set forth below and/or (ii) the initial offering price to the public 
as of the sale date of any maturity of the Bonds as the issue price of that maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), in 
each case applied on a maturity-by-maturity basis (and if different interest rates apply within a maturity, to each 
separate CUSIP number within that maturity).  The Purchaser shall promptly advise the City if any maturity of the 
Bonds satisfies the 10% test as of the date and time of the award of the Bonds.  The City shall advise the Purchaser, at 
or before the time of award of the Bonds, which maturities (and if different interest rates apply within a maturity, which 
separate CUSIP number within that maturity) of the Bonds, if any, shall be subject to the 10% test and which shall be 
subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule.  Bids will not be subject to cancellation in the event the City determines to 
apply the hold-the-offering-price rule to any maturity of the Bonds.  Prospective bidders should prepare their bids on 
the assumption that some or all of the maturities of the Bonds will be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule 
in order to establish the issue price of the Bonds. 
 
By submitting a bid, the Purchaser shall (i) confirm the underwriters have offered or will offer the Bonds to the public 
on or before the date of award at the offering price or prices (the “initial offering price”), or at the corresponding yield 
or yields, set forth in the bid submitted by the Purchaser and (ii) agree, on behalf of the underwriters participating in the 
purchase of the Bonds, that the underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of any maturity to which the hold-
the-offering-price rule shall apply to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public 
during the period starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:  (i) the close of the fifth (5th) 
business day after the sale date; or (ii) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the 
Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public. 
 
The Purchaser shall promptly advise the City when the underwriters have sold 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the 
public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public, if that occurs prior to the close of the fifth 
(5th) business day after the sale date. 
 
The City acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth above, the Purchaser will rely on (i) the agreement of 
each underwriter to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and 
the related pricing wires, (ii) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the 
Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event ,an 
underwriter is a party to a retail distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the 
Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule, as set forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires.  The City further 
acknowledges that each underwriter shall be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-
the-offering-price rule and that no underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other underwriter, or of any dealer 
who is a member of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to comply 
with its corresponding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the Bonds. 
 
By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that:  (i) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement 
and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the 
public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each 
dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, 
as applicable, to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until 
it is notified by the Purchaser that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity or all Bonds of 
that maturity have been sold to the public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each 
case if and for so long as directed by the Purchaser and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and (ii) any agreement 

-167-

Item G.2.a. 



 

vii 

among underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, 
contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be 
employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to 
such retail distribution agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each 
maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the Purchaser or such underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied 
as to the Bonds of that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public and (B) comply with the hold-
the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the Purchaser or such underwriter and 
as set forth in the related pricing wires. 
 
Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for 
purposes of this TERMS OF OFFERING.  Further, for purposes of this TERMS OF OFFERING: (i) “public” means 
any person other than an underwriter or a related party, (ii) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to 
a written contract with the City (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the 
initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly 
with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a 
selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public), (iii) 
a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the underwriter and the Purchaser are subject, 
directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both 
entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common 
ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by 
one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the 
corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and 
the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the 
other), and (iv) “sale date” means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the City to the Purchaser. 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

The City has authorized the preparation of a Preliminary Official Statement containing pertinent information relative to 
the Bonds.  The Preliminary Official Statement will be further supplemented by offering prices, interest rates, selling 
compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal amount per maturity, anticipated delivery date and the identity of 
the underwriters, together with any other information required by law or deemed appropriate by the City, shall 
constitute a final Official Statement of the City with respect to the Bonds, as that term is defined in Rule 15c2-12 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the 
“Rule”).  By awarding the Bonds to any underwriter or underwriting syndicate submitting an OFFICIAL BID FORM 
therefore, the City agrees that, no more than seven (7) business days after the date of such award, it shall provide 
without cost to the senior managing underwriter of the syndicate to which the Bonds are awarded up to 15 copies of the 
final Official Statement to permit each “Participating Underwriter” (as that term is defined in the Rule) to comply with 
the provisions of the Rule.  The City shall treat the senior managing underwriter of the syndicate to which the Bonds are 
awarded as its designated agent for purposes of distributing copies of the final Official Statement to the Participating 
Underwriter.  Any underwriter executing and delivering an OFFICIAL BID FORM with respect to the Bonds agrees 
thereby that if its bid is accepted by the City, (i) it shall accept such designation and (ii) it shall enter into a contractual 
relationship with all Participating Underwriters of the Bonds for purposes of assuring the receipt by each such 
Participating Underwriter of the final Official Statement. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

In order to permit bidders for the Bonds and other Participating Underwriters in the primary offering of the Bonds to 
comply with paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, the City will covenant and agree, for the benefit of the registered holders or 
beneficial owners from time to time of the outstanding Bonds, in the resolution for the Bonds and the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate, to provide certain annual financial information filings of specified information and notices of 
the occurrence of certain material events as hereinafter described (the “Undertakings”).  The information to be 
provided on an annual basis, the events as to which notice is to be given and a summary of other provisions of the 
Undertakings, including termination, amendment and remedies, are set forth as APPENDIX C to this Preliminary 

-168-

Item G.2.a. 



 

viii 

Official Statement.  The City will deliver the Continuing Disclosure Certificate at closing, and any failure on the part 
of the City to deliver the same shall relieve the Purchaser(s) of its obligations to purchase the Bonds. 
 
In accordance with the reporting requirements of paragraph (f)(3) of the Rule, within the past five years, the City 
inadvertently failed to timely cross reference the annual operating and data tables for Fiscal Year 2015-16 included 
within its timely filed Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and did not file a notice of late filing in connection with 
this occurrence. 
 
The Board of Trustees of the Cedar Falls Municipal Utility of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “Board”) is the 
governing body for purposes of the issuance of all electric, water and communication revenue debt.  Although the Board 
is not making an Undertaking in connection with the Bonds, within the past five years, the Board inadvertently failed to 
timely file the material event notice related to a Moody’s Investors Service upgrade to the Board’s outstanding electric 
revenue debt to ‘Aa2’ on May 7, 2015.  The material event notice for the rating change was not posted until July 30, 
2015. 
 
Breach of the Undertakings will not constitute a default or an “Event of Default” under the Bonds or the resolution for 
the Bonds.  A broker or dealer is to consider a known breach of the Undertakings, however, before recommending the 
purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  Thus, a failure on the part of the City to observe the 
Undertakings may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price. 

CUSIP NUMBERS 

It is anticipated that the Committee on Uniform Security Identification Procedures (“CUSIP”) numbers will be printed 
on the Bonds and the Purchaser must agree in the bid proposal to pay the cost thereof.  In no event will the City, Bond 
Counsel or Municipal Advisor be responsible for the review of, or express any opinion that the CUSIP numbers are 
correct.  Incorrect CUSIP numbers on said Bonds shall not be cause for the Purchaser to refuse to accept delivery of 
said Bonds. 
 
 BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 /s/ Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
  

-169-

Item G.2.a. 



 

ix 

 
 SCHEDULE OF BOND YEARS

$6,585,000*
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018

Bonds Dated:
Interest Due: December 1, 2018 and each June 1 and December 1 to maturity
Principal Due: June 1, 2019-2028

Cumulative
Year Principal * Bond Years Bond Years

2019 $525,000 459.38 459.38
2020 610,000 1,143.75 1,603.13
2021 625,000 1,796.88 3,400.00
2022 640,000 2,480.00 5,880.00
2023 650,000 3,168.75 9,048.75
2024 665,000 3,906.88 12,955.63
2025 685,000 4,709.38 17,665.00
2026 710,000 5,591.25 23,256.25
2027 725,000 6,434.38 29,690.63
2028 750,000 7,406.25 37,096.88

Average Maturity (dated date): 5.634 Years

July 16, 2018

 
 
 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 
 

-170-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

FORM OF ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 

 

-171-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

USE FOR COMPETITIVE SALES – 3 BIDS RECEIVED 

EXHIBIT 1 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

$_____________ 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2018 

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, on behalf of [NAME OF UNDERWRITER] ("Purchaser"), hereby certifies as set forth below 
with respect to the sale of the above-captioned obligations (the "Bonds"). 

1.         Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price. 

a)         As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices of the Bonds to the Public by 
Purchaser are the prices listed in Schedule A (the "Expected Offering Prices").  The Expected Offering Prices are the 
prices for the Maturities of the Bonds used by Purchaser in formulating its bid to purchase the Bonds.  Attached as 
Schedule B is a true and correct copy of the bid provided by Purchaser to purchase the Bonds. 

b)         Purchaser was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to submitting its bid.1 

c)         The bid submitted by Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the Bonds. 

2.         Defined Terms. 

a)         Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms.  Bonds with different maturity dates, or 
Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate Maturities. 

b)         Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company, or 
corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter.  The term "related party" for purposes of 
this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly 
or indirectly. 

c)         Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of a Maturity of 
the Bonds.  The Sale Date of the Bonds is [June 18, 2018]. 

d)         Underwriter means (i) the Purchaser or any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the 
Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to 
the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in 
clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling 
group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public). 

-172-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.  Nothing in this certificate 
represents Purchaser’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.  The undersigned understands that the foregoing 
information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Certificate 
and with respect to compliance with the federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. in 
connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it 
may give to the Issuer [ and the Borrower] from time to time relating to the Bonds. 

[UNDERWRITER] 
By:__________________________________  

  
Name:________________________________  

  
Dated:  [ISSUE DATE] 
 
 

SCHEDULE A 

EXPECTED OFFERING PRICES 

(Attached) 

SCHEDULE B 

COPY OF UNDERWRITER’S BID 

(Attached) 

 

 
 

 

-173-

Item G.2.a. 



 

1 
 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

$6,585,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 

INTRODUCTION 

This Preliminary Official Statement contains information relating to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “City”) and its 
issuance of $6,585,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 (the “Bonds”).  This Preliminary Official Statement has 
been executed on behalf of the City and its Director of Finance & Business Operations and may be distributed in 
connection with the sale of the Bonds authorized therein.  Inquiries may be made to the City’s Municipal Advisor, PFM 
Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309, or by telephoning (515) 243-2600.  
Information can also be obtained from Ms. Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations, 220 Clay 
Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, or by telephoning (319) 273-8600. 

AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Division III of Chapter 384 of the Code of Iowa and a resolution to be adopted by 
the City Council of the City.  The Bonds are being issued to provide funds to pay costs of opening, widening, extending, 
grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, highways, avenues, alleys, public grounds, and market places, and the 
removal and replacement of dead or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and repairing of any street 
improvements, the acquisition, installation, and repair of sidewalks, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, street lighting and 
traffic control devices; the acquisition of any real estate needed for any of the foregoing purposes; equipping the fire 
department; construction, reconstruction and repair of cemetery facilities; rehabilitation and improvement of parks already 
owned, construction of improvements commonly found in city parks; construction of recreational trails; acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, enlargement, improvement and equipping of recreation grounds, recreation buildings, and 
juvenile playgrounds and parks.   
 
The estimated Sources and Uses of the Bonds are as follows: 
 
Sources of Funds   
 Par Amount  $6,585,000.00 * 
  
Uses of Funds  
 Deposit to Project Fund $6,476,450.00  
 Underwriter’s Discount 52,680.00  
 Cost of Issuance and Contingency        55,870.00  
  Total Uses $6,585,000.00 * 
 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

INTEREST 

Interest on the Bonds will be payable on December 1, 2018 and semiannually on the 1st day of June and December 
thereafter.  Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of a bond as shown on the records of ownership 
maintained by the Registrar as of the 15th day of the month preceding such interest payment date (the “Record Date”).  
Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to rules of 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

-174-

Item G.2.a. 



 

2 
 

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION 

Bonds due after June 1, 2026 will be subject to call prior to maturity in whole, or from time to time in part, in any order of 
maturity and within a maturity by lot on said date or on any date thereafter at the option of the City, upon terms of par 
plus accrued interest to date of call.  Written notice of such call shall be given at least thirty (30) days prior to the date 
fixed for redemption to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books. 

PAYMENT OF AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

The Bonds are general obligations of the City and the unlimited taxing powers of the City are irrevocably pledged for 
their payment.  Upon issuance of the Bonds, the City will levy taxes for the years and in amounts sufficient to provide 
100% of annual principal and interest due on the Bonds.  If, however, the amount credited to the debt service fund for 
payment of the Bonds is insufficient to pay principal and interest, whether from transfers or from original levies, the City 
must use funds in its treasury and is required to levy ad valorem taxes upon all taxable property in the City without limit 
as to rate or amount sufficient to pay the debt service deficiency. 
 
Nothing in the resolution authorizing the Bonds prohibits or limits the ability of the City to use legally available moneys 
other than the proceeds of the general ad valorem property taxes levied, as described in the preceding paragraph, to pay all 
or any portion of the principal of or interest on the Bonds.  If and to the extent such other legally available moneys are 
used to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds, the City may, but shall not be required to, (a) reduce the amount of 
taxes levied for such purpose, as described in the preceding paragraph; or (b) use proceeds of taxes levied, as described in 
the preceding paragraph, to reimburse the fund or account from which such other legally available moneys are withdrawn 
for the amount withdrawn from such fund or account to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds. 
 
The resolution authorizing the Bonds doesn’t restrict the City’s ability to issue or incur additional general obligation debt, 
although issuance of additional general obligation debt is subject to the same constitutional and statutory limitations that 
apply to the issuance of the Bonds.  For a further description of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt upon 
issuance of the Bonds and the annual debt service on the Bonds, see “DIRECT DEBT” under “CITY INDEBTEDNESS” 
herein.  For a description of certain constitutional and statutory limits on the issuance of general obligation debt, see 
“DEBT LIMIT” under “CITY INDEBTEDNESS” herein. 

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM 

The information contained in the following paragraphs of this subsection “Book-Entry-Only System” has been extracted 
from a schedule prepared by Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) entitled “SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT 
LANGUAGE DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE.”  The information in this section concerning DTC and 
DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no 
responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the securities (the 
“Securities”).  The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s 
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-
registered Security certificate will be issued for each issue of the Securities, each in the aggregate principal amount of 
such issue, and will be deposited with DTC.  If, however, the aggregate principal amount of any issue exceeds $500 
million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal amount, and an additional certificate 
will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue. 

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York 
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal 
Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a 
“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC 
holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal 
debt issues, and money market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s participants (the “Direct Participants”) 
deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities 

-175-

Item G.2.a. 



 

3 
 

transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct 
Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants 
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain 
other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  
DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing 
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  
Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, 
trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, 
either directly or indirectly (the “Indirect Participants”).  DTC has Standard & Poor’s rating: AA+.  The DTC Rules 
applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can 
be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.   

Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit 
for the Securities on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security (the “Beneficial 
Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive 
written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written 
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or 
Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in 
the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of 
Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Securities, 
except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is discontinued.    

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of 
DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee 
do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 
Securities; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Securities are 
credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible 
for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.  

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect 
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements 
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners 
of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with 
respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Security documents.  
For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Securities for their 
benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to 
provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed, DTC’s 
practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co., nor any other DTC nominee, will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless 
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an 
Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s 
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the record date 
identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy.   

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ 
accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or Agent, on payable date in 
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will 
be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of 
customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, 
Agent, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of 
redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by 
an authorized representative of DTC, is the responsibility of the City or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct 

-176-

Item G.2.a. 



 

4 
 

Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the 
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant, to 
Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the 
Participant’s interest in the Securities, on DTC’s records, to Remarketing Agent.  The requirement for physical delivery of 
Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership 
rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records and followed by a book-entry credit of 
tendered Securities to Remarketing Agent’s DTC account.   

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving reasonable 
notice to the City or Agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Security 
certificates are required to be printed and delivered.   

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities 
depository).  In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the 
City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

FUTURE FINANCING 

The City does not anticipate any additional borrowing needs within the next 90 days of the date of this Preliminary 
Official Statement. 

LITIGATION 

The City is not aware of any threatened or pending litigation that may have a material adverse effect on the validity of the 
Bonds or the City’s ability to meet its financial obligations. 

DEBT PAYMENT HISTORY 

The City knows of no instance in which it has defaulted in the payment of principal or interest on its debt. 

LEGALITY 

The Bonds are subject to approval as to certain matters by Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. of Des Moines, Iowa as Bond Counsel.  
Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this Preliminary Official Statement and will not pass upon its 
accuracy, completeness or sufficiency. Bond Counsel has not examined, nor attempted to examine or verify, any of the 
financial or statistical statements or data contained in this Preliminary Official Statement, and will express no opinion with 
respect thereto.  The “FORM OF LEGAL OPINION” as set out in APPENDIX A to this Preliminary Official Statement, 
will be delivered at closing. 
 

The legal opinion to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds expresses the professional judgment of the 
attorneys rendering the opinion as to legal issues expressly addressed therein.  By rendering a legal opinion, the opinion 
giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of the result indicated by that expression of professional judgment, or of 
the transaction on which the opinion is rendered, or of the future performance of parties to the transaction.  Nor does 
the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction. 
 
There is no bond trustee or similar person to monitor or enforce the provisions of the resolution for the Bonds.  The 
owners of the Bonds should, therefore, be prepared to enforce such provisions themselves if the need to do so arises.  In 
the event of a default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds, there is no provision for acceleration of 
maturity of the principal of the Bonds.  Consequently, the remedies of the owners of the Bonds (consisting primarily 
of an action in the nature of mandamus requiring the City and certain other public officials to perform the terms of the 
resolution for the Bonds) may have to be enforced from year to year.  The obligation to pay general ad valorem 
property taxes is secured by a statutory lien upon the taxed property, but is not an obligation for which a property 
owner may be held personally liable in the event of a deficiency.  The owners of the Bonds cannot foreclose on property 

-177-

Item G.2.a. 



 

5 
 

within the boundaries of the City or sell such property in order to pay the debt service on the Bonds.  See “LEVIES 
AND TAX COLLECTIONS” herein, for a description of property tax collection and enforcement. 
 
In addition, the enforceability of the rights and remedies of owners of the Bonds may be subject to the limitations as set 
forth in the Bond Counsel’s opinion.  The opinion will state, in part, that the obligation of the City with respect to the 
Bonds may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ 
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, to the exercise of judicial discretion in 
appropriate cases. 

TAX MATTERS 

Tax Exemptions and Related Considerations:  Federal tax law contains a number of requirements and restrictions that 
apply to the Bonds.  These include investment restrictions, periodic payments of arbitrage profits to the United States, 
requirements regarding the proper use of bond proceeds and facilities financed with bond proceeds, and certain other 
matters.  The City has covenanted to comply with all requirements that must be satisfied in order for the interest on the 
Bonds to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Failure to comply with certain of such 
covenants could cause interest on the Bonds to become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes 
retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. 
 
Subject to the City’s compliance with the above referenced covenants, under present law, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, 
interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Interest on the Bonds is not an 
item of tax preference for federal alternative minimum tax purposes, but is included in the adjusted current earnings of 
corporations for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax applicable to taxable years beginning before January 1, 
2018. 
 
The prospective purchaser of the Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal 
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, corporations subject to the branch profits tax, 
financial institutions, certain insurance companies, certain S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or 
Railroad Retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred (or continued) indebtedness to purchase 
or carry tax-exempt obligations.  Bond Counsel will not express any opinion as to such collateral tax consequences.  The 
prospective purchaser of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to collateral federal income tax consequences. 
 
Interest on the Bonds is included in gross income for State of Iowa income tax purposes. 
 
Ownership of the Bonds may result in other state and local tax consequences to certain taxpayers.  Bond Counsel 
expresses no opinion regarding any such collateral consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.  The prospective 
purchaser of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding the applicability of any such state and local taxes. 
 
Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations:  The City intends to designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” under 
the exception provided in Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), which 
affords banks and certain other financial institutions more favorable treatment of their deduction for interest expense than 
would otherwise be allowed under Section 265(b)(2) of the Code. 
 
Discount and Premium Bonds:  The initial public offering price of certain Bonds may be less than the amount payable on 
such Bonds at maturity (the “Discount Bonds”).  Owners of Discount Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors 
with respect to the determination of accrued original issue discount on Discount Bonds for income tax purposes and 
with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning and disposing of Discount Bonds.  It is possible that, 
under applicable provisions governing determination of state and local income taxes, accrued interest on Discount Bonds 
may be deemed to be received in the year of accrual even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment. 
 
The initial public offering price of certain Bonds may be greater than the amount of such Bonds at maturity (the 
"Premium Bonds").  Owners of the Premium Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the 
determination of amortizable premium on Premium Bonds for income tax purposes and with respect to the state and 
local tax consequences of owning and disposing of Premium Bonds. 
 

-178-

Item G.2.a. 



 

6 
 

Other Tax Advice:  In addition to the income tax consequences described above, potential investors should consider 
the additional tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of the Bonds.  For instance, state income 
tax law may differ substantially from state to state, and the foregoing is not intended to describe any aspect of the 
income tax laws of any state.  Therefore, potential investors should consult their own tax advisors with respect to 
federal tax issues and with respect to the various state tax consequences of an investment in Bonds. 
 
Audits:  The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to 
determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includable in the gross income of 
the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.  It cannot be predicted whether or not the Service will commence an 
audit of the Bonds.  If an audit is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat the City as a taxpayer and 
the bondholders may have no right to participate in such procedure.  The commencement of an audit could adversely 
affect the market value and liquidity of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate outcome. 
 
Withholdings:  Payments of interest on, and proceeds of the sale, redemption or maturity of, tax-exempt obligations, 
including the Bonds, are in certain cases required to be reported to the Service.  Additionally, backup withholding may 
apply to any such payments to any bond owner who fails to provide an accurate Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification, or a substantially identical form, or to any bond owner who is notified by the 
Service of a failure to report any interest or dividends required to be shown on federal income tax returns.  The reporting 
and backup withholding requirements do not affect the excludability of such interest from gross income for federal tax 
purposes. 
 
Tax Legislation:  Legislation affecting tax-exempt obligations is regularly considered by the United States Congress and 
may be considered by the Iowa legislature.  Court proceedings may also be filed, the outcome of which could modify the 
tax treatment.  There can be no assurance that legislation enacted or proposed, or actions by a court, after the date of 
issuance of the Bonds will not have an adverse effect on the tax status of interest or other income on the Bonds or the 
market value or marketability of the Bonds.  These adverse effects could result, for example, from changes to federal or 
state income tax rates, changes in the structure of federal or state income taxes (including replacement with another type 
of tax), or repeal (or reduction in the benefit) of the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal or 
state income tax purposes for all or certain taxpayers. 
 
Current and future legislative proposals, including some that carry retroactive effective dates, if enacted into law, court 
decisions, or clarification of the Code may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal 
income taxation, or otherwise prevent owners of the Bonds from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such 
interest.  For example, on December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“TCJA”) was signed into law.  For tax years 
beginning after December 31, 2017, the TCJA, among other things, significantly changes the income tax rates on 
individuals and corporations, modifies the current provisions relative to the federal alternative minimum tax on 
individuals, and eliminates the federal alternative minimum tax for corporations.  The TCJA, or the introduction or 
enactment of any other legislative proposals, clarification of the Code or court decisions may also affect, perhaps 
significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds.  Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult 
their own tax advisors regarding the TCJA, as well as any pending or proposed tax legislation, as to which Bond Counsel 
expresses no opinion other than as set forth in its legal opinion. 
 
The Opinion:  The FORM OF LEGAL OPINION, in substantially the form set out in APPENDIX A to this Preliminary 
Official Statement, will be delivered at closing. 
 
Bond Counsel’s opinion is not a guarantee of a result, or of the transaction on which the opinion is rendered, or of the 
future performance of parties to the transaction, but represents its legal judgment based upon its review of existing 
statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions and the representations and covenants of the City described 
in this section.  No ruling has been sought from the Service with respect to the matters addressed in the opinion of 
Bond Counsel and Bond Counsel’s opinion is not binding on the Service, nor does the rendering of the opinion 
guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the transaction.  Bond Counsel assumes no obligation to 
update its opinion after the issue date to reflect any further action, fact or circumstance, or change in law or 
interpretation, or otherwise. 
 

-179-

Item G.2.a. 



 

7 
 

Enforcement:  Holders of the Bonds shall have and possess all the rights of action and remedies afforded by the common 
law, the Constitution and statutes of the State of Iowa and of the United States of America for the enforcement of payment 
of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, the right to a proceeding in law or in equity by suit, action or mandamus to 
enforce and compel performance of the duties required by Iowa law and the resolution authorizing issuance of the Bonds 
(the “Resolution”).  There is no bond trustee or similar person to monitor or enforce the terms of the Resolution.  In the 
event of a default in the payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds, there is no provision for acceleration of maturity 
of the principal of the Bonds.  Consequently, the remedies of the owners of the Bonds (consisting primarily of an action in 
the nature of mandamus requiring the City and certain other public officials to perform the terms of the Resolution) may 
have to be enforced from year to year.  The enforceability of the rights and remedies of owners of the Bonds may be 
subject to limitation as set forth in Bond Counsel’s opinion. 
 
The obligation to pay general ad valorem property taxes is secured by a statutory lien upon the taxed property, but is not 
an obligation for which a property owner may be held personally liable in the event of a deficiency.  The owners of the 
Bonds cannot foreclose on property within the boundaries of the City or sell such property in order to pay the debt service 
on the Bonds.  In addition, the enforceability of the rights and remedies of owners of the Bonds may be subject to 
limitation as set forth in Bond Counsel's opinion.  The opinion to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the 
Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by general 
principles of equity and public policy and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting 
the rights of creditors generally, and to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 
 
ALL POTENTIAL PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR TAX ADVISORS WITH 
REPSECT TO FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAX CONSEQUENCES OF OWNERSHIP OF THE BONDS 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THOSE LISTED ABOVE. 

BONDHOLDER’S RISKS 

An investment in the Bonds is subject to certain risks.  No person should purchase the Bonds unless such person 
understands the risks described below and is willing to bear those risks.  There may be other risks not listed below which 
may adversely affect the value of the Bonds.  In order to identify risk factors and make an informed investment decision, 
potential investors should be thoroughly familiar with this entire Preliminary Official Statement (including the Appendices 
hereto) in order to make a judgment as to whether the Bonds are an appropriate investment. 
 
Secondary Market Not Established:  There is no established secondary market for the Bonds, and there is no assurance 
that a secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale of the Bonds.  Prices of municipal bonds traded in the 
secondary market, if any, are subject to adjustment upward and downward in response to changes in the credit markets 
and changes in the operating performance of the entities operating the facilities subject to bonded indebtedness.  From 
time to time it may be necessary to suspend indefinitely secondary market trading in selected issues of municipal bonds as 
a result of the financial condition or market position, prevailing market conditions, lack of adequate current financial 
information about the entity, operating the subject facilities, or a material adverse change in the operations of that entity, 
whether or not the subject bonds are in default as to principal and interest payments, and other factors which, may give 
rise to uncertainty concerning prudent secondary market practices. 
 
Municipal bonds are generally viewed as long-term investments, subject to material unforeseen changes in the investor’s 
circumstances, and may require commitment of the investor’s funds for an indefinite period of time, perhaps until 
maturity. 
 
Ratings Loss:  Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) has assigned a rating of ‘____’ to the Bonds.  Generally, a 
rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and 
assumptions of its own.  There is no assurance the ratings will continue for any given period of time, or that such ratings 
will not be revised, suspended or withdrawn, if, in the judgment of Moody’s, circumstances so warrant.  A revision, 
suspension or withdrawal of a rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 
 
Rating agencies are currently not regulated by any regulatory body.  Future regulation of rating agencies could materially 
alter the methodology, rating levels, and types of ratings available, for example, and these changes, if ever, could materially 
affect the market value of the Bonds. 

-180-

Item G.2.a. 



 

8 
 

 
Matters Relating to Enforceability:  Holders of the Bonds shall have and possess all the rights of action and remedies 
afforded by the common law, the Constitution and statutes of the State of Iowa and of the United States of America for the 
enforcement of payment of the Bonds, including but not limited to, the right to a proceeding in the law or in equity by suit, 
action or mandamus to enforce and compel performance of the duties required by Iowa law and the Resolution. 
 
The opinion, to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds, will be qualified as to the enforceability of the 
various legal instruments by limitations imposed by general principals of equity and public policy and by bankruptcy, 
reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally. 
 
No representation is made and no assurance is given that the enforcement of any remedies with respect to such assets will 
result in sufficient funds to pay all amounts due under the Resolution, including principal of and interest on the Bonds. 
 
Forward-Looking Statements:  This Preliminary Official Statement contains statements relating to future results that are 
“forward-looking statements” as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  When used in this 
Preliminary Official Statement, the words “estimate,” “forecast,” “intend,” “expect” and similar expressions identify 
forward-looking statements.  Any forward-looking statement is subject to uncertainty.  Accordingly, such statements are 
subject to risks that could cause actual results to differ, possibly materially, from those contemplated in such forward-
looking statements.  Inevitably, some assumptions used to develop forward-looking statements will not be realized or 
unanticipated events and circumstances may occur.  Therefore, investors should be aware there are likely to be differences 
between forward-looking statements and the actual results.  These differences could be material and could impact the 
availability of funds of the City to pay debt service when due on the Bonds. 
 
Tax Matters and Loss of Tax Exemption:  As discussed under the heading “TAX MATTERS” herein, the interest on the 
Bonds could become includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to the date of delivery 
of the Bonds, as a result of acts or omissions of the City in violation of its covenants in the Resolution.  Should such an 
event of taxability occur, the Bonds would not be subject to a special prepayment and would remain outstanding until 
maturity or until prepaid under the prepayment provisions contained in the Bonds, and there is no provision for an 
adjustment of the interest rates on the Bonds. 
 
It is possible further legislation will be proposed or introduced that could result in changes in the way that tax exemptions 
are calculated, or whether interest on certain securities are exempt from taxation at all.  Prospective purchasers should 
consult with their own tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed federal income tax legislation. 
 
It is also possible actions of the City, after the closings of the Bonds, will alter the tax status of the Bonds, and in the 
extreme, remove the tax-exempt status from the Bonds.  In that instance, the Bonds are not subject to mandatory 
prepayment and the interest rates on the Bonds don’t increase or otherwise reset.  A determination of taxability on the 
Bonds after closing could materially adversely affect the value and marketability of the Bonds. 
 
Pending Federal Tax Legislation:  From time to time, there are Presidential proposals, proposals of various federal 
committees, and legislative proposals pending in Congress that could, if enacted, alter or amend one or more of the federal 
(or state) tax matters described herein in certain respects or would adversely affect the market value of the Bonds or 
otherwise prevent holders of the Bonds from realizing the full benefit of the tax exemption of interest on the Bonds.  
Further, such proposals may impact the marketability or market value of the Bonds simply by being proposed.  It cannot be 
predicted whether, or in what forms, any of such proposals, either pending or that may be introduced, may be enacted and 
there can be no assurance that such proposals will not apply to the Bonds.  In addition, regulatory actions are from time to 
time announced or proposed and litigation threatened or commenced, which if implemented or concluded in a particular 
manner, could adversely affect the market value, marketability or tax status of the Bonds.  It cannot be predicted whether 
any such regulatory action will be implemented, how any particular litigation or judicial action will be resolved, or whether 
the Bonds would be impacted thereby. 
 
Tax Levy Procedures:  The Bonds are general obligations of the City, payable from and secured by a continuing ad valorem 
tax levied against all of the property valuation within the City.  As part of the budgetary process each fiscal year, the City 
will have an obligation to request a debt service levy to be applied against all of the taxable property within the City.  A 
failure on the part of the City to make a timely levy request or a levy request by the City that is inaccurate or is insufficient 

-181-

Item G.2.a. 



 

9 
 

to make full payments of the debt service of the Bonds for a particular fiscal year may cause bondholders to experience a 
delay in the receipt of distributions of principal of and/or interest on the Bonds.  In the event of a default in the payment of 
principal of or interest on the Bonds, there is no provision for acceleration of maturity of the principal of the Bonds.  
Consequently, the remedies of the owners of the Bonds (consisting primarily of an action in the nature of mandamus 
requiring the City and certain other public officials to perform the terms of the Resolution) may have to be enforced from 
year to year. 
 
Federal Funds Orders, and State Funds Legislation:  Various federal executive orders, and a law (“SF 481”) recently 
enacted in Iowa which becomes effective July 1, 2018 (collectively “ICE Enforcement Initiatives”), impose requirements 
intended to ensure compliance with the federal immigration detainment processes.  The ICE Enforcement Initiatives 
impose various penalties for non-compliance, including the loss of state and/or federal funding under certain 
circumstances.  Rules to administer SF481 in Iowa have yet to be drafted.  The loss of state and/or federal funds in any 
significant amount would negatively impact the City’s overall financial position and could affect its rating.  However, the 
Bonds are secured by a debt service levy upon real property in the jurisdictional limits of the City, and are not secured by 
state or federal funds.  Iowa Code section 76.2 provides that when an Iowa political subdivision issues general obligation 
bonds, “the governing authority of these political subdivisions before issuing bonds shall, by resolution, provide for the 
assessment of an annual levy upon all the taxable property in the political subdivision sufficient to pay the interest and 
principal of the bonds within a period named not exceeding twenty years.  A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed 
with the county auditor or the auditors of the counties in which the political subdivision is located; and the filing shall 
make it a duty of the auditors to enter annually this levy for collection from the taxable property within the boundaries of 
the political subdivision until funds are realized to pay the bonds in full. 
 
DTC-Beneficial Owners:  Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may experience some delay in the receipt of distributions of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds since such distributions will be forwarded by the Registrar to DTC and DTC will 
credit such distributions to the accounts of the Participants which will, thereafter, credit them to the accounts of the 
Beneficial Owner either directly or indirectly through Indirect Participants.  Neither the City nor the Registrar will have any 
responsibility or obligation to assure any such notice or payment is forwarded by DTC to any Participants or by any 
Participant to any Beneficial Owner. 
 
In addition, since transactions in the Bonds can be effected only through DTC Participants, Indirect Participants and certain 
banks, the ability of a Beneficial Owner to pledge the Bonds to persons or entities that do not participate in the DTC 
system, or otherwise to take actions in respect of such Bonds, may be limited due to lack of a physical certificate.  
Beneficial Owners will be permitted to exercise the rights of registered Owners only indirectly through DTC and the 
Participants.  See “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.” 
 
Summary:  The foregoing is intended only as a summary of certain risk factors attendant to an investment in the Bonds.  In 
order for potential investors to identify risk factors and make an informed investment decision, potential investors should 
become thoroughly familiar with this entire Preliminary Official Statement and the Appendices hereto to make a judgment 
as to whether the Bonds are an appropriate investment. 

RATING 

The City has requested a rating on the Bonds from Moody’s.  The City’s outstanding general obligation long-term debt is 
rated ‘Aa1’ by Moody’s.  The existing ratings on long-term debt reflect only the view of the rating agency and any 
explanation of the significance of such rating may only be obtained from Moody’s.  There is no assurance that such rating 
will continue for any period of time or that it will not be revised or withdrawn.  Any revision or withdrawal of the rating 
may have an effect on the market price of the Bonds. 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR 

The City has retained PFM Financial Advisors LLC, Des Moines, Iowa, as Municipal Advisor in connection with the 
preparation of the Preliminary Official Statement for the issuance of the Bonds.  In preparing the Preliminary Official 
Statement, the Municipal Advisor has relied on government officials, and other sources to provide accurate information 
for disclosure purposes.  The Municipal Advisor is not obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken to make, an 
independent verification of the information provided by the City, or to assume responsibility for the accuracy, 

-182-

Item G.2.a. 



 

10 
 

completeness, or fairness of the information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement.  PFM Financial Advisors 
LLC is an independent advisory firm and is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal 
securities or other public securities. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

In order to permit bidders for the Bonds and other Participating Underwriters in the primary offering of the Bonds to 
comply with paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Rule”) the City will covenant and agree, for the benefit of the 
registered holders or beneficial owners from time to time of the outstanding Bonds, in the Resolution and the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate, to provide annual financial information filings of specified information and notice of the 
occurrence of certain material events as hereinafter described (the “Undertakings”).  The information to be provided on an 
annual basis, the events as to which notice is to be given, and a summary of other provisions of the Undertakings, 
including termination, amendment and remedies, are set forth as APPENDIX C to this Preliminary Official Statement.  
The City will deliver the Continuing Disclosure Certificate at closing, and any failure on the part of the City to deliver the 
same shall relieve the Purchaser of its obligations to purchase the Bonds. 
 
In accordance with the reporting requirements of paragraph (f)(3) of the Rule, within the past five years, the City 
inadvertently failed to timely cross reference the annual operating and data tables for Fiscal Year 2015-16 included within 
its timely filed Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and did not file a notice of late filing in connection with this 
occurrence. 
 
The Board of Trustees of the Cedar Falls Municipal Utility of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the “Board”) is the governing 
body for purposes of the issuance of all electric, water and communication revenue debt.  Although the Board is not 
making an Undertaking in connection with the Bonds, within the past five years, the Board inadvertently failed to timely 
file the material event notice related to a Moody’s Investors Service upgrade to the Board’s outstanding electric revenue 
debt to ‘Aa2’ on May 7, 2015.  The material event notice for the rating change was not posted until July 30, 2015. 
 
Breach of the Undertakings will not constitute a default or an “Event of Default” under the Bonds or the Resolution.  A 
broker or dealer is to consider a known breach of the Undertakings, however, before recommending the purchase or sale 
of the Bonds in the secondary market.  Thus, a failure on the part of the City to observe the Undertakings may adversely 
affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price. 

CERTIFICATION 

The City has authorized the distribution of this Preliminary Official Statement for use in connection with the initial sale of 
the Bonds.  I have reviewed the information contained within the Preliminary Official Statement prepared on behalf of the 
City by PFM Financial Advisor LLC, Des Moines, Iowa, and to the best of our knowledge, information and belief, said 
Preliminary Official Statement does not contain any material misstatements of fact nor omission of any material fact 
regarding the issuance of $6,585,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018. 
 
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 /s/  Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 
 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

-183-

Item G.2.a. 



 

11 
 

CITY PROPERTY VALUES 

IOWA PROPERTY VALUATIONS 

In compliance with Section 441.21 of the Code of Iowa, the State Director of Revenue annually directs the county 
auditors to apply prescribed statutory percentages to the assessments of certain categories of real property.  The 2017 final 
Actual Values were adjusted by the Black Hawk County Auditor.  The reduced values, determined after the application of 
rollback percentages, are the Taxable Values subject to tax levy.  For assessment year 2017, the taxable value rollback 
rate was 55.6209% of actual value for residential property; 54.4480% of actual value for agricultural property; 78.7500% 
of the actual value for multiresidential property; and 90% of actual value for commercial and industrial property.  No 
adjustment was ordered for utility property because its assessed value did not increase enough to qualify for reduction.  
Utility property is limited to an 8% annual growth. 
 
The Legislature’s intent has been to limit the growth of statewide taxable valuations for the specific classes of property to 
3% annually.  Political subdivisions whose taxable values are thus reduced or are unusually low in growth are allowed to 
appeal the valuations to the State Appeal Board, in order to continue to fund present services. 

PROPERTY VALUATIONS (1/1/2017 Valuations for Taxes payable July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019) 

  
100% Actual Value 

Taxable Value 
(With Rollback) 

Residential $2,346,621,080 $1,305,201,828 
Commercial 452,393,968 404,182,955 
Industrial 34,447,800 29,027,392 
Multiresidential 
Railroads 

116,010,867 
1,943,004 

90,947,801 
1,748,704 

Utilities w/o Gas & Electric       4,471,831         4,471,831 
   

Gross valuation $2,955,888,550 $1,835,580,511 
Less military exemption        (2,928,012)        (2,928,012) 
   

Net valuation $2,952,960,538 $1,832,652,499 
   
TIF increment (used to compute debt service 

levies and constitutional debt limit) $145,516,709 1) $135,715,774 1) 
   
Taxed separately 
    Ag. Land & Buildings 

 
$11,148,520 2) 

 
$6,010,597 

    Gas & Electric Utilities $57,303,570 $4,549,992 
 

1) Reduced by $70,376 military exemption. 
2) Includes $59,550 of Ag. TIF increment valuation. 

2017 GROSS TAXABLE VALUATION BY CLASS OF PROPERTY 1) 

 Taxable Valuation Percent Total 

Residential $1,305,201,828 70.93% 
Multiresidential 90,947,801 4.94% 
Commercial, Industrial, and Utilities 437,682,178 23.79% 
Gas & Electric Utilities 4,549,992 0.25% 
Railroads         1,748,704    0.09% 
   

Total Gross Taxable Valuation 1) $1,840,130,503 100.00% 
 

1) Excludes Taxable TIF Increment and Ag. Land & Buildings. 

-184-

Item G.2.a. 



 

12 
 

TREND OF VALUATIONS 

Assessment 
Year 

Payable 
Fiscal Year 

 
100% Actual Valuation 

Taxable Valuation 
(With Rollback) 

Taxable 
TIF Increment 

     

2013 2014-15 $2,791,722,436 $1,497,708,339 $262,029,070 
2014 2015-16 2,848,521,871 1,514,959,618 272,130,549 
2015 2016-17 2,984,528,716 1,574,489,248 286,407,647 
2016 2017-18 3,038,327,081 1,755,047,594 160,384,626 
2017 2018-19 3,166,929,337 1,837,202,491 135,715,774 

 
The 100% Actual Valuation, before rollback and after reduction of military exemption, includes Ag. Land, Ag. Buildings, 
Taxable TIF Increment and Gas & Electric Utilities.  The Taxable Valuation, with the rollback and after the reduction of 
military exemption, includes Gas & Electric Utilities and excludes Ag. Land, Ag. Buildings and Taxable TIF Increment.  
Iowa cities certify operating levies against Taxable Valuation excluding the Taxable TIF Increment and debt service 
levies are certified against Taxable Valuations including the Taxable TIF Increment-Urban but excluding Taxable TIF 
Increment-Ag. 

LARGER TAXPAYERS 

Set forth in the following tables are the persons or entities which represent the larger taxpayers within the boundaries of 
the City, as provided by the Black Hawk County Auditor’s office.  No independent investigation has been made of and no 
representation is made herein as to the financial condition of any of the taxpayers listed below or that such taxpayers will 
continue to maintain their status as major taxpayers in the City.  The City’s mill levy is uniformly applicable to all of the 
properties included in the table, and thus taxes expected to be received by the City from such taxpayers will be in 
proportion to the assessed valuations of the properties.  The total tax bill for each of the properties is dependent upon the 
mill levies of the other taxing entities which overlap the properties. 
 

 
Taxpayer 1) 

 
Type of Property/Business 

1/1/2016 
   Taxable Valuation 2) 3) 

   

Target Corporation Commercial/Industrial/Distribution $69,138,954 
College Square Realty LLC Commercial 18,652,455 
Midland Tarkenton LLC Commercial 13,176,954 
Wal Mart Re Business Trust  Commercial 12,208,455 
WB CF Assoc LTD Partners LLC Multiresidential 10,508,866 
Menard Inc. Commercial 10,260,000 
Tailwind Cedar Falls Inc. Commercial 9,484,868 
R and N Investment Prop LC Commercial 9,417,240 
Martin Realty Company LLC Commercial 7,802,100 
Deer and Company Industrial 7,681,860 
   

   
 

1) This list represents some of the larger taxpayers in the City, not necessarily the 10 largest taxpayers. 
2) The 1/1/2016 taxable valuations listed represent only those valuations associated with the title holder and may not necessarily 

represent the entire taxable valuation. 
3) The 1/1/2017 taxable valuations will not be available from the Black Hawk County Auditor’s office until mid-August 2018. 
 

Source:  Black Hawk County Auditor’s Office. 

-185-

Item G.2.a. 



 

13 
 

PROPERTY TAX LEGISLATION 

During the 2013 legislative session, the Iowa General Assembly enacted Senate File 295 (the “Act”), which the Governor 
signed into law on June 12, 2013.  Among other things, the Act (i) reduced the maximum annual taxable value growth 
percent, due to revaluation of existing residential and agricultural property to 3%, (ii) assigned a “rollback” (the 
percentage of a property’s value that is subject to tax) to commercial, industrial and railroad property of 90%, (iii) created 
a new property tax classification for multi-residential properties (mobile home parks, manufactured home communities, 
land-lease communities, assisted living facilities and property primarily used or intended for human habitation containing 
three or more separate dwelling units) (“Multiresidential Property”), and assigned a declining rollback percentage of 
3.75% to such properties for each year until the 2021 assessment year (the rollback percentage for Multiresidential 
Properties is equal to the residential rollback percentage in the 2022 assessment year and thereafter) and (iv) exempted a 
specified portion of the assessed value of telecommunication properties. 
 
The Act included a standing appropriation to replace some of the tax revenues lost by local governments, including tax 
increment districts, resulting from the new rollback for commercial and industrial property.  Beginning in Fiscal Year 
2017-18 the standing appropriation cannot exceed the actual Fiscal Year 2016-17 appropriation amount.  The 
appropriation does not replace losses to local governments resulting from the Act’s provisions that reduce the annual 
revaluation growth limit for residential and agricultural properties to 3%, the gradual transition for Multiresidential 
Property to the residential rollback percentage, or the reduction in the percentage of telecommunications property that is 
subject to taxation. 
 
Given the wide scope of the statutory changes, and the State of Iowa’s discretion in establishing the annual replacement 
amount that is appropriated each year commencing in Fiscal Year 2017-18, the impact of the Act on the City’s future 
property tax collections is uncertain and the City is unable to accurately assess the financial impact of the Act’s provisions 
on the City’s future operations. 
 
Notwithstanding any decrease in property tax revenues that may result from the Act, Iowa Code section 76.2 provides that 
when an Iowa political subdivision issues general obligation bonds, “the governing authority of these political 
subdivisions before issuing bonds shall, by resolution, provide for the assessment of an annual levy upon all the taxable 
property in the political subdivision sufficient to pay the interest and principal of the bonds within a period named not 
exceeding twenty years.  A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed with the county auditor or the auditors of the 
counties in which the political subdivision is located; and the filing shall make it a duty of the auditors to enter annually 
this levy for collection from the taxable property within the boundaries of the political subdivision until funds are realized 
to pay the bonds in full.” 
 
From time to time, other legislative proposals may be considered by the Iowa General Assembly that would, if enacted, 
alter or amend one or more of the property tax matters described in this Preliminary Official Statement.  It cannot be 
predicted whether or in what forms any of such proposals may be enacted, and there can be no assurance that such 
proposals will not apply to valuation, assessment or levy procedures for the levy of taxes by the City. 

-186-

Item G.2.a. 



 

14 
 

CITY INDEBTEDNESS 

DEBT LIMIT 

Article XI, Section 3 of the State of Iowa Constitution limits the amount of debt outstanding at any time of any county, 
municipality or other political subdivision to no more than 5% of the actual value of all taxable property within the 
corporate limits, as taken from the last state and county tax list.  The debt limit for the City, based on its 2017 valuation 
currently applicable to the Fiscal Year 2018-19 is as follows: 
 
 2017 Actual Valuation of Property $3,166,929,337 
 Legal Debt Limit of 5%  0.05 
  Legal Debt Limit $158,346,467 
 Less:  G. O. Debt Subject to Debt Limit  (16,325,000)* 
 Less:  Developer Rebate Agreements (619,755) 1) 
 Less:  Other Miscellaneous Debt  (95,385) 2) 
 Net Debt Limit $141,306,327 * 
 

1) TIF rebate agreement payments for FY 2018-19 which were appropriated by the City Council; and subject to the Debt Limit. 
2) Includes all other debt subject to the City’s Debt Limit including the outstanding balance of a hospital operating lease. 

DIRECT DEBT 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Property Taxes (Includes a portion of the Bonds) 
 

 
Date 

of Issue 

 
Original 
Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Final 

Maturity 

Principal 
Outstanding 

As of 7/23/18 
      

12/09A $1,880,000 Capital Improvements 6/20 $430,000
7/16 2,865,000 Capital Improvements 6/26 2,180,000
7/18 3,170,000* Capital Improvements 6/28    3,170,000*

Subtotal    $5,780,000*
 
General Obligation Debt Paid by Tax Increment Revenues 
 

 
Date 

of Issue 

 
Original 
Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Final 

Maturity 

Principal 
Outstanding 

As of 7/23/18 
      

12/09A $1,560,000 Capital Improvements 6/24 $1,015,000
 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 
 

-187-

Item G.2.a. 



 

15 
 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Sewer Utility Revenues (Includes a portion of the Bonds) 

 
Date 

of Issue 

 
Original 
Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Final 

Maturity 

Principal 
Outstanding 

As of 7/23/18 
      

7/16 $6,790,000 Capital Improvements 6/28 $6,115,000
7/18 2,395,000* Capital Improvements 6/28 2,395,000 *

Subtotal    $8,510,000 *
 
General Obligation Debt Paid by Storm Water Utility Revenues (Includes a portion of the Bonds) 
 

 
Date 

of Issue 

 
Original 
Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Final 

Maturity 

Principal 
Outstanding 

As of 7/23/18 
      

7/18 $1,020,000* Capital Improvements 6/28 $1,020,000 *
 
Total Outstanding General Obligation Debt $16,325,000* 
 
Annual Fiscal Year Debt Service Payments 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Property Taxes (Includes a portion of the Bonds) 
 

 Current Outstanding Bonds Total Outstanding 

Fiscal Year 
 

Principal 
Principal & 

Interest 
 

Principal* 
Principal & 

Interest* 
 

Principal* 
Principal & 

Interest* 
       

2018-19 $465,000 $522,480 $220,000 $293,322 $685,000 $815,802 
2019-20 480,000 525,870 295,000 376,169 775,000 902,039 
2020-21 265,000 298,300 305,000 379,738 570,000 678,038 
2021-22 270,000 298,000 310,000 377,723 580,000 675,723 
2022-23 275,000 297,600 315,000 375,097 590,000 672,697 
2023-24 280,000 297,100 325,000 376,876 605,000 673,976 
2024-25 285,000 296,500 335,000 378,101 620,000 674,601 
2025-26    290,000 295,800 345,000 378,687 635,000 674,487 
2026-27   355,000 378,406 355,000 378,406 
2027-28        365,000 377,082      365,000 377,081 

       

Total $2,610,000  $3,170,000*  $5,780,000*  
 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 
 
General Obligation Debt Paid by Tax Increment Revenues 
 

 Current Outstanding 

Fiscal Year 
 

Principal 
Principal & 

Interest 
   

2018-19 $155,000 $190,838 
2019-20 160,000 191,033 
2020-21 165,000 190,673 
2021-22 170,000 189,815 
2022-23 180,000 193,780 
2023-24      185,000 192,030 

Total $1,015,000  
   

-188-

Item G.2.a. 



 

16 
 

General Obligation Debt Paid by Sewer Utility Revenues (Includes a portion of the Bonds) 
 

 Current Outstanding Bonds Total Outstanding 

Fiscal Year 
 

Principal 
Principal & 

Interest 
 

Principal* 
Principal & 

Interest* 
 

Principal* 
Principal & 

Interest* 
       

2018-19 $560,000 $682,300 $215,000 $270,086 $775,000 $952,386 
2019-20 570,000 681,100 220,000 279,957 790,000 961,057 
2020-21 580,000 679,700 225,000 280,161 805,000 959,861 
2021-22 590,000 678,100 230,000 279,986 820,000 958,086 
2022-23 600,000 676,300 235,000 279,328 835,000 955,628 
2023-24 615,000 679,300 240,000 278,195 855,000 957,495 
2024-25 630,000 682,000 245,000 276,715 875,000 958,715 
2025-26 645,000 684,400 255,000 279,830 900,000 964,230 
2026-27 655,000 681,500 260,000 277,231 915,000 958,731 
2027-28    670,000 683,400      270,000 278,937      940,000 962,337 

Total $6,115,000  $2,395,000*  $8,510,000*  
 
General Obligation Debt Paid by Storm Water Utility Revenues (Includes a portion of the Bonds) 
 

 Current Outstanding 

Fiscal Year 
 

Principal* 
Principal & 

Interest* 
   

2018-19 $90,000 $113,463 
2019-20 95,000 120,570 
2020-21 95,000 118,499 
2021-22 100,000 121,314 
2022-23 100,000 118,854 
2023-24 100,000 116,244 
2024-25 105,000 118,544 
2025-26 110,000 120,594 
2026-27 110,000 117,316 
2027-28     115,000 118,807 

Total $1,020,000 *  
 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

-189-

Item G.2.a. 



 

17 
 

OTHER DEBT 
 
Tax Increment Rebate Agreements Subject to Debt Limit 

  Estimated Total Estimated 
Obligation 

Subject to Debt 
Limit as of 07/23/18 

Total Estimated Final 
TIF Rebate Obligation Outstanding Payment 
Agreements as of 07/23/18 Date 

Linderbaum Real Estate, LLC $69,525 6/30/23 $13,905 1) 

RBJB, LLC (Allen Occ. Health) 132,750 6/30/23 44,250 1) 

River Place Properties 9,280,000 6/30/27 480,000 1)

Jones, Lang, LaSalle (Realty Income) 28,800 6/30/19 28,800 1) 

Dahlstrom 2215 College 72,000 6/30/21 24,000 1) 

Dahlstrom 2024 College 28,800 6/30/21 9,600 1) 

Cedar Falls Development 76,800 6/30/22 19,200 1) 

Six Kids, LLC 135,000 6/30/24               0 1)

Total $619,755 
 

1) TIF rebate agreement payments for FY 2018-19 which were appropriated by the City Council; and subject to the Debt Limit. 

SEWER UTILITY REVENUE DEBT 

The City has revenue debt payable solely from net revenues of the Sewer Utility as follows: 
 

 
Date 

of Issue 

 
Original 
Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Final 

Maturity 

Principal 
Outstanding 

As of 7/23/18 
      

8/11 $6,998,104 Capital Improvements (SRF Loan) 6/33 $5,644,000
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND ELECTRIC UTILITY REVENUE DEBT 
 
Cedar Falls Utilities has revenue debt payable solely from the net revenues of the Electric utilities as follows: 
 

 
Date 

of Issue 

 
Original 
Amount 

 
 

Purpose 

 
Final 

Maturity 

Principal 
Outstanding 

As of 7/23/18 
      

12/10A $10,000,000 Electric Capital Improvements 12/30 $7,095,000
12/10B 6,870,000 Electric Capital Improvements 12/23 4,665,000

6/15 26,395,000 Electric Refunding 12/26   22,005,000

Subtotal    $33,765,000

 

-190-

Item G.2.a. 



 

18 
 

INDIRECT GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT 

            Taxing District 
1/1/2017 

Taxable Valuation 1)

Portion of  
Taxable Valuation 

within the City 
Percent 
In City   G.O. Debt 2) 

City's 
Proportionate 

Share 
      

Black Hawk County $5,875,981,305 3) $1,978,988,412  33.68% $24,175,000 $8,142,140 
Cedar Falls CSD 2,086,087,867 3) 1,924,798,982  92.27% 30,955,000 28,562,179 
Hudson CSD 217,115,901 7,995,957  3.68% 0 0 
Waterloo CSD 2,963,191,876 46,193,473  1.56% 0 0 
Hawkeye Comm. College 10,234,179,841 3) 1,978,988,412  19.34% 19,660,000    3,802,244 
     

City’s Share of Total Overlapping Debt   $40,506,563 
 
1) Taxable Valuation excludes military exemption and includes Ag. Land & Buildings, Taxable TIF Increment and all Utilities. 
2) Includes general obligation bonds, PPEL notes, certificates of participation and new jobs training certificates. 
3) Includes Ag TIF Increment valuations in the amount of $59,550. 
 
DEBT RATIOS 

 
 

 
 

  G.O. Debt 

Debt/Actual 
Market Value 

($3,166,929,337) 1) 

 
Debt/39,260 
Population 2) 

    

Total General Obligation Debt $16,325,000 * 0.52%* $415.82* 
   Less: G. O. Debt Paid by Enterprise Funds 3)  (9,530,000)*   
    

Net G.O. Debt Paid by Taxes and Tax Increment $6,795,000 * 0.21%* $173.08* 
    

City's Share of Overlapping Debt  $40,506,563 1.28% $1,031.75 
 
1) Based on the City’s 1/1/2017 100% Actual Valuation; includes Ag Land, Ag Buildings, all Utilities and TIF Increment. 
2) Population based on the City’s 2010 U.S. Census. 
3) Includes general obligation debt paid by sewer and storm water utility revenues. 
 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 
 

-191-

Item G.2.a. 



 

19 
 

LEVIES AND TAX COLLECTIONS 
Collected During Percent 

Fiscal Year Levy Collection Year Collected 
2013-14 $21,615,920 $21,405,743 99.03% 
2014-15 25,111,928 25,062,771 99.80% 
2015-16 25,141,093 25,030,814 99.56% 
2016-17 25,687,076 25,592,517 99.63% 
2017-18 24,209,386 ---------In Process of Collection--------- 

 
Collections include delinquent taxes from all prior years.  Taxes in Iowa are delinquent each October 1 and April 1 and a 
late payment penalty of 1% per month of delinquency is enforced as of those dates.  If delinquent taxes are not paid, the 
property may be offered at the regular tax sale on the third Monday of June following the delinquency date.  Purchasers at 
the tax sale must pay an amount equal to the taxes, special assessments, interest and penalties due on the property and 
funds so received are applied to taxes.  A property owner may redeem from the regular tax sale but, failing redemption 
within three years, the tax sale purchaser is entitled to a deed, which in general conveys the title free and clear of all liens 
except future tax installments. 

 

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor’s office. 

TAX RATES  

 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 
 $/$1,000 $/$1,000 $/$1,000 $/$1,000 $/$1,000 
      

Black Hawk County 6.02116 6.11919 6.74817 6.44577 6.41507 
City of Cedar Falls 12.02123 11.81029 11.52796 11.21967 11.13476 
Cedar Falls Community School District 12.82531 12.78447 12.44447 12.76973 14.27271 
Hawkeye Community College 0.95205 0.95088 0.95088 0.95088 0.97071 
Assessor/Appraiser 0.32445 0.30787 0.29967 0.28545 0.26966 
Agriculture Ext. Service 0.08970 0.09646 0.09603 0.09352 0.09148 
State of Iowa   0.00330   0.00330   0.00330   0.00330   0.00310 
      

Total Tax Rate City Resident 32.23720 32.07246 32.07048 31.76832 33.15749 

LEVY LIMITS 

A city’s general fund tax levy is limited to $8.10 per $1,000 of taxable value, with provision for an additional $0.27 per 
$1,000 levy for an emergency fund which can be used for general fund purposes (Code of Iowa, Chapter 384, Division I).  
Cities may exceed the $8.10 limitation upon authorization by a special levy election.  Further, there are limited special 
purpose levies which may be certified outside of the above described levy limits (Code of Iowa, Section 384.12).  The 
amount of the City’s general fund levy subject to the $8.10 limitation is $8.10 for Fiscal Year 2017-18.  The City does 
levy for the operation and maintenance of publicly owned transit; liability, property and self insurance costs; support of a 
local emergency management committee; instrumental/vocal music groups; support of the public library; and employee 
benefits in addition to the $8.10 general fund limit as authorized by law.  Currently, the City does not levy for an 
emergency fund.  Debt service levies are not limited. 

-192-

Item G.2.a. 



 

20 
 

FUNDS ON HAND (Cash and Investments as of April 1, 2018) 

General $5,264,252.05  
Street Construction 8,036,985.12 
Local Street Repair 15,056,160.53 
Cable Television 1,893,558.23 
Parking Meter 981,378.45 
Visitors & Tourism Services 983,301.22 
Community Center & Senior Services (9,034.12) 1) 

Police Forfeiture & D.A.R.E. 43,111.41 
Police Retirement 2,640,232.91 
Fire Retirement 2,878,426.68 
Library Reserve 37,049.64 
Softball Player 165,913.91 
Golf Capital 404,300.80 
Rec. Center Capital 1,423,588.21 
Hearst Center Capital 316,871.19 
Debt Service 1,670,777.43 
Washington Park/Par 3 31,542.83 
FEMA 148,530.51 
Flood Reserve Fund 1,397,180.04 
Street Improvement Fund 24,062.52 
2004 TIF Bond Fund (11,229.86) 2) 

2012 Bond Fund 1,185,969.54 
2016 Bond Fund (311,940.34) 3) 

Capital Projects and Equipment 21,427,944.75 
Parkade Renovation 14,342.42 
Sidewalk Assessment (2,068.37) 4) 

Economic Development 3,128,233.38 
Economic Dev. Land Acquisition 2,104,145.11 
Sewer Bond Fund (1,572,747.15) 5) 

Refuse 4,672,253.36 
Sewer Rental 8,716,061.37 
Storm Water Utility   1,696,039.78 
Data Processing 1,035,224.37 
Health Insurance 4,722,697.13 
Health Severance 242,287.77 
Vehicle Maintenance 2,515,423.92 
Payroll 2,545,726.40 
Workmen’s Compensation  1,299,085.73 
L.T.D. Insurance 363,009.83 
Liability Insurance 1,735,870.07 
Trust & Agency 11,306.73 
Greenwood Perpetual Care 230,602.43 
Fairview Perpetual Care 143,973.15 
Hillside Perpetual Care 43,937.75 
Sartori Memorial Hospital 7,210,993.40 
Section 8 Housing Vouchers 599,205.53 
Block Grant       116,021.97 
  

Total Cash & Investments $107,250,559.73 
 

1) Fund will be repaid by future budgeted transfers from General Fund. 
2) Fund will be repaid by future TIF revenues. 
3) Fund will be repaid by future bond proceeds. 
4) Fund will be repaid by future assessments. 
5) Fund will be repaid by future bond proceeds. 

-193-

Item G.2.a. 



 

21 
 

THE CITY 

CITY GOVERNMENT 

Incorporated in 1854, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is governed by a seven member City Council under a Mayor-Council 
form of government, with an appointed City Administrator.  One Council Member is elected from each of the City’s five 
wards.  Two City Council members and the Mayor are elected at large.  The office of Mayor is a full-time position.  The 
Mayor is the presiding officer of the City Council and coordinates the City Council’s work and that of City officials.  The 
City Administrator is appointed by the City Council and serves as the chief administrative officer. 
 
Various City officials hold administrative responsibility.  Department Directors of Finance & Business Operations, 
Community Development, Municipal Operations & Programs, and Public Safety Serves have management and 
administrative responsibilities for their respective departments and report to the City Administrator.  An appointed City 
Clerk is the custodian of City records and reports to the Director of Finance & Business Operations.  The Controller/City 
Treasurer has financial, accounting and budget control responsibilities and reports to the Director of Finance & Business 
Operations. 
 
The City uses a committee system to study routine problems more efficiently and comprehensively.  All the City Council 
Members serve on the Committee of the Whole and report their findings, conclusions and recommendations to the 
Council as a whole.  Many other Boards and Commissions also serve City needs, including a nine member Planning and 
Zoning Commission which acts in advisory capacity to the City Council. 

EMPLOYEES AND PENSIONS 

The City has 196 full-time employees, and 101 part-time or seasonal employees, excluding Cedar Falls Utilities 
personnel.  In addition, the City has a police force of 40 sworn personnel and a fire department of 30 sworn personnel fire 
fighters. The City participates in two statewide employee retirement systems, the Iowa Public Employees Retirement 
System (“IPERS”) and the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa (“MFPRSI”).  The State of Iowa 
administers IPERS and a nine-member board of trustees governs the MFPRSI.  Though separate and apart from state 
government, the MFPRSI board is authorized by state legislature, which also establishes by statute the pension and 
disability benefits and the system’s funding mechanism.  All full-time employees must participate in either IPERS or 
MFPRSI. 
 
Iowa Public Employees Retirement System: The City contributes to IPERS, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer, 
contributory defined benefit public employee retirement system administered by IPERS.  IPERS provides retirement and 
death benefits, which are established by state statute, to plan members and beneficiaries.  IPERS is authorized to adjust 
the total contribution rate up or down each year, by no more than 1 percentage point, based upon the actuarially required 
contribution rate.  The City’s contributions to IPERS for Fiscal Years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 as shown below 
equal the required contributions for each year. 
 

 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 
IPERS City Contribution $821,440 $821,928 $831,947 

 
On March 24, 2017, IPERS Investment Board voted to approve changes to economic assumptions used in calculating 
IPERS’ liabilities.  This action followed an economic assumption study presentation by the consulting actuarial firm of 
Cavanaugh Macdonald of Bellevue, NE. 
 
The new assumptions are: 

 Inflation drops from 3% to 2.6% 
 Interest on member accounts drops from 3.75% to 3.5% 
 Investment return drops from 7.5% to 7% 
 Wage growth drops from 4% to 3.25% 
 Payroll growth drops from 4% to 3.25%% 

 

-194-

Item G.2.a. 



 

22 
 

The study applied these assumptions to the 2016 data to illustrate their impact on key funding measurements. The funded 
ratio is a “snapshot in time” and indicates the financial health of a pension system.  Using the new assumptions, with the 
2016 data, IPERS’ funded ratio dropped from 84% to 80%.  These assumptions will first be applied in the June 30, 2017 
valuation, which will be used to determine the contribution rates effective July 1, 2018. 
 
The net result of these changes will be a lower funded ratio and an increase in liabilities of $1.4 billion.  Even though 
these changes will have a negative impact on IPERS’ funded ratio, the Investment Board believes that these modifications 
will provide a more accurate valuation of future liabilities.  Each year an investment return is less than the assumed return 
adds to the liability and increases the needed return in future years which can lead to even higher contribution rates. 
 
The IPERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) is available on the IPERS website, 
https://www.ipers.org/financial-and-investment, or by contacting IPERS at 7401 Register Drive P.O. Box 9117, Des 
Moines, IA 50321. 
 
Bond Counsel, the City and the Municipal Advisor undertake no responsibility for and make no representations as to the 
accuracy or completeness of the information available from the IPERS discussed above or included on the IPERS website, 
including, but not limited to, updates of such information on the State Auditor’s website or links to other Internet sites 
accessed through the IPERS website. 
 
Pursuant to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 68, the City reported a liability of 
$8,055,379 within its CAFR as of June 30, 2017 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net pension 
liability is the amount by which the total actuarial liability exceeds the pension plan’s net assets or fiduciary net position 
(essentially the market value) available for paying benefits.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, 
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date.  The City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City’s share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating employers.  At June 30, 2016, the City’s collective proportion was 
0.1279990% which was a decrease of 0.005726% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015. 
 
For additional information refer to Footnote F Pension Plan - IPERS on page 72 of the City’s June 30, 2017 CAFR 
contained as APPENDIX B of this Preliminary Official Statement. 
 
Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of Iowa:  The City contributes to MFPRSI, which is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan.  MFPRSI provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries.  Benefit provisions are established by state statute, and vest after four years of credited service. 
 
MFPRSI plan members are required to contribute a percentage of their annual covered salary, and the City is required to 
contribute at an actuarially determined rate of annual covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of plan members 
and the City are established, and may be amended by state statute.  The City’s contributions to MFPRSI for the Fiscal 
Years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 as shown below equal the required contributions for each year. 

 

 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 
MFPRSI City Contribution $1,377,326 $1,300,356 $1,227,100 

 

The MFPRSI Independent Auditors Reports is available on the MFPRSI website, http://www.mfprsi.org/about-
mfprsi/publications/, or by contacting MFPRSI at 7155 Lake Drive, Suite 201, West Des Moines, IA 50266. 
 
Bond Counsel, the City and the Municipal Advisor undertake no responsibility for and make no representations as to the 
accuracy or completeness of the information available from MFPRSI discussed above or included on the MFPRSI 
websites, including, but not limited to, updates of such information on the State Auditor’s website or links to other Internet 
sites accessed through the MFPRSI website. 
 

-195-

Item G.2.a. 



 

23 
 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 68, the City reported a liability of $10,804,128 with its CAFR as of June 30, 2017 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net pension liability is the amount by which the total actuarial 
liability exceeds the pension plan’s net assets or fiduciary net position (essentially the market value) available for paying 
benefits.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The City’s proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on the City’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all MFPRSI 
participating employers.  At June 30, 2016, the City’s proportion was 1.727939% which was an increase of 0.000862% 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015. 
 
For additional information on MFPRSI, refer to Footnote F Pension Plan - MFPRSI on page 76 of the City’s 
June 30, 2017 CAFR contained as APPENDIX B of this Preliminary Official Statement. 

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

The City operates a single-employer health benefit plan, which provides self-insured medical/prescription drug benefits 
for all full-time active and retired employees and their eligible dependents.  Eligible retires receive health care coverage 
through the same plan that is available to active employees.  To be eligible for  these benefits, participants must be receive 
a pension benefit from the IPERS, receiving a social security disability benefit, or retired under Code Chapter 411 of the 
Iowa code.  There were 19 retirees participating in the plan as of June 30, 2017.  Retirees pay the same premium for the 
health benefit plan as active employees, which results in an implicit subsidy and an OPEB liability.  The Plan does not 
issue stand-alone financial report. 
 
The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the City.  The City currently 
finances the benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The majority of expenditures are paid for out of the General Fund. 
 
The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (“ARC”) of the City, an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45.  The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize 
any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
 
The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the Fiscal Year 17, the amount 
actuarially contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation. 
 

Annual required contribution , ARC $98,848 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 10,906 
Adjustment to annual required contribution (9,661)
Annual OPEB cost $100,093 
Contributions made (54,114)
Increase in net OPEB obligation $45,979
  

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year   342,298
  

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $388,277
 

-196-

Item G.2.a. 



 

24 
 

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation 
for Fiscal Years 2014-15 thru 2016-17 are presented in the following table. 
 

 Percentage of Net 
Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended June 30 OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation 
2014-15 $59,683 199.52% $218,126 
2015-16 100,093 (24.06%) 342,298 
2016-17 100,093 (54.06%) 388,277 

 
As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, the 
actuarial accrued liability was $1,139,405 with no actuarial value of assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (the “UAAL”) of $1,139,405.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was 
approximately $11,573,418, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 9.8%.  As of June 30, 2017, there 
were no trust fund assets. 
 
For additional information on OPEB, refer to Footnote G OPEB on page 81 of the City’s CAFR as of June 30, 2017 
contained as APPENDIX B of this Preliminary Official Statement. 

UNION CONTRACTS 

The City currently has negotiated contracts with the three employee groups as shown in the table below. 
  

 Contract  
Employee Group Expiration Date % Annual Increase 
   

Teamsters – Parks & Public Works 06/30/22 2.75% 
Teamsters – Police 06/30/22 2.75% 
Firefighters Association 06/30/22 2.75% 
   

 

-197-

Item G.2.a. 



 

25 
 

INSURANCE 
 
The City's insurance coverage is as follows: 
 
Type of Insurance Coverage 
  

Property $100,888,527 Blanket 
$100,000 Deductible 

General Liability 
 

$5,000,000 Limit 
$10,000,000 Aggregate 
$100,000 Deductible

Employee Benefits Liability 
 

Limit Included in General Liability  
Aggregate Included in General Liability 
$100,000 Deductible

Auto Liability 
  

$5,000,000 Limit 
$100,000 Deductible 

Public Officials Liability/E & O 
 
 

$5,000,000 Limit 
$10,000,000 Aggregate 
$100,000 Deductible 

Law Enforcement Activities 
 

$5,000,000 Limit 
$10,000,000 Aggregate 
$100,000 Deductible

Employee Practices Liability 
 

$5,000,000 Limit 
$9,000,000 Aggregate 
$100,000 Deductible

Auto Physical Damage 
 

$12,336,175 Value of Vehicles 
$10,000 Deductible 

Equipment Breakdown 
 

$100,000,000 Limit 
$2,500 Deductible 

Workers Compensation 
   

$1,000,000 Limit 
$1,000,000 Aggregate 
$500,000 Deductible

Crime 
 

$500,000 Limit 
$10,000 Deductible

Cyber Liability 
 

$1,000,000 Limit 
$1,000,000 Aggregate 
$10,000 Deductible

 

-198-

Item G.2.a. 



 

26 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

LOCATION AND TRANSPORTATION 

The City, with a 2010 U.S. census population of 39,260 and a total land area of 29.1 square miles, is located adjacent to 
the City of Waterloo, Iowa.  The City is 105 miles northeast of Des Moines, Iowa, 192 miles south of Minneapolis, 
Minnesota and 275 miles west of Chicago, Illinois.  The City is accessible by U.S. Highways No. 20, 63 and 218 and 
State Highways No. 21, 57, 281 and 412.  Interstate Highway No. 380 links the City and the City of Waterloo, Iowa with 
the southeastern area of the State and connects with Interstate Highway No. 80.  Interstate Highway No. 35 is located 
about 65 miles west of the City.  Rail service is provided by the Chicago, Central and Pacific Railroad, the Chicago and 
North Western Transportation Company and the Iowa Northern Railroad.  Bus transportation is provided in the City by 
the Metropolitan Transit Authority and both in and out of state by three bus lines.  Commercial and charter air service is 
available at the Waterloo Municipal Airport. 

LARGER EMPLOYERS 

A representative list of larger employers in the City is as follows: 
 

Employer Type of Business Number of Employees 1) 
   

John Deere Product Eng. Center Manufacturer 5,500 2) 
Wheaton Franciscan Healthcare Health Care Hospital & Clinics 2,893 2) 
University of Northern Iowa Post-secondary education 1,819  
Hy-Vee Food Stores Retail  1,719 2)

Target Distribution Retail Distributor 950 
CBE Group Credit Services 900 
Cedar Falls Community School District Education 752 
The Western Home Elderly Housing/Care 668 
Area Education Agency 267 Education 605  
Martin Brothers Distribution Frozen Foods/Institutional Products 600 
  
 

1) Number of employees includes all full-time, part-time and seasonal employees.  
2) Number of employees includes multiple locations in both Cedar Falls and Waterloo. 
  

Source:  City of Cedar Falls April 2018. 

U.S. CENSUS DATA 

Population Trend   
 1980 U.S. Census 36,310 
 1990 U.S. Census 34,298 
 2000 U.S. Census 36,145 
 2010 U.S. Census 39,260 
   
 

Source:  U.S. Census Bureau website. 

-199-

Item G.2.a. 



 

27 
 

BUILDING PERMITS 

City officials report the following construction activity as of March 31, 2018.  Building permits are reported on a fiscal 
year basis. 

 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Single Family Homes      
No. of new homes: 154 113 120 151 77 
Valuation: $36,358,659 $28,713,702 $28,077,051 $35,592,628 $18,060,046 

Multiple Family Dwellings      
No. of new buildings: 2 3 6 5 0 
Valuation: $6,212,997 $3,573,977 $11,004,500 $4,487,228 $0 

Dwelling Additions & Alterations      
No. of permits issued: 2,071 1,061 1,021 897 1,403 
Valuation: $18,371,926 $9,772,910 $10,783,796 $9,091,145 $15,087,542 

Commercial/Industrial/Other      
No. of new buildings: 26 31 20 27 16 
Valuation: $15,965,342 $12,483,154 $56,731,610 $44,207,923 $23,042,304 

Commercial /Industrial /Other  
Additions & Alterations 

     

No. of permits issued: 182 182 129 130 100 
Valuation: $22,433,727 $22,533,408 $44,431,250 $20,072,244 $22,864,109 
      
Total Permits: 2,435 1,390 1,296 1,210 1,596 
Total Valuations: $99,342,651 $77,077,151 $151,028,207 $113,451,168 $79,054,001 

UNEMPLOYMENT RATES 

  City of  
Cedar Falls 

Black Hawk 
County 

State of 
Iowa 

     

Annual Averages: 2014 3.3% 4.9% 4.2% 
 2015  3.0% 4.6% 3.8% 
 2016 3.1% 4.6% 3.6% 
 2017  2.5% 3.8% 3.1% 
 2018 through February 2.5% 2.6% 2.9% 
     

 

Source:  Iowa Workforce Development website. 

EDUCATION 

The Cedar Falls Community School District (the “District”) owns and operates six elementary schools, two junior high 
schools, one alternative high school and one senior high school, in addition to an administration center and central 
services building, all of which are located within the City.  The District employs approximately 752 full-time and part-
time employees and has a certified enrollment of 5,127.5 for the 2018-19 school year. 
 
The University of Northern Iowa, located within the City, is a public, co-educational university with approximately 1,819 
full-time, part-time and seasonal employees.  Wartburg College, a private, four-year liberal arts college, is located in the 
City of Waverly, Iowa, which is 15 miles north of the City.  The Area VII Hawkeye Community College, a public, post-
secondary vocational/technical school, is located within the City of Waterloo, Iowa which is adjacent to the City. 

-200-

Item G.2.a. 



 

28 
 

FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Financial services for residents of the City are provided by Lincoln Savings Bank and branch offices of BankIowa, , Cedar 
Rapids Bank and Trust Company, Farmers State Bank, First National Bank, First Security State Bank, MidWestOne 
Bank, NXT Bank, Regions Bank, US Bank N.A., and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as well as by several credit unions. 
 
Lincoln Savings Bank reports the following deposits as of June 30 for each year: 
 

Year Lincoln Savings Bank 
2013 $468,225,000 
2015 530,199,000 
2015 629,365,000 
2016 705,144,000 
2017 802,183,000 

 

 

Source:  FDIC Institution Directory Website. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The City’s COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2017 is reproduced 
in APPENDIX B.  The City’s certified public accountant has not consented to distribution of the audited financial 
statements and has not undertaken added review of their presentation.  Further information regarding financial 
performance and copies of the City’s prior Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports may be obtained from the City’s 
Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisor LLC. 

 

-201-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 

-202-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

JUNE 30, 2017 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

-203-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 
 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 
 
 
 

-204-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

OFFICIAL BID FORM 
To: City Council of Sale Date:  June 18, 2018 
 City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 10:00 A.M. Central Time 
 
RE:  $6,585,000* General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 (the “Bonds”) 
 
This bid is a firm offer for the purchase of the Bonds identified in the NOTICE OF BOND SALE and TERMS OF OFFERING and on the 
terms set forth in this bid form and is not subject to any conditions, except as permitted by the NOTICE OF BOND SALE and TERMS OF 
OFFERING.  By submitting this bid, we confirm we have an established industry reputation for underwriting new issuance of municipal 
bonds. 
 

For all or none of the above Bonds, in accordance with the NOTICE OF BOND SALE and TERMS OF OFFERING, we will pay you 
$_____________________________ (not less than $6,532,320) plus accrued interest to date of delivery for fully registered Bonds bearing 
interest rates and maturing in the stated years as follows: 
 

Coupon Maturity Yield  Coupon Maturity Yield 
       

________ 2019 ________  ________ 2024 ________ 

________ 2020 ________  ________ 2025 ________ 

________ 2021 ________  ________ 2026 ________ 

________ 2022 ________  ________ 2027 ________ 

________ 2023 ________  ________ 2028 ________ 
       

* Preliminary; subject to change.  The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and to 
increase or decrease each scheduled maturity thereof after the determination of the successful bidder.  The City may increase or 
decrease each maturity in increments of $5,000 but the total amount to be issued will not exceed $6,700,000.  Interest rates specified by 
the successful bidder for each maturity will not change.  Final adjustments shall be in the sole discretion of the City. 
 
The dollar amount of the purchase price proposed by the successful bidder will be changed if the aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds is adjusted as described above.  Any change in the principal amount of any maturity of the Bonds will be made while 
maintaining, as closely as possible, the successful bidder's net compensation, calculated as a percentage of bond principal.  The 
successful bidder may not withdraw or modify its bid as a result of any post-bid adjustment.  Any adjustment shall be conclusive, and 
shall be binding upon the successful bidder. 

 
We hereby designate that the following Bonds to be aggregated into term Bonds maturing on June 1 of the following years and in the 
following amounts (leave blank if no term Bonds are specified): 
 

Years Aggregated Maturity Year Aggregate Amount 

_______ through _______ _____________ _____________ 

_______ through _______ _____________ _____________ 
 
In making this offer we accept all of the terms and conditions of the NOTICE OF BOND SALE and TERMS OF OFFERING published in 
the Preliminary Official Statement dated June 4, 2018 and represent we are a bidder with established industry reputation for 
underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds.  In the event of failure to deliver these Bonds in accordance with the NOTICE OF 
BOND SALE and TERMS OF OFFERING as printed in the Preliminary Official Statement and made a part hereof, we reserve the right to 
withdraw our offer.  All blank spaces of this offer are intentional and are not to be construed as an omission. 
 
Not as a part of our offer, the above quoted prices being controlling, but only as an aid for the verification of the offer, we have made the 
following computations: 
 
NET INTEREST COST:  $_________________________ 
 
TRUE INTEREST COST:  _________________________%  (Dated date July 16, 2018) 
 
Account Manager:  ___________________________________  By:  ___________________________________ 
 
Account Members: 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The foregoing offer is hereby accepted by and on behalf of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this 18th day of June, 2018. 
 
Attest:  _________________________________ By:  ________________________________________ 
 
Title:  __________________________________ Title:  _______________________________________ 

-205-

Item G.2.a. 



 



 
ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR JUNE 4, 2018 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 
$6,585,000 (Dollar Amount Subject to Change) General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 
 
•  Resolution directing the advertisement for sale and approving electronic bidding 

procedures and Official Statement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY. 

 
 
 
 

-207-

Item G.2.a. 



 

- 1 - 

June 4, 2018
 

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, at __________ 
_____.M., on the above date.  There were present Mayor _______________, in the chair, and the 
following named Council Members: 

 
 

__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 
 

* * * * * * *  

-208-

Item G.2.a. 



 

- 2 - 

Council Member ____________________ introduced the following Resolution entitled 
"RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE ADVERTISEMENT FOR SALE OF $6,585,000 
(DOLLAR AMOUNT SUBJECT TO CHANGE) GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 
2018, AND APPROVING ELECTRONIC BIDDING PROCEDURES AND OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT" and moved its adoption.  Council Member ____________________ seconded 
the Resolution to adopt.  The roll was called and the vote was, 
 
 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as follows: 
 

 
RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE ADVERTISEMENT FOR 
SALE OF $6,585,000 (DOLLAR AMOUNT SUBJECT TO 
CHANGE) GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2018, 
AND APPROVING ELECTRONIC BIDDING PROCEDURES 
AND OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is in need of funds to pay costs of: 

 a)  opening, widening, extending, grading, and draining of the right-of-way of streets, 
highways, avenues, alleys and public grounds, and market places, and the removal and 
replacement of dead or diseased trees thereon; the construction, reconstruction, and 
repairing of any street improvements, the acquisition, installation, and repair of 
sidewalks, storm sewers, sanitary sewers, street lighting, and traffic control devices; and 
the acquisition of any real estate needed for any of the foregoing purposes;   

b)  equipping the fire department;   

c)  construction, reconstruction, and repair of cemetery facilities; and   

d)  rehabilitation and improvement of parks already owned, and the construction of 
improvements commonly found in city parks,  

essential corporate purposes, and it is deemed necessary and advisable that General Obligation 
Bonds, to the amount of not to exceed $5,800,000 be authorized for said purposes; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Section 384.25 of the Code of 
Iowa, this Council has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute 

-209-

Item G.2.a. 



 

- 3 - 

proceedings for the issuance of the Bonds, and the Council is therefore now authorized to 
proceed with the issuance of said Bonds for such purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the City is in need of funds to pay costs of construction of recreational trails, 
a general corporate purpose, and it is deemed necessary and advisable that General Obligation 
Bonds, to the amount of not to exceed $550,000 be authorized for said purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has a population of more than 5,000 but not more than 75,000, 
and the Bonds for this purpose do not exceed $700,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Section 384.26 of the Code of 
Iowa, the Council of the City has held public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of Bonds for a general corporate purpose in the amounts as above 
set forth, and, no petition for referendum having been received, the Council is therefore now 
authorized to proceed with the issuance of said Bonds for such purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the City is in need of funds to pay costs of acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, enlargement, improvement, and equipping of recreation grounds, recreation 
buildings, juvenile playgrounds and parks, general corporate purposes, and it is deemed 
necessary and advisable that General Obligation Bonds, to the amount of not to exceed $350,000 
be authorized for said purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has a population of more than 5,000 but not more than 75,000, 
and the Bonds for these purposes do not exceed $700,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Section 384.26 of the Code of 
Iowa, the Council of the City has held public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of Bonds for general corporate purposes in the amounts as above set 
forth, and, no petition for referendum having been received, the Council is therefore now 
authorized to proceed with the issuance of said Bonds for such purposes; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 384.28 of the Code of Iowa, it is hereby found and 
determined that the various general obligation bonds authorized as hereinabove described shall 
be combined for the purpose of issuance in a single issue of $6,585,000 (dollar amount subject to 
change) General Obligation Bonds as hereinafter set forth; and 

 
WHEREAS, in conjunction with its Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 

the City has caused a Preliminary Official Statement to be prepared outlining the details of the 
proposed sale of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Council has received information from its Municipal Advisor evaluating 
and recommending the procedure hereinafter described for electronic, facsimile and internet 
bidding to maintain the integrity and security of the competitive bidding process and to facilitate 
the delivery of bids by interested parties; and 

WHEREAS, the Council deems it in the best interests of the City and the residents 
thereof to receive bids to purchase such Bonds by means of both sealed and electronic internet 
communication. 

-210-

Item G.2.a. 



 

- 4 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, STATE OF IOWA: 

 
Section 1. That the receipt of electronic bids by facsimile machine and through the Parity 

Competitive Bidding System described in the Notice of Sale and Official Statement are hereby 
found and determined to provide reasonable security and to maintain the integrity of the 
competitive bidding process, and to facilitate the delivery of bids by interested parties in 
connection with the offering at public sale. 

Section 2. That General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018, of City of Cedar Falls, State of 
Iowa, in the amount of $6,585,000 (dollar amount subject to change), to be issued as referred to 
in the preamble of this Resolution, to be dated July 16, 2018, be offered for sale pursuant to the 
published advertisement. 

Section 3. That the preliminary Official Statement in the form presented to this meeting 
be and the same hereby is approved as to form and deemed final for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of 
the Securities and Exchange Commission, subject to such revisions, corrections or modifications 
as the Mayor and City Clerk, upon the advice of bond counsel and the City's Municipal Advisor, 
shall determine to be appropriate, and is authorized to be distributed in connection with the 
offering of the Bonds for sale. 

Section 4. That the Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice of sale of the Bonds at least 
once, the last one of which shall be not less than four clear days nor more than twenty days 
before the date of the sale.  Publication shall be made in the "Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier", a 
legal newspaper, printed wholly in the English language, published within the county in which 
the Bonds are to be offered for sale or an adjacent county.  The notice is given pursuant to 
Chapter 75 of the Code of Iowa, and shall state that this Council, on the 18th day of June, 2018, 
at 7:00 o'clock P.M., will hold a meeting to receive and act upon bids for said Bonds, which bids 
were previously received and opened by City Officials at 10:00 o'clock A.M. on said date.  The 
notice shall be in substantially the following form: 

 

-211-

Item G.2.a. 



 

5 

(To be published on or before June 12, 2018) 
 

NOTICE OF BOND SALE 
 

Time and Place of Sealed Bids:  Bids for the sale of Bonds of the City of Cedar Falls, 
State of Iowa, hereafter described, must be received at the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 220 
Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613; Telephone: 319-273-8600 (the "Issuer") before 10:00 
o'clock A.M., on the 18th day of June, 2018.  The bids will then be publicly opened and referred 
for action to the meeting of the City Council in conformity with the TERMS OF OFFERING. 
 

The Bonds:  The Bonds to be offered are the following: 
 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2018, in the amount 
of $6,585,000*, to be dated July 16, 2018 (the "Bonds") 

 
 *Subject to principal adjustment pursuant to official Terms of Offering. 
 

Manner of Bidding:  Open bids will not be received.  Bids will be received in any of the 
following methods: 
 

� Sealed Bidding:  Sealed bids may be submitted and will be received at the office 
of the City Clerk at City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. 

 
� Electronic Internet Bidding:  Electronic internet bids will be received at the office 

of the City's Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand 
Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa 50309.  The bids must be submitted 
through the PARITY® competitive bidding system. 

 
� Electronic Facsimile Bidding:  Electronic facsimile bids will be received at the 

office of the City's Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors LLC, 801 Grand 
Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa 50309 (facsimile number: 515-243-6994). 
Electronic facsimile bids will be treated as sealed bids. 

 
Consideration of Bids:  After the time for receipt of bids has passed, the close of sealed 

bids will be announced.  Sealed bids will then be publicly opened and announced.  Finally, 
electronic internet bids will be accessed and announced. 
 

Sale and Award:  The sale and award of the Bonds will be held at the Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa at a meeting of the City Council on the above date 
at 7:00 o'clock P.M. 
 

Official Statement:  The Issuer has issued an Official Statement of information pertaining 
to the Bonds to be offered, including a statement of the Terms of Offering and an Official Bid 
Form, which is incorporated by reference as a part of this notice.  The Official Statement may be 
obtained by request addressed to the City Clerk, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

-212-

Item G.2.a. 



 

6 

50613; Telephone: 319-273-8600 or the Issuer's Municipal Advisor, PFM Financial Advisors 
LLC, 801 Grand Avenue, Suite 3300, Des Moines, Iowa, 50309; Telephone:  515-243-2600. 
 

Terms of Offering:  All bids shall be in conformity with and the sale shall be in 
accordance with the Terms of Offering as set forth in the Official Statement. 
 

Legal Opinion:  The Bonds will be sold subject to the opinion of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C., 
Attorneys of Des Moines, Iowa, as to the legality and their opinion will be furnished together 
with the printed Bonds without cost to the purchaser and all bids will be so conditioned.  Except 
to the extent necessary to issue their opinion as to the legality of the Bonds, the attorneys will not 
examine or review or express any opinion with respect to the accuracy or completeness of 
documents, materials or statements made or furnished in connection with the sale, issuance or 
marketing of the Bonds. 
 

Rights Reserved:  The right is reserved to reject any or all bids, and to waive any 
irregularities as deemed to be in the best interests of the public. 
 

By order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa. 
 
 
 City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
 

(End of Notice) 

-213-

Item G.2.a. 



 

7 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 4th day of June, 2018. 
  

 
 
__________________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 

 

 
 

-214-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 
proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 
public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 
the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 
advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 
the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 
right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
 

-215-

Item G.2.a. 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am now and was at the times hereinafter 

mentioned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, in the County of Black 
Hawk, State of Iowa, and that as such Clerk and by full authority from the Council of the City, I 
have caused a 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
($6,585,000 (Dollar Amount Subject To Change) General Obligation Bonds) 

 
of which the clipping annexed to the publisher's affidavit hereto attached is in words and figures 
a correct and complete copy, to be published as required by law in the "Waterloo-Cedar Falls 
Courier", a legal newspaper published at least once weekly, printed wholly in the English 
language, published regularly and mailed through the post office of current entry for more than 
two years and which has had for more than two years a bona fide paid circulation recognized by 
the postal laws of the United States, and has a general circulation in the City, and that the Notice 
was published in all of the issues thereof published and circulated on the following date: 
 

____________________, 2018. 
 

WITNESS my official signature this __________ day of _______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, State of Iowa 

 
 
 
01486767-1\10283-160 

-216-

Item G.2.a. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Audit Engagement Letter      

 
We are just about to begin the audit process for FY18.  We are in the first year of our 
new extended contract with Eide Bailly, LLP to perform our audit engagement.  
 
At the beginning of the audit engagement each year, the auditors provide an 
engagement letter that they sign and the City signs that acknowledges that both parties 
understand the work that is to be performed.  Attached is that letter for your review and 
approval.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-217-

Item G.2.b. 



 



-219-

Item G.2.b. 



-220-

Item G.2.b. 



-221-

Item G.2.b. 



-222-

Item G.2.b. 



-223-

Item G.2.b. 



-224-

Item G.2.b. 



-225-

Item G.2.b. 



-226-

Item G.2.b. 



-227-

Item G.2.b. 



-228-

Item G.2.b. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members   

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: GASB 75 Services Contract      

 
Starting in FY09, the City of Cedar Falls had to start reporting as part of our audit 
certain Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) as required by GASB Statement No. 
45.  GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) has issued a new standard, 
GASB Statement No. 75 that expands the reporting requirements of these benefits as 
part of our annual audit.  Under these standards, there are required actuarial 
calculations that determine the City’s liability for these benefits. We are required to have 
an actuarial valuation performed biennially.  We had our required biennial valuations for 
FY10, FY12, FY14, and FY16 done and now are at the point of needing a valuation 
performed for FY18.   
 
Request for proposals were solicited prior to the FY14 valuation and at that time 
SilverStone was selected.  SilverStone has provided high quality service for these 
valuations and therefore we are recommending to continue with their firm for the FY18 
valuation.  The fee for the FY18 valuation will be $4,700, which is only $400 above their 
FY16 fee.   
 
Attached is the agreement with SilverStone.  If you have questions regarding the 
agreement or the GASB 75 requirements, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-229-

Item G.2.c. 



 



 
 
 

ACTUARIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

SILVERSTONE GROUP, INCORPORATED 
 

AND 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

-231-

Item G.2.c. 



  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

 Page 
 
1. Contract for Services 1 
 
2. Actuarial Services 1 
 
3. Other Consulting Services 3 
 
4. Actuarial Fees 3 
 
5. Invoices 3 
 
6. Term 3 
 
7. Termination 3 
 
8. Indemnification of the Plans 4 
 
9. Insurance 4 
 
10. Access to and Ownership of Files and Information 4 
 
11. Confidential Treatment of Plan Files and Information 5 
 
12. Integrated Agreement; Severability 5 
 
13. Governing Law 6 
 
14. Actuarial Personnel 6 
 
15. Limitation of Liability 6 
 
16. Dispute Resolution 6 
 
17.   Agreement 7 
    

-232-

Item G.2.c. 



  -1-

Actuarial Services Agreement 
 
 
THIS ACTUARIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into 
effective as of the ____ day of _________, 2018 (the “Effective Date”), by and between 
SilverStone Group, doing business from Omaha, Nebraska, (hereinafter referred to as 
“SilverStone Group”), and City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as the “Client”). 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, the Client maintains several employee benefit plans which are under the general 
management and administration of the Client. 
 
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Client deems it appropriate 
to engage SilverStone Group to provide certain actuarial services for the plans, and SilverStone 
Group desires to accept such engagement.   
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Contract for Services.  The Client hereby contracts with SilverStone Group for their 
services as actuaries to the plans, and SilverStone Group hereby accepts such contract 
and agrees to provide such services in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
2. Actuarial Services.  SilverStone Group shall render such services as actuaries to the 

plans as requested by the Client.  Such services shall specifically include, but shall not 
be limited to, the services described as follows: 

 
a. Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB 75 valuation and written 

report 
• Analyze the data prepared by the Client to assess any inconsistencies and 

make recommendations for enhancing data quality 
• Measurement of the Present Value of Future Benefits (PVFB) as of the date 

of first compliance with the GASB standard 
• Measurement of the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) as of the date of 

first compliance with the GASB standard 
• Calculation of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) as of the 

date of first compliance with the GASB standard 
• Calculation of the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for the first fiscal 

year in compliance with the GASB standard which would be the basis for 
the reported annual cost of the plans for accounting purposes, and 

• Illustration of the Required Supplementary Information (RSI), if requested, 
that will be disclosed in the Clients’ financial reports for the first fiscal year 
in compliance with the GASB standard 
 

-233-

Item G.2.c. 



  -2-

b. Assist in preparation of the necessary material for the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report to comply with GASB reporting and disclosure requirements.  
Provide tools or direction in complying with the requirements after engagement is 
complete.  

 
c. As appropriate and if requested, prepare an analysis on how establishing a trust or 

equivalent arrangement would affect the interest rate assumption.  Timing 
considerations of establishing the trust should also be considered.   

 
d. As appropriate and if requested, provide recommendations on managing the 

OPEB liability.  This may include changes in benefit design or retiree 
contributions, including specific recommendations and options. 

 
e. As appropriate and if requested, review and update plan documents and design.  

Make recommendations as to formalizing informal plans and procedures. 
 
f. General Actuarial Consulting Services 
 
 Relating to: (i) administration of the plans; (ii) general trends in actuarial 

practices; and (iii) changes in federal legislation and regulations, all upon request 
by the Client. 

 
g. Attendance at Meeting 
 
 If requested, the actuary may attend a meeting to review and discuss results of the 

annual actuarial valuation.  We will distribute and discuss a management 
summary of the valuation at the annual meeting. 

 
h. Additional Valuation Results 
 
 At the request of the Client, SilverStone Group will extend the actuarial valuation 

analysis to determine the effect on annual costs and the funded status of the plans 
as a result of: 

   
• a change in actuarial assumptions or actuarial methods 
• a change in eligibility requirements of existing benefit provisions 
• changes in benefit provisions 

 
i. Report to Auditors/Assisting Auditors 
 
 At the request of the Client, SilverStone Group will respond to the auditor’s 

request for information regarding the annual actuarial valuation and financial 
disclosures that may be needed to provide the audit confirmation.  

 
 
 

-234-

Item G.2.c. 



  -3-

3. Other Consulting Services.  SilverStone Group will provide, at the Client’s request, 
additional consulting services to the plans.  These services may include, but are not 
limited to, (i) additional meetings; (ii) plan design analysis; (iii) merger/acquisitions and 
impact on the existing plans or the plans of acquired entities; (iv) plan document or plan 
summary reviews; (v) any other actuarial or administrative consulting services deemed 
necessary or appropriate by the plans of the Client; (vi) suggestions/recommendations 
by SilverStone Group.   

 
4. Actuarial Fees.  As consideration for any of the services set forth in Paragraphs 2 and 3 

above, the Client agrees to pay SilverStone Group fees based on any direct expenses, any 
related travel expenses and hourly time charges based on the time recorded to complete 
the services and the hourly billing rates for the designated personnel as follows: 

 
Principal Actuary $260 
OPEB Actuarial Analyst $175 
Group Medical Consultant $300 
 

However, for the 2018 fiscal year valuation, SilverStone Group will guarantee the 
maximum fees to complete the services set forth in Paragraph 2a and 2b will be no more 
than $4,700. The maximum fees will be no more than $1,200 for services set forth in 
Paragraph 2g.   
 
Hourly rates for years following 2018 may be increased to reflect trends in hourly rates, 
but any increase will not exceed 5% for each year following 2018. 

 
5. Invoices.  SilverStone Group shall provide the Client with quarterly invoices not later 

than the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the month following each calendar quarter.  These 
invoices shall set forth the amount of fees above for the preceding calendar quarter. 

 
 Payment for services must be made within 30 days of receipt of invoice.  Payments 

made subsequent to such period, shall be subject to a late charge and interest at a  
 rate of 5%. 
 

6. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall 
continue through December 31, 2020, unless terminated before that time by the Client. 
The continuation of the agreement shall be contingent upon the periodic review by the 
Client of the services being provided by SilverStone Group.  This Agreement may be 
renewed for additional annual periods by mutual written agreement by both parties.   

 
7. Termination.  The Client may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without 

cause, by providing delivery of at least 60 days’ advance written notice to SilverStone 
Group.  In the event that the Client exercises its right to terminate the Agreement as 
provided in this Paragraph 7, SilverStone Group shall be entitled to payment pursuant 
to Paragraph 5 hereof for services actually rendered to the Client prior to the date of 
termination. 

 

-235-

Item G.2.c. 



  -4-

 SilverStone Group may terminate this agreement at any time, with or without cause, by 
providing delivery of at least 60 days written advance notice to the Client. 

 
8. Indemnification of the Plans.  SilverStone Group shall defend, indemnify and hold the 

Client harmless from and against any and all claims, suits, losses, liabilities, costs, 
damages and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs, suffered or 
incurred by the Client arising from or as a result of negligence, fraud or willful 
misconduct by SilverStone Group or any representative, agent or employee of 
SilverStone Group, or any such party’s failure to perform its duties and obligations 
under this Agreement.   

 
 The Client shall defend, indemnity and hold SilverStone Group harmless from and 

against any and all claims, suits, losses, liabilities, costs, damages and expenses, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs, suffered or incurred by 
SilverStone Group arising from or as a result of negligence, fraud or willful misconduct 
by the Client or any representative, agent or employee of the Client or any such party’s 
failure to perform its duties and obligations under this Agreement. 

 
9. Insurance.  From and after the Effective Date and continuing throughout the term of 

this Agreement, SilverStone Group shall, at its sole cost and expense, carry and 
maintain in full force and effect a professional liability/errors and omissions insurance 
policy with a policy limit of not less than Fifteen Million Dollars ($15,000,000), issued 
by an insurance company.  SilverStone Group shall provide the Client with a certificate 
evidencing such coverage. SilverStone Group shall provide the Client with not less than 
sixty (60) days prior written notice of any proposed change in the type, coverage or 
amount of insurance required hereunder. 

 
10. Access to and Ownership of Files and Information.  SilverStone Group hereby 

acknowledges and agrees that the Client and the Client’s authorized representatives, 
agents and employees shall have access to and the right to examine, inspect, audit, 
transcribe and copy during SilverStone Group’s normal business hours, any and all 
accounts, books, documents, records and papers relating to the services provided 
pursuant to this Agreement.  All such examinations shall be at the Client’s expense and 
shall be conducted in a manner which preserves the confidentiality of SilverStone 
Group’s records and business operations. 

 
 All intellectual property rights (such as copyrights and trade secrets) relating to 

materials and information developed by or relating to the plans and disclosed or 
supplied to SilverStone Group under this Agreement (the “Plans Information”) will 
belong exclusively to the Client.  All intellectual property rights (such as copyrights 
and trade secrets) relating to SilverStone Group’s work product (including all materials 
and information developed by SilverStone Group in the course of performing services 
under this Agreement, but excluding Plans Information) (“SilverStone Group’s Work”) 
will belong exclusively to SilverStone Group.  If personnel of SilverStone Group 
incorporate into SilverStone Group’s Work any information relating to the plans to 
which SilverStone Group’s confidentiality obligations under this Agreement apply, the 
information so incorporated into SilverStone Group’s work will be and remain subject 

-236-

Item G.2.c. 



  -5-

to such confidentiality obligations.  SilverStone Group hereby grants to the Client the 
perpetual and unrestricted right to use, reproduce and incorporate into other work all 
SilverStone Group’s work delivered to the Client under this Agreement for any internal 
business purpose of the Client. 

 
11.  Confidential Treatment of Plan Files and Information.  SilverStone Group 

acknowledges and agrees that, in the course of rendering their actuarial services and 
otherwise performing their duties and obligations hereunder, they shall be provided and 
entrusted with the safekeeping of certain documents and information relating to the 
Client and its property and accounts (hereafter referred to as “Plans Files”).  All such 
Plans Files shall at all times during the term of this Agreement and for a period of five 
(5) years thereafter, be treated by SilverStone Group as strictly confidential and 
sensitive proprietary business information.  SilverStone Group shall maintain 
commercially reasonable policies and procedures to ensure the confidentiality and 
safekeeping of such Plans Files and shall not, except in accordance with the express 
terms of this Agreement or with the prior written consent of the Client, disclose or 
permit the disclosure of any Plans Files to any person or entity whatsoever other than 
SilverStone Group’s employees, officers and agents directly assigned to provide 
actuarial services to the plans hereunder, each of which shall be provided with such 
Plans Files solely on a “need-to know” basis and shall be bound by the confidentiality 
provisions of this Paragraph 11.  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the 
confidentiality provisions set forth in this Paragraph 11 shall not apply to:  (i) 
information which is already known to SilverStone Group prior to disclosure by the 
Client; (ii) information which is in the public domain or is otherwise generally available 
to the public; (iii) information which is available to SilverStone Group from third 
parties, which third parties and information are not subject to non-disclosure 
obligations to the Client; or (iv) information which is independently developed by 
SilverStone Group.  Furthermore, in the event any court or regulatory order or other 
service of legal process requires SilverStone Group to disclose information subject to 
the confidentiality provisions of this Paragraph 11, SilverStone Group, after providing 
written notice to the Client as soon as reasonably possible after receipt of any such 
order or service of process, shall be permitted to make any disclosure required by law.  
SilverStone Group further agrees to cooperate with the Client in responding to any such 
orders.  SilverStone Group acknowledges and agrees that any breach, attempted breach 
or repudiation of the confidentiality requirements set forth in this Paragraph 11 would 
produce irreparable harm and injury to the Client and therefore agree that specific 
performance and/or injunctive relief, in addition to any other remedies available to the 
Client at law or in equity, shall be remedies available to prevent the breach, attempted 
breach or repudiation of this Paragraph 11. 

 
12. Integrated Agreement; Severability.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 

understanding between the parties concerning the subject matter hereof.  No other prior 
or contemporaneous representations, inducements, promises, or agreements, oral or 
otherwise, between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and not embodied in 
this Agreement, shall be of any force or effect.  This Agreement shall not be modified 
except in a writing signed by all parties hereto.  If any provision of this Agreement shall 
for any reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable, or contrary to public policy, 

-237-

Item G.2.c. 



  -6-

whether in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall not be affected by such 
holding. 

 
13. Governing Law.  The statutes, regulations, and judicial interpretations of the laws of 

the State of Iowa shall determine all questions arising with respect to the provisions of 
this Agreement, except to the extent federal statutes supercede the laws of the State of 
Iowa. Venue for any disputes is agreed to be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County. 

 
14. Actuarial Personnel.  SilverStone Group shall at all times throughout the term of this 

Agreement maintain a team of qualified professionals comprised of designated full-
time employees/ principals of SilverStone Group who are permanently assigned to 
monitor, oversee and provide on a daily basis all of the actuarial services to be provided 
to the plans hereunder, and to receive and address all concerns communicated by the 
Client.  The Client, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to demand the replacement 
of any individuals assigned to provide actuarial services to the Client hereunder, in 
which case SilverStone Group shall immediately replace such person(s) with qualified 
replacements acceptable to the Client in its sole discretion.  SilverStone Group shall 
provide the Client with not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice of any 
personnel changes or changes in SilverStone Group’s management or organizational 
structure which may have an impact on SilverStone Group’s performance hereunder.  
SilverStone Group shall use its good faith best efforts to minimize any disruption or 
interference with the actuarial services provided to the Client as a result of any such 
management, organizational or personnel changes.   

 
15. Limitation of Liability.  Except for fraud, gross misconduct or willful misconduct by 

SilverStone Group, its affiliated companies, shareholders, associates or Board 
members, neither party will be liable to the other party for any indirect, consequential, 
incidental, special or punitive damages, including but not limited to loss of profit, 
income or savings, even if advised of such possibility, and neither party’s total liability 
arising out of or related to this proposal for services under any theory of law will 
exceed the total remuneration payable by the Client, to SilverStone Group in the 60 
months before the accrual of the cause of action giving rise to liability. 

 
16. Dispute Resolution.  Any controversy, dispute or questions arising out of, in 

connection with or in relation to this agreement, between the Client and SilverStone 
Group, its affiliated companies, shareholders, associates, or Board members or its 
interpretation, performance or nonperformance or any breach thereof shall be resolved 
through mediation before a mediator mutually agreed upon by the parties.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-238-

Item G.2.c. 



  -7-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Client and SilverStone Group have duly executed this 
ACTUARIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT effective as of the day and year first above written.   
 
CLIENT: CONSULTANT: 
 
 
By:    By:   
 
Title:   Title:   
 
Date: ______________________________ Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
Addresses 
 
City of Cedar Falls  SilverStone Group, Incorporated 
220 Clay Street  11516 Miracle Hills Drive, Suite 100 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613-2783 Omaha, NE  68154 
 
 
 
 
 

-239-

Item G.2.c. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Job Classification Review – Consultant Agreement  

 
Please find attached a professional services agreement with Carlson Dettmann 
Consulting, LLC.  As you know, the City recently completed a pay plan study with 
Carlson Dettmann.  As part of that study we knew one of the next steps was going to be 
to review our job classifications to ensure that the classifications agree to the results of 
the pay plan study. During that process, it will also give the City the opportunity to 
update any other necessary changes to the job classifications.   
 
Originally the City budgeted $125,000 for the total pay plan study project.  Currently we 
have spent $37,357.  This includes the base study, the benefit analysis, appeals 
reviewed, and out-of-pocket expenses (travel, mileage, etc).  This agreement for the job 
classification review is $10,000 and therefore the total cost of this project is still well 
under the amount originally budgeted.  
 
The pay plan project is in accordance with Council Organizational Goal #7, Select, train, 
motivate, and retain highly qualified employees who represent the City in a professional 
manner.  Completing a comprehensive pay plan study was listed as a detailed objective 
under this goal. This job classification study continues to incorporate this goal.  
 
If you have any questions regarding the agreement or the pay plan study in general, 
please feel free to contact me.  
 
 

-241-

Item G.2.d. 



 



 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  

AND  
CARLSON DETTMANN CONSULTING, LLC 

 
This professional service agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the 

City of Cedar Falls (hereinafter “the Client”) and Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC, a Wisconsin limited-liability 
company (hereinafter “Consultant”). 

WHEREAS, The Client wishes to enter into an agreement with Consultant to provide professional consulting 
services for an assessment and update of current job classifications based on the results of the 2017-2018 non-
represented compensation study; and 

WHEREAS, Consultant has an established history of providing similar services to similar public and private sector 
employers, and is willing to provide the above-referenced professional consulting services to the Client.  

THEREFORE, the Client and Consultant agree to the following: 

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of the last signature of this Agreement until all 
services are completed. 

2. Scope of Services. The Consultant shall provide to the Client consulting services as follows: 

a) Review and assess up to 72 job classifications for clarity, accuracy and legal compliance. 

b) Update job classification content, where appropriate, using current documentation and the  Job 
Description Questionnaire that was completed in the compensation study. 

3. Job Documentation. The Client shall provide Consultant with completed JDQ’s, and Consultant will use this 
information for job evaluation. 

4. Base Project Fee.  

a) Schedule. Client shall pay the Consultant a professional fee not to exceed $10,000 for performance of 
the services identified in item 2) above.  Client shall pay Consultant in the following installments: $5,000 
due at contract signing, and the remaining balance upon submission of updated classifications.  The final 
amount will be determined by total time required and variables that will not be known until the project 
is launched. 

b) Rate. Services agreed upon beyond the scope of this agreement shall be at the following rates: Charles 
Carlson (Project Director) at $250/hour, Jennifer Hassrick at $175/hour, and Fallon Oldenburg at 
$75/hour. 

c) Expenses.  The Client shall reimburse the Consultant for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to 
travel related to this project, including mileage at the appropriate IRS rate, meals, and lodging. 

d) Work Beyond the Scope of Services. Consultant services agreed upon that are beyond the Scope of 
Services identified above (e.g. consulting organizational management matters; onsite meetings in excess 
of those defined above; locating records or otherwise responding to public records requests made to the 
Client relating to the project; etc.), shall be at Consultant’s normal hourly rates, unless agreed upon 
otherwise by the Client and Consultant. 

5. Payment. Consultant shall submit invoices in two (2) installments as the project progresses. The first 
installment of $5,000 shall be due upon contract signing and the final installment shall be due upon completion 
of the project. If necessary, travel expenses shall be invoiced with fee installments.  

6. Performance Requirements of Consultant. The Consultant shall complete the services as stated above. The 
Consultant shall furnish all labor, materials, administration, services, supplies, equipment, transportation, and 
quality control necessary to provide professional consulting services. Consultant shall provide progress reports 
upon request by the Client.  

7. Performance Requirements of Client. The Client shall provide and make available to the Consultant access to 
its human resources and related systems of record as necessary to fulfill said services.  

8. Independent Contractor. It is mutually understood and agreed, and it is the intent of the parties hereto, that an 
independent contractor relationship be and is hereby established under the terms and conditions of this 

-243-

Item G.2.d. 



 
 

 

Agreement. The Consultant shall remain an independent contractor under this Agreement. All employees of 
Consultant or subcontractors shall remain the responsibility of the Consultant and shall not become employees 
of the Client under this Agreement. No tenure or any rights or benefits, including worker’s compensation, 
unemployment insurance, medical care, sick leave, vacation leave, severance pay, withholding taxes or other 
benefits available to Client employees shall accrue to the Consultant or its employees performing services under 
this Agreement.  

9. Indemnification. The Consultant agrees it shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Client, its officers, 
and its employees against any and all liability, losses, costs, damages, and expenses, including attorney fees that 
the Client, its officers or its employees, may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to pay arising out of the 
negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the Consultant, its officers or employees. The Client agrees it shall 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Consultant, its officers, and its employees against any and all liability, 
losses, costs, damages, and expenses, including attorney fees that the Consultant, its officers or its employees, 
may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to pay arising out of the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of 
the Client, its officers or employees. 

10. Trade Secrets. The Carlson Dettmann Point Factor Job Evaluation System and methodology, marketplace 
surveys performed, Total Rewards Method, and job point evaluation data collected and analyzed to perform 
the Scope of Services is owned by Consultant, is confidential and proprietary, and is a trade secret pursuant to 
Wis. Stats. s. 134.90. The Client (including its officers, employees, agents and representatives) shall not disclose, 
disseminate, or otherwise misappropriate these trade secrets without the express consent of Consultant. 

11. Confidential Client Information. Consultant agrees to keep confidential information and data provided by 
Client to Consultant for the purpose of enabling Consultant to complete the Scope of Work detailed above.  

12. Assignment. Neither party to this Agreement may assign or transfer this Agreement, or any part thereof, 
without the written consent of the other party. 

13. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, such provision 
shall be fully severable and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of the Agreement. The remaining provisions shall remain 
in full force and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its 
severance. 

14. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties.  

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all prior 
arrangements and/or understandings, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject matter contained in 
this Agreement.  

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS     
 
By:        
 
 
      
 
Date:       
 
 
 
CARLSON DETTMANN CONSULTING, LLC  
 

By: 

 

      
Charles E. Carlson, Partner 
 
Date:   
 

-244-

Item G.2.d. 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: June 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Performance Development Program – Consultant Agreement  

 
Please find attached a professional services agreement with Carlson Dettmann 
Consulting, LLC.  As you know, the City recently completed a pay plan study with 
Carlson Dettmann.  As part of that study it seemed reasonable to also review our 
current performance evaluation tool and the merit pay system.  Therefore, we asked the 
consultant to give us a proposal to perform these services.   
 
Originally the City budgeted $125,000 for the total pay plan study project.  Currently we 
have spent $37,357.  This includes the base study, the benefit analysis, appeals 
reviewed, and out-of-pocket expenses (travel, mileage, etc).  This agreement is for 
$9,000 and therefore the total cost of this project is still well under the amount originally 
budgeted.  
 
The pay plan project is in accordance with Council Organizational Goal #7, Select, train, 
motivate, and retain highly qualified employees who represent the City in a professional 
manner.  Completing a comprehensive pay plan study was listed as a detailed objective 
under this goal. This review of current evaluation system continues to incorporate this 
goal.  
 
If you have any questions regarding the agreement or the pay plan study in general, 
please feel free to contact me.  
 
 

-245-

Item G.2.e. 



 



 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

AND  
CARLSON DETTMANN CONSULTING, LLC 

 
This professional service agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by 

and between City of Cedar Falls (hereinafter “the Client”) and Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC, a 
Wisconsin limited-liability company (hereinafter “Consultant”). 

WHEREAS, The Client wishes to enter into an agreement with Consultant to provide 
professional consulting services development of a new performance and employee development 
program; and 

WHEREAS, Consultant has an established history of providing similar services to similar public 
and private sector employers, and is willing to provide the above-referenced professional consulting 
services to the Client.  

THEREFORE, the Client and Consultant agree to the following: 

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of the last signature of this 
Agreement until all services are completed. 

2. Scope of Services. The Consultant shall provide to the Client consulting services as follows: 

a) Assess current performance review instruments and process. 

b) Facilitate management discussion to determine performance standards. 

c) Develop new evaluation instrument(s). 

d) Conduct a training session for performance evaluators in proper methods of evaluation 
using the new instrument(s) and management process. 

e) Conduct a training session for Client employees on the new instrument and the process. 

3. Fee. Client shall pay the Consultant a professional fee of $9,000 for work performed according 
to the Scope set forth above. Client shall pay 50% of the fee upon execution of this Agreement 
and the balance upon completion of the project.  Client also shall reimburse consultant for 
reasonable expenses required for travel related to this project. 

4. Performance Requirements of Consultant. The Consultant shall complete the services as 
stated above. The Consultant shall furnish all labor, materials, administration, services, 
supplies, equipment, transportation, and quality control necessary to provide professional 
consulting services. Consultant shall provide progress reports upon request by the Client.  

5. Performance Requirements of Client. The Client shall provide and make available to the 
Consultant access to its human resources and related systems of record as necessary to fulfill 
said services.  

6. Independent Contractor. It is mutually understood and agreed, and it is the intent of the parties 
hereto, that an independent contractor relationship be and is hereby established under the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Consultant shall remain an independent 
contractor under this Agreement. All employees of Consultant or subcontractors shall remain 
the responsibility of the Consultant and shall not become employees of the Client under this 
Agreement. No tenure or any rights or benefits, including worker’s compensation, 
unemployment insurance, medical care, sick leave, vacation leave, severance pay, withholding 
taxes or other benefits available to Client employees shall accrue to the Consultant or its 
employees performing services under this Agreement.  

-247-

Item G.2.e. 



 
 

 

7. Indemnification. The Consultant agrees it shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
Client, its officers, and its employees against any and all liability, losses, costs, damages, and 
expenses, including attorney fees that the Client, its officers or its employees, may hereafter 
sustain, incur or be required to pay arising out of the negligent or intentional acts or omissions 
of the Consultant, its officers or employees. The Client agrees it shall defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless the Consultant, its officers, and its employees against any and all liability, losses, 
costs, damages, and expenses, including attorney fees that the Consultant, its officers or its 
employees, may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to pay arising out of the negligent or 
intentional acts or omissions of the Client, its officers or employees. 

8. Confidential Client Information. Consultant agrees to keep confidential information and data 
provided by Client to Consultant for the purpose of enabling Consultant to complete the 
Scope of Work detailed above.  

9. Assignment. Neither party to this Agreement may assign or transfer this Agreement, or any 
part thereof, without the written consent of the other party. 

10. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, 
such provision shall be fully severable and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as 
if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of the 
Agreement. The remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be 
affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its severance. 

11. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties.  

12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and 
supersedes all prior arrangements and/or understandings, whether written or oral, with respect 
to the subject matter contained in this Agreement.  

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS     
 
By:        
 
 
      
 
Date:       
 
 
 
CARLSON DETTMANN CONSULTING, LLC  
 
By:        
 

      
Charles E. Carlson, Partner 
 
Date:   
 

-248-

Item G.2.e. 



-249-

Item G.2.f. 



-250-

Item G.2.f. 



-251-

Item G.2.g. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
501 E. 4th Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8633 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Water Reclamation Division 

  

  

 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Mike Nyman, Manager, Water Reclamation Division 

 DATE: May 30, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY17 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 

  City Project #WR-000-3131 

 

The last of the lining work for this project was completed in late 2017.  There were some 

delays due to contractor scheduling and availability. All reports have been received and 

reviewed by staff. The work was completed in compliance with the terms of the contract 

specifications. 

 

The maintenance bond is being issued and will be kept on file and there are no 

outstanding lien waivers for this contract. The FY17 budget included $250,000 for this 

capital improvement project and all work was completed under budget at a total cost of 

$214,528.  

 

It is my recommendation that this project be formally accepted. 

    

If you have any questions about these items, let me know. 

-253-

Item G.2.h. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 30, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I 
  CF Gateway Park, Inc. 
   
 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal maintenance 
and repair agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with CF Gateway Park, Inc. for Gateway Business 
Park at Cedar Falls I, located at the northeast corner of Hudson Road and West 
Ridgeway Avenue, and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering Division 
recommends the agreement be approved by the City Council and recorded at the Black 
Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer   
 

-255-

Item G.2.i. 



 



-257-

Item G.2.i. 



-258-

Item G.2.i. 



-259-

Item G.2.i. 



-260-

Item G.2.i. 



-261-

Item G.2.i. 



-262-

Item G.2.i. 



-263-

Item G.2.i. 



-264-

Item G.2.i. 



-265-

Item G.2.i. 



-266-

Item G.2.i. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: June 1, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, AECOM Technical Services, Inc.   
  Downtown Levee Improvements Project 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 7 
  City Project No. FL-000-1975 
 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 7 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for the 
Downtown Levee Improvements Project. This supplemental agreement continues with 
additional engineering services for redesigning the segment 3 wall to include additional 
lighting west of the Main Street Bridge.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with AECOM 
Technical Services Inc. for design related services for the Downtown Levee 
Improvement Project on October 24, 2011. Funding for the proposed design work will 
be provided by the Levee Grant in the amount of $3,200.00. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of this Supplemental Agreement No. 6 with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for the 
Downtown Levee Improvements Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact myself or Jon Resler.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, PE, City Engineer 
 Mark Ripplinger, Director of Municipal Operations 

-267-

Item G.2.j. 



 



-269-

Item G.2.j. 



-270-

Item G.2.j. 



   DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-268-5161 
FAX 319-268-5197 

 M E M O R A N D U M
Engineering Division

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: May 30, 2018 
 
 RE: Center Street Recreational Trail Project 
  Project No. RT – 000 – 3107 
  Iowa DOT Project No. TAP-U-1185(651)—8I-07 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Contract, Bid Tab, Contractor’s Bond, and Certificate 
of Liability Insurance from K. Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the 
construction of the Center Street Recreational Trail Project. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with K. Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the construction of the 
Center Street Recreational Trail Project. The Center Street Recreational Trail Project 
will construct a recreation trail from Cottage Row Road to Lone Tree Road along the 
west side of Center Street. The low bid on this project was $457,535.03 submitted by K. 
Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  
 
The Transportation Alternative Program, Surface Transportation Program, and the 
Transportation Improvements Program administered through the Iowa Department of 
Transportation will provide up to $258,551.38. The remaining cost of the project will be 
funded by General Obligation Bonds. 
 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz Director of Community Development 

Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-271-

Item G.2.k. 



 



-273-

Item G.2.k. 



-274-

Item G.2.k. 



-275-

Item G.2.k. 



-276-

Item G.2.k. 



-277-

Item G.2.k. 



-278-

Item G.2.k. 



-279-

Item G.2.k. 



-280-

Item G.2.k. 



-281-

Item G.2.k. 



-282-

Item G.2.k. 



-283-

Item G.2.k. 



-284-

Item G.2.k. 



-285-

Item G.2.k. 



-286-

Item G.2.k. 



-287-

Item G.2.k. 



-288-

Item G.2.k. 



-289-

Item G.2.k. 



-290-

Item G.2.k. 



-291-

Item G.2.k. 



-292-

Item G.2.k. 



-293-

Item G.2.k. 



-294-

Item G.2.k. 



-295-

Item G.2.k. 



-296-

Item G.2.k. 



-297-

Item G.2.k. 



-298-

Item G.2.k. 



-299-

Item G.2.k. 



 



-301-

Item G.2.k. 



-302-

Item G.2.k. 



-303-

Item G.2.k. 



-304-

Item G.2.k. 



-305-

Item G.2.k. 



-306-

Item G.2.k. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 
Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: May 30, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I 
  Contract for Completion of Improvements 
  Project No. SU-282-1904 
 
 
The developer of the above-mentioned project, CF Gateway Park, Inc has requested 
Final Plat approval in order to proceed with the sale of lots in the development. Shive-
Hattery, Inc the developer’s engineer, has submitted the estimate of remaining costs for 
completion of improvements. The developer has submitted a “Contract for Completion 
of Improvements” and established a performance and payment bond in the amount of 
$1,259,082.54 to assure completion of the remaining items. A copy of the Final Plat is 
attached for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the cost estimate for the remaining work and 
concur that the amount of the performance and payment bond is adequate to complete 
the project.  The “Contract for Completion of Improvements” is based on the standard 
forms developed by our City Attorney. The developer has also provided a 3-year 
Maintenance Bond in the full amount of the public improvements that will be on file until 
final acceptance of the project by City Council. We recommend approval of the 
“Contract for Completion of Improvements”. 
 
att 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E, City Engineer 
 Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 
 
 

-307-

Item G.2.l. 



 



-309-

Item G.2.l. 



-310-

Item G.2.l. 



-311-

Item G.2.l. 



 



-313-

Item G.2.l. 



 



-315-

Item G.2.l. 



-316-

Item G.2.l. 



-317-

Item G.2.l. 



-318-

Item G.2.l. 



-319-

Item G.2.l. 



-320-

Item G.2.l. 



-321-

Item G.2.l. 



-322-

Item G.2.l. 



-323-

Item G.2.l. 



-324-

Item G.2.l. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Project Supervisor 
 
 DATE: May 30, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services Project  
  Clapsaddle Garber Associates, Inc. 
  Project No: SU-000-3159 
    
 
Attached is the Professional Services Agreement with Clapsaddle Garber Associates, 
Inc. for the construction related services on new subdivisions. 
 
In accordance with subdivision chapter of the City Code, Section 24-5.2 - Inspection 
states that “all improvements shall be inspected to insure compliance with the 
requirements of this ordinance. The cost of such inspection shall be borne by the 
subdivider, and shall be the actual cost of the inspection to the city.”  The cost of the 
construction related services under this agreement will be billed to the developers. 
 
The Engineering Division requests your consideration and approval of the Professional 
Services Agreement with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. for construction related 
engineering services during the construction of the public improvements for the 2018 
construction season. If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 

-325-

Item G.2.m. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 
Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

This Agreement is made and entered by and between Clapsaddle-Garber Associates__, __5106 Nordic 
Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa____, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay 
Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering 

standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no 
cost to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local conditions, the cost of labor 
and materials, or over competitive bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as compared to contractor's bids 
or the actual cost to the CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express 
or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the 
quality of Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein. 

 
 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, 

require from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number: SU-000-3159  

-327-

Item G.2.m. 



equipment, materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such 
equipment, materials and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT 
to the full extent of the terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such 
equipment, and materials obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be 
limited to procuring guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all 
reasonable assistance to CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that 
any estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. 
CONSULTANT does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary 
from the opinions of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives 
any and all claims that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over 
the project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the 
results of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 2011 as revised February 17, 2015 consisting of 12 pages, 
which are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set 
out word for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 
and marked Exhibit B. 

 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of two 
pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

-328-

Item G.2.m. 



VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses as shown in Exhibit D.  Supplemental Agreements may be prepared 
between CLIENT and CONSULTANT for each project, further defining project scope and 
compensation. 
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement 
may be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial 
failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the 
terminating party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a 
non-monetary default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, 
CONSULTANT will be paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the 
termination in accordance with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Sealed original drawings, specifications, final project specific calculations and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments 
of service solely for the purpose of the construction, operation and maintenance of the 
Facilities. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or depriving 
CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other 
projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to 
the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different 

than those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no 
warranty as to the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of 
the potential degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between 
the sealed original drawings and the electronic files, the sealed drawings will govern. 

 
IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety 
measures and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, 
in connection with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor 
shall CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of 
such contractors; or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and 
employed by contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall 
not have the right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the 
CLIENT. In no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's 
construction contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the 

-329-

Item G.2.m. 



construction work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under 
contracts with CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely 
responsible for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility 
and/or transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of 
such waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s 
obligations or responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of 
any pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required 
forms relating to regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, 
treatment, transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party 
shall notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable 
to resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be 
submitted for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration 
Association (or any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute 
to mediation can be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between 
receipt of notice and submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 
percent by CONSULTANT and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall 
be a condition required before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the 
negotiations or the mediation either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a 
statute of limitations, and CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have 
to obtain security for the payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District 
Court, Waterloo, Iowa. 

 

-330-

Item G.2.m. 



XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and 

supersedes any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or 
communications heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be 
changed, modified, or amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event 
of any conflict between this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms 
and conditions of Exhibit C shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, 
Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved 

by CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT 
of any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and 

CONSULTANT and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its 
exhibits limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either 
party that are available to either party under the law. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  __James P. Brown________  Printed Name:      Matt Garber            
 
 
Title: __Mayor of Cedar Falls  Title:        President                       
 
 
Date:  Date: 5/30/2018  

-331-

Item G.2.m. 



 



 

CGA Project No. 5557 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-0003159 

    

Exhibit A 
 

2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number SU – 000 – 3159 
 

   
 

1. Resident Construction Observation and Testing: 
 

a. Construction Testing – CGA operates a lab and employs 
technicians that can perform a variety of materials testing, including 
the following: standard and modified proctor density; soil moisture 
content; field moisture & density; PCC slump testing; air 
entrainment; casting, curing, and testing of concrete cylinders and 
beams; ACC field temperature testing and field temperature testing 
and field density determination.  A CGA construction technician 
shall provide periodic site visits during construction for these 
services as requested by the City. 

 
b. Resident Construction Observation – A resident construction 

observer will be provided as needed during construction activities.  
Duties and responsibilities of the observer will include checking 
compliance of the construction with the plans and specifications, 
record and document the contractor’s activities, prepare related 
reports, and serve as the Project Engineer’s liaison with the 
Contractor.  The resident construction observer will also serve as 
the testing technician when possible, reducing the need for multiple 
personnel on-site. 
 

-333-

Item G.2.m. 



 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

    

Exhibit B 
 

2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number SU – 000 – 3159 
 

  Original12/13/11 
Revision 01/31/2017 

 
    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR  

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 

-335-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 

-336-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 

-337-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
  

-338-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

-339-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

-340-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

-341-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

 

$1,000,000 

-342-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

  

-343-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

 

-344-

Item G.2.m. 



 

 2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. SU-000-3159 

 

-345-

Item G.2.m. 



 



 

Consultant  2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 
Project No. ____________  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. SU – 000 – 3159 

14 | P a g e  

    

Exhibit C 
 

2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number SU – 000 – 3159  
 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 
 

-347-

Item G.2.m. 



 

Consultant  2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 
Project No. ____________  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. SU – 000 – 3159 

15 | P a g e  

 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment A, shall constitute a 
default under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment 
A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, 
Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 
 

-348-

Item G.2.m. 



 

Consultant  2018 Construction Observation & Testing Services 
Project No. ____________  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. SU – 000 – 3159 

16 | P a g e  

 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 
and sound practices applicable to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 

-349-

Item G.2.m. 



 



Exhibit D 

 
 

 
Hourly Rate Schedule 

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. 

 

The following hourly rates shall be effective through December 31, 2018. 

 

Partner  ..............................................$195.00 

Principal ............................................$150.00 

Sr. Project Manager ..........................$130.00 

Project Manager ................................$110.00 

Sr. Project Engineer ..........................$100.00 

Project Engineer  .................................$96.00 

Sr. Design Engineer  ...........................$86.00 

Design Engineer ..................................$76.00 

 

Sr. Design Tech  ..................................$70.00 

Design Tech ........................................$65.00 

Sr. CADD Tech ...................................$63.00 

CADD Tech ........................................$55.00 

 

Planner, Project Manager ..................$105.00 

Aviation Specialist ..............................$85.00 

ROW Agent ........................................$78.00 

 

 
 

 

Sr. Professional Land Surveyor ........$115.00 

Professional Land Surveyor ................$95.00 

Sr. Lead Surveyor ...............................$90.00 

Lead Surveyor .....................................$70.00 

Survey Tech ........................................$55.00 

Summer Intern ....................................$45.00 

 

Survey Crew (One Person)…….........$75.00 

Survey Crew (Two Person)………...$120.00 

 

Construction Project Manager ............$85.00 

Sr. Construction Tech .........................$65.00 

Construction Tech  ..............................$55.00 

Lab Manager .......................................$72.00 

 

Sr. Administrative Assistant ...............$60.00 

Administrative Assistant .....................$55.00

Expenses:  In addition to the above hourly labor rates, expenses shall be reimbursed in accordance with the 

following.  Vehicle mileage shall be reimbursed at $0.65 per mile for automobiles/light trucks and $1.00 per 

mile for survey equipment vehicles. ATV’s shall be reimbursed at $55 per day, Total Station/GPS survey 

equipment shall be reimbursed at $25 per hour and office CAD equipment at $5 per hour.  All other expenses 

incurred in connection with the services provided shall be reimbursed at the rate of the actual costs incurred. 
 

-351-

Item G.2.m. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Project Supervisor 
 
 DATE: May 30, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Supplemental Agreement No. 1  
  Clapsaddle Garber Associates, Inc. 
  Construction Related Services – Gateway Business Park 
  
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) on June 4th, 2018 for construction related 
services. 
 
The Engineering Division requests approval of the attached Supplemental Agreement 
No. 1 for the construction related engineering services on the Gateway Business Park. 
 
In accordance with subdivision chapter of the City Code, Section 24-5.2 - Inspection 
states that “all improvements shall be inspected to insure compliance with the 
requirements of this ordinance. The cost of such inspection shall be borne by the 
subdivider, and shall be the actual cost of the inspection to the city.”  The cost of the 
construction related services under this agreement will be billed to the developers. 
 
The Engineering Division requests your consideration and approval of the Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. for construction related 
engineering services during the construction of the public improvements for the 2018 
construction season. If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
att 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 

-353-

Item G.2.n. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Administration Division  Community Services Division  Planning Division 
Phone: 319-273-8606  Fax: 319-273-8610 

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 

 
2018 Construction Observation and Testing Services Agreement for  

Gateway Business Park,  
Cedar Falls, Iowa  

 
 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Client), 
and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (Consultant), of Cedar Falls, Iowa, dated _________________ for 
construction observation and testing services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Client and Consultant desire to amend the previous agreement to include an additional 
project and thus increase the original not to exceed amounts of the Professional Services Agreement 
outlined above,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as 
follows:  
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

The Construction Observation and Testing Services shall include the following project:  
 

A. Gateway Business Park; the construction period shall be assumed to be 20 weeks in length, 
with approximately 20 hours of construction observation or technician activities per week.   

B. All other services listed in Scope of Service shall be provided as originally presented in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated____________________. 

 
 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.   
 

A. Total compensation for Gateway Business Park is a not to exceed fee of Thirty Six Thousand 
Dollars ($36,000.00).  

B. Compensation assumes project length and approximate hours per week of technician 
activities in Section IA above.  Contract amount may be amended if construction length or 
hours per week of technician activities deviates from the assumed construction length or 
hours per week of technician activities in Section IA. 

 

-355-

Item G.2.n. 



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates  Construction Observation and Testing Services 
Project No. 5557  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
   

 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 
Professional Services Agreement dated ______________________.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 

By:  By:  
 
 

Printed Name:  Printed Name:                  
 
 

Title:  Title:                               
 
 

Date:  Date: 5/30/2018  

Matt D. Garber 

President 

 

-356-

Item G.2.n. 



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: May 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Holiday Inn & Suites/Conference Center Site Plan Review 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Site plan approval for a new 126-room hotel and 31,142 square foot 
conference center. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

CF Gateway Park, Inc. (owner); Shive-Hattery (engineer); Russell 
Construction. (contractor); Tushie Montgomery Architects (architect) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lot 1 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls 
 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to construct a new 4-story, 126-room 
Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel on an 8.98 acre parcel located 
within a new development located south of Technology 
Parkway and North of W Ridgeway Avenue (Lot 1 on the 
image to the right). Attached to the hotel will also be a 
new single-story, 31,142 square foot conference center. A 
future hotel is also shown on the site plan at the north end 
of the parcel, but it is not part of this site plan review 
request. The site will provide parking for their guests and 
employees, and includes a drive-up canopy along the 
south side of the building in front of the hotel and along 
the west side in front of the conference center. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant recently purchased the 46-acre parcel in 
order to develop it into commercial and/or office uses. 
This report will focus on Lot 1 of this development only, 
along with the site development elements of this project.  
 
 

-357-

Item G.2.o. 



2 
 

ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned HWY-1, Highway Commercial District, which is intended to promote 
general services commercial uses intended to serve a broader market area (i.e. City-wide or 
regional customer base). The property is also located within the Highway 20 Overlay Zoning 
District, which provides enhanced development guidelines for commercial uses located within 
this corridor. The ordinance requires detailed site plan review prior to approval in order to 
ensure that the development site satisfies a number of basic aesthetic standards. Attention to 
details such as parking, open green space, landscaping, signage, building design and other 
similar factors help to ensure orderly development in the entire area. Following is a review of the 
zoning ordinance requirements: 
 

1) Use: A hotel and conference center can have a regional customer base, thus fitting within 
the permitted uses of the HWY-1 District. Such a use is also allowed within the Highway 
20 Overlay Zoning District. Use is allowed. 
 

2) Setbacks: 20-ft. setbacks are required along the edge of the district and along any internal 
streets/principal access ways. These areas must be landscaped. Open space and 
landscaping is shown on the plan within these areas. Both the hotel and conference center 
meet the setback requirements. Building setbacks are satisfied. 
 

3) Parking/Access: A hotel is required to provide 1 parking space for each guest room, plus 1 
parking space for every 2 employees. A conference center is required to provide 1 parking 
space for every 200 square feet of floor area, plus 1 parking space for every 2 employees. 
Based on the number of rooms in the hotel (126), conference center area (34,310 SF), 
and employees (90), the site will be required to provide 343 parking spaces. The site plan 
provided shows 394 parking stalls, which exceeds the required amount by 51 parking 
spaces.  
 

Access to the property will be gained from four different locations. There are two right-
in/right-out accesses shown from Hudson Road. These accesses will also include an 
approximate 100 foot turn lane in order to get traffic safely off of Hudson Road and into the 
site. Also, there are three accesses being proposed from Cyber Lane. Two of the 
accesses would be for general traffic to the site, while the third access would be mainly for 
deliveries and trash removal. Cyber Lane will be a new road that will be extended from 
Technology Parkway to the north and connect with W Ridgeway Avenue to the south. This 
will be a typical 31-foot wide street. Overall, the submitted parking lot and access plan 
is satisfied.  

 
4) Open Green Space: This property is located within the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor 

Overlay Zoning District. This overlay district requires that open green space/landscape 
area be provided at the rate of 15% of the development site. Following is a summary from 
the landscape plan that details how this provision is met.   
 
 
 

Development Site 391,025 SF  
Required Open/Green Space 58,653 SF 15% 
Provided Open/Green Space 63,754 SF 16.4% 

 

-358-

Item G.2.o. 



3 
 

Landscaping is shown throughout the site, both around the building as well as within the 
parking lot and along the street frontages. The open green space exceeds the minimum 
requirement and is well distributed. 
 

5) Landscaping: The Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay Zoning District requires 
landscaping at the rate of 0.02 points per sq. ft. of total development site area. Following 
are the requirements for the convention center site and new hotel site and what is 
proposed. 
 

Description Required Proposed 
Development Lot 

391,025 * .02 7,821 pts. 9,450 pts. 
Parking lot trees 

422/15 = 29 trees @ 80 pts. 2,320 pts. 2,800 pts. 
Street Tree Planting 

(.75 points per linear foot → 1,628’ on 
Hudson Rd and Cyber Ln) 

1,221 pts. 1,260 pts. 

 11,362 pts 13,510 pts 
 
As detailed in the table, trees are required in the vehicular use area at the rate of one tree 
per 15 parking spaces. With a total buildout of 394 parking spaces, 27 trees would be 
required. The landscape plan shows a total of 35 trees, which would meet the 
requirement. 
 
In addition to parking lot trees, there are trees located along the street frontages, with 
shrubs and additional trees being located around each of the buildings. In total, there will 
be over 200 deciduous and evergreen trees planted on the site. Landscaping 
requirements are met. 
 

6) Sidewalks/Recreational Accommodations: A new 10-foot wide recreational trail will be 
installed along Hudson Road. A connection from this trail to the property is shown near the 
south access off of Hudson Road. This trail will eventually lead south and connect to W 
Ridgeway Avenue, and then head east to connect to the existing trail located at 
Chancellor Drive. This trail will be installed by the developer as the property is developed. 
Also, a new 5’ wide sidewalk will also be installed along Cyber Lane, and would have a 
connection point to the hotel site near the south entrance. Trail/sidewalk plan satisfied. 

 
 

7) Building Design: The HWY-1, Highway Commercial District states that all structures 
established within the district shall be reviewed for architectural compatibility with 
surrounding structures. Below is a review on the elements that are to be addressed.   

 
Proportion: The relationship between the width and height of the front elevations 
of adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building; the relationship of width to height of windows and doors of adjacent 
buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 

The scale and proportion of the new hotel will be similar to the 
existing hotel located adjacent to the north. That hotel is 3 stories in 
height, while this hotel will be 4 stories in height. The conference 
center portion of the building will be one story in height. There is not 

-359-

Item G.2.o. 



4 
 

a lot of development located adjacent to this property, however 
most of the office buildings located within the technology park 
nearby range from 1-3 stories in height. 

 
Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, 
pitch, and direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the 
construction or alteration of a building. 

 
The design of the hotel/conference center includes a flat roof with a 
parapet wall. The hotel to the north, as well as a number of 
industrial and office uses nearby, utilize flat roofs as well.       

 
Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front 
facade and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. 
This pattern of solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 
 

 The building was created with a contemporary design approach to 
meet the standards of the hotel company while also adapting to 
local conditions resulting in a more custom design for the building. 
Exterior materials were designed with a strong masonry base, such 
as the brick and stone, with a consistent pattern to the middle of the 
building and a defined top with an enhanced cornice. 

 
Materials and texture: The similarity or compatibility of existing materials and 
textures on the exterior walls and roofs of buildings in the immediate area shall be 
considered in the construction or alteration of a building. A building or alteration 
shall be considered compatible if the materials and texture used are appropriate in 
the context of other buildings in the immediate area. 
 

 Stone, brick, stucco, and glass are the exterior materials that will be 
found on the hotel building. The conference center portion of the 
building will utilize stone and brick. Similar materials are found on 
nearby structures, as the hotel to the north utilizes brick on its first 
floor and EIFS on its 2nd and 3rd floors. Many of the other buildings 
within the area also utilize a combination of brick, glass and EIFS 
materials. In total, the building will be made up of 57% stucco, 28% 
brick, 7% stone and 7% metal paneling (found with the glass on the 
front and rear portion of building where the signage will be located). 

 
 Brick and stone materials are found on the first level of the hotel 

and conference center building. The stucco material on the building 
will come in two different colors (gray and white), with a horizontal 
pattern along the area where the hotel rooms are located and a 
vertical pattern near the entrance on each side of the main glass 
feature.  

 
Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of 
buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building. 

-360-

Item G.2.o. 



5 
 

 
Many of the existing buildings in this area utilize a neutral color 
exterior, which include brown, tan, and cream. Some buildings also 
utilize red or gray tones as well. This design shows that the stucco 
colors on the building will be gray and white, with reddish-brown 
brick materials and gray stone materials. 
 
This building will include two different colors of stucco on the hotel 
building. The image below is a color rendering showing the two 
different colors of stucco materials and their pattern on the building.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, cornices, 
entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in the immediate 
area, shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not 
intended that the details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those 
features should be regarded as suggestive of the extent, nature, and scale of details 
that would be appropriate on new buildings or alterations. 
 

Architectural features of the hotel/conference center include large 
ground to ceiling windows along the front and rear of the hotel. The 
hotel building has a prominent raised center element to create a 
visual centerpiece to the building. Windows are found in every hotel 
room, however additional windows are found near the entrance to 
give it a more appealing look and to allow more natural light into the 
main lobby area of the hotel. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Building Design -361-

Item G.2.o. 



6 
 

Overall, the design of the proposed hotel/conference center is 
architecturally compatible with other buildings in the surrounding area.  

 
8) Trash Dumpster Site: The trash dumpsters will be entirely located within the building, 

where an overhead door can be opened to allow for emptying the contents. This door to 
the trash dumpster will be located on the east end of the building, near the middle access 
from Cyber Lane. Dumpster enclosure plan is acceptable. 

 
9) Lighting Plan: The HWY-1 District regulations do 

not have specific lighting design guidelines. The 
site plan shows the location of light poles 
throughout the site. The parking lot lights will be 
mounted atop a 20’ tall light pole and will include 
both single head and dual head fixtures. These 
fixtures will be housed in a die-cast aluminum 
housing with LED lights. Also, wall pack lights will be located on the walls of the building in 
various locations, and recessed downlights will be located within the drive-up canopies. 
Lighting plan is acceptable.  

 
10) Signage: Several monument signs are illustrated on 

the site plan near 3 out of the 4 entrances to the 
property. The main sign, located at the southwest 
corner of the property along Hudson Road, will be 
21 feet in height and 51 square feet in area. The 
sign will sit on a brick base that matches the color of 
the brick on the building. Below the sign lettering will 
be an LED reader board for messaging.  
 

One smaller 7’6” tall, 32 square foot sign will be 
located at the northwest entrance onto the property, 
which is along Hudson Road. This sign will also 
have a brick base, but will not have an LED reader 
board. The last monument sign will be located at the 
southeast corner of the property along Cyber Lane, 
and will be 7 feet in height with a size of 15 square feet. This sign will also have a brick 
base, and no LED reader board.  
 
The signage requirements for the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay District state 
that one freestanding sign may be allowed that does not exceed 25 feet in height and 200 
square feet in area. The main monument sign would meet those requirements. Also, 
smaller monument signs, measuring no more than 15 feet in height and 150 square feet in 
area, are permitted, with a maximum of two such signs per parcel. There are only 2 such 
signs proposed, so the freestanding signage requirement would be met. 
 
The proposed wall signs appear to be well within the District limitations of no larger than 
20% of the wall area to which the wall sign is attached. However, this will be reviewed in 
detail at the time a sign permit is requested. Signage plan is acceptable, subject to 
detailed review with a sign permit. 

 

LED Parking Lot Fixture 

Main Monument Sign 

-362-

Item G.2.o. 



7 
 

11) Storm Water Management: A regional storm water detention basin will be located just to 
the north of the property to collect the storm water runoff from the site. The water runoff 
from the building and parking areas will be collected via intakes within the parking area 
and transferred via piping to the detention basin. Stormwater Management Plan has 
been reviewed and approved by the Engineering Department. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
All of the technical comments noted by City staff have been addressed by the developer.  
 
Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available to the site in accordance 
with the service policies of Cedar Falls Utilities. The property owner/contractor is responsible to 
extend all utility services to the building.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the site plan for the new 
Holiday Inn and Suites Hotel and Conference Center. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
2/14/2018 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. Alisha Schmitz (2030 North Ridge Drive, Coralville) of Russell 
Development stated that they will be removing one of the monument signs that 
Mr. Graham had discussed to come into compliance with the sign regulations. 
She also discussed the two different colors of stucco that are proposed and 
asked for comments or opinions from the Commission.  
 
Ms. Oberle asked to see the image of the stucco colors that had been discussed. 
Ms. Schmitz provided a summary of the proposed colors. Mr. Arntson stated that 
this is the first building you will see when entering the City and would like to see 
better renderings at the next meeting, showing more detail that better reflects the 
different colors. He feels that it is a substantial and significant investment coming to 
town. He also asked if there is a similar building that IHG has built to give an idea o  
how it would look. Ms. Schmitz explained that this particular building is more of a 
hybrid, but they can show some examples to help visualize the proposed building. 

 
Vote 
3/28/2018 

 
Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information, noting that this item was initially discussed with the Commission on 
February 14, 2018. He explained that the property is zoned HWY-1 Commercial, 
and is located near the corner of West Ridgeway Avenue and Hudson Road. This 
use is permitted in this zoning district. Mr. Graham showed renderings of the site 
plan, displaying the proposed elements. He also discussed the signage plan, 
stormwater management plan and building design, showing changes in the 
design since the last meeting. Staff recommends approval subject to additional 
comments or direction from the Commission. 
 
Ms. Saul noted that she likes the change in color and the canopy. Mr. Arntson 
asked about the roads and entry points, of which Graham answered.  
Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve. Mr. Wingert seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, 
Hartley, Holst, Leeper, Oberle, Saul and Wingert) and 0 nays. 

 

-363-

Item G.2.o. 



S Prairie
Lake

Dry

Run
Cre ek

(S)

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Central
River AEA

Prairie
Lakes
Park

Technology Pkwy

Pr
inc

eto
n A

ve

Richmond St

Montclair St

Scranton St

Columbia St

Concord St

Saratoga St

Camden St

Le
xin

gto
nB

lvd

Ch an cel lorDr

Waterway Ave (Planned)

C yber Ln (Planned)

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

W Ridgeway Ave
R-4

M-1
M-1

PC-2

HWY-1

BR

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
June 4, 2018

Holiday Inn & Suites/Convention Center
Hwy-1 Site Plan Review

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce d a
rH

eig
hts

Dr

University Ave

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

r se
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

-364-

Item G.2.o. 



T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S
7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©©©©

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED ARCHITECT  UNDER  THE LAWS
OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

Gary Fischer

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 01/08/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T 

FO
R
 C

O
N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code  ALOCF
Project    32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 01/08/2018 

3955

1/8/2018 8:40:13 AM

H
O
LI
D
A
Y
 I
N
N
 &
 S
U
IT
E
S

C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 C
E
N
TE
R

C
E
D
A
R
 F
A
LL
S
, 
IO
W
A
 5
0
6
1
3

-CS-

COVER SHEET

217035A

SITE LOCATION

GENERAL NOTES

PROJECT TEAM

ALL CONSTRUCTION  SHALL  MEET ALL

APPLICABLE CODES AND MOST STRINGENT

SHALL APPLY.

DIMENSIONS  GIVEN  FOR  MASONRY  ON

ARCHITECTURAL  DRAWINGS,  ARE NOMINAL

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

SCALED  MEASUREMENTS  OF  DRAWINGS

SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED.

ALL NECESSARY AND/OR REQUIRED TESTS, INSPECTIONS SHOP DRAWING 

REVIEWS AND DRAWING  INTERPRETATIONS,  REQUIRED BY THE GENERAL 

CONDITIONS,  SHALL BE EXECUTED BY A REGISTERED ARCHITECT AND/OR  

BY A REGISTERED  ENGINEER; IF NOT, THE ARCHITECT OF RECORD AND/ 

OR THE ENGINEER  OF RECORD  SHALL BE  HELD HARMLESS FOR THAT 

PORTION OF THE WORK IMPROPERLY EXECUTED.   THE  INSPECTION 

ARCHITECT AND/OR ENGINEER SHALL BECOME RESPONSIBLE FOR THOSE 

INSPECTIONS, DECISIONS AND/OR DOCUMENT INTERPRETATIONS MADE 

AS THEY RELATE TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND THEIR INTENT.  

DIMENSION FOR STUD WALLS ARE TO FACE

OF STUD AND DIMENSIONS FOR MASONRY

WALLS  ARE  TO  FACE OF BLOCK  UNLESS

STATED OTHERWISE.

DRAWING INDEX

TUSHIE MONTGOMERY ARCHITECTS

7645 LYNDALE AVENUE SOUTH, #100

MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA  55423

CIVIL ENGINEER:

OWNER:

ARCHITECT:

(612) 861-9636

DANIEL PELLINEN

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:

OPEN DOOR HOSPITALITY

HOLIDAY INN & SUITES  HOLIDAY INN & SUITES  HOLIDAY INN & SUITES  HOLIDAY INN & SUITES  
CONFERENCE CENTERCONFERENCE CENTERCONFERENCE CENTERCONFERENCE CENTER

XXX HUDSON ROAD

CEDARFALLS, IOWA 50613

DANP@TMIARCHTECTS.COM

BUILDING AREA SUMMARY

PROJECT INFO.

PARKING COUNT SUMMARY

MECH. DESIGN / BUILD CONTRACTOR:

ARCHITECTURAL

NEEDHAM-DBS

SHIVE + HATTERY

CONTACT

GENERAL PHONE / FAX

COMPANY NAME

STREET ADDRESS

email@address

DIRECT PHONE

ISAAC J. HODGINS

(319) 364-0227316 2ND STREET SE, #500 P.O. BOX 1803, 

CEDAR RAPIDS, IA 52491

IHODGINS@SHIVE-HATTERY.COM

(319) 213-1005

JEFFREY NEEDHAM

(913) 385-530015950 COLLEGE BLVD

 LENEXA, KANSAS 

JRN@NEEDHAM-DBS.COM

(913) 689-1513

ATUL PATEL

(319) 493-06862000 1ST ST WEST

INDEPENDENCE, IOWA 50644

INFO@OPENDOORHOSPITALITY.COM

HOTEL LOT AREA         381,573 SF (8.8 ACRES) 

RUSSELL

4600 E. 53RD ST. 

DAVEPORT, IOWA 52807

CONTRACTOR:

(563) 459-4600

JOHN DALY JDALY@RUSSELLCO.COM

GUESTROOM SUMMARY

UNIT TYPES

ADA DBL QUEEN*

ADA KING*

DOUBLE QUEEN

KING

TOTAL

1ST 

FLOOR

2ND 

FLOOR

3RD 

FLOOR

4TH 

FLOOR

TOTAL

N/A

N/A

6

1

1 1 1

111

25

7

39

25

7

25

7

39 39

3

3

81

22

126

UNIT MIX BY UNIT TYPE
ADA DBL QUEEN

ADA KING

DOUBLE QUEEN

KING

TOTALS

3 2.3%

3

81

22

65%

17.9%

126 100%

2.3%

9

DBL QUEEN SUITE* N/A 5 5 5 15

* THESE ROOM ARE LARGER THAN STANDARD ROOMS

KING BRIDAL SUITE* 2 2N/A N/A N/A

DBL QUEEN S

KING BRIDAL S

15

2

11%

1.5%

BUILDING GROSS SF

EVENT CENTER 34309 SF

HOTEL 1ST FLOOR 29111 SF

HOTEL 2ND FLOOR 19199 SF

HOTEL 3RD FLOOR 19199 SF

HOTEL 4TH FLOOR 19197 SF

Grand total 121015 SF

TOTAL SURFACE PARKING SPACES        428 PARKING SPACES 

-CS-    COVER SHEET 

LANDSCAPE
L1.0       SITE PLAN

L2.1       ENLARGED LANDSCAPE PLAN
L3.0          SITE DETAILS 
L3.1       LANDSCAPE DETAILS 

FO S.COM

(XXX) XXX-XXXX

SPRINKLER DESIGN / BUILD CONTRACTOR:

MIKE LOREN

SECURITY FIRE SPRINKLER

MIKE@SFSPRINKLER.COM

(678) 409-4955

ALISHA  SCHMITZ ASCHMITZ@RUSSELLCO.COM

KITCHEN CONSULTANT:

RUSTY STAGGS

(770) 535-3700

BOELTER

206 COLLEGE AVE

GAINSVILLE, GA 30501 RSTAGGS@BOELTER.COM

(678) 409-4955

ELEC. DESIGN / BUILD CONTRACTOR:

KEN EGGERT 

(320) 656-0847

BERD ELECTRIC

3308 SOUTHWAY DRIVE

ST. CLOUD, MN 56301

KEN@BERDELECTRIC.COM

(320) 248-8705

3308 SOUTHWAY DRIVE

ST. CLOUD, MN 56301

(320) 656-0847

CIVIL

 PROJECT SITE

EMPLOYEE SUMMARY

HOTEL FULL-TIME 

HOTEL PART-TIME 

CONFERENCE CENTER FULL-TIME 

CONFERENCE CENTER PART-TIME

40

6

60

30

A1.0       OVERALL FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

A1.1       SECOND - FOURTH FLOOR PLAN 

A1.2       OVERALL ROOF PLAN 

A3.0         EXTERIOR ELEVATION 
A3.1         EXTERIOR ELEVATION 
 

C100       SITE PLAN

C201       GRADING AND EROSION AND SEDIMENT 

      CONTROL PLAN

The proposed Holiday Inn and Suites Hotel and Conference Center is the first phase of the newly platted Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls. The Business 

park is located on the south side of Cedar Falls, adjacent to the existing industrial park at the corner of Hudson Road and Ridgeway Avenue East. 

The 6.6 Acre site is located off of the Hudson Road. It will accommodate the proposed Holiday Inn and Suites, the Conference Center and a future hotel 
on the north end of the site. The site expands the cities bike/walking trails along Hudson Road and Cyber Lane. Cyber Lane is proposed to extend to 

Ridgeway Avenue West. The site is heavily landscaped. Numerous outdoor patios surround the event center to extend the centers event space to the 
exterior. The storm retention ponds on the north and south sides of the site will be formed and landscaped to provide a natural setting creating a stunning 

water feature on the grounds. The design of this site will be the tone for the rest of the sites within the future business park. 

The Hotel is a four story wood structure clad in brick, stone, stucco and glass. The hotel has 126 guestrooms; single king, double queen, and suites with 

separate living and sleeping areas with kitchenettes. Amenities in the hotel include a full service restaurant and bar, conference rooms, swimming pool, 
exercise room, lounges, business center and guest laundry facilities. The hotel totals 86,700 sq.ft. 

The Conference center is a one story steel and masonry structure clads in brick, stone, and glass. 

The center can be divided into many configurations and hold up to 1,200 people. This conference center will be a great amenity not only to the 
community but also the greater Cedar Falls/ Waterloo region. 

Project Description

ELECTRICAL
E1.1          SITE LIGHTING

SHRI SIDDHIPRIYA, INC.
SHRI SIDDHIPRIYA, INC.

TIM BENGFORT TBENGFORT@NEEDHAM-DBS.COM

-365-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



2115

12

24 36

24
35

12

13
13

5

45

18

14

62

5

34

6

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

.

5

'

R

3

.
5

'

R

1

5

.

0

'

R

5

.
0

'

R

6

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

5

0

.

0

'

R

5

.

0

'

R

4

.

0

'

R

1

2

.

0

'

R

1

0

.

0

'

R

1

0

.

0

'

R

3

.

5

'

R

3

.

5

'

R

2

5

.

0

'

R

5

0

.

0

'

R

4

0

.

0

'

R

5
.
0
'

R

4

.

0

'

R

4

.

0

'

R

6

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

1

0

.

0

'

R

1

0

.

0

'

2
4

.
0

'
1

9
.
0

'
1

9
.
0

'
2

4
.
0

'
1

9
.
0

'
1

9
.
0

'
2

4
.
0

'
1

9
.
0

'

9.0'

9.0'

9.0'

9.0' 9.0'9.0' 9.0'

9.0'

9.0'

9
.
0

'

9
.
0

'

9
.
0

'

9.0'

1
9

.
0

'
2

4
.
0

'
1

9
.
0

'
1

9
.
0

'
2

4
.
0

'
1

9
.
0

'

19.0' 24.0' 19.0'

24.0'

2
4

.
0

'

2
4

.
0

'

2
4

.
0

'

2
4

.
0

'

2
4

.
0

'

3
0

.
0

'

7.0' 15.0'
7.0' 24.0' 19.0'

24.0'19.0'

42.0' 19.0'

19.0' 24.0' 19.0'

3
7

4
.
2

'
 
B

U
I
L

D
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

27.4'

BUILDING

SETBACK

1
7

5
.
5

'
 
B

U
I
L

D
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

101.5' BUILDING SETBACK

6.0'

1
0

.
0

'

8
4

.
0

'

8
4

.
0

'

9.0'

9.0'

9.0'

9.0'

2
4

.
0

'

19.0' 24.0'

9
.
0

'

7.0'

7.0' 24.0' 19.0'

7

5

.

0

'

9
0

.
0

'

8
4

.
0

'

9.6'24.0'19.0'

1
0

.
0

'

9
1

.
7

'

1
0

.
0

'
2

1
.
5

'

1

0

2

+

0

0

1
0

3
+

0
0

1
0

4
+

0
0

1
0

5
+

0
0

1
0

6
+

0
0

1
0

7
+

0
0

1
0

8
+

0
0

1

0

9

+

0

0

1

1

0

+

0

0

1

1

1

+

0

0

P-A9 15" HDPEP-A8 18" HDPE

P

-

A

4

 

2

4

"

 

H

D

P

E

P-A3 30" HDPE P-A2 30" HDPE

P-B1 24" HDPE

P
-
B

2
 
1

8
"
 
H

D
P

E

P
-
A

1
 
3

0
"
 
H

D
P

E

P
-
D

2
 
3

0
"
 
R

C
P

P
-
D

1
 
3

0
"
 
R

C
P

P

-

A

7

 

2

4

"

 

H

D

P

E

SAN MH11 48" - SW-301

SAN MH12 48" - SW-301

SAN MH10 48" - SW-301

P

-
O

2

 
2

4

"
 
R

C

P

P

-

O

1

 

2

4

"

 

R

C

P

FIRE LOOP, 6" DIP

FIRE LOOP, 6" DIP

FIRE LOOP, 6" DIP

FIRE HYDRANT

& ASSEMBLY

FIRE HYDRANT

& ASSEMBLY

FIRE HYDRANT

& ASSEMBLY

FIRE HYDRANT

& ASSEMBLY

FIRE HYDRANT

& ASSEMBLY

WATER VALVE,

TYP.

4" PVC SANITARY

SEWER SERVICE

INT-A4 SW-507

INT-A3 48" - SW-401

NEENAH R-2501 TYPE G

INT-A1 60" SW-502

NEENAH R-2501 TYPE G

INT-B1 48" - SW-401

NEENAH R-2501 TYPE G

INT-A7 48" - SW-401

NEENAH R-2501 TYPE G

INT-A2 48" - SW-401

NEENAH R-2501 TYPE G

INT-A6 SW-507

INT B4 SW-511

INT-O2 48" - SW-401

INT-O1 48" - SW-401

1

0

2

+

0

0

1
0
3
+

0
0

1
0
4
+

0
0

1
0
5
+

0
0

1
0
6
+

0
0

1
0
7
+

0
0

1
0
8
+

0
0

1

0

9

+

0

0

1

1

0

+

0

0

6

5

4

3

BA D E

1

FC

G

2

H

BA D E FC

G H

6

5

4

3

1

2

I
o
w

a
 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n
d
i
a
n
a

3
1
6
 
S

e
c
o
n
d
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
5
0
0
 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d
a
r
 
R

a
p
i
d
s
,
 
I
o
w

a
 
5
2
4
0
1

3
1
9
.
3
6
4
.
0
2
2
7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a
x
:
 
3
1
9
.
3
6
4
.
4
2
5
1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h
i
v
e
-
h
a
t
t
e
r
y
.
c
o
m

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y

-
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L
I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

----

C
1
0
0
 
-
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

S
L

O

C
N

H

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

0
1

/
0

8
/
2

0
1

8

2
1

7
1

6
2

0

-
-
-

-
-
-

H
O

L
I
D

A
Y

 
I
N

N
 
&

 
S

U
I
T

E
S

 
-
 
C

O
N

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

R
U

S
S

E
L
L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

C
E

D
A

R
 
F

A
L
L
S

,
 
I
O

W
A

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
7

1
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L

o
t
 
1

\
2

0
1

8
-
0

3
-
2

1
_

S
i
t
e

 
P

l
a

n
 
R

e
s
u

b
m

i
t
t
a

l
\
C

1
0

0
.
d

w
g

3
/
2

1
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

1
:
2

3
:
2

8
 
A

M

OWNER OF RECORD

CF GATEWAY PARK, INC.

INTERIOR SIDE YARD:

REAR YARD:

FRONT YARD:

20 FEET

20 FEET

PROPOSED ZONING:   HWY-1 (HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL)

RUSSELL CONSTRUCTION

4600 E 53RD STREET

DAVENPORT, IA 52807

CONTACT: ALISHA SCHMITZ

PHONE:  (563) 459-4530

EMAIL: aschmitz@russellco.com

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION

SHRI SIDDHIPRIYA, INC.

307 WINDING RIDGE RD.

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

CONTACT: ATUL PATEL

PHONE: (319) 493-0686

EMAIL: atuldesi@yahoo.com

APPLICANT INFORMATION

20 FEET

ZONING INFORMATION

STANDARD:

HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE:

TOTAL:

PARKING INFORMATION

NO FLOODPLAIN PRESENT PER

FIRM PANEL #19013C0277F

FLOODPLAIN INFORMATION

MATERIALS LEGEND

AREA: 119,748 GSF

AREA: 63,421 SF FOOTPRINT

HEIGHT: 45' - 11 

5

8

"

BUILDING INFORMATION

EXISTNG 16.5' TELEPHONE

EASEMENT (TO BE VACATED).

EXISTING EASEMENTS

A 20' TRAIL EASEMENT IS TO BE

PROVIDED ALONG THE WEST

PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 1

PROPOSED EASEMENTS

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

TO BE PROVIDED BY REGIONAL

DETENTION PONDS

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

PREVIOUS: AGRICULTURAL

PROPOSED: COMMERCIAL

PROPERTY USE

CYBER LANE (25 MPH DESIGN SPEED):

RIGHT: 240' & 27.5'

LEFT: 280' & 42.5'

HUDSON ROAD (45 MPH DESIGN SPEED):

RIGHT: 430' & 27.5'

SIGHT TRIANGLES

LIGHTING DESIGN PERFORMED BY

BERD ELECTRIC, SEE E SERIES.

LIGHTING

BUILDING SETBACKS:

CURRENT ZONING:      HWY-1 (HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL)

PROVIDED:             REQUIRED:

385 STALLS 343 STALLS

  9 STALLS 9 STALLS

394 STALLS 343 STALLS

SITE PLAN

1

UTILITY PLAN

2

179

PARKING

STALLS

26

PARKING

STALLS

63

PARKING

STALLS

121

PARKING

STALLS

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

R

3

0

.

0

'

LOT 1 PROPERTY LINE

20' SETBACK

PCC SIDEWALK, TYP.

PCC PAVEMENT, TYP

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L
A

N
E

 
(
F

U
T

U
R

E
)

20' SANITARY EASEMENT

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

FUTURE 10'

PCC TRAIL

20' TRAIL EASEMENT

2" DOMESTIC & 6"

FIRE CONNECTION

GAS CONNECTION

& METER

ELECTRIC CONNECTION

& METER

FIBER CONNECTION

TRANSFORMER

GENERATOR

FDC

4' RECESSED

LOADING DOCK

TRASH ENCLOSURE

LOCATED IN BUILDING

AT GRADE

LOADING DOCK

DEVELOPMENT OF LOT 1 OF

GATEWAY BUSINESS PARK AT CEDAR

FALLS TO BE CORRDINATED WITH

INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION.

PHASE

TOTAL SITE AREA: 8.88 ACRES

IMPERVIOUS AREA: 5.60 ACRES (63.1%)

PERVIOUS AREA: 3.28 ACRES (36.9%)

SITE

HOTEL UNITS

REQUIREMENTS:

126 1 STALL/UNIT 126 STALLS

EMPLOYEES

        90     1 STALL/2             45 STALLS

EMPLOYEES

PCC PAVEMENT

PATIO/LANDSCAPE AREA

PCC SIDEWALK

5

PARKING

STALLS

Lot 23

Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II

1614 Technology Parkway

Existing Hotel Building

Asphalt Parking Lot

PCC PAVEMENT, TYP

PCC PAVEMENT, TYP

PCC SIDEWALK, TYP.

PCC SIDEWALK, TYP.

5' SIDEWALK

INFRASTRUCTURE

PACKAGE

10' SIGNAGE SETBACK

20' SETBACK

10' SIGNAGE SETBACK

20' SETBACK

10' SIGNAGE SETBACK

TRENCH DRAIN

P-B2 6" HDPE

DRAINAGE

BASIN A

DRAINAGE

BASIN B

20' SETBACK

10' SIGNAGE SETBACK

PROPOSED HOTEL &

CONFERENCE CENTER

FOOTPRINT 63,421 SF

EXISTING TELEPHONE

EASEMENT (TO BE VACATED)

A 15' SANITARY EASEMENT IS TO

BE PROVIDED ALONG THE

SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 1

A 15' UTILITY EASEMENT IS TO

BE PROVIDED ALONG THE

EAST PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 1

PROPOSED HOTEL &

CONFERENCE CENTER

FOOTPRINT 63,421 SF

CONFERENCE

CENTER AREA

     34,310    1 STALL/200 SF 172 STALLS

SIGHT

TRIANGLE, TYP.

ELECTRIC LINE - OVERHEAD

ELECTRICAL LINE - UNDERGROUND

GAS MAIN

SANITARY SEWER

STORM SEWER

FIBER OPTICS

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

WATER MAIN

PROPOSEDDESCRIPTION

CURB AND GUTTER (PCC)

EXISTING

FUTURE TRAIL

Legend

DRAINAGE

BASIN A

DRAINAGE

BASIN B

STORM SEWER

INFRASTRUCTURE

(FUTURE)

SANITARY SEWER

INFRASTRUCTURE

(FUTURE)

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L
A

N
E

 
(
F

U
T

U
R

E
)

EXISTING 15"

SANITARY SEWER

-366-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



9

4

0

9

5

0

9
3
2

9
3
2

9
3
4

9
3
4

9
3
6

9

3

8

9
4
2

9

4

4

9

4

6

9

4

8

9
3
0

9

4

0

9

5

0

9
2
6

9
2
6

9

2

8

9
2
8

9

3

2

9

3

4

9

3

6

9

3

8

9

4

2

9

4

4

9

4

6

9

4

8

9
3
0

9

3

0

9
4
0

9
2
2

9

2

2

9
2
4

9
2
4

9

2

6

9
2
6

9

2

8

9

2

8

9

3

2

9

3

2

9

3

4

9

3

4

9

3

6

9

3

6

9

3

8

9

4

2

9
3
1

9
3
2

9
3
3

9
3
3

9
2
5

9
2
4

9
2
4

9
2
6

9
2
7

9
2
8

9
2
9

9

3

6

9

3

7

9
3
5

9

4

0

9

4

0

934

936
9

3

7

9

3

8

9

3

9

9
3
0

9
3
0

9

3

5

9
2
8

9
2
8

9
2
9

9
2
9

931

9
3
1

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

4

9

3

6

9

3

7

9

3

4

9

3

8

9

3

8

9

3

9

9
3
0

9
2
9

9
3
1

9
2
6

9
2
7

9
2
8

9
2
9

9
2
6

9
2
7

9

2

8

9

3

0

9

2

8

9

2

9

9

3

1

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

3

9

3

4

9

3

4

9

2

8

9

3

0

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

3

9

3

4

9

3

4

9
3
1

9
3
2

9

3

3

9
3
4

9
3
4

9
3
4

9
3
3

1.55%

1
.
5

1
%

1.30%

1
.
1

2
%

0.96%

1
.
1

2
%

2.07%

2
.
3

4
%

3.98%

1
.
3

3
%

9

2

6

9

2

6

9

3

5

9

4

0

9

4

0

9

3

6

9

3

7

9

3

8

9

3

9

9

3

6

9

3

6

9

3

4

9

3

5

9
3
2

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

4

9

3

7

9

3

8

2

.

2

8

%

1

.

8

6

%

2

.

5

1

%

1

.

8

1

%

1

.

0

9

%

1
.7

4
%

3

.
7

1

%

3
.
1
7
%

FFE 937.00

9

4

0

9
3
8

9
3
9

9

3

5

9

4

0

9
3
4

9

3

6

9

3

7

9

3

8

9

3

9

9

4

1

942

2

.

7

6

%

1

.

7

8

%1

.

7

0

%

0.50%

2

.

7

6

%

5

.
1

0

%

2

.
8

1

%

4.92%

2

.

9

8

%

2

.

2

9

%

2

.

0

8

%

1

.

8

2

%

3

.
0

8

%

1

.

2

2

%

1

.

6

4

%

9

3

4

9

3

5

9

4

0

9

5

0

9
3
2

9
3
2

9
3
4

9
3
4

9
3
6

9

3

8

9
4
2

9

4

4

9

4

6

9

4

8

9
3
0

9

4

0

9

5

0

9
2
6

9
2
6

9

2

8

9
2
8

9

3

2

9

3

4

9

3

6

9

3

8

9

4

2

9

4

4

9

4

6

9

4

8

9

5

2

9
3
0

9

3

0

9
4
0

9
2
2

9

2

2

9
2
4

9
2
4

9

2

6

9
2
6

9

2

8

9

2

8

9

3

2

9

3

2

9

3

4

9

3

4

9

3

6

9

3

6

9
3
8

9

4

2

9
3
1

9
3
2

9
3
3

9
3
3

9
2
5

9
2
4

9
2
4

9
2
6

9
2
7

9
2
8

9
2
9

9

3

6

9

3

7

9
3
5

9

4

0

9

4

0

934

9369

3

7

9

3

8

9

3

9

9
3
0

9
3
0

9

3

5

9
2
8

9
2
8

9
2
9

9
2
9

931

9
3
1

9

3

2

9

3

3
9

3

4

9

3

6
9

3

7

9

3

4

9

3

8

9

3

8

9

3

9

9
3
0

9
2
9

9
3
1

9
2
6

9
2
7

9
2
8

9
2
9

9
2
6

9
2
7

9

2

8

9

3

0

9

2

8

9

2

9

9

3

1

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

3

9

3

4

9

3

4

9

2

8

9

3

0

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

3

9

3

4

9

3

4

9
3
1

9
3
2

9

3

3

9
3
4

9
3
4

9
3
4

9
3
3

1.55%

1
.
5
1
%

1.30%

1
.
1
2
%

0.96%

1
.
1
2
%

2.07%

2
.
3
4
%

3.98%

1
.
3
3
%

9

2

6

9

2

6

9

3

5

9

4

0

9

4

0

9

3

6

9

3

7

9

3

8

9

3

9

9

3

6

9

3

6

9

3

4

9

3

5

9
3
2

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

4

9

3

7

9

3

8

2

.

2

8

%

1

.

8

6

%

2

.

5

1

%

1

.

8

1

%

1

.

0

9

%

1
.7

4
%

3

.
7

1

%

3
.
1
7
%

FFE 937.00

CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE

PREFERRED LOCATION

DURING EACH PHASE OF

CONSTRUCTION, TYP

STABILIZED

CONSTRUCTION

ENTRANCE, TYP.

9

3

5

9

4

0

9
3
4

9

3

6

9

3

7

9

3

8

9

3

9

SWPPP MAILBOX

NOTE: ANY ADDITIONAL STORM INTAKES

THAT MAY BE ADDED TO THE PROJECT

MUST BE PROTECTED UNTIL THE SITE HAS

BEEN STABILIZED AND APPROVED BY THE

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE, TYP

INTAKE PROTECTION BAG,

FILTER SACK OR MAGNETIC

INLET PROTECTION FOR

EXISTING AREA INTAKES, TYP

INTAKE PROTECTION BAG,

FILTER SACK OR MAGNETIC

INLET PROTECTION FOR

EXISTING AREA INTAKES, TYP

2

.

7

6

%

1

.

7

8

%

1

.

7

0

%

0.50%

2

.

7

6

%

5

.
1

0

%

2

.
8

1

%

4.92%

2

.

9

8

%

2

.

2

9

%

2

.

0

8

%

1

.

8

2

%

3

.
0

8

%

1

.

2

2

%

1

.

6

4

%

9

3

4

9

4

2

9

3

5

GRADING PLAN

1

6

5

4

3

BA D E

1

FC

G

2

H

BA D E FC

G H

6

5

4

3

1

2

I
o
w

a
 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n
d
i
a
n
a

3
1
6
 
S

e
c
o
n
d
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
5
0
0
 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d
a
r
 
R

a
p
i
d
s
,
 
I
o
w

a
 
5
2
4
0
1

3
1
9
.
3
6
4
.
0
2
2
7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a
x
:
 
3
1
9
.
3
6
4
.
4
2
5
1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h
i
v
e
-
h
a
t
t
e
r
y
.
c
o
m

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y

-
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L
I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

----

C
2
0
0
 
-
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G

A
N

D
 
E

R
O

S
I
O

N
 
A

N
D

S
E

D
I
M

E
N

T

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 
P

L
A

N

S
L

O

C
N

H

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

0
1

/
0

8
/
2

0
1

8

2
1

7
1

6
2

0

-
-
-

-
-
-

H
O

L
I
D

A
Y

 
I
N

N
 
&

 
S

U
I
T

E
S

 
-
 
C

O
N

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 
C

E
N

T
E

R

R
U

S
S

E
L
L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

C
E

D
A

R
 
F

A
L
L
S

,
 
I
O

W
A

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
7

1
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L

o
t
 
1

\
2

0
1

8
-
0

3
-
2

1
_

S
i
t
e

 
P

l
a

n
 
R

e
s
u

b
m

i
t
t
a

l
\
C

2
0

0
.
d

w
g

3
/
2

1
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

1
:
1

9
:
4

4
 
A

M

SILT FENCE DETAIL

F

L

O

W

3

ENGINEERING FABRIC TO BE FOLDED ACROSS BOTTOM OF

TRENCH.

GROUND

LINE

ENGINEERING FABRIC SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM 36" WIDTH.

FOR TRENCH INSTALLATION, POSTS SHALL BE EMBEDDED 28"

BELOW THE TRENCH BOTTOM. ALL COMPACTION SHALL BE

ACCOMPLISHED WITH A MECHANICAL OR PNEUMATIC TAMPER.

FOR MACHINE INSTALLATION, POSTS SHALL BE EMBEDDED

28" BELOW GROUND LINE. ALL COMPACTION SHALL BE

ACCOMPLISHED BY DRIVING OVER EACH SIDE OF SILT FENCE

2-4 TIMES WITH DEVICE EXERTING 60PSI OR GREATER.

ENGINEERING FABRIC TO BE

FOLDED ACROSS BOTTOM OF

TRENCH

ENGINEERING

FABRIC

TYPICAL SECTION SILT FENCE

TRENCH

BOTTOM

POST TOP VIEW

DETAILS OF SILT FENCE 

12" MIN DEPTH BY 4" MIN WIDTH

TRENCH

FORESLOPE

GROUND LINE

1
2

"

E
M

B
E

D

1
9

"

3
1

"
M

I
N

8' SPACING MAX

10' MIN

"
T

"
 
S

T
E

E
L

F
E

N
C

E
 
P

O
S

T

5
'
-
0

"
 
M

I
N

COMPOST FILTER TUBE DETAIL

4

COMPOST FILTER

TUBE TO BE

STAKED IN PLACE

(STAKE EVERY 8'

FOR ADDED

STABILITY)

DISTURBED AREA

D

I

R

E

C

T

I

O

N

 

O

F

 

F

L

O

W

PLACE COMPOST

FILTER TUBE

PERPENDICULAR

TO SLOPE

AREA TO BE

PROTECTED

TOP VIEW

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION 

3" X 6" MACADAM STONE

NATIVE SOIL

6" MIN

INSTALL TENCATE - MIRAFI

RS380I GEOTEXTILE FILTER

FABRIC BELOW STONE

AND LAYDOWN AREA

5

ENTRANCE/ CONTRACTOR STAGING

NOTE:

TWIST CORD AND PLACE AROUND

POST, SECURE WITH WIRE.

SECURE TOP OF ENGINEERING FABRIC TO STEEL POST.

GENERAL NOTES:

FRONT VIEW

CORD

WIRE

POST

FABRIC

WIRE

CORD

POST

SITE INFORMATION:

PROJECT SITE/DISTURBED AREA = 8.88 AC

PRE-DEVELOPMENT COEFFICIENT= 0.35

POST-DEVELOPMENT COEFFICIENT= 0.73

NEAREST SURFACE WATER ACCEPTING

SITE DISCHARGE: DRY RUN CREEK

THIS PROJECT WILL BE INCORPORATED INTO THE GATEWAY BUSINESS

PARK AT CEDAR FALLS NPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2.   RUSSELL

CONSTRUCTION IS THE APPLICANT FOR THE NPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO.

2 AND THE CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUB-CONTRACTORS ARE REQUIRED TO

SIGN ON AS CO-PERMITTEE. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR

PREPARING, OBTAINING (INCLUDING PAYING PERMIT FEE) AND

MAINTAINING THIS PERMIT.  ALL RECORDS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE

OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AS THEY ARE PRODUCED. SEE

SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONTRACT FULFILLMENT REQUIREMENTS.

PHASING NOTES

1. THIS PROJECT MAY BE CONSTRUCTED OVER SEVERAL

PHASES.  EROSION/SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES

IDENTIFIED ON THE PLAN WILL BE IMPLEMENTED ON A

PER PHASE BASIS TO ALLOW FOR MAXIMUM

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AND EASE OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. UPON COMPLETION OF EACH PHASE AND APPROVAL BY

THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE, EROSION/SEDIMENT

CONTROL DEVICES MAY BE REMOVED/RELOCATED.

LEGEND

2.9%

LEGEND

2.9%

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

FINISHED GRADE

DIRECTION OF DRAINAGE

SILT FENCE OR 8"

COMPOST FILTER TUBE

CURB INLET FILTER

INTAKE PROTECTION BAG,

FILTER SACK OR MAGNETIC

INLET PROTECTION

PROJECT SITE/DISTURBED AREA

8" COMPOST FILTER TUBE

FILTER FABRIC

INTAKE PROTECTION BAG

WITH CURB FILTER OR

MAGNETIC INLET PROTECTION

WITH CURB FILTER

INTAKE PROTECTION BAG

OR FILTER SACK

PROPOSED PAVEMENT

EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN

2

GRADING NOTES

1. FINISHED GRADE CONTOURS ARE

SHOWN AT 1' AND 5' INTERVALS.

EXISTING GRADE CONTOURS ARE

SHOWN AT 2' AND 10' INTERVALS.

2. FINISHED GRADE IS TO TOP OF

PAVEMENT AND TOP OF TOPSOIL

3. EXISTING GRADE IS THE SURFACE OF

THE SITE PRIOR TO PAD PREPARATION

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

4. 4" OF TOPSOIL IS REQUIRED FOR AREAS

RECEIVING SEED OR SOD.  6" OF TOP

SOIL IS REQUIRED FOR ANY PLANTING

BEDS.  12" MINIMUM OF TOP SOIL, WITH

18" PREFERRED IS REQUIRED FOR

PLANTER BEDS WITH TREES.  TOP SOIL

REQUIREMENTS PER LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECTURE DESIGN AND

SPECIFICATIONS SHALL SUPERSEDE

GRADING PLAN NOTES SUPPLIED FOR

BIDDING CONVENIENCE.

CONTRACTOR STAGING AREA FOR

PORTABLE RESTROOM FACILITIES,

TEMPORARY FUEL TANKS, WASTE

CONTAINERS AND OTHER

HAZARDOUS CHEMICALS.

PROTECT WITH (1) 12" COMPOST

FILTER TUBE. RELOCATE AS

REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

SPILL KIT TO BE INSTALLED AND

RELOCATED AS REQUIRED FOR

CONSTRUCTION

CONCRETE, PAINT AND GROUT

WASHOUT AREA. PROTECT WITH

(2) 18" STACKED COMPOST FILTER

TUBES LINED WITH AN

IMPERMEABLE PLASTIC LINER.

CONTRACTOR TO HAUL OFF

WASTE MATERIAL. RELOCATE AS

REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION

ENTRANCE

SWPPP MAILBOX

PROPOSED HOTEL &

CONFERENCE CENTER

FOOTPRINT 63,421 SF

PROPOSED HOTEL &

CONFERENCE CENTER

FOOTPRINT 63,421 SF

DRAINAGE

BASIN A

DRAINAGE

BASIN B

DRAINAGE BASIN A

(TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BASIN)

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L
A

N
E

 
(
F

U
T

U
R

E
)

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L
A

N
E

 
(
F

U
T

U
R

E
)

DRAINAGE BASIN B

(TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BASIN)

-367-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



LOADING DOCK
EVENT CENTER ENTRY

HOTEL LOBBY 

ENTRANCE

4-STORY HOTEL WITH

EVENT CENTER

126  ROOMS 

H
U

D
S
O

N
 R

O
A

D

H
U

D
S
O

N
 R

O
A

D

GARDEN

GARDEN

COURTYARD

2
0
' P

A
R

K
IN

G
 A

N
D

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E
TB

A
C

K

2
0
' P

A
R

K
IN

G
 A

N
D

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E
TB

A
C

K

STORM PONDING AREA

PATIO

EVENT CENTER ENTRY

LOADING DOCK

C
Y

B
E
R

 L
A

N
E

1
0
' 
S
IG

N
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

1
0
' 
S
IG

N
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

NEW MONUMENT SIGN

NEW MONUMENT SIGN

NEW MONUMENT 

ENTRANCE SIGNDD

RECESS LOADING DOCK

GENERATOR

TRANSFORMER

SWCP

ADA CURB RAMP

19' - 0"

9
' 
- 

0
"

STORM PONDING AREA

FUTURE BUILDING

BIKE RACKS

PRIVACY SCREEN

L-1.1

1

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 02/01/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 02/02/2018 

Kevin V. Kroen

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UNDER  
THE LAWS OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

00703

3/21/2018 9:45:04 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S
 -

C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E
 C

E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

LL
S
, 

IA

L-1.0

OVERALL SITE PLAN

217035

SCALE  1" = 40'-0"1
SITE PLAN

0'

SCALE = 

20' 40' 80'

1" =40'-0"

N

SITE OPERATIONAL NOTES:

1. TRASH COLLECTION SHALL OCCUR INSIDE THE BUILDING AT THE SWCP (SOLID WASTE COLLECTION POINT)

SITE LAYOUT NOTES:

1. SEE CIVIL SITE PLAN FOR AREA DETERMINATIONS AND PARKING CALCULATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATIONS AND LAYOUT OF ALL SITE ELEMENTS PRIOR TO BEGINNING

CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOCATIONS OF EXISTING AND PROPOSED PROPERTY LINES,

EASEMENTS, SETBACKS, UTILITIES, BUILDINGS AND PAVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FINAL

LOCATIONS OF ALL ELEMENTS FOR THE SITE.  ANY REVISIONS REQUIRED AFTER COMMENCEMENT OF

CONSTRUCTION, DUE TO LOCATIONAL ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE CORRECTED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO

OWNER. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE LAYOUT SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER/LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF MATERIALS. STAKE LAYOUT FOR APPROVAL.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING A

RIGHT-OF-WAY AND STREET OPENING PERMIT.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY RECOMMENDATIONS NOTED IN THE GEO TECHNICAL REPORT PRIOR TO

INSTALLATION OF SITE IMPROVEMENT MATERIALS.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY COORDINATES AND LOCATION DIMENSIONS OF THE BUILDING AND STAKE

FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF FOOTING

MATERIALS.

6. LOCATIONS OF STRUCTURES, ROADWAY PAVEMENTS, CURBS AND GUTTERS, BOLLARDS, AND WALKS ARE

APPROXIMATE AND SHALL BE STAKED IN THE FIELD, PRIOR TO INSTALLATION, FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY

THE ENGINEER/LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

7. CURB DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO FACE OF CURB. BUILDING DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CONCRETE

FOUNDATION. LOCATION OF BUILDING IS TO BUILDING FOUNDATION AND SHALL BE AS SHOWN ON THE

DRAWINGS.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS OR SAMPLES AS SPECIFIED FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL

BY THE ENGINEER/LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO FABRICATION FOR ALL PREFABRICATED SITE

IMPROVEMENT MATERIALS SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING, FURNISHINGS, PAVEMENTS,

WALLS, RAILINGS, BENCHES, FLAGPOLES, LANDING PADS FOR CURB RAMPS, AND LIGHT AND POLES. THE

OWNER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT INSTALLED MATERIALS NOT PREVIOUSLY APPROVED.

9. PEDESTRIAN CURB RAMPS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH TRUNCATED DOME LANDING AREAS IN

ACCORDANCE WITH A.D.A. REQUIREMENTS-SEE DETAIL.

10. CROSSWALK STRIPING SHALL BE 24" WIDE WHITE PAINTED LINE, SPACED 48" ON CENTER PERPENDICULAR TO

THE FLOW OF TRAFFIC. WIDTH OF CROSSWALK SHALL BE 5' WIDE. ALL OTHER PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE

WHITE IN COLOR UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED OR REQUIRED BY ADA OR LOCAL GOVERNING BODIES.

11. CURB AND GUTTER TYPE SHALL BE B612 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS-TAPER BETWEEN

CURB TYPES-SEE DETAIL.

12. ALL CURB RADII ARE MINIMUM 3' UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

13. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO FINAL PLAT FOR LOT BOUNDARIES, NUMBERS, AREAS AND DIMENSIONS PRIOR

TO SITE IMPROVEMENTS.

14. FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS.

15. PARKING IS TO BE SET PARALLEL OR PERPENDICULAR TO EXISTING BUILDING UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

16. ALL PARKING LOT PAINT STRIPPING TO BE WHITE, 4" WIDE TYP.

17. BITUMINOUS PAVING TO BE "LIGHT DUTY" UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. SEE DETAIL SHEETS FOR PAVEMENT

SECTIONS.

18. ALL TREES THAT ARE TO REMAIN ARE TO BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE WITH A CONSTRUCTION FENCE AT

THE DRIP LINE. SEE LANDSCAPE DOCUMENTS.

-368-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



FIRE PIT

FIRE PIT

PERGOLA

(10)  FRG(10)  HA(4)  FRG(8)  HA

(3)  HA

(8)  FRG

(9)  HA

(8)  FRG

(3)  FRG

(3)  ERB

(9)  KNR

(3)  PDW

(6)  BMV

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

FIRE PIT

FIRE PIT

(1)  ERB

(2)  ERB

(6)  FRG

(5)  HA

(9)  BMV

(2)  PDW
(10)  HA

(6)  FRG

(8)  HA

(10)  KNR

(8)  KNR

(11)  HA

(4)  FRG

(10)  HA

(4)  FRG

(10)  HA

(10)  FRG

(6)  BMV

RA

(1)  ABSC

(3)  ERB

(2)  ABSC

(30)  SDD

(2)  ABSC

(32)  SDD

(4)  RA

(2)  BMV

(7)  FRG

(3)  BMV

(10)  FRG

(4)  JME

(9)  RA

(8)  GVH

(37)  SDD

(24)  SFG

(21)  SFG(4)  AFD

CONCRETE PATIO

FIRE PITS

(2)  ASP
(1)  ERB

(5)  RA

(6)  BMV

(21)  GSH

(9)  DBH

(7)  PPH

100

L-3.0

(8)  AFD

(118)  SFG

(6)  ERB

(6)  AFD

(9)  FRG
(9)  FRG

(2)  LHT

(6)  BMV

(8)  AFD

(23)  KNR

(2)  LHT

(6)  BMV

(3)  AFD

(7)  KNR

(9)  AFD

(4)  ERB

(3)  BMV

(26)  SFG

(3)  AFD

(26)  SFG

(26)  SFG

(6)  BMV

(3)  AFD

(6)  BMV

(3)  AFD

(10)  SDD

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 01/08/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 01/08/2018 

Kevin V. Kroen

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UNDER  
THE LAWS OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

00703

1/8/2018 8:59:50 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S
 -

C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E
 C

E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

LL
S
, 
IA

L-2.1

ENLARGED

LANDSCAPE PLAN

217035

SCALE  1" = 20'-0"1
Courtyard (1)

SCALE  1" = 20'-0"2
Courtyard (2)

SCALE  1" = 20'-0"3
Courtyard (3)

SCALE  1/16" = 1'-0"4
Courtyard (4)

Planting Schedule - Courtyard 1

Co
unt ID Common Name Botanical Name Size

Points
Per Plant

Points
Provided

1. Deciduous Tree

3 ERB Eastern Redbud Cercis canadensis 2.5" Caliper Ball and Burlap 80.00 240

3 PDW Pagoda Dogwood Cornus alternifolia 6' Tall Ball and Burlap 80.00 240

2. Evergreen Tree

43 HA Holmstrup Arbrovitae Thuja occidentalis 'Holmstrup' #10 Container 10.00 430

3. Shrub

6 BMV Blue Muffin Viburnum Viburnum dentatum 'Christom' #5 Container 10.00 60

9 KNR Knock Out Rosa'Radrazz' #5 Container 10.00 90

4. Perennial

25 FRG Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' #5 Container 0.00 0

Grand total: 89 1,060

Planting Schedule - Courtyard 2

Co
unt ID Common Name Botanical Name Size

Points
Per Plant

Points
Provided

1. Deciduous Tree

3 ERB Eastern Redbud Cercis canadensis 2.5" Caliper Ball and Burlap 80.00 240

2 PDW Pagoda Dogwood Cornus alternifolia 6' Tall Ball and Burlap 80.00 160

2. Evergreen Tree

54 HA Holmstrup Arbrovitae Thuja occidentalis 'Holmstrup' #10 Container 10.00 540

1 RA Rushmore Arborvitae Thuja occidentalis 'Rushmore' #10 Container 10.00 10

3. Shrub

15 BMV Blue Muffin Viburnum Viburnum dentatum 'Christom' #5 Container 10.00 150

18 KNR Knock Out Rosa'Radrazz' #5 Container 10.00 180

4. Perennial

30 FRG Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' #5 Container 0.00 0

Grand total: 123 1,280

Planting Schedule - Courtyard 3

Co
unt ID Common Name Botanical Name Size

Points
Per Plant

Points
Provided

1. Deciduous Tree

5 ABSC Autumn Brilliance Serviceberry Amelanchier x grandiflora 'Autumn
Brilliance'

6' Tall Ball and Burlap 80.00 400

3 ERB Eastern Redbud Cercis canadensis 2.5" Caliper Ball and Burlap 80.00 240

4 JME Japanese Maple Emperor Acer palmatum 'Wolff' 2 1/2" Caliper Ball and Burlap 40.00 160

2. Evergreen Tree

13 RA Rushmore Arborvitae Thuja occidentalis 'Rushmore' #10 Container 10.00 130

3. Shrub

4 AFD Arctic Fire Dogwood Cornus stolonifera ' Farrow' #5 Container 10.00 40

5 BMV Blue Muffin Viburnum Viburnum dentatum 'Christom' #5 Container 10.00 50

4. Perennial

8 GVH Hakonechloa Golden Variegated H. macra 'Aureola' #1 Container 0.00 0

26 FRG Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' #5 Container 0.00 0

45 SFG Miscanthus Silver Feather Grass Miscanthus sinensis 'Silberfeder' #1 Container 0.00 0

99 SDD Stella De Oro  Daylily Hemerocallis 'Stella De Oro' #1 Container 0.00 0

Grand total: 212 1,020

Planting Schedule - Courtyard 4

Co
unt ID Common Name Botanical Name Size

Points
Per Plant

Points
Provided

1. Deciduous Tree

1 ERB Eastern Redbud Cercis canadensis 2.5" Caliper Ball and Burlap 80.00 80

2. Evergreen Tree

2 ASP Austrian Pine Pinus nigra 6' Tall Ball and Burlap 80.00 160

9 RA Rushmore Arborvitae Thuja occidentalis 'Rushmore' #10 Container 10.00 90

3. Shrub

6 BMV Blue Muffin Viburnum Viburnum dentatum 'Christom' #5 Container 10.00 60

17 DBH Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle Diervilla lonicera #5 Container 0

7 KNR Knock Out Rosa'Radrazz' #5 Container 10.00 70

4. Perennial

7 PPH Coral Bells Heuchera sanguinea #1 Container 0.00 0

21 GSH Gold Standard Hosta Hosta 'Gold Standard' #1 Container 0.00 0

Grand total: 70 460

0'

SCALE = 

10' 20' 40'

1" =20'-0"

0'

SCALE = 

8' 16' 32'

1" =16'-0"

0'

SCALE = 

10' 20' 40'

1" =20'-0"

0'

SCALE = 

10' 20' 40'

1" =20'-0"

SCALE  1" = 20'-0"5
LANDSCAPE PLAN @ HOTEL ENTRANCE

Planting Schedule - Hotel Entrance

Co
unt ID Common Name Botanical Name Size

Points
Per Plant

Points
Provided

1. Deciduous Tree

1 ERB Eastern Redbud Cercis canadensis 2.5" Caliper Ball and Burlap 80.00 80

2. Evergreen Tree

2 ASP Austrian Pine Pinus nigra 6' Tall Ball and Burlap 80.00 160

9 RA Rushmore Arborvitae Thuja occidentalis 'Rushmore' #10 Container 10.00 90

3. Shrub

6 BMV Blue Muffin Viburnum Viburnum dentatum 'Christom' #5 Container 10.00 60

17 DBH Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle Diervilla lonicera #5 Container 0

7 KNR Knock Out Rosa'Radrazz' #5 Container 10.00 70

4. Perennial

7 PPH Coral Bells Heuchera sanguinea #1 Container 0.00 0

21 GSH Gold Standard Hosta Hosta 'Gold Standard' #1 Container 0.00 0

Grand total: 70 460

0'

SCALE = 

10' 20' 40'

1" =20'-0"

This area is being updated to reflect sheet L1. 
There will be an increase in the amount of
plants and shrubs and an increase in the 
impervious area by 53 sf.

This area is being updated to reflect sheet L1. 
There will be an increase in the amount of
plants, grass, and shrubs and a decrease in
impervious area.

This area is being updated to reflect sheet L1. 
There will be an increase in the amount of
plants, grass, and shrubs and a decrease in
impervious area.

This area is being updated to reflect sheet L1. 
There will be an increase in the amount of
plants, grass, and shrubs and a decrease in
impervious area.

-369-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



2
1

' -
 1

1
"

SIGN MODEL  P-92

BRICK TO MATCH 

BUILDING

(2) LED READER BOARD 

(FRONT AND BACK) 

4
' -

 5
"

SIGN MODEL P-25
7

' -
 6

"

BRICK TO MATCH 

BUILDING

7
' -

 6
"

SIGN MODEL P-25 

BRICK TO 

MATCH 

BUILDING

8
"

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 01/08/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 01/08/2018 

Kevin V. Kroen

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT UNDER  
THE LAWS OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

00703

1/8/2018 8:59:51 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S
 -

C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E
 C

E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

LL
S
, 
IA

L-3.0

SITE DETAILS

217035

SCALE  1/4" = 1'-0"1
Monument Signs

MONUMENT SIGN 51 S.F. PER SIGN (1) P-92 = 51 S.F.

MONUMENT SIGN 16 S.F. PER SIGN (2) P-25 =   32 S.F.
ENTRANCE MONUMENT SIGN (1) P-25 =   15 S.F.

TOTAL S.F = 98 S.F.

MONUMENT SIGN AREA

(SITE SIGNAGE ALLOWED = 250 S.F.)

-370-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



MULCH 4" DEEP IN A 6' 

DIAMETER RING.  KEEP 
MULCH 4" FROM THE BASE OF 

THE TREE TRUNK.  MAINTAIN 

WEED FREE FOR A YEAR 
AFTER PLANTING.

NOTES:

1. PRUNE ONLY CROSSOVER LIMBS, CO-DOMINANT LEADERS, AND BROKEN OR DEAD BRANCHES.  DO NOT REMOVE TERMINAL 
BUDS OF BRANCHES THAT EXTEND TO THE CROWN.

2. STAKE AND WRAP TREES ONLY IF DIRECTED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, SEE STAKING AND/OR WRAPPING DETAILS AS NEEDED.

3. LOCATE PLANTS AS DIRECTED ON LANDSCAPE PLAN. 
4. MAKE SURE PLANTING BED SOIL IS LOOSENED AND NOT TOO WET PRIOR TO PLANTING AND AVOID SOIL COMPACTION DURING 

PLANTING.
5. MULCH LAYER TO EVENLY COVER THE ENTIRE BED AREA 4"-6" THICK, MAINTAIN A 4" RADIUS BETWEEN MULCH AND TRUNK. 

6. NO SUBSTITIONS OF PLANTS OR ADJUSTMENTS TO PLANT LOCATIONS, WITHOUT APPROVAL OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. 

SET TOP OF ROOF BALL 1-2 

IN. HIGHER THAN GRADE.

PLANT TREES SO THAT THE 

TRUNK FLARE IS VISIBLE AT THE 
TOP OF THE ROOT BALL.  

REJECT TREES IF THE TRUNK 
FLARE IS NOT VISIBLE.  DO NOT 

COVER THE TOP OF THE ROOT 
BALL WITH SOIL.

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, 

WIRE, AND BURLAP FROM TOP 
1/3 OF ROOT BALL, CUT WIRE 

BASKET IN 4 PLACES AND FOLD 
AWAY FROM THE ROOT BALL.

WIDTH OF PLANTING 

HOLE = MIN 2x THE WIDTH 

OF THE ROOT BALL. 
WIDER IF POSSIBLE. 

SET ROOT-BALL ON FIRM PAD AT 

THE BOTTOM OF WHOLE.

TAMP SOIL AROUND ROOT BALL 

BASE FIRMLY WITH FOOT 

PRESSURE SO THAT ROOT BALL 
DOES NOT SHIFT.

4 IN. HIGH EARTH SAUCER 

BEYOND EDGE OF ROOT BALL.

BACKFILL WITH A I/2 EXISTING SOIL 

AND 1/2 WELL COMPOSTED 
ORGANIC MATTER MIXTURE. 

ALWAYS MAINTAIN 50% NATIVE SOIL 
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED(IN THE 

CASES OF EXTREMELY COMPACTED 
OR POLLUTED SITES). 

MAINTAIN A 4" RADIUS BETWEEN 

THE TRUNK AND MULCH.

SCARIFY EDGES OF 

BACKFILL. 

TRENCHED/NATURAL EDGE TO 

HOLD MULCH IN PLACE AND 
TO SEPARATE FROM TURF.  

M
IN

.

1
' -

 6
"

4" DEEP WALNUT HARDWOOD MULCH

B&B STOCK - REMOVE BURLAP FROM 1/3 OF ROOT BALL

FINISH GRADE

UNDISTURBED SOIL

BACKFILLED SOIL WITH WELL COMPOSTED ORGANIC MATTER

(MAINTAIN A MIN. 50% EXISTING SOIL)

SEE EDGING 

INSTALLATION 

DETAIL -

X/L4.O

NOTES:

1. AVOID PLANTING IN WET OR SATURATED SOIL TO PREVENT SOIL COMPACTION DURING PLANTING.
2. MULCH LAYER TO EVENLY COVER THE ENTIRE BED AREA, EXCEPT KEEP MULCH 4" FROM BASE OF SHRUB BRANCHES. 

3. SPACING BETWEEN PLANTS AS DIRECTED ON LANDSCAPE PLAN. 

4. MAKE SURE PLANTING BED SOIL IS LOOSENED AND NOT TOO WET PRIOR TO PLANTING AND AVOID SOIL COMPACTION 
DURING PLANTING.

5. SPACING BETWEEN PLANTS AS INDICATED ON LANDSCAPE PLAN. 
6. USE WOVEN GEO-TEXTILE FILTER FABRIC WHEN USING ROCK OR INORGANIC MULCHES. 

7. NO SUBSTITIONS OF PLANTS OR ADJUSTMENTS TO PLANT LOCATIONS, WITHOUT APPROVAL OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. 

POTTED STOCK - SCARIFY EDGES OF ROOT BALL 

BEFORE PLANTING

MAINTAIN 4-6" RADIUS BETWEEN PLANT AND MULCH

SCARIFY EDGES OF BACKFILL AREA

ON LANDSCAPE PLAN

SPACE AS SHOWN

M
IN

.

1
' -

 6
"

NOTES:

1. TILL TO A DEPTH OF 4-6", ADD TOPSOIL IS NONE IS PRESENT ON SITE, AND AMEND SOIL 
ACCORDING TO SOIL TEST.

2. REMOVE ALL DEBRIS.

3. SMOOTH AND DO A FINAL GRADING AWAY FROM BUILDINGS, FILL ANY LOW SPOTS, 
AND 1" BELOW HARD SURFACE AREAS(SIDEWALKS, DRIVEWAYS, CURBS, ETC.).  

4. ROLL SOIL SURFACE LIGHTLY.

5. WATER SOIL SURFACE, SO IT IS MOIST BEFORE LAYING SOD.
6. SOD ACROSS SLOPE NOT DOWN SLOPE.

7. STAGGER SOD SO SEAMS DO NOT LINE UP TO PREVENT WASHOUTS.
8. PLACE SOD WITH SEAMS FLUSH AGAINST EACH OTHER, LEAVING NO GAPS BETWEEN 

ROLLS.

9. COMPRESS SOD WITH WEIGHTED ROLLER AND WATER AFTER LAYING IT.
10. SOD DISTURBED AREAS AND OTHER AREAS AS DIRECTED. 

PAVING EDGE - START 

SOD FLUSH WITH PAVING.

SEE EDGING 

INSTALLATION 
DETAIL.

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645    YNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

Revisions & Addendums

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

PERMIT SET 00/00/2016

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED ARCHITECT  UNDER  THE LAWS
OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

Gary Fischer

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 05/11/16         LICENSE #: 23560

                      

1/8/2018 8:59:51 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S
 -

 C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E

C
E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

LL
S
, 
IA

L-3.1

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

217035

SCALE  1/2" = 1'-0"1
B&B TREE PLANTING

SCALE  3/8" = 1'-0"2
SHRUB PLANTING

SCALE  1/4" = 1'-0"3
SOD INSTALLATION

-371-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



DNUP

UP

UP

UPUP

UP

1

A3.1

2

A3.0

2

A3.1

1

A3.0

4

A3.0

PORTE COCHERE

1748 SF

POOL

126

117 SF

ENG. OFFICE

133

1278 SF

LAUNDRY

137

VESTIBULE

118

WORK

AREA 1079 SF

EXERCISE

125

253 SF

STAIR #2

1ST2

1021 SF

LOBBY

117

2272 SF

DINING

120

MARKET

2131 SF

BISTRO & BAR

119

HSKP

OFFICE

299 SF

BREAK ROOM

129

541 SF

MECH.

132

ELEC.

CORRIDOR

VESTIBULE

816 SF

MEDIA LOUNGE A

115A

1781 SF

121

HOTEL

KITCHEN

CORRIDOR

COURTYARD

252 SF

1ST1

STAIR #1

POOL

CHEM.

1739 SF

CATERING KITCHEN

1005

1445 SF

STORAGE

1012

1159 SF

RECEIVING

1010

1018

VESTIBULE

RESTROOM

416 SF

TRASH

1006

509 SF

112

EVENT

OFFICE

AREA

633 SF

MEETING ROOM

110

PASSAGE

1896 SF

1004

SERVICE

ACCESS

109

KING

BRIDAL

SUITE

106

DOUBLE

QUEEN
KING BRIDAL SUITE ADA

108

107

DOUBLE

QUEEN

103

DOUBLE

QUEEN

101

DOUBLE

QUEEN

2072 SF

PREFUNCTION

1000

COURTYARD

GUEST

LAUNDRY

PORTE COCHERE

354 SF

135

HOTEL

TRASH

ROOM

315 SF

134

LAWN

EQUIP

STORAGE

105

DOUBLE

QUEEN

104

DOUBLE

QUEEN

VESTIBULE

1017

EVENT CENTER ENTRY

2506 SF

PREFUNCTION

1016

EVENT

OFFICE

EVENT

OFFICE

102

DOUBLE

QUEEN

SENSORY

VENDOR ACCESS

74 SF

UTILITY CLOSET

1013

UTILITY

CLOSET

MENS

1015

WOMENS

1014

WOMENS

1002

MENS

1001

A1.1A

1

3498 SF

PREFUNCTION

1025

SLIDING GLASS DOOR

MENS

WOMENS

SEE THRU 

FIREPLACE

PRINTER 

BY  

OWNER

RECYCLE 

BIN BY  

OWNER

A7.3

1

A7.4

1

MDF

SALES MGR

OFFICE

GM'S

OFFICE

646 SF

BOARD ROOM

111

A7.5

1

POOL

MECH.

716 SF

131

STORAGE

-1' - 9"

0"

-1' - 0 3/4"

MENS
WOMENS

OFFICE

COAT

ROOM

SHIPS LADDER TO ROOF

SECURED

STORAGE

491 SF

1007

ELEC / AV

ELEC.

-1' - 9"

PORTE COCHERE

ASSIST.

GM'S

OFFICE

VESTIBULE

LUGGAGE

EVENT ROOM

1021

5840 SF

398 OCC.

EVENT ROOM

1020

1340 SF

89 OCC.

EVENT ROOM

1019B

1318 SF

87 OCC.

EVENT ROOM

1019

1303 SF

86 OCC.

EVENT ROOM

1023

2010 SF

133 OCC.

EVENT ROOM

1022

2019 SF

133 OCC.

A4.17

4

304' - 1 5/8"

301' - 9 1/2"2' - 4 1/8"

A4.17

7

A1.1B

2

A1.1B

1

1

A5.0

9
' 
- 

4
 1

9
/
6
4
"

8
' 
- 

0
 1

1
/
6
4
"

7' - 6"

6
' 
- 

8
"

6' - 4"

DOCK LEVELER

N

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 02/02/2018 

EVENT
CENTER

HOTEL
WEST

HOTEL
EAST

MATCHLINE

M
A

T
C

H
L
IN

E

KEYPLAN

SHADED AREA INDICATES

AREA SHOWN ON PLAN

PERMIT PACKAGE #1 03/24/2018 
(Architectural For Reference Only)

3/21/2018 9:04:15 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S

C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E
 C

E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

L
L
S
, 

IO
W

A
 5

0
6
1
3

A1.0

OVERALL FIRST

FLOOR PLAN

217035A

SCALE  1/16" = 1'-0"1
OVERALL FIRST FLOOR PLAN

N

-372-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



UP
UP

UP

1

A5.1

2

A5.1

567 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN SHOTGUN

SUITE

223

568 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN SHOTGUN

SUITE

225 305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

234

305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

238

305 SF

KING SENSORY

236

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

215

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

217

305 SF

KING

213
305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

205

393 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN II

224

391 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN II

222

455 SF

ADA KING

226

305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

233

305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

237

305 SF

KING

235

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

214

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

216

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

210

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

208

305 SF

KING

212

305 SF

KING

202

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

206

305 SF

KING

207

568 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN SHOTGUN

SUITE SENSORY

229

240 SF

STAIR #2

2ST2

305 SF

KING

231

78 SF

IDF CLOSET

253

238 SF

LOBBY

250

667 SF

ADA DOUBLE QUEEN SUITE

228

305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

230

566 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN SHOTGUN

SUITE

227

305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

239

305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

232

305 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

203

320 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN SENSORY

201

279 SF

251

LINEN

91 SF

252

VEND.

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

218

391 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN II

220

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

219

567 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN SHOTGUN

SUITE

221

240 SF

STAIR #1

2ST1

304 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

204

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

209

319 SF

DOUBLE QUEEN

211

A4.10

6

A4.10

2

251

250

253

252

1808 SF

255

CORRIDOR

318 SF

240

STORAGE

2ST2

69 SF

254

ELEC.

256

254

120 SF

256

STORAGE

4

A5.2

1

A5.3

2

A5.2

1

A5.4

3

A5.2

2ST1

1

A5.2

-

---

T U S H I E

M O N T G O M E R Y

A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©©©©

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   
PLAN, SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  
WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER   
MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT  
I AM A DULY LICENSED ARCHITECT  
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE  
OF  IOWA.

Gary Fischer

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND 
ENGINEERING DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   
CONFIDENCE   AND DISSEMINATION    
MAY    NOT    BE   MADE WITHOUT  
PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT. ALL COMMON  
LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND 
OTHERWISE,ARE  HEREBY 
SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 01/30/2018      LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 01/08/2018 

3955

1/31/2018 9:48:07 AM

H
O
LI
D
A
Y
 I
N
N
 &
 S
U
IT
E
S

C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 C
E
N
TE
R

C
E
D
A
R
 F
A
LL
S
, 
IO
W
A
 5
0
6
1
3

SECOND FLOOR

PLAN

217035A

SCALE  1/8" = 1'-0"1
2ND FLOOR PLAN

N

A1.1

2ND THRU 4TH FLOOR PLAN

2ND THRU 4TH
FLOOR PLAN

-373-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



1

A3.1

2

A3.0

2

A3.1

1

A3.0

4

A3.0

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S
7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©©©©

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED ARCHITECT  UNDER  THE LAWS
OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

Gary Fischer

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 01/08/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T 

FO
R
 C

O
N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code  ALOCF
Project    32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 01/08/2018 

3955

1/8/2018 8:40:27 AM

H
O
LI
D
A
Y
 I
N
N
 &
 S
U
IT
E
S

C
O
N
F
E
R
E
N
C
E
 C
E
N
TE
R

C
E
D
A
R
 F
A
LL
S
, 
IO
W
A
 5
0
6
1
3

A1.7

OVERALL ROOF PLAN

217035A

SCALE  1/16" = 1'-0"1
Overall Roof Plan

N

A1.2 

-374-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"STUCCO #1 

VERSETTA STONE 
METAL PANEL

LOUVERS

STUCCO #2

WINDOW

TINTED WINDOW 

BRAND SIGNAGE 

PORTE COCHERE

BRICK #1 

METAL PANEL 

VERSETTA STONE 
1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

GREEN HALLMARK UPLIGHTS 

STUCCO #1
STUCOO #1

GREEN HALLMARK WASHERS 

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"

STUCCO #2

WINDOW 

LOUVER 

BRICK #1 

STUCCO #1

MECH. LOUVER

TINTED WINDOWS

STOREFRONT

STUCCO #2

BRAND SIGNAGE

STUCCO #2

STONE #1

METAL PANEL

STUCCO #2

BRICK #1STONE #1
1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

1
' 
- 

9
"

STUCCO #1

STUCCO #1

44' - 8"

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"

STUCCO #2

WINDOW 

LOUVER 

BRICK #1

STUCCO #1

MECH. LOUVER

TINTED WINDOWS

STOREFRONT

STUCCO #2

BRAND SIGNAGE

STUCCO #1 BRICK #1

METAL PANEL

STUCCO #2

SECTION CUT THRU BUILDING1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

STUCCO #1

SEE-THRU FIREPLACE

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE

BRICK #1:

MANUFACTURER: SIOUX CITY BRICK 

TYPE: UTILITY 

COLOR: FINE ART VELOUR 

SIZE: 4"x4"x"12"

STONE #1:

MANUFACTURER: VERSETTA STONE 

TYPE: LEDGESTONE

COLOR: NORTHERN ASH 

STUCCO #1: 

MANUFACTURER: DRYVIT 

FINISH: SANDBLAST

COLOR: 616 KINGS GRAY

STUCCO#2: 

MANUFACTURER: STO CORP. 

FINISH: QUARZPUTZ

COLOR: 306 SNOW WHITE 

METAL PANEL: 

MANUFACTURER: FIRESTONE 

TYPE: ACM FLUSH METAL PANEL 

COLOR: MATTE BLACK

28.5%

7.5%

30%

27.2%

6.8%

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED ARCHITECT  UNDER  THE LAWS
OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

Gary Fischer

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 02/01/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 02/02/2018 

3955

2/26/2018 9:13:59 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S

C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E
 C

E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

L
L
S
, 

IO
W

A
 5

0
6
1
3

A3.0

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

217035A

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"1
South Elevation

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"2
North Elevation

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"4
Hotel North Elevation

-375-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"

STUCCO #2

STUCCO #1

WINDOW

STUCCO #2

BRICK #1

STUCCO #2

STOREFRONT

STOREFRONT BRICK # 1

STONE #1

STONE  #1

STUCCO  #2

1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"
STUCCO #1

STUCCO #2

WINDOW

STUCCO #2

METAL PANEL

STOREFRONT

STUCCO #1

2
2
' 
- 

9
"

1
9
' 
- 

3
"

BRICK #1

STUCCO #2

STONE #1

STUCCO #2

1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

STONE #1

BRICK #1

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED ARCHITECT  UNDER  THE LAWS
OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

Gary Fischer

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 02/01/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 02/02/2018 

3955

2/26/2018 9:14:27 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S

C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E
 C

E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

L
L
S
, 

IO
W

A
 5

0
6
1
3

A3.1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

217035A

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"1
West Elevation

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"2
East Elevation

-376-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



-377-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"STUCCO #1 

VERSETTA STONE 
METAL PANEL

LOUVERS

STUCCO #2

WINDOW

TINTED WINDOW 

BRAND SIGNAGE 

PORTE COCHERE

BRICK #1 

METAL PANEL 

VERSETTA STONE 
1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

GREEN HALLMARK UPLIGHTS 

STUCCO #1
STUCOO #1

GREEN HALLMARK WASHERS 

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"

STUCCO #2

WINDOW 

LOUVER 

BRICK #1 

STUCCO #1

MECH. LOUVER

TINTED WINDOWS

STOREFRONT

STUCCO #2

BRAND SIGNAGE

STUCCO #2

STONE #1

METAL PANEL

STUCCO #2

BRICK #1STONE #1
1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

1
' 
- 

9
"

STUCCO #1

STUCCO #1

44' - 8"

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"

STUCCO #2

WINDOW 

LOUVER 

BRICK #1

STUCCO #1

MECH. LOUVER

TINTED WINDOWS

STOREFRONT

STUCCO #2

BRAND SIGNAGE

STUCCO #1 BRICK #1

METAL PANEL

STUCCO #2

SECTION CUT THRU BUILDING1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

STUCCO #1

SEE-THRU FIREPLACE

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE

BRICK #1:

MANUFACTURER: SIOUX CITY BRICK 

TYPE: UTILITY 

COLOR: FINE ART VELOUR 

SIZE: 4"x4"x"12"

STONE #1:

MANUFACTURER: VERSETTA STONE 

TYPE: LEDGESTONE

COLOR: NORTHERN ASH 

STUCCO #1: 

MANUFACTURER: DRYVIT 

FINISH: SANDBLAST

COLOR: 616 KINGS GRAY

STUCCO#2: 

MANUFACTURER: STO CORP. 

FINISH: QUARZPUTZ

COLOR: 306 SNOW WHITE 

METAL PANEL: 

MANUFACTURER: FIRESTONE 

TYPE: ACM FLUSH METAL PANEL 

COLOR: MATTE BLACK

28.5%

7.5%

30%

27.2%

6.8%

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED ARCHITECT  UNDER  THE LAWS
OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

Gary Fischer

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 02/01/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 02/02/2018 

3955

2/26/2018 9:13:59 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S

C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E
 C

E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

L
L
S
, 

IO
W

A
 5

0
6
1
3

A3.0

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

217035A

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"1
South Elevation

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"2
North Elevation

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"4
Hotel North Elevation

-378-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"

STUCCO #2

STUCCO #1

WINDOW

STUCCO #2

BRICK #1

STUCCO #2

STOREFRONT

STOREFRONT BRICK # 1

STONE #1

STONE  #1

STUCCO  #2

1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

1ST FLOOR

100' - 0"

2ND FLOOR

114' - 0"

3RD FLOOR

124' - 3 7/8"

4TH FLOOR

134' - 7 3/4"
STUCCO #1

STUCCO #2

WINDOW

STUCCO #2

METAL PANEL

STOREFRONT

STUCCO #1

2
2
' 
- 

9
"

1
9
' 
- 

3
"

BRICK #1

STUCCO #2

STONE #1

STUCCO #2

1ST FLR EVENT CTR

98' - 3"

STONE #1

BRICK #1

ROOF

145' - 0 1/2"

T U S H I E

MONTGOMER Y
A R C H I T E C T S

7645  LYNDALE  AVENUE  SOUTH,   #100

MINNEAPOLIS,  MINNESOTA  55423-4084

612 . 861 . 9636  FAX:612 . 861. 9632

W W W . T M I A R C H I T E C T S . C O M

PREPARED FOR:

2016 Tushie Montgomery & Associates, Inc.©

I   HEREBY   CERTIFY   THAT   THIS   PLAN,
SPECIFICATION,  OR  REPORT  WAS   PRE-
PARED   BY  ME  OR  UNDER   MY   DIRECT
SUPERVISION  AND  THAT  I   AM   A   DULY
LICENSED ARCHITECT  UNDER  THE LAWS
OF  THE  STATE  OF  IOWA.

Gary Fischer

ALL  ARCHITECTURAL  AND ENGINEERING
DRAWINGS   ARE   IN   CONFIDENCE   AND 
DISSEMINATION    MAY    NOT    BE   MADE 
WITHOUT  PRIOR  WRITTEN  CONSENT OF
THE  ARCHITECT.    ALL    COMMON    LAW 
RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE,
ARE  HEREBY  SPECIFICALLY  RESERVED.

PRINT NAME:

SIGNATURE:

DATE: 02/01/2018         LICENSE #: 

                      

N
O
T F

O
R
 C

O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

InterContinental Hotels Group

Location     19394
Inn Code ALOCF
Project   32669

:
:
:

SITE PLAN APPLICATION 02/02/2018 

3955

2/26/2018 9:14:27 AM

H
O

LI
D

A
Y

 I
N

N
 &

 S
U

IT
E
S

C
O

N
F
E
R

E
N

C
E
 C

E
N

TE
R

C
E
D

A
R

 F
A

L
L
S
, 

IO
W

A
 5

0
6
1
3

A3.1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

217035A

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"1
West Elevation

SCALE  3/32" = 1'-0"2
East Elevation

-379-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



-380-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



-381-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



-382-

Item
 G

.2.o. 



Holiday Inn & Suites 

Conference Center 
Cedar Falls, IA 

 

Prelim Site Lighting 

1-5-2018 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-383-

Item G.2.o. 



WPLED18 	 	

Ultra-high	efficiency	LED	18	Watt	wallpack.	Patent	Pending	thermal	management
system.	100,000	hour	L70	lifespan.	5	Year	Warranty.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	7.5	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Driver	Info
Type: Constant	Current
120V: 0.17A
208V: 0.11A
240V: 0.09A
277V: 0.08A
Input	Watts: 20W
Efficiency: 89%

LED	Info
Watts: 18W
Color	Temp: 5000K
Color	Accuracy: 73	CRI
L70	Lifespan: 100000
Lumens: 2508
Efficacy: 124	LPW

Technical	Specifications
Listings
UL	Listing:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.	Suitable	for	mounting	within
1.2m	(4ft)	of	the	ground.

DLC	Listed:
This	product	is	on	the	Design	Lights	Consortium	(DLC)
Qualified	Products	List	and	is	eligible	for	rebates	from
DLC	Member	Utilities.	
DLC	Product	Code:	P0000175I

IESNA	LM-79	&	LM-80	Testing:
RAB	LED	luminaries	have	been	tested	by	an
independent	laboratory	in	accordance	with	IESNA	LM-
79	and	LM-80,	and	have	received	the	Department	of
Energy	"Lighting	Facts"	label.

Dark	Sky	Approved:
The	International	Dark	Sky	Association	has	approved
this	product	as	a	full	cutoff,	fully	shielded	luminaire.

LED	Characteristics

Lifespan:
100,000-hour	LED	lifespan	based	on	IES	LM-80
results	and	TM-21	calculations.

LED:
Multi-chip,	high-output,	long-life	LED

Color	Consistency:
7-step	MacAdam	Ellipse	binning	to	achieve	consistent
fixture-to-fixture	color.

Color	Stability:
LED	color	temperature	is	warrantied	to	shift	no	more
than	200K	in	CCT	over	a	5	year	period.

Color	Uniformity:
RAB's	range	of	CCT	(Correlated	Color	Temperature)
follows	the	guidelines	of	the	American	National
Standard	for	Specifications	for	the	Chromaticity	of
Solid	State	Lighting	(SSL)	Products,	ANSI	C78.377-
2017.

	Electrical
Driver:
Constant	Current,	Class	2,	100-277V,	50/60	Hz,	4	kV
surge	protection,	500mA,	100-240VAC:	0.3-0.15A,
277VAC:	0.15A,	Power	Factor:	99%

Construction

Maximum	Ambient	Temperature:
Suitable	for	use	in	40°C	(104°F)	ambient	temperatures

Cold	Weather	Starting:
Minimum	starting	temperature	is	-40°C	(-40°F)

Thermal	Management:
Superior	heat	sinking	with	external	Air-Flow	fins

Finish:
Our	environmentally	friendly	polyester	powder	coatings
are	formulated	for	high-durability	and	long-lasting
color,	and	contain	no	VOC	or	toxic	heavy	metals.

Reflector:
Semi-specular,	vacuum-metalized	polycarbonate

Gaskets:
High-temperature	silicone	gaskets

Housing:
Die-cast	aluminum	housing,	lens	frame	and	mounting
arm

Mounting:
Heavy-duty	mounting	arm	with	"O"	ring	seal	&
stainless	steel	screws

	Green	Technology:
Mercury	and	UV	free.	RoHS	compliant	components.
Polyester	powder	coat	finish	formulated	without	the
use	of	VOC	or	toxic	heavy	metals.

Other

California	Title	24:
WPLED18	with	available	photocell	options	comply	with
2013	California	Title	24	building	and	electrical	codes
as	a	commercial	outdoor	non-pole-mounted	fixture	≤
30	Watts.	Add	/PC,	/PC2,	/PCS	or	/PCS2	to	RAB
catalog	number	to	add	a	photocell.

For	Use	on	LEED	Buildings:
IDA	Dark	Sky	Approval	means	that	this	fixture	can	be
used	to	achieve	LEED	Credits	for	Light	Pollution
Reduction.

Patents:
The	design	of	WPLED18	is	protected	by	US	patent
D608,040,	Canada	patent	138280,	and	China	patent
CN301649064S.

Warranty:
RAB	warrants	that	our	LED	products	will	be	free	from
defects	in	materials	and	workmanship	for	a	period	of
five	(5)	years	from	the	date	of	delivery	to	the	end	user,
including	coverage	of	light	output,	color	stability,	driver
performance	and	fixture	finish.

Replacement:
Replaces	150W	Metal	Halide.

Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Optical

BUG	Rating:
B1	U0	G0

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-384-

Item G.2.o. 



WPLED18 	 	

Dimensions Features

Ultra-high	efficiency	LED	18	Watt	wallpack

Replaces	150W	Metal	Halide	Wallpacks

100,00-Hour	LED	Lifespan

5-Year	Warranty

Ordering	Matrix

Family Wattage Color	Temp Finish Emergency	Battery	Backup Options

WPLED 18 	 	 	 	
18	=	18W Blank	=	5000K	(Cool)

N	=	4000K	(Neutral)
Y	=	3000K	(Warm)

Blank	=	Bronze
W	=	White

Blank	=	No	Battery	Backup
/E	=	Standard	Battery	Backup

/EC	=	Battery	Backup	with	Cold	Start

Blank	=	No	Option
/PC	=	120V	Button	Photocell
/PC2	=	277V	Button	Photocell
/PCS	=	120V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS2	=	277V	Swivel	Photocell

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-385-

Item G.2.o. 



WPLED26 	 	

LED	26W	Wallpacks.	Patent	Pending	thermal	management	system.	100,000	hour
L70	lifespan.	5	Year	Warranty.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	7.5	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Driver	Info
Type: Constant	Current
120V: 0.26A
208V: 0.16A
240V: 0.14A
277V: 0.12A
Input	Watts: 30W
Efficiency: 88%

LED	Info
Watts: 26W
Color	Temp: 5000K
Color	Accuracy: 73	CRI
L70	Lifespan: 100000
Lumens: 3475
Efficacy: 118	LPW

Technical	Specifications
Listings
UL	Listing:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.	Suitable	for	mounting	within
1.2m	(4ft)	of	the	ground.

DLC	Listed:
This	product	is	on	the	Design	Lights	Consortium	(DLC)
Qualified	Products	List	and	is	eligible	for	rebates	from
DLC	Member	Utilities.	
DLC	Product	Code:_P0000170I

Dark	Sky	Approved:
The	International	Dark	Sky	Association	has	approved
this	product	as	a	full	cutoff,	fully	shielded	luminaire.

LED	Characteristics

Lifespan:
100,000-hour	LED	lifespan	based	on	IES	LM-80
results	and	TM-21	calculations.

Color	Consistency:
7-step	MacAdam	Ellipse	binning	to	achieve	consistent
fixture-to-fixture	color.

Color	Stability:
LED	color	temperature	is	warrantied	to	shift	no	more
than	200K	in	CCT	over	a	5	year	period.

Color	Uniformity:
RAB's	range	of	CCT	(Correlated	Color	Temperature)
follows	the	guidelines	of	the	American	National
Standard	for	Specifications	for	the	Chromaticity	of
Solid	State	Lighting	(SSL)	Products,	ANSI	C78.377-
2017.

	Construction
IP	Rating:
Ingress	Protection	rating	of	IP66	for	dust	and	water

Finish:
Formulated	for	high-durability	and	long	lasting	color.

Ambient	Temperature:
SuitableFor	use	in	40°C	(104°F)	ambient
temperatures.

Cold	Weather	Starting:
Minimum	starting	temperature	is	-40°C	(-40°F)

Green	Technology:
Mercury	and	UV	free.	RoHS	compliant	components.
Polyester	powder	coat	finish	formulated	without	the
use	of	VOC	or	toxic	heavy	metals.

For	use	on	LEED	Buildings:
IDA	Dark	Sky	Approval	means	that	this	fixture	can	be
used	to	achieve	LEED	Credits	for	Light	Pollution
Reduction.

Electrical

Driver:
Multi-chip	26W	high	output	long	life	LED	Driver
Constant	Current,	720mA,	Class	2,	6kV	Surge
Protection,	100V-277V,	50-60	Hz,	100-240V.4	Amps.

	Other
California	Title	24:
See	WPLED26/PC	for	a	2013	California	Title	24
compliant	model.

Patents:
The	WPLED	design	is	protected	by	U.S.	Pat.
D634878,	Canada	Pat	134878,	China	Pat.
CN301649064S.

Equivalency:
Equivalent	to	175W	Metal	Halide.

Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Optical

BUG	Rating:
B1	U0	G0

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-386-

Item G.2.o. 



WPLED26 	 	

Dimensions Features

High	performance	LED	light	engine

Maintains	70%	of	initial	lumens	at	100,000	hours

Weatherproof	high	temperature	silicone	gaskets

Superior	heat	sinking	with	die	cast	aluminum	housing	and	external	fins

100	up	to	277	Volts

5-year	warranty

Ordering	Matrix

Family Wattage Color	Temp Sensor Finish Photocell Dimming

WPLED 	 	 	 	 	 	
26	=	26W Blank	=	5000K	(Cool)

Y	=	3000K	(Warm)
N	=	4000K	(Neutral)

Blank	=	No	Sensor
MS	=	Mini	Sensor

Blank	=	Bronze
W	=	White

Blank	=	No	Photocell
/PC	=	120V	Button
/PCS	=	120V	Swivel
/PC2	=	277V	Button

Blank	=	No	Dimming
/D10	=	Dimmable

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-387-

Item G.2.o. 



DATE: TYPE:

FIRM NAME:

PROJECT:

In a continuing effort to offer the best product possible we reserve the right to change, without 
notice, specifications or materials that in our opinion will not alter the function of the product.
Web: www.prescolite.com • Tech Support: (888) 777-4832A Division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. LB-LED-011

 LBSLEDA10L 
7" Surface Mount 
Round LED Module

 LBSQLEDA10L 
7" Surface Mount 
Square LED 
Module

APPLICATIONS: 
LiteBox Surface Mount LED modules are 
designed for use in new construction or retrofit 
IC or non-IC applications.  It can be installed 
onto a standard 4" J-box, or into a 4", 5" or 
6" recessed housing with optional mounting 
kit.  Lumen output and distribution comparable 
to a 100 watt incandescent lamp while 
consuming only 17 watts of electricity.  Energy 
Star qualified. Suitable for use with continuous 
room side temperatures up to 40ºC (104ºF). 

LIGHT ENGINE:
High efficacy LED light engine integrated with 
durable aluminum  heat sink for excellent 
thermal management. 120V, 50/60Hz, 
powered directly to AC without the need for a 
driver. Output over-voltage, over-current, and 
short circuit protection.System designed for 
optimal life and lumen maintenance (42,000 
hours at 70% lumen maintenance per TM-21).

DIMMING:
Continuous dimming to 15% with many LED 
rated dimmer controls. (See Dimming Notes 
on pg 3 for recommended dimmers.)

LENS/REFLECTOR: 
All LiteBox LED modules are provided 
standard with a diffuse impact resistant 
polycarbonate lens for uniform illumination.  

INSTALLATION:
New Construction: Install onto a standard 4" 
J-Box, or use with Prescolite's DBX Quicklink 
Housing.  Quicklink connector mates directly 
to housing connector without a screw-base 
adapter. 

Retrofit: Install onto a standard 4" J-Box, or 
use in Prescolite or competitive 4", 5" or 6" 
recessed cans with optional mounting kit.

CERTIFICATIONS:
CSA certified to US and Canadian safety 
standards. ENERGY STAR qualified. Suitable 
for wet locations. 

WARRANTY:
5 year warranty 

See www.prescolite.com for details.

 27K1 
2700 Kelvin

 30K1 
3000 Kelvin

 35K1 
3500 Kelvin

 40K2 
4000 Kelvin

 50K2 
5000 Kelvin

 8 
80+ CRI

 9 
90+ CRI

 WH 
White

 BL 
Black

 Z 
Zet

 BZ 
Bronze

7"

New and Existing 
Construction

LBSLEDA10L
LBSQLEDA10L
LED Surface Mount
1000 Lumen Module
Wet Location
120V 

 LBSMTGKIT 
Mounting Kit for LiteBox LED Surface fixtures to 
install into most 4", 5", or 6" recessed cans. 
Set of 8. Not required for J-Box mounting.

  7 1/4"

  1 1/4"

  7 1/4"

  1 1/4"

7" Round LiteBox LED

7" Square LiteBox LED

Notes
1Available only in 90 CRI
2Available only in 80 CRI

CATALOG NUMBER EXAMPLE: LBSLEDA10L30K9 WH

TRIM LED COLOR CRI TRIM COLOR _ ACCESSORIES

-388-

Item G.2.o. 



PHOTOMETRIC DATA

Web: www.prescolite.com • Tech Support: (888) 777-4832
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 U.S.A. • Phone (864) 678-1000
Copyright ©2016 Prescolite, Inc., a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. All Rights Reserved 

Specifications subject to change without notice. • Printed in U.S.A. • LB-LED-011 7/20/16

140

280

420

LiteBox LED - Surface Mount LED Downlight Modules

NOTES
Refer to www.prescolite.com for additional photometric tests (IES Files).

ELECTRICAL DATA LBSLEDA10L LBSQLEDA10L 
Input Voltage 120V AC 120V AC 
Input Frequency 50/60 Hz 50/60 Hz 
Input Current 0.14A 0.14A 
Input Power  16.4W 16.4W 
Power Factor >0.90 >0.90 
THD <20% <20% 
EMI Filtering FCC 47CFR FCC 47CFR 
 Part 15, Class B Part 15, Class B 
Operating Temperature -30ºC to 40ºC -30ºC to 40ºC 
Dimming Yes* Yes* 
Over-voltage, over-current, short-circuit protected
*See Dimming Notes for more information
  

ZONAL LUMEN SUMMARY
ZONE LUMENS %FIXT
0-30 297 28.8
0-40 478 46.3
0-60 814 78.9
0-90 1032 100.0

LBSLEDA10L30K9 WH
LED Light Engine: 3000K, 90+ CRI
System Wattage: 16.4
Fixture delivered lumens:    1032
Fixture Efficacy:  63.0
Spacing Criteria:  1.2

CANDELA DISTRIBUTION

DEG CANDELA
0 392
5 390
15 372
25 337
35 290
45 234
45 175
55 117
65 66
75 28
90 16

90º

75º

60º

45º

140

280

420

0º        15º 30º

Test No. 14.00619 2768255-3
Tested at 25º Ambient in accordance to IESNA LM-79-2008

COEFFICIENTS OF UTILIZATION
Zonal Cavity Method
 % Effective Ceiling Cavity Reflectance

 80% 70% 50% 30%
  20% Effective Floor Cavity Reflectance 

% Wall Reflectance

 70 50 30 10 70 10 50 30 50 30 

 1     108   104      99    95    106     94      97   94    93   90 
 3       90     80      71     65      88     64     75    69    72   67 
 5       76    63      54     58      74     47     60    53    58   52 
 7       65     52      43     37      64     37     50    42    48   41 
 9       57     44      35     30      56     30     42    35    41   34
 

Ro
om

 C
av

ity
Ra

tio

LBSLEDA10L30K9 WH Test No. 14.00619  2768255-3

Performance Datachart

Ceiling to Floor

Nadir Height (ft)
FC FC Dia (ft) FC Dia (ft) FC Dia (ft) Fixture Spacing (ft) RCR 2 RCR 5 RCR 7

29 28 1 22 3 16 4 6 4.0

12 11 2 9 4 6 6 8 7.0

6 5 3 4 6 3 9 10.5 10.0
4 4 3 3 7 2 11 12 11.0

30o
Single Unit, Initial Footcandles, 30" Work Plane

4
7

50

57

Multiple Units, Initial Footcandles, 30" Work Plane
10o 20o

20

9

35

14

Spacing is Maximum Over Work Plane,  SMH= 1.2

29

12

5

Central Inverters
For full fixture output in back-up mode, we recommend you visit www.dual-lite.com for your Central Lighting Inverter options.  Please contact your local 
Hubbell representative for any assistance with proper sizing and loading of your inverter selection. Central lighting inverters must be ordered separately. 

LiteGear: www.dual-lite.com/products/litegear_lg_series
LPS Series: www.dual-lite.com/products/lps

-389-

Item G.2.o. 



PHOTOMETRIC DATA

Web: www.prescolite.com • Tech Support: (888) 777-4832
701 Millennium Boulevard • Greenville, SC 29607 U.S.A. • Phone (864) 678-1000
Copyright ©2016 Prescolite, Inc., a division of Hubbell Lighting, Inc. All Rights Reserved 

Specifications subject to change without notice. • Printed in U.S.A. • LB-LED-011 • 7/20/16

LiteBox LED - Surface Mount LED Downlight Modules

DIMMING NOTES:
Surface Mount LED modules are designed to be compatible with many dimmer controls. Electronic low-voltage rated dimmer controls may offer favorable 
dimming performance. Incandescent type dimmers are not recommended. The following is a list of known compatible dimmer controls:

Manufacturer     Series    Part Number           

Leviton Renoir II   AWRMG-EAW

Leviton  Sure Slide  6615-8

Lutron Diva Series  (Part Number DVELV-300)

Lutron Maestro Series  (Part Number MAELV-600)

Lutron Nova T Series  (Part Number NTELV-300)

Lutron Spacer Series  (Part Number SPSELV-600)

Lutron Vierti Series  (Part Number VTELV-600)

LED Rated Controls                                                           

Pass & Seymour   (Part Number DCL453PTCCCV6)

Incandescent Digital type dimmers are not recommended

Dimming capabilities will vary depending on the dimmer control, load, and circuit installation. Always refer to dimmer manufacturer instructions or a 
controls specialist for specific requirements.

Dimmer control brand names where identified above are tradenames or registered trademarks of each respective company.
 

#8
02

2
k

t

Recessed Mount with quick linkJ-Box Mount with quick link

Recessed Adapter E26 Edison Base AdapterJ-Box Adapter

Optional LBSMTGKIT 
Mounting Options:

-390-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED2T78 	 	

Specification	grade	area	lights	available	in	IES	Type	II	distributions.	For	use	in
parking	lots,	roadways,	pathways	and	general	area	lighting.	Patent	pending	thermal
management	system.	5	Year	Warranty.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	32.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Driver	Info
Type: Constant	Current
120V: 0.66A
208V: 0.41A
240V: 0.35A
277V: 0.30A
Input	Watts: 78W
Efficiency: N/A

LED	Info
Watts: 78W
Color	Temp: 5000K
Color	Accuracy: 71	CRI
L70	Lifespan: 100000
Lumens: 9552
Efficacy: 123	LPW

Technical	Specifications
Listings
UL	Listing:
Suitable	for	wet	locations	as	a	downlight.

DLC	Listed:
This	product	is	on	the	Design	Lights	Consortium	(DLC)
Qualified	Products	List	and	is	eligible	for	rebates	from
DLC	Member	Utilities.	
DLC	Product	Code:_P0000179P

IESNA	LM-79	&	IESNA	LM-80	Testing:
RAB	LED	luminaires	have	been	tested	by	an
independent	laboratory	in	accordance	with	IESNA	LM-
79	and	80,	and	have	received	the	Department	of
Energy	"Lighting	Facts"	label.

Dark	Sky	Approved:
The	International	Dark	Sky	Association	has	approved
this	product	as	a	full	cutoff,	fully	shielded	luminaire.

LED	Characteristics

Lifespan:
100,000-hour	LED	lifespan	based	on	IES	LM-80
results	and	TM-21	calculations.

LEDs:
Six	(6)	multi-chip,	13W,	high-output,	long-life	LEDs.

Color	Consistency:
3-step	MacAdam	Ellipse	binning	to	achieve	consistent
fixture-to-fixture	color.

Color	Stability:
LED	color	temperature	is	warrantied	to	shift	no	more
than	200K	in	CCT	over	a	5	year	period.

Color	Uniformity:
RAB's	range	of	CCT	(Correlated	Color	Temperature)
follows	the	guidelines	of	the	American	National
Standard	for	Specifications	for	the	Chromaticity	of
Solid	State	Lighting	(SSL)	Products,	ANSI	C78.377-
2017.

	Construction
IES	Classification:
The	Type	II	distribution	is	ideal	for	wide	walkways,	on
ramps	and	entrance	roadways,	bike	paths	and	other
long	and	narrow	lighting	applications.	This	type	is
meant	for	lighting	larger	areas	and	usually	is	located
near	the	roadside.	This	type	of	lighting	is	commonly
found	on	smaller	side	streets	or	jogging	paths.

Effective	Projected	Area:
EPA	=	0.75

Ambient	Temperature:
SuitableFor	use	in	40°C	(104°F)	ambient
temperatures.

Cold	Weather	Starting:
Minimum	starting	temperature	is	-40°C	(-40°F)

Thermal	Management:
Superior	heat	sinking	with	external	Air-Flow	fins.

Lens:
Tempered	glass	lens.

Housing:
Die	cast	aluminum	housing,	lens	frame	and	mounting
arm.

IP	Rating:
Ingress	Protection	rating	of	IP66	for	dust	and	water

Mounting:
Universal	mounting	arm	compatible	for	hole	spacing
patterns	from	1"	to	5	1/2"	center	to	center.	Round	Pole
Adaptor	plate	included	as	a	standard.	Easy	slide	and
lock	to	mount	fixture	with	ease.

	Reflector:
Specular	vacuum-metallized	polycarbonate

Gaskets:
High	temperature	silicone	gaskets.

Finish:
Formulated	for	high-durability	and	long	lasting	color.

Green	Technology:
Mercury	and	UV	free.	RoHS	compliant	components.
Polyester	powder	coat	finish	formulated	without	the
use	of	VOC	or	toxic	heavy	metals.

For	use	on	LEED	Buildings:
IDA	Dark	Sky	Approval	means	that	this	fixture	can	be
used	to	achieve	LEED	Credits	for	Light	Pollution
Reduction.

Electrical

Driver:
Constant	Current,	Class	2,	2000mA,	100-277V,	50-
60Hz,	1.1A,	Power	Factor	99%

THD:
5.0%	at	120V,	12.3%	at	277V

Surge	Protection:
4kV

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-391-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED2T78 	 	

Technical	Specifications	(continued)
Electrical
Surge	Protector:
ALED78	is	available	with	a	6kV	surge	protector	(SP6).
SP6	available	.

Other

California	Title	24:
See	ALED2T78/D10,	ALED2T78/BL,	ALED2T78/PCS,
ALED2T78/PCS2,	or	ALED2T78/PCT	for	a	2013
California	Title	24	compliant	product.	Any	additional
component	requirements	will	be	listed	in	the	Title	24
section	under	technical	specifications	on	the	product
page.

Compatibility:
Compatible	with	Round	Poles	with	a	diameter	of	2.5"
to	6"

	Warranty:
RAB	warrants	that	our	LED	products	will	be	free	from
defects	in	materials	and	workmanship	for	a	period	of
five	(5)	years	from	the	date	of	delivery	to	the	end	user,
including	coverage	of	light	output,	color	stability,	driver
performance	and	fixture	finish.

Patents:
The	ALED	design	is	protected	by	patents	in	the	U.S.
Pat.	668,370,	Canada	Pat.	144956,	China
ZL201230100154.X,	and	Mexico	Pat.	38423.	Pending
patents	in	Taiwan.

Replacement:
Replaces	250W	Metal	Halide.

	Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Optical

BUG	Rating:
B1	U0	G2

Dimensions Features

66%	energy	cost	savings	vs.	HID

100,000-hour	LED	lifespan

Type	II	distribution

5-year	warranty

Ordering	Matrix

Family Optics Wattage Mounting Color	Temp Finish Driver	Options Photocell	Options

ALED 2T 78 	 	 	 	 	
2T	=
Type	II
3T	=

Type	III
4T	=

Type	IV

50	=
50W
78	=
78W
105	=
105W
125	=
125W
150	=
150W

Blank	=	Pole
mount

SF	=	Slipfitter

Blank	=	5000K
(Cool)

N	=	4000K
(Neutral)
Y	=	3000K
(Warm)

Blank	=
Bronze

RG	=	Roadway
Gray

W	=	White

Blank	=	120-277V
/480	=	480V	(not	available

for	150W)
/BL	=	Bi-Level

/D10	=	0-10V	Dimming

Blank	=	No	Option
/PC	=	120V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PC2	=	277V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PCT	=	120-277V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models

only)
/PCT4	=	480V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)

/PCS	=	120V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS2	=	277V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS4	=	480V	Swivel	Photocell

/WS2	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	20	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

/WS4	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	40	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-392-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Square	steel	poles	drilled	for	2	Area	Lights	at	180°.	Designed	for	ground	mounting.
Poles	are	stocked	nationwide	for	quick	shipment.	Protective	packaging	ensures
poles	arrive	at	the	job	site	good	as	new.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	137.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Lamp	Info
Type: N/A
Watts: 0W
Shape/Size: N/A
Base: N/A
ANSI: N/A
Hours: N/A
Lamp	Lumens: N/A
Efficacy: N/A

Ballast	Info
Type: N/A
120V: N/A
208V: N/A
240V: N/A
277V: N/A
Input	Watts: 0W

Technical	Specifications
Listings
CSA	Listed:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.

Construction

Shaft:
46,000	p.s.i.	minimum	yield.

Hand	Holes:
Reinforced	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover.

Base	Plates:
Slotted	base	plates	36,000	p.s.i.

Shipping	Protection:
All	poles	are	shipped	in	individual	corrugated	cartons
to	prevent	finish	damage.

Color:
Bronze	powder	coating.

Height:
20	FT.

	Weight:
137	lbs.

Gauge:
11

Wall	Thickness:
1/8".

Shaft	Size:
4".

Hand	Hole	Dimensions:
3"	x	5".

Bolt	Circle:
8	1/2".

Base	Dimension:
8".

	Anchor	Bolt:
Galvanized	anchor	bolts	and	galvanized	hardware	and
anchor	bolt	template.	All	bolts	have	a	3"	hook.

Anchor	Bolt	Templates:
WARNING	Template	must	be	printed	on	11"	x	17"
sheet	for	actual	size.	CHECK	SCALE	BEFORE
USING.	Templates	shipped	with	anchor	bolts	and
available	.

Pre-Shipped	Anchor	Bolts:
Bolts	can	be	pre-shipped	upon	request	for	additional
freight	charge.

MaxEPA's/Max	Weights:
70MPH	8.3	ft_/240	lb
80MPH	5.6	ft_/165	lb
90MPH	3.6	ft_/110	lb
100MPH	2.2	ft_/75	lb
110MPH	1.0	ft_/45	lb
120MPH	0.2	ft_/20	lb.

Other

Terms	of	Sale:
Pole	Terms	of	Sale	is	available	.

Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-393-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Dimensions Features

Designed	for	ground	mounting

Heavy	duty	TGIC	polyester	coating

Reinforced	hand	holes	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover	for
easy	wiring	access

Anchor	Bolt	Kit	includes	pole	cap	and	base	cover	(sold	separately)

Custom	manufactured	for	each	application

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-394-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED3T78 	 	

Specification	grade	area	lights	available	in	IES	Type	III	distributions.	For	use	for
roadway,	general	parking	and	other	area	lighting	applications	where	a	larger	pool	of
lighting	is	required.	Patent	pending	thermal	management	system.	5	Year	Warranty.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	30.4	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Driver	Info
Type: Constant	Current
120V: 0.66A
208V: 0.41A
240V: 0.35A
277V: 0.30A
Input	Watts: 77W
Efficiency: N/A

LED	Info
Watts: 78W
Color	Temp: 5000K
Color	Accuracy: 71	CRI
L70	Lifespan: 100000
Lumens: 9263
Efficacy: 121	LPW

Technical	Specifications
LED	Characteristics
Lifespan:
100,000-hour	LED	lifespan	based	on	IES	LM-80
results	and	TM-21	calculations.

LEDs:
Six	(6)	multi-chip,	13W,	high-output,	long-life	LEDs.

Color	Consistency:
3-step	MacAdam	Ellipse	binning	to	achieve	consistent
fixture-to-fixture	color.

Color	Stability:
LED	color	temperature	is	warrantied	to	shift	no	more
than	200K	in	CCT	over	a	5	year	period.

Color	Uniformity:
RAB's	range	of	CCT	(Correlated	Color	Temperature)
follows	the	guidelines	of	the	American	National
Standard	for	Specifications	for	the	Chromaticity	of
Solid	State	Lighting	(SSL)	Products,	ANSI	C78.377-
2017.

Listings

DLC	Listed:
This	product	is	on	the	Design	Lights	Consortium	(DLC)
Qualified	Products	List	and	is	eligible	for	rebates	from
DLC	Member	Utilities.	
DLC	Product	Code:_P0000179S

IESNA	LM-79	&	IESNA	LM-80	Testing:
RAB	LED	luminaires	have	been	tested	by	an
independent	laboratory	in	accordance	with	IESNA	LM-
79	and	80,	and	have	received	the	Department	of
Energy	"Lighting	Facts"	label.

Dark	Sky	Approved:
The	International	Dark	Sky	Association	has	approved
this	product	as	a	full	cutoff,	fully	shielded	luminaire.

UL	Listing:
Suitable	for	wet	locations	as	a	downlight.

	Construction
IES	Classification:
The	Type	III	distribution	is	ideal	for	roadway,	general
parking	and	other	area	lighting	applications	where	a
larger	pool	of	lighting	is	required.	It	is	intended	to	be
located	near	the	side	of	the	area,	allowing	the	light	to
project	outward	and	fill	the	area.

IP	Rating:
Ingress	Protection	rating	of	IP66	for	dust	and	water

Ambient	Temperature:
SuitableFor	use	in	40°C	(104°F)	ambient
temperatures.

Cold	Weather	Starting:
Minimum	starting	temperature	is	-40°C	(-40°F)

Thermal	Management:
Superior	heat	sinking	with	external	Air-Flow	fins.

Effective	Projected	Area:
EPA	=	0.75

Lens:
Tempered	glass	lens.

Housing:
Die	cast	aluminum	housing,	lens	frame	and	mounting
arm.

Mounting:
Universal	mounting	arm	compatible	for	hole	spacing
patterns	from	1"	to	5	1/2"	center	to	center.	Round	Pole
Adaptor	plate	included	as	a	standard.	Easy	slide	and
lock	to	mount	fixture	with	ease.

	Reflector:
Specular	vacuum-metallized	polycarbonate

Gaskets:
High	temperature	silicone	gaskets.

Finish:
Formulated	for	high-durability	and	long	lasting	color.

Green	Technology:
Mercury	and	UV	free.	RoHS	compliant	components.
Polyester	powder	coat	finish	formulated	without	the
use	of	VOC	or	toxic	heavy	metals.

For	use	on	LEED	Buildings:
IDA	Dark	Sky	Approval	means	that	this	fixture	can	be
used	to	achieve	LEED	Credits	for	Light	Pollution
Reduction.

Electrical

Driver:
Constant	Current,	Class	2,	2000mA,	100-277V,	50-
60Hz,	1.1A,	Power	Factor	99%

THD:
5.3%	at	120V,	13.3%	at	277V

Surge	Protection:
4kV

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-395-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED3T78 	 	

Technical	Specifications	(continued)
Electrical
Surge	Protector:
ALED78	is	available	with	a	6kV	surge	protector	(SP6).
SP6	available	.

Other

California	Title	24:
See	ALED3T78/D10,	ALED3T78/BL,	ALED3T78/PCS,
ALED3T78/PCS2,	or	ALED3T78/PCT	for	a	2013
California	Title	24	compliant	product.	Any	additional
component	requirements	will	be	listed	in	the	Title	24
section	under	technical	specifications	on	the	product
page.

Compatibility:
Compatible	with	Round	Poles	with	a	diameter	of	2.5"
to	6"

	Warranty:
RAB	warrants	that	our	LED	products	will	be	free	from
defects	in	materials	and	workmanship	for	a	period	of
five	(5)	years	from	the	date	of	delivery	to	the	end	user,
including	coverage	of	light	output,	color	stability,	driver
performance	and	fixture	finish.

Patents:
The	ALED	design	is	protected	by	patents	in	the	U.S.
Pat.	668,370,	Canada	Pat.	144956,	China
ZL201230100154.X,	and	Mexico	Pat.	38423.	Pending
patents	in	Taiwan.

Replacement:
Replaces	250W	Metal	Halide.

	Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Optical

BUG	Rating:
B1	U0	G2

Dimensions Features

66%	energy	cost	savings	vs.	HID

100,000-hour	LED	lifespan

Type	III	distribution

5-year	warranty

Ordering	Matrix

Family Optics Wattage Mounting Color	Temp Finish Driver	Options Photocell	Options

ALED 3T 78 	 	 	 	 	
2T	=
Type	II
3T	=
Type	III
4T	=
Type	IV

50	=
50W
78	=
78W
105	=
105W
125	=
125W
150	=
150W

Blank	=	Pole
mount

SF	=	Slipfitter

Blank	=	5000K
(Cool)

N	=	4000K
(Neutral)
Y	=	3000K
(Warm)

Blank	=
Bronze

RG	=	Roadway
Gray

W	=	White

Blank	=	120-277V
/480	=	480V	(not	available

for	150W)
/BL	=	Bi-Level

/D10	=	0-10V	Dimming

Blank	=	No	Option
/PC	=	120V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PC2	=	277V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PCT	=	120-277V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models

only)
/PCT4	=	480V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)

/PCS	=	120V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS2	=	277V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS4	=	480V	Swivel	Photocell

/WS2	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	20	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

/WS4	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	40	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-396-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Square	steel	poles	drilled	for	2	Area	Lights	at	180°.	Designed	for	ground	mounting.
Poles	are	stocked	nationwide	for	quick	shipment.	Protective	packaging	ensures
poles	arrive	at	the	job	site	good	as	new.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	137.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Lamp	Info
Type: N/A
Watts: 0W
Shape/Size: N/A
Base: N/A
ANSI: N/A
Hours: N/A
Lamp	Lumens: N/A
Efficacy: N/A

Ballast	Info
Type: N/A
120V: N/A
208V: N/A
240V: N/A
277V: N/A
Input	Watts: 0W

Technical	Specifications
Listings
CSA	Listed:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.

Construction

Shaft:
46,000	p.s.i.	minimum	yield.

Hand	Holes:
Reinforced	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover.

Base	Plates:
Slotted	base	plates	36,000	p.s.i.

Shipping	Protection:
All	poles	are	shipped	in	individual	corrugated	cartons
to	prevent	finish	damage.

Color:
Bronze	powder	coating.

Height:
20	FT.

	Weight:
137	lbs.

Gauge:
11

Wall	Thickness:
1/8".

Shaft	Size:
4".

Hand	Hole	Dimensions:
3"	x	5".

Bolt	Circle:
8	1/2".

Base	Dimension:
8".

	Anchor	Bolt:
Galvanized	anchor	bolts	and	galvanized	hardware	and
anchor	bolt	template.	All	bolts	have	a	3"	hook.

Anchor	Bolt	Templates:
WARNING	Template	must	be	printed	on	11"	x	17"
sheet	for	actual	size.	CHECK	SCALE	BEFORE
USING.	Templates	shipped	with	anchor	bolts	and
available	.

Pre-Shipped	Anchor	Bolts:
Bolts	can	be	pre-shipped	upon	request	for	additional
freight	charge.

MaxEPA's/Max	Weights:
70MPH	8.3	ft_/240	lb
80MPH	5.6	ft_/165	lb
90MPH	3.6	ft_/110	lb
100MPH	2.2	ft_/75	lb
110MPH	1.0	ft_/45	lb
120MPH	0.2	ft_/20	lb.

Other

Terms	of	Sale:
Pole	Terms	of	Sale	is	available	.

Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-397-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Dimensions Features

Designed	for	ground	mounting

Heavy	duty	TGIC	polyester	coating

Reinforced	hand	holes	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover	for
easy	wiring	access

Anchor	Bolt	Kit	includes	pole	cap	and	base	cover	(sold	separately)

Custom	manufactured	for	each	application

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-398-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED2T78 	 	

Specification	grade	area	lights	available	in	IES	Type	II	distributions.	For	use	in
parking	lots,	roadways,	pathways	and	general	area	lighting.	Patent	pending	thermal
management	system.	5	Year	Warranty.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	32.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Driver	Info
Type: Constant	Current
120V: 0.66A
208V: 0.41A
240V: 0.35A
277V: 0.30A
Input	Watts: 78W
Efficiency: N/A

LED	Info
Watts: 78W
Color	Temp: 5000K
Color	Accuracy: 71	CRI
L70	Lifespan: 100000
Lumens: 9552
Efficacy: 123	LPW

Technical	Specifications
Listings
UL	Listing:
Suitable	for	wet	locations	as	a	downlight.

DLC	Listed:
This	product	is	on	the	Design	Lights	Consortium	(DLC)
Qualified	Products	List	and	is	eligible	for	rebates	from
DLC	Member	Utilities.	
DLC	Product	Code:_P0000179P

IESNA	LM-79	&	IESNA	LM-80	Testing:
RAB	LED	luminaires	have	been	tested	by	an
independent	laboratory	in	accordance	with	IESNA	LM-
79	and	80,	and	have	received	the	Department	of
Energy	"Lighting	Facts"	label.

Dark	Sky	Approved:
The	International	Dark	Sky	Association	has	approved
this	product	as	a	full	cutoff,	fully	shielded	luminaire.

LED	Characteristics

Lifespan:
100,000-hour	LED	lifespan	based	on	IES	LM-80
results	and	TM-21	calculations.

LEDs:
Six	(6)	multi-chip,	13W,	high-output,	long-life	LEDs.

Color	Consistency:
3-step	MacAdam	Ellipse	binning	to	achieve	consistent
fixture-to-fixture	color.

Color	Stability:
LED	color	temperature	is	warrantied	to	shift	no	more
than	200K	in	CCT	over	a	5	year	period.

Color	Uniformity:
RAB's	range	of	CCT	(Correlated	Color	Temperature)
follows	the	guidelines	of	the	American	National
Standard	for	Specifications	for	the	Chromaticity	of
Solid	State	Lighting	(SSL)	Products,	ANSI	C78.377-
2017.

	Construction
IES	Classification:
The	Type	II	distribution	is	ideal	for	wide	walkways,	on
ramps	and	entrance	roadways,	bike	paths	and	other
long	and	narrow	lighting	applications.	This	type	is
meant	for	lighting	larger	areas	and	usually	is	located
near	the	roadside.	This	type	of	lighting	is	commonly
found	on	smaller	side	streets	or	jogging	paths.

Effective	Projected	Area:
EPA	=	0.75

Ambient	Temperature:
SuitableFor	use	in	40°C	(104°F)	ambient
temperatures.

Cold	Weather	Starting:
Minimum	starting	temperature	is	-40°C	(-40°F)

Thermal	Management:
Superior	heat	sinking	with	external	Air-Flow	fins.

Lens:
Tempered	glass	lens.

Housing:
Die	cast	aluminum	housing,	lens	frame	and	mounting
arm.

IP	Rating:
Ingress	Protection	rating	of	IP66	for	dust	and	water

Mounting:
Universal	mounting	arm	compatible	for	hole	spacing
patterns	from	1"	to	5	1/2"	center	to	center.	Round	Pole
Adaptor	plate	included	as	a	standard.	Easy	slide	and
lock	to	mount	fixture	with	ease.

	Reflector:
Specular	vacuum-metallized	polycarbonate

Gaskets:
High	temperature	silicone	gaskets.

Finish:
Formulated	for	high-durability	and	long	lasting	color.

Green	Technology:
Mercury	and	UV	free.	RoHS	compliant	components.
Polyester	powder	coat	finish	formulated	without	the
use	of	VOC	or	toxic	heavy	metals.

For	use	on	LEED	Buildings:
IDA	Dark	Sky	Approval	means	that	this	fixture	can	be
used	to	achieve	LEED	Credits	for	Light	Pollution
Reduction.

Electrical

Driver:
Constant	Current,	Class	2,	2000mA,	100-277V,	50-
60Hz,	1.1A,	Power	Factor	99%

THD:
5.0%	at	120V,	12.3%	at	277V

Surge	Protection:
4kV

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-399-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED2T78 	 	

Technical	Specifications	(continued)
Electrical
Surge	Protector:
ALED78	is	available	with	a	6kV	surge	protector	(SP6).
SP6	available	.

Other

California	Title	24:
See	ALED2T78/D10,	ALED2T78/BL,	ALED2T78/PCS,
ALED2T78/PCS2,	or	ALED2T78/PCT	for	a	2013
California	Title	24	compliant	product.	Any	additional
component	requirements	will	be	listed	in	the	Title	24
section	under	technical	specifications	on	the	product
page.

Compatibility:
Compatible	with	Round	Poles	with	a	diameter	of	2.5"
to	6"

	Warranty:
RAB	warrants	that	our	LED	products	will	be	free	from
defects	in	materials	and	workmanship	for	a	period	of
five	(5)	years	from	the	date	of	delivery	to	the	end	user,
including	coverage	of	light	output,	color	stability,	driver
performance	and	fixture	finish.

Patents:
The	ALED	design	is	protected	by	patents	in	the	U.S.
Pat.	668,370,	Canada	Pat.	144956,	China
ZL201230100154.X,	and	Mexico	Pat.	38423.	Pending
patents	in	Taiwan.

Replacement:
Replaces	250W	Metal	Halide.

	Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Optical

BUG	Rating:
B1	U0	G2

Dimensions Features

66%	energy	cost	savings	vs.	HID

100,000-hour	LED	lifespan

Type	II	distribution

5-year	warranty

Ordering	Matrix

Family Optics Wattage Mounting Color	Temp Finish Driver	Options Photocell	Options

ALED 2T 78 	 	 	 	 	
2T	=
Type	II
3T	=

Type	III
4T	=

Type	IV

50	=
50W
78	=
78W
105	=
105W
125	=
125W
150	=
150W

Blank	=	Pole
mount

SF	=	Slipfitter

Blank	=	5000K
(Cool)

N	=	4000K
(Neutral)
Y	=	3000K
(Warm)

Blank	=
Bronze

RG	=	Roadway
Gray

W	=	White

Blank	=	120-277V
/480	=	480V	(not	available

for	150W)
/BL	=	Bi-Level

/D10	=	0-10V	Dimming

Blank	=	No	Option
/PC	=	120V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PC2	=	277V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PCT	=	120-277V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models

only)
/PCT4	=	480V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)

/PCS	=	120V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS2	=	277V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS4	=	480V	Swivel	Photocell

/WS2	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	20	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

/WS4	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	40	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-400-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Square	steel	poles	drilled	for	2	Area	Lights	at	180°.	Designed	for	ground	mounting.
Poles	are	stocked	nationwide	for	quick	shipment.	Protective	packaging	ensures
poles	arrive	at	the	job	site	good	as	new.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	137.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Lamp	Info
Type: N/A
Watts: 0W
Shape/Size: N/A
Base: N/A
ANSI: N/A
Hours: N/A
Lamp	Lumens: N/A
Efficacy: N/A

Ballast	Info
Type: N/A
120V: N/A
208V: N/A
240V: N/A
277V: N/A
Input	Watts: 0W

Technical	Specifications
Listings
CSA	Listed:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.

Construction

Shaft:
46,000	p.s.i.	minimum	yield.

Hand	Holes:
Reinforced	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover.

Base	Plates:
Slotted	base	plates	36,000	p.s.i.

Shipping	Protection:
All	poles	are	shipped	in	individual	corrugated	cartons
to	prevent	finish	damage.

Color:
Bronze	powder	coating.

Height:
20	FT.

	Weight:
137	lbs.

Gauge:
11

Wall	Thickness:
1/8".

Shaft	Size:
4".

Hand	Hole	Dimensions:
3"	x	5".

Bolt	Circle:
8	1/2".

Base	Dimension:
8".

	Anchor	Bolt:
Galvanized	anchor	bolts	and	galvanized	hardware	and
anchor	bolt	template.	All	bolts	have	a	3"	hook.

Anchor	Bolt	Templates:
WARNING	Template	must	be	printed	on	11"	x	17"
sheet	for	actual	size.	CHECK	SCALE	BEFORE
USING.	Templates	shipped	with	anchor	bolts	and
available	.

Pre-Shipped	Anchor	Bolts:
Bolts	can	be	pre-shipped	upon	request	for	additional
freight	charge.

MaxEPA's/Max	Weights:
70MPH	8.3	ft_/240	lb
80MPH	5.6	ft_/165	lb
90MPH	3.6	ft_/110	lb
100MPH	2.2	ft_/75	lb
110MPH	1.0	ft_/45	lb
120MPH	0.2	ft_/20	lb.

Other

Terms	of	Sale:
Pole	Terms	of	Sale	is	available	.

Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-401-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Dimensions Features

Designed	for	ground	mounting

Heavy	duty	TGIC	polyester	coating

Reinforced	hand	holes	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover	for
easy	wiring	access

Anchor	Bolt	Kit	includes	pole	cap	and	base	cover	(sold	separately)

Custom	manufactured	for	each	application

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-402-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED2T105 	 	

Specification	grade	area	lights	available	in	IES	Type	II	distributions.	For	use	in
parking	lots,	roadways,	pathways	and	general	area	lighting.	Patent	pending	thermal
management	system.	5	Year	Warranty.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	32.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Driver	Info
Type: Constant	Current
120V: 0.89A
208V: 0.58A
240V: 0.50A
277V: 0.44A
Input	Watts: 108W
Efficiency: 98%

LED	Info
Watts: 105W
Color	Temp: 5000K
Color	Accuracy: 70	CRI
L70	Lifespan: 100000
Lumens: 13213
Efficacy: 123	LPW

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	3

-403-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED2T105 	 	

Technical	Specifications
Listings
UL	Listing:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.

DLC	Listed:
This	product	is	on	the	Design	Lights	Consortium	(DLC)
Qualified	Products	List	and	is	eligible	for	rebates	from
DLC	Member	Utilities.	
DLC	Product	Code:_P0000177B

IESNA	LM-79	&	LM-80	Testing:
RAB	LED	luminaries	have	been	tested	by	an
independent	laboratory	in	accordance	with	IESNA	LM-
79	and	LM-80,	and	have	been	received	the
Department	of	Energy	"Lighting	Facts"	label.

Dark	Sky	Approved:
The	International	Dark	Sky	Association	has	approved
this	product	as	a	full	cutoff,	fully	shielded	luminaire.

LED	Characteristics

Lifespan:
100,000-hour	LED	lifespan	based	on	IES	LM-80
results	and	TM-21	calculations.

LEDs:
Multi-chip,	high-output,	long-life	LEDs

Color	Stability:
LED	color	temperature	is	warrantied	to	shift	no	more
than	200K	in	CCT	over	a	5	year	period.

Color	Uniformity:
RAB's	range	of	CCT	(Correlated	Color	Temperature)
follows	the	guidelines	of	the	American	National
Standard	for	Specifications	for	the	Chromaticity	of
Solid	State	Lighting	(SSL)	Products,	ANSI	C78.377-
2017.

Construction
IES	Classification:
The	Type	II	distribution	is	ideal	for	wide	walkways,	on
ramps	and	entrance	roadways,	bike	paths	and	other
long	and	narrow	lighting	applications.	This	type	is
meant	for	lighting	larger	areas	and	usually	is	located
near	the	roadside.	This	type	of	lighting	is	commonly
found	on	smaller	side	streets	or	jogging	paths.

	Effective	Projected	Area:
EPA	=	0.75

Maximum	Ambient	Temperature:
Suitable	for	use	in	40°C	(104°F)	ambient	temperatures

Cold	Weather	Starting:
Minimum	starting	temperature	is	-40°C	(-40°F)

Thermal	Management:
Superior	thermal	management	with	external	"Air-Flow"
fins.

Lens:
Tempered	glass	lens.

Housing:
Die-cast	aluminum	housing,	lens	frame	and	mounting
arm.

Mounting:
Universal	mounting	arm	compatible	for	hole	spacing
patterns	from	1"	to	5	1/2"	center	to	center.	Round	Pole
Adaptor	plate	included	as	a	standard.	Easy	slide	and
lock	to	mount	fixture	with	ease.

Reflector:
Specular	vacuum-metallized	polycarbonate

Gaskets:
High-temperature	silicone	gaskets

	IP	Rating:
Ingress	Protection	rating	of	IP66	for	dust	and	water

Finish:
Formulated	for	high-durability	and	long	lasting	color.

Green	Technology:
Mercury	and	UV	free.	RoHS	compliant	components.
Polyester	powder	coat	finish	formulated	without	the
use	of	VOC	or	toxic	heavy	metals.

For	use	on	LEED	Buildings:
IDA	Dark	Sky	Approval	means	that	this	fixture	can	be
used	to	achieve	LEED	Credits	for	Light	Pollution
Reduction.

Electrical

Drivers:
Two	Drivers,	Constant	Current,	Class	2,	1400mA,	100-
277V,	50/60Hz,	0.8A,	Power	Factor	99%

THD:
7.6%	at	120V,	16.4%	at	277V

Surge	Protection:
4kV

Other

California	Title	24:
See	ALED2T105/BL,	ALED2T105/PCS,
ALED2T105/PCS2,	or	ALED2T105/PCT	for	a	2013
California	Title	24	compliant	product.	Any	additional
component	requirements	will	be	listed	in	the	Title	24
section	under	technical	specifications	on	the	product
page.

Technical	Specifications	(continued)
Other
Compatibility:
Compatible	with	Round	Poles	with	a	diameter	of	2.5"
to	6"

Warranty:
RAB	warrants	that	our	LED	products	will	be	free	from
defects	in	materials	and	workmanship	for	a	period	of
five	(5)	years	from	the	date	of	delivery	to	the	end	user,
including	coverage	of	light	output,	color	stability,	driver
performance	and	fixture	finish.

	Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Optical

BUG	Rating:
B2	U0	G2

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	3

-404-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED2T105 	 	

Dimensions Features

66%	energy	cost	savings	vs.	HID

100,000-hour	LED	lifespan

Type	II	distribution

5-year	warranty

Ordering	Matrix

Family Optics Wattage Mounting Color	Temp Finish Driver	Options Photocell	Options

ALED 2T 105 	 	 	 	 	
2T	=
Type	II
3T	=

Type	III
4T	=

Type	IV

50	=	50W
78	=	78W
105	=
105W
125	=
125W
150	=
150W

Blank	=	Pole
mount

SF	=	Slipfitter

Blank	=	5000K
(Cool)

N	=	4000K
(Neutral)
Y	=	3000K
(Warm)

Blank	=
Bronze

RG	=	Roadway
Gray

W	=	White

Blank	=	120-277V
/480	=	480V	(not	available

for	150W)
/BL	=	Bi-Level

/D10	=	0-10V	Dimming

Blank	=	No	Option
/PC	=	120V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PC2	=	277V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PCT	=	120-277V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models

only)
/PCT4	=	480V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models

only)
/PCS	=	120V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS2	=	277V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS4	=	480V	Swivel	Photocell

/WS2	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	20	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

/WS4	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	40	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	3	of	3

-405-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Square	steel	poles	drilled	for	2	Area	Lights	at	180°.	Designed	for	ground	mounting.
Poles	are	stocked	nationwide	for	quick	shipment.	Protective	packaging	ensures
poles	arrive	at	the	job	site	good	as	new.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	137.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Lamp	Info
Type: N/A
Watts: 0W
Shape/Size: N/A
Base: N/A
ANSI: N/A
Hours: N/A
Lamp	Lumens: N/A
Efficacy: N/A

Ballast	Info
Type: N/A
120V: N/A
208V: N/A
240V: N/A
277V: N/A
Input	Watts: 0W

Technical	Specifications
Listings
CSA	Listed:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.

Construction

Shaft:
46,000	p.s.i.	minimum	yield.

Hand	Holes:
Reinforced	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover.

Base	Plates:
Slotted	base	plates	36,000	p.s.i.

Shipping	Protection:
All	poles	are	shipped	in	individual	corrugated	cartons
to	prevent	finish	damage.

Color:
Bronze	powder	coating.

Height:
20	FT.

	Weight:
137	lbs.

Gauge:
11

Wall	Thickness:
1/8".

Shaft	Size:
4".

Hand	Hole	Dimensions:
3"	x	5".

Bolt	Circle:
8	1/2".

Base	Dimension:
8".

	Anchor	Bolt:
Galvanized	anchor	bolts	and	galvanized	hardware	and
anchor	bolt	template.	All	bolts	have	a	3"	hook.

Anchor	Bolt	Templates:
WARNING	Template	must	be	printed	on	11"	x	17"
sheet	for	actual	size.	CHECK	SCALE	BEFORE
USING.	Templates	shipped	with	anchor	bolts	and
available	.

Pre-Shipped	Anchor	Bolts:
Bolts	can	be	pre-shipped	upon	request	for	additional
freight	charge.

MaxEPA's/Max	Weights:
70MPH	8.3	ft_/240	lb
80MPH	5.6	ft_/165	lb
90MPH	3.6	ft_/110	lb
100MPH	2.2	ft_/75	lb
110MPH	1.0	ft_/45	lb
120MPH	0.2	ft_/20	lb.

Other

Terms	of	Sale:
Pole	Terms	of	Sale	is	available	.

Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-406-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Dimensions Features

Designed	for	ground	mounting

Heavy	duty	TGIC	polyester	coating

Reinforced	hand	holes	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover	for
easy	wiring	access

Anchor	Bolt	Kit	includes	pole	cap	and	base	cover	(sold	separately)

Custom	manufactured	for	each	application

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-407-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED3T105 	 	

Specification	grade	area	lights	available	in	IES	Type	III	distributions.	For	use	for
roadway,	general	parking	and	other	area	lighting	applications	where	a	larger	pool	of
lighting	is	required.	Patent	pending	thermal	management	system.	5	Year	Warranty.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	32.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Driver	Info
Type: Constant	Current
120V: 0.89A
208V: 0.58A
240V: 0.50A
277V: 0.44A
Input	Watts: 109W
Efficiency: 96%

LED	Info
Watts: 105W
Color	Temp: 5000K
Color	Accuracy: 70	CRI
L70	Lifespan: 100000
Lumens: 12476
Efficacy: 115	LPW

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	3

-408-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED3T105 	 	

Technical	Specifications
Listings
UL	Listing:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.

DLC	Listed:
This	product	is	on	the	Design	Lights	Consortium	(DLC)
Qualified	Products	List	and	is	eligible	for	rebates	from
DLC	Member	Utilities.	
DLC	Product	Code:	P0000177E

IESNA	LM-79	&	LM-80	Testing:
RAB	LED	luminaries	have	been	tested	by	an
independent	laboratory	in	accordance	with	IESNA	LM-
79	and	LM-80,	and	have	been	received	the
Department	of	Energy	"Lighting	Facts"	label.

Dark	Sky	Approved:
The	International	Dark	Sky	Association	has	approved
this	product	as	a	full	cutoff,	fully	shielded	luminaire.

LED	Characteristics

Lifespan:
100,000-hour	LED	lifespan	based	on	IES	LM-80
results	and	TM-21	calculations.

LEDs:
Multi-chip,	high-output,	long-life	LEDs

Color	Stability:
LED	color	temperature	is	warrantied	to	shift	no	more
than	200K	in	CCT	over	a	5	year	period.

Color	Uniformity:
RAB's	range	of	CCT	(Correlated	Color	Temperature)
follows	the	guidelines	of	the	American	National
Standard	for	Specifications	for	the	Chromaticity	of
Solid	State	Lighting	(SSL)	Products,	ANSI	C78.377-
2017.

Construction
IES	Classification:
The	Type	III	distribution	is	ideal	for	roadway,	general
parking	and	other	area	lighting	applications	where	a
larger	pool	of	lighting	is	required.	It	is	intended	to	be
located	near	the	side	of	the	area,	allowing	the	light	to
project	outward	and	fill	the	area.

	Effective	Projected	Area:
EPA	=	0.75

Maximum	Ambient	Temperature:
Suitable	for	use	in	40°C	(104°F)	ambient	temperatures

Cold	Weather	Starting:
Minimum	starting	temperature	is	-40°C	(-40°F)

Thermal	Management:
Superior	thermal	management	with	external	"Air-Flow"
fins.

Lens:
Tempered	glass	lens.

Housing:
Die-cast	aluminum	housing,	lens	frame	and	mounting
arm.

Mounting:
Universal	mounting	arm	compatible	for	hole	spacing
patterns	from	1"	to	5	1/2"	center	to	center.	Round	Pole
Adaptor	plate	included	as	a	standard.	Easy	slide	and
lock	to	mount	fixture	with	ease.

Reflector:
Specular	vacuum-metallized	polycarbonate

Gaskets:
High-temperature	silicone	gaskets

	IP	Rating:
Ingress	Protection	rating	of	IP66	for	dust	and	water

Finish:
Formulated	for	high-durability	and	long	lasting	color.

Green	Technology:
Mercury	and	UV	free.	RoHS	compliant	components.
Polyester	powder	coat	finish	formulated	without	the
use	of	VOC	or	toxic	heavy	metals.

For	use	on	LEED	Buildings:
IDA	Dark	Sky	Approval	means	that	this	fixture	can	be
used	to	achieve	LEED	Credits	for	Light	Pollution
Reduction.

Electrical

Drivers:
Two	Drivers,	Constant	Current,	Class	2,	1400mA,	100-
277V,	50/60Hz,	0.8A,	Power	Factor	99%

THD:
7.9%	at	120V,	16.2%	at	277V

Surge	Protection:
4kV

Other

California	Title	24:
See	ALED3T105/BL,	ALED3T105/PCS,
ALED3T105/PCS2,	or	ALED3T105/PCT	for	a	2013
California	Title	24	compliant	product.	Any	additional
component	requirements	will	be	listed	in	the	Title	24
section	under	technical	specifications	on	the	product
page.

Technical	Specifications	(continued)
Other
Compatibility:
Compatible	with	Round	Poles	with	a	diameter	of	2.5"
to	6"

Warranty:
RAB	warrants	that	our	LED	products	will	be	free	from
defects	in	materials	and	workmanship	for	a	period	of
five	(5)	years	from	the	date	of	delivery	to	the	end	user,
including	coverage	of	light	output,	color	stability,	driver
performance	and	fixture	finish.

	Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Optical

BUG	Rating:
B1	U0	G2

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	3

-409-

Item G.2.o. 



ALED3T105 	 	

Dimensions Features

66%	energy	cost	savings	vs.	HID

100,000-hour	LED	lifespan

Type	III	distribution

5-year	warranty

Ordering	Matrix

Family Optics Wattage Mounting Color	Temp Finish Driver	Options Photocell	Options

ALED 3T 105 	 	 	 	 	
2T	=
Type	II
3T	=
Type	III
4T	=
Type	IV

50	=	50W
78	=	78W
105	=
105W
125	=
125W
150	=
150W

Blank	=	Pole
mount

SF	=	Slipfitter

Blank	=	5000K
(Cool)

N	=	4000K
(Neutral)
Y	=	3000K
(Warm)

Blank	=
Bronze

RG	=	Roadway
Gray

W	=	White

Blank	=	120-277V
/480	=	480V	(not	available

for	150W)
/BL	=	Bi-Level

/D10	=	0-10V	Dimming

Blank	=	No	Option
/PC	=	120V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PC2	=	277V	Button	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models	only)
/PCT	=	120-277V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models

only)
/PCT4	=	480V	Twistlock	Photocell	(Pole	mount	models

only)
/PCS	=	120V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS2	=	277V	Swivel	Photocell
/PCS4	=	480V	Swivel	Photocell

/WS2	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	20	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

/WS4	=	Multi-Level	Motion	Sensor	40	ft.	(Only	available	0-
10V	dimming	models)

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	3	of	3

-410-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Square	steel	poles	drilled	for	2	Area	Lights	at	180°.	Designed	for	ground	mounting.
Poles	are	stocked	nationwide	for	quick	shipment.	Protective	packaging	ensures
poles	arrive	at	the	job	site	good	as	new.

Color:	Bronze 	 Weight:	137.0	lbs

Project: Type:

Prepared	By: Date:

Lamp	Info
Type: N/A
Watts: 0W
Shape/Size: N/A
Base: N/A
ANSI: N/A
Hours: N/A
Lamp	Lumens: N/A
Efficacy: N/A

Ballast	Info
Type: N/A
120V: N/A
208V: N/A
240V: N/A
277V: N/A
Input	Watts: 0W

Technical	Specifications
Listings
CSA	Listed:
Suitable	for	wet	locations.

Construction

Shaft:
46,000	p.s.i.	minimum	yield.

Hand	Holes:
Reinforced	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover.

Base	Plates:
Slotted	base	plates	36,000	p.s.i.

Shipping	Protection:
All	poles	are	shipped	in	individual	corrugated	cartons
to	prevent	finish	damage.

Color:
Bronze	powder	coating.

Height:
20	FT.

	Weight:
137	lbs.

Gauge:
11

Wall	Thickness:
1/8".

Shaft	Size:
4".

Hand	Hole	Dimensions:
3"	x	5".

Bolt	Circle:
8	1/2".

Base	Dimension:
8".

	Anchor	Bolt:
Galvanized	anchor	bolts	and	galvanized	hardware	and
anchor	bolt	template.	All	bolts	have	a	3"	hook.

Anchor	Bolt	Templates:
WARNING	Template	must	be	printed	on	11"	x	17"
sheet	for	actual	size.	CHECK	SCALE	BEFORE
USING.	Templates	shipped	with	anchor	bolts	and
available	.

Pre-Shipped	Anchor	Bolts:
Bolts	can	be	pre-shipped	upon	request	for	additional
freight	charge.

MaxEPA's/Max	Weights:
70MPH	8.3	ft_/240	lb
80MPH	5.6	ft_/165	lb
90MPH	3.6	ft_/110	lb
100MPH	2.2	ft_/75	lb
110MPH	1.0	ft_/45	lb
120MPH	0.2	ft_/20	lb.

Other

Terms	of	Sale:
Pole	Terms	of	Sale	is	available	.

Buy	American	Act	Compliance:
RAB	values	USA	manufacturing!	Upon	request,	RAB
may	be	able	to	manufacture	this	product	to	be
compliant	with	the	Buy	American	Act	(BAA).	Please
contact	customer	service	to	request	a	quote	for	the
product	to	be	made	BAA	compliant.

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	1	of	2

-411-

Item G.2.o. 



PS4-11-20D2 	 	

Dimensions Features

Designed	for	ground	mounting

Heavy	duty	TGIC	polyester	coating

Reinforced	hand	holes	with	grounding	lug	and	removable	cover	for
easy	wiring	access

Anchor	Bolt	Kit	includes	pole	cap	and	base	cover	(sold	separately)

Custom	manufactured	for	each	application

Need	help?	Tech	help	line:	(888)	RAB-1000	Email:	sales@rabweb.com	Website:	www.rabweb.com
Copyright	©	2014	RAB	Lighting	Inc.	All	Rights	Reserved				Note:	Specifications	are	subject	to	change	at	any	time	without	notice

	 Page	2	of	2

-412-

Item G.2.o. 



Holiday Inn & Suites and Conference Center  
 

Project Description:  

 

The proposed Holiday Inn and Suites Hotel and Conference Center is the first phase of the newly 

platted Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls. The Business Park is located on the South side of 

Cedar Falls, adjacent to the existing industrial park at the corner of Hudson Road and Ridgeway 

Avenue East.  

 

The 6.6 Acre site is located off of the Hudson Road. It will accommodate the proposed Holiday 

Inn and Suites, the Conference Center and a future hotel on the north end of the site. The site 

expands the cities bike/walking trails along Hudson Road and Cyber Lane. Cyber Lane is 

proposed to extend to Ridgeway Avenue West. The site is heavily landscaped. Numerous 

outdoor patios surround the event center to extend the centers event space to the exterior. The 

storm retention ponds on the north and south sides of the site will be formed and landscaped to 

provide a natural setting creating a stunning water feature on the grounds. The design of this site 

will be the tone for the rest of the sites within the future business park.  

 

The Hotel is a four story wood structure clad in brick, stone, stucco and glass. The hotel has 126 

guestrooms; single king, double queen, and suites with separate living and sleeping areas with 

kitchenettes. Amenities in the hotel include a full service restaurant and bar, conference rooms, 

swimming pool, exercise room, lounges, business center and guest laundry facilities. The hotel 

totals 86,700 sq.ft.  

 

The Conference center is a one story steel and masonry structure clads in brick, stone, and glass.  

The center can be divided into many configurations and hold up to 1,200 people. This 

conference center will be a great amenity not only to the community but also the greater 

Cedar Falls/ Waterloo region.  
 

-413-

Item G.2.o. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A HWY-1, HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL 
DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN FOR A NEW HOLIDAY INN 
AND SUITES HOTEL AND CONFERENCE CENTER 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed a HWY-1, 

Highway Commercial District development site plan on Lot 1 of Gateway 
Business Park at Cedar Falls I, and 

 
WHEREAS, the site plan includes a new Holiday Inn and Suites Hotel 

and Conference Center, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended 

approval of said site plan on Lot 1 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I, 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby recommend approval of the 
HWY-1, Highway Commercial District development site plan on Lot 1 of 
Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that the HWY-1, Highway Commercial District 
development site plan on Lot 1 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I is 
hereby approved. 
 
 

ADOPTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 

 
________________________________________ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 

-414-

Item G.2.o. 



CERTIFICATE 
 
I, Jacqueline Danielson, MMC and City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct 
typewritten copy of the Resolution Number ______________ duly and legally 
adopted by the City Council of said city on the _____ day of ________________, 
2018. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affix the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ______ day of _______________, 
2018 

 
 

            
     Jacqueline Danielson, MMC 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 

-415-

Item G.2.o. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: May 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I – Developmental Procedures Agreement 
 
 
Pursuant to Section 24-5 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, a subdivider of property is 
required to install and construct certain minimum improvements, which may include streets, 
sidewalks, sanitary sewer system, storm sewer system, water main system and any other 
improvements that may be necessary to develop the platted area in a manner that contributes to 
the logical and efficient extension of infrastructure to the larger community. As such, the City 
may require, as a condition of approval of a plat, that certain infrastructure be increased in size 
as necessary to not only meet the needs of the platted area, but also to complete a logical and 
efficient system of infrastructure for the entire community. When such a circumstance arises, the 
City will pay the subdivider the difference in cost between the infrastructure necessary to serve 
the platted area and the cost of the oversized infrastructure necessary to serve the larger needs 
of the community. 
 
As part of the development of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I, the City will require the 
extension of a sanitary sewer structure that is larger than necessary to meet the requirements of 
the platted area, but also necessary to extend the City sanitary sewer system as it relates to 
future areas to the south. The enclosed Developmental Procedures Agreement provides for 
payment to the Subdivider, CF Gateway Park, Inc., the difference in the cost of the pipe and 
installation between the sanitary sewer structure required for the subdivision plat and the larger 
sanitary sewer structure necessary to serve the larger area beyond the boundaries of the plat. 
The larger sanitary sewer structure is a 15-inch diameter pipe, while the sanitary sewer structure 
needed to serve the Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls would be an 8-inch diameter pipe. 
The estimated cost of installing the larger sanitary sewer structure is $26,640.00. 
 
Also as part of the development, the City will require installation of a 10-foot-wide recreational 
trail adjacent to the public right-of-way along Hudson Road and W. Ridgeway Avenue. This will 
be in lieu of a 5-foot public sidewalk that is required along street frontages as a part of a 
subdivision plat.  This 10-foot wide recreational trail will be located along Hudson Road, from 
Technology Parkway to West Ridgeway Avenue, and along W Ridgeway Avenue, from Hudson 
Road to Cyber Lane. The Agreement provides for payment to the Subdivider the difference in 
cost of the installation of a 5-foot wide sidewalk and a 10-foot wide recreational trail. The 
estimated cost of installing the larger recreational trail is $66,506.45. 
 

-417-

Item G.2.p. 



The larger sanitary sewer and structure and recreational trail will be designed and constructed 
as part of the public improvements in Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I. The City will 
reimburse the Developer when all of the public improvements are completed and accepted by 
the City Council. A map showing the locations of the sanitary sewer structure and recreational 
trail is enclosed for your reference. 
 
Local funding for this project is proposed to come from the Economic Development Fund. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approving the Developmental 
Procedures Agreement with CF Gateway Park, Inc. 
 

-418-

Item G.2.p. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613                                    (319) 268-5160 
 

DEVELOPMENTAL PROCEDURES AGREEMENT 
GATEWAY BUSINESS PARK AT CEDAR FALLS I  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into this  ______day of __________, 2018, by and between the 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA (“City”) and CF GATEWAY PARK, INC., an Iowa corporation 
(“Subdivider”), for the purpose of outlining procedures to be followed for the subdivision of certain land 
located in the vicinity of Hudson Road and West Ridgeway Avenue, to be known as Gateway 
Business Park at Cedar Falls I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, and containing 
approximately 16.89 acres, said land legally described as follows: 
 
That part of the Southeast Quarter of Section No. 35, Township No. 89 North, Range No. 14 West of the Fifth 
Principal Meridian in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, lying Southerly of Cedar Falls 
Technology Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, except those parcels deeded for road purposes in 112 LD 
487, 539 LD 335, 539 LD 338 and 552 LD 935. 
 
and 
 
Lot 23 in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, except that part of Lot 23, Cedar Falls 
Technology Park Phase II described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Lot 23; Thence N 04°09’06” E 62.91 feet along the West line of 
said Lot 23 to the point of beginning; Thence N 85°40’03” E 374.63 feet; Thence S 75°44’42” E 57.22 feet to 
the East line of said Lot 23; Thence Northerly 42.91 feet along a 433.00 foot radius curve, concave Easterly 
(said curve having a long chord of 42.90 feet and bearing N 11°24’00” E); Thence N 14°14’21” E 81.41 feet 
along the East line of Lot 23: Thence Northwesterly 100.58 feet along a 55.00 foot radius curve, concave 
Southwesterly (said curve having a long chord of 87.14 feet and bearing N 38°09’02” W); Thence S 89°27’35” 
W 196.82 feet along the North line of said Lot 23; Thence S 83°44’57” W 182.43 feet along the North line of 
said Lot 23; Thence Southwesterly 20.84 feet along a 15 foot radius curve, concave Southeasterly (said curve 
having a long chord of 19.20 feet and bearing S 43°57’02” W); Thence S 04°09’06” W 168.60 feet along the 
West line of said Lot 23 to the point of beginning more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southwest Corner of Lot 23, Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 
Thence N 05°02’35” E along the West line of said Lot 23 also being the East Right of Way of Hudson Road a 
distance of 62.91 feet; Thence N 86°31’44” E a distance of 374.63 feet; Thence S 74°52’50” E to a point on the 
West Right of Way of Cyber Lane a distance of 57.24 feet; Thence Southwesterly to the Southwest corner of 
said Lot 23 a distance of 70.98 feet along the arc of a 433.00 foot radius curve concaved easterly (Chord bears 

-419-

Item G.2.p. 



2 
 

S 04°43’27” W a distance of 70.90 feet); Thence S 89°58’04” E a distance of 66.00 feet; Thence S 00°01’39” W 
a distance of 544.73 feet; Thence Southeasterly a distance of 498.10 feet along the arc of a 317.00 foot radius 
curve concaved Northeasterly (Chord bears S 44°59’10” E a distance of 448.42 feet); Thence S 00°00’00” E a 
distance of 66.00 feet; Thence S 90°00’00” W a distance of 5.99 feet; Thence Southwesterly a distance of 
23.43 feet along the arc of a 15.00 foot radius curve concaved Southeasterly (Chord bears S 45°15’03” W a 
distance of 21.12 feet); Thence S 00°30’06” W a distance of 123.23 feet; Thence Southeasterly a distance of 
188.27 feet along the arc of a 120.00 foot radius curve concaved Northeasterly to a point on the North Right 
of Way of West Ridgeway Avenue (Chord bears S 44°26’43” E a distance of 169.55 feet); Thence N 89’ 23’32” 
W along said North Right of Way to a point also being said East Right of Way a distance of 891.50 feet; Thence 
N 04°42’02” W along said East Right of Way a distance of 215.26 feet; Thence N 00°02’12” E along said East 
Right of Way a distance of 961.28 feet; Thence N 05°02’35” E along said East Right of Way to the Point of 
Beginning a distance of 2.04 feet. 
 
Said parcel contains 16.89 acres, subject to easements and restrictions of record. 
 

RECITALS 
 

Whereas, it is the desire of the Subdivider to subdivide and develop the property as part of 
the City’s HWY-1 Highway Commercial Zoning District; and 

 

Whereas, pursuant to Section 24-5 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, a subdivider is 
required to install and construct certain minimum improvements, including, but not limited to streets, 
sidewalks, a sanitary sewer system, a storm sewer system and other improvements necessary to 
develop the platted area in a manner that contributes to the logical and efficient extension of 
infrastructure to the larger community; and 

 

Whereas, the City may require, as a condition of approval of a plat, dedication and 
improvement of specified infrastructure that is greater in size or extent than necessary to meet the 
needs of the platted area, but necessary to complete a logical and efficient system of infrastructure 
for the entire community; and 

   
Whereas, in such a circumstance, the City shall pay the subdivider the difference in cost 

between the infrastructure necessary to serve the platted area and the cost of the oversized 
infrastructure necessary to serve the larger community, as determined by the City; and 

  
Whereas, pursuant to the subdivision of the Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I, the City 

requires and the Subdivider acknowledges the necessity of installing a larger sanitary sewer  to meet 
the needs of the platted area in a manner that contributes to the logical and efficient system of 
sanitary sewer service to the community. The City shall pay the Subdivider the difference in cost of 
the pipe and installation between the sanitary sewer structure typically required for the subdivision 
plat and the larger sanitary sewer structure necessary to serve the larger community. The calculation 
of the cost difference is attached hereto as Exhibit A and by this reference incorporated herein; and 

 

Whereas, the City requires and the Subdivider acknowledges the necessity of installing wider 
pedestrian facilities along the major arterial corridors that abut the subdivision to meet the needs of 
the subject subdivision and the larger community, in the form of a 10-foot wide public recreational 
trail. The City shall pay the Subdivider the difference in cost between installing a 5-foot wide sidewalk 
typically required along street frontages within a subdivision plat and the 10-foot wide public 
recreational trail. The calculation of the cost difference is attached hereto as Exhibit A and by this 
reference incorporated herein; and 

 
Whereas, it is the desire of the City to see that the development proceeds in an 

-420-

Item G.2.p. 



3 
 

orderly manner. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Recitals. The Recitals are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
2. Sanitary Sewer Extension. The Subdivider shall extend the 15” public sanitary sewer from 
an existing manhole SAN MH12 adjacent to Hudson Road south of Technology Parkway, south 
approximately 1,140 feet to manhole SAN MH9 as depicted in the Gateway Business Park at Cedar 
Falls I approved construction plans on sheets MS.04 and MS.05 included as Exhibit B attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 
 
3. Recreational Trail Installation. The Subdivider shall install a 10-foot wide recreational trail 
from Technology Parkway, south to West Ridgeway Avenue, and east to Cyber Lane, as depicted 
in the Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I approved construction plans on sheets S.03-S.07, 
included as Exhibit C attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 
 
4. Reimbursement to Subdivider. Upon completion of the oversized sanitary sewer extension 
work, and upon final acceptance and approval of said public improvements by the City in 
accordance with all City requirements, the sanitary sewer facilities shall become the property of the 
City, and the City shall reimburse the Subdivider for the oversize cost, within 30 days of submittal of 
the payment request from the Subdivider. Upon completion of the 10-foot wide recreational trail and 
upon final approval by the City in accordance with all City requirements, the City shall reimburse 
the Subdivider for the oversize cost within 30 days of the submittal of the payment request. The 
amount of reimbursement shall be according to the calculation of the cost difference of the oversized 
sanitary sewer and recreational trail, as defined herein and as shown in Exhibit A attached.   
 
5. Minimum Requirements. All work called for under this Agreement shall be in full 
compliance with all City requirements based on the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances and City 
engineering policies and procedures, and shall be subject to approval by the City Engineer of City. 
 
6. Condition of Plat Approval.  Subdivider’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement 
shall be a condition for approval of the final plat of the Development Property known as Gateway 
Business Park at Cedar Falls I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 
7. Governing Law. This agreement is a contract made under the laws of the State of Iowa and 
is governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
8. Validity. If any portion, section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph, or phrase of this 
Agreement is for any reason held invalid, such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining 
portion of this Agreement.  
 
9. Waiver. The action or inaction of either party will not constitute a waiver of or amendment 
to the provisions of this Agreement. To be binding, amendments or waivers must be in writing, 
signed by both parties, and approved by written resolution of the City Council. A party’s failure to 
take legal action promptly to enforce this Agreement will not be a waiver or a release. 
 
10. Binding Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall 

-421-

Item G.2.p. 



4 
 

be binding upon, the City and the Subdivider, and their respective successors and assigns. This 
Agreement, together with the attached exhibits referred to herein, constitute a complete statement of 
the understanding of the parties with respect to this matter, and this Agreement may not be amended 
except by a writing signed by both parties. All obligations of the Subdivider contained in this 
Agreement shall be covenants that run with the land. The City shall release the obligations of 
Subdivider under this Agreement only when Subdivider has, in the City’s reasonable judgment, fully 
completed its obligations under this Agreement, or, in the City’s sole discretion, when the 
Subdivider has provided the City with adequate written assurances, secured in a manner deemed 
appropriate by the City, that Subdivider will complete its responsibilities and obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 
11. Obligation to Perform. The Subdivider and City agree they are fully obligated to perform as 
provided in this Agreement. The City and Subdivider are liable and responsible for each obligation 
that they agree to undertake in this Agreement. 
 
12. Authorized Representatives. The City and Subdivider have executed this Agreement by 
their duly authorized representatives. 
 
 
       

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 
      By:_______________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 
      CF GATEWAY PARK, INC, 
      an Iowa corporation 
 
 
      By:_______________________________ 
       Atul Patel, President 
 
       
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of_____________, 2018, by 
James P. Brown, as Mayor, and Jacque Danielsen, MMC, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 
 
 
     _________________________________________ 
     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
My Commission Expires: 
 
______________________________ 

-422-

Item G.2.p. 



5 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of_____________, 2018, by 
Atul Patel, as President of CF Gateway Park, Inc., an Iowa corporation. 
 
 
     _________________________________________ 
     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
My Commission Expires: 
 
______________________________ 
 

-423-

Item G.2.p. 



 



101 Increase 8" Sanitary Sewer to 15" 1,480.00 LF 18.00$              26,640.00$         

26,640.00$                

Trail on Lot 2

417 Subgrade Prep Sidewalks (Lot 2) 1,338.89 SY 1.75$                 2,343.06$           

418 Subbase Prep Sidewalks (Lot 2) 367.83 TN 18.97$              6,977.68$           

419 5" PCC Recreation Trail (Lot 2) 1338.89 SY 33.00$              44,183.37$         

420 6" PCC Recreation Trail - ADA Ramps (Lot 2) 135.00 SY 54.50$              7,357.50$           

421 STRIP TOP SOIL 90.45 CY 2.00$                 150.52$              

422 RESPREAD TOPSOIL CYBER ROW 8" 18.09 CY 17.30 260.40$              

423 HYDRO SEEDING 4,820.00 SF 0.40 1,604.20$           

Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I - Infrastructure Oversizing Costs

Trail on Lot 1

409 Subgrade Prep Sidewalks 930.00 SY $                1.75 $           1,627.50

410 Subbase Prep Sidewalks 255.49 TN $              18.97 $           4,846.73

411 5" PCC Recreation Trail (Lot 1) 930.00 SY $              33.00 $         30,690.15

412 6" PCC Recreation Trail - ADA Ramps (Lot 1) 177.78 SY $              54.50 $           9,688.89

413 ADA Detectable Warnings 160.00 SF $              29.00 $           4,640.00

414 STRIP TOP SOIL 623.59 CY $                2.00 $           1,037.72

415 Respread Topsoil 124.72 CY 17.30 $           1,795.26

416 HYDRO SEEDING 3,844.44 SF 0.40 $           1,279.51

Bid 

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price

Oversizing Sanitary Sewer along Hudson

$              

Bid 

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price

Recreational Trail Oversizing along Hudson Rd and W Ridgeway Ave

Trail from Hudson to north side of Lot A (Basin B))

401 Subgrade Prep Sidewalks 238.89 SY $                1.75 $              418.06

402 Subbase Prep Sidewalks 65.63 TN $              18.97 $           1,244.98

403 5" PCC Recreation Trail (Lot 1) 238.89 SY $              33.00 $           7,883.37

404 6" PCC Recreation Trail - ADA Ramps (Lot 1) 45.00 SY $              54.50 $           2,452.50

405 ADA Detectable Warnings 40.00 SF $              29.00 $           1,160.00

406 STRIP TOP SOIL 238.89 CY $                2.00 $              397.54

407 Respread Topsoil 47.78 CY 17.30 $              687.74

408 HYDRO SEEDING 860.00 SF 0.40 $              286.23

$              

  Total for Entire 10' Trail:            

Subtotal: $             93,146.45

133,012.90

           Upsizing Cost Only:                 66,506.45

-425-

Item G.2.p. 



 



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

W Ridgeway Ave

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

W Ridgeway Ave

Technology Pkwy

Cyber Ln

Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I
Sanitary Sewer and
Recreational Trail Locations I

Legend
Recreational Trail
Sanitary Sewer

-427-

Item G.2.p. 



 



E

SAN MH10 48" - SW-301

RIM = 933.93

IE = 919.50 SP-4

IE = 918.90 SP-3

IE = 918.80 SP-2

SAN MH9 48" - SW-301

RIM = 939.92

IE = 923.00 SP-3

IE = 923.34 EX PIPE

725+00
726+00

727+00
728+00

729+00
730+00

731+00
732+00

3
8

2
 
L

F
 
@

 
0

.
5

0
%

SP-3

379 LF @ 1.08%

SP-2

383 LF @ 0.86%

L1

900

905

910

915

920

925

930

935

940

945

950

900

905

910

915

920

925

930

935

940

945

950

725+00

9
3

9
.
3

9
3

6
.
5

9
3

8
.
8

9
3

8
.
3

726+00

9
3

7
.
9

9
3

7
.
2

9
3

6
.
4

9
3

5
.
4

727+00

9
3

4
.
9

9
3

4
.
7

9
3

4
.
5

9
3

4
.
2

728+00

9
3

3
.
9

9
3

3
.
5

9
3

3
.
0

9
3

2
.
6

729+00

9
3

2
.
2

9
3

1
.
9

9
3

1
.
8

9
3

1
.
7

730+00

9
3

0
.
8

9
3

0
.
8

9
3

0
.
9

9
3

1
.
0

731+00

9
3

0
.
0

9
2

9
.
0

9
2

8
.
4

9
2

8
.
0

732+00

9
2

7
.
7

9
3

9
.
3

3

9
3

6
.
5

3

9
3

8
.
7

6

9
3

8
.
3

1

9
3

7
.
8

6

9
3

7
.
1

7

9
3

6
.
4

0

9
3

5
.
3

8

9
3

4
.
8

7

9
3

4
.
6

9

9
3

4
.
5

1

9
3

4
.
2

4

9
3

3
.
9

2

9
3

3
.
5

3

9
3

3
.
0

1

9
3

2
.
6

0

9
3

2
.
2

3

9
3

1
.
9

4

9
3

1
.
8

3

9
3

1
.
6

6

9
3

0
.
8

2

9
3

0
.
8

2

9
3

0
.
9

5

9
3

1
.
0

0

9
2

9
.
9

8

9
2

8
.
9

6

9
2

8
.
3

9

9
2

8
.
0

5

9
2

7
.
7

0

SP-3 379LF

15" PVC TRUSS @
 1.08%

S
A

N
 
M

H
9

 
4

8
"
 
-
 
S

W
-
3

0
1

S
T

A
 
7

2
5

+
4

3
.
3

2

O
F

F
S

E
T

 
0

'
 
R

T

R
I
M

 
=

 
9

3
9

.
9

2

I
E

 
=

 
9

2
3

.
0

0
 
S

P
-
3

S
A

N
 
M

H
9

 
4

8
"
 
-
 
S

W
-
3

0
1

S
T

A
 
7

2
5

+
4

3
.
3

2

O
F

F
S

E
T

 
0

'
 
R

T

R
I
M

 
=

 
9

3
9

.
9

2

I
E

 
=

 
9

2
3

.
0

0
 
S

P
-
3

SP-3 379LF

15" PVC TRUSS @
 1.08%

SP-2 383LF

15" PVC TRUSS @
 0.86%

S
A

N
 
M

H
1

0
 
4

8
"
 
-
 
S

W
-
3

0
1

S
T

A
 
7

2
9

+
2

1
.
8

3

O
F

F
S

E
T

 
0

'
 
R

T

R
I
M

 
=

 
9

3
3

.
9

3

I
E

 
=

 
9

1
9

.
5

0
 
S

P
-
4

I
E

 
=

 
9

1
8

.
9

0
 
S

P
-
3

I
E

 
=

 
9

1
8

.
8

0
 
S

P
-
2

ALIGNMENT SEGMENT TABLE

SEGMENT #

L1

LENGTH

1200.00'

RADIUS LINE/CHORD DIRECTION

N00° 11' 02.43"W

DELTA (Δ)

START POINT

N = 8834371.20

E = 15441893.41

END POINT

N = 8835571.20

E = 15441889.56

A B C D E F

A B C D E F

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3
1

6
 
S

e
c
o

n
d

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
5

0
0

 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d

a
r
 
R

a
p

i
d

s
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
5

2
4

0
1

3
1

9
.
3

6
4

.
0

2
2

7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a

x
:
 
3

1
9

.
3

6
4

.
4

2
5

1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h

i
v
e

-
h

a
t
t
e

r
y
.
c
o

m

I
o

w
a

 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n

o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n

d
i
a

n
a

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L

I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

MS.04

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 
S

E
W

E
R

P
L

A
N

 
&

 
P

R
O

F
I
L

E

S
L
O

C
N

H

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
8

2
1
7
1
6
2
0

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

 
I

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E
 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
A

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
7

1
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L

o
t
 
1

\
C

y
b

e
r
 
L

a
n

e
 
I
n

f
r
a

s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
e

\
M

S
-
S

h
e

e
t
s
.
d

w
g

5
/
3

1
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

:
4

3
:
5

7
 
P

M

HUDSON ROAD

8
.
0

'
 
M

I
N

.

EXISTING GRADE AT

CENTERLINE OF PIPE

LOT 1

EXISTING PIPE

EXISTING/PROPOSED

GRADE AT CENTERLINE

OF PIPE

LOT 2

M
A

T
C

H
L
I
N

E
:
 
S

E
E

 
M

S
.
0
5

NOTE:

1. ALL SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES ALONG

HUDSON ROAD SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH

A RIM 1' ABOVE FINISH GRADE.

2. STATION LOCATION IS BASED ON HUDSON

SANITARY ALIGNMENT. SEE INFORMATION

ON ABOVE.

3. NO FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED

OUTSIDE OF AND ADJACENT TO ANY

PROPERTY LINE OF THIS WORK AREA.

REMOVE TREE/SHRUB FOR SANITARY

SEWER INSTALLATION (TYP.)

PROTECT FIBER

VERIFY EXISTING INVERT ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO ANY SANITARY SEWER

INSTALLATION (SEE NOTE 3, MS.05). VERIFY EXISTING 15" STUB TO THE

NORTH AND IF THIS STUB WILL WORK WITH PROPOSED DESIGN. IF YES,

THE MANHOLE DOES NOT NEED TO BE REPLACED.

OTHERWISE, REMOVE EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE AND INSTALL NEW

-429-

Item
 G

.2.p. 



SAN MH11 48" - SW-301

RIM = 929.10

IE = 915.50 SP-2

IE = 915.40 SP-1

SAN MH12 48" - SW-301

RIM = 923.59

IE = 912.26 SP-1

IE = 912.16 EX PIPE

732+00
733+00

734+00
735+00

736+00
737+00

SP-1

379 LF @ 0.83%

900

905

910

915

920

925

930

935

940

945

950

900

905

910

915

920

925

930

935

940

945

950

732+00

9
2

7
.
7

9
2

7
.
4

9
2

7
.
0

9
2

6
.
5

733+00

9
2

6
.
1

9
2

5
.
8

9
2

5
.
5

9
2

5
.
1

734+00

9
2

4
.
7

9
2

4
.
4

9
2

4
.
1

9
2

3
.
8

735+00

9
2

3
.
6

9
2

3
.
4

9
2

3
.
2

9
2

2
.
9

736+00

9
2

2
.
7

9
2

2
.
5

9
2

2
.
4

9
2

2
.
3

737+00

9
2

1
.
7

9
2

7
.
7

0

9
2

7
.
4

0

9
2

6
.
9

8

9
2

6
.
5

1

9
2

6
.
0

6

9
2

5
.
7

8

9
2

5
.
5

0

9
2

5
.
1

2

9
2

4
.
7

4

9
2

4
.
3

8

9
2

4
.
0

5

9
2

3
.
7

7

9
2

3
.
5

6

9
2

3
.
4

0

9
2

3
.
2

2

9
2

2
.
9

5

9
2

2
.
6

7

9
2

2
.
4

7

9
2

2
.
4

3

9
2

2
.
3

1

9
2

1
.
6

6

SP-2 383LF

15" PVC TRUSS @
 0.86%

SP-1 379LF

15" PVC TRUSS @ 0.83%

15" PVC TRUSS

S
A

N
 
M

H
1

2
 
4

8
"
 
-
 
S

W
-
3

0
1

S
T

A
 
7

3
6

+
8

3
.
1

5

O
F

F
S

E
T

 
0

'
 
L

T

R
I
M

 
=

 
9

2
3

.
5

9

I
E

 
=

 
9

1
2

.
2

6
 
S

P
-
1

A B C D E F

A B C D E F

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3
1

6
 
S

e
c
o

n
d

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
5

0
0

 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d

a
r
 
R

a
p

i
d

s
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
5

2
4

0
1

3
1

9
.
3

6
4

.
0

2
2

7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a

x
:
 
3

1
9

.
3

6
4

.
4

2
5

1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h

i
v
e

-
h

a
t
t
e

r
y
.
c
o

m

I
o

w
a

 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n

o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n

d
i
a

n
a

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L

I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

MS.05

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 
S

E
W

E
R

P
L

A
N

 
&

 
P

R
O

F
I
L

E

S
L
O

C
N

H

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
8

2
1
7
1
6
2
0

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

 
I

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E
 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
A

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
7

1
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L

o
t
 
1

\
C

y
b

e
r
 
L

a
n

e
 
I
n

f
r
a

s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
e

\
M

S
-
S

h
e

e
t
s
.
d

w
g

5
/
3

1
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

:
4

4
:
0

4
 
P

M

HUDSON ROAD

8
.
0

'
 
M

I
N

.

EXISTING CENTERLINE OF

SANITARY SEWER PROFILE GRADE

LOT 1

EXISTING PIPE

EXISTING 15" SANITARY SEWER

NOTE:

1. ALL SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES ALONG HUDSON

ROAD SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH A RIM 1' ABOVE

FINISH GRADE.

2. STATION LOCATION IS BASED ON HUDSON SANITARY

ALIGNMENT. SEE INFORMATION ON MS.04.

3. CITY OF CEDAR FALLS "INFORMATION OF RECORD"

INDICATES MANHOLE SAN MH12 AS "EXISTING" WITH

AN INLET ELEVATION OF 910.23 AND MANHOLE SAN

MH9 AS "EXISTING" WITH AN OUTLET ELEVATION OF

923.58. THE CONTRACTOR AND CONTRACTOR'S

SURVEYOR SHALL DETERMINE THE EXISTING

OUTLET AND INLET ELEVATIONS OF MH12 AND THE

EXISTING OUTLET AND INLET ELEVATIONS OF SAN

MH9 AND REPORT ALL INFORMATION TO THE CITY OF

CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER PRIOR TO ANY WORK

BEING AUTHORIZED BY THE CITY ENGINEER. THE

CITY ENGINEER WILL DETERMINE ALL PIPE GRADES.

THE CONTRACTOR WILL RECIEVE WRITTEN

INSTRUCTION FROM THE OFFICE OF THE CITY

ENGINEER REGARDING THE PIPES GRADES IN

ORDER THAT THE AVAILABLE FLOW CAPACITY IS

MAXIMIZED FOR FUTURE UPSTREAM

DEVELOPMENTS.

4. NO FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED OUTSIDE OF

AND ADJACENT TO ANY PROPERTY LINE OF THIS

WORK AREA. NO FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED IN

THE HUDSON ROAD DITCH IN ORDER TO RETAIN AN

AMPLE AMOUNT OF STORAGE VOLUME FOR SNOW

PLOWED FROM HUDSON ROAD AND DRIFTING

DURING EASTERLY WINTER STORM CONDITIONS.

M
A

T
C

H
L
I
N

E
:
 
S

E
E

 
M

S
.
0
4

REMOVE TREE/SHRUB FOR SANITARY

SEWER INSTALLATION (TYP.)

PROTECT FIBER

PROPOSED CENTERLINE OF

SANITARY SEWER PROFILE GRADE

VERIFY EXISTING INVERT ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO ANY SANITARY SEWER

INSTALLATION (SEE NOTE 3, MS.05). VERIFY EXISTING 15" STUB TO THE

NORTH AND IF THIS STUB WILL WORK WITH PROPOSED DESIGN. IF YES,

THE MANHOLE DOES NOT NEED TO BE REPLACED.

OTHERWISE, REMOVE EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE AND INSTALL NEW

-430-

Item
 G

.2.p. 



E

Lot 23

Cedar Falls

Technology Park

Phase II

A B C D E F

A B C D E F

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3
1

6
 
S

e
c
o

n
d

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
5

0
0

 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d

a
r
 
R

a
p

i
d

s
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
5

2
4

0
1

3
1

9
.
3

6
4

.
0

2
2

7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a

x
:
 
3

1
9

.
3

6
4

.
4

2
5

1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h

i
v
e

-
h

a
t
t
e

r
y
.
c
o

m

I
o

w
a

 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n

o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n

d
i
a

n
a

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
7

1
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L

o
t
 
1

\
C

y
b

e
r
 
L

a
n

e
 
I
n

f
r
a

s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
e

\
S

-
S

h
e

e
t
s
 
f
o

r
 
T

r
a

i
l
.
d

w
g

5
/
3

1
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

:
4

8
:
0

3
 
P

M

INSERT A

INSERT C

OVERALL TRAIL PAVING PLAN

1

5" PCC PAVEMENT

NOTE:

1) DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF TRAIL SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TYPE 1 SHARED USE PATH DESIGN

GUIDELINES FOLLOWING SUDAS AND ADA REQUIREMENTS.

2) PROVIDE JOINTING PER SUDAS SECTION 7030.

COMPACTED SUBGRADE FILL TO

95% STANDARD PROCTOR

DENSITY 

2" GRANULAR STONE SUBBASE

GRADATION 14

PCC TRAIL PAVEMENT SECTION

2

MATERIALS LEGEND

PCC TRAIL

SEE DETAIL 2/S.03

EXISTING SUBGRADE TO BE SCARIFIED

TO A DEPTH OF 12" AND RECOMPACTED TO

95% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY

INSERT E

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L

I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

S.03

T
R

A
I
L

 
P

L
A

N

S
L
O

C
N

H

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
8

2
1
7
1
6
2
0

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

 
I

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E
 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
A

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
7

1
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L

o
t
 
1

\
C

y
b

e
r
 
L

a
n

e
 
I
n

f
r
a

s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
e

\
S

-
S

h
e

e
t
s
 
f
o

r
 
T

r
a

i
l
.
d

w
g

5
/
3

1
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

:
4

8
:
0

3
 
P

M

INSERT B

INSERT D

INSERT F

RIDGEWAY AVENUE

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

4.0' MINIMUM

MAINTAIN EXISTING DITCH

BOTTOM ELEVATION

10.0'

TRAIL

EMBANKMENT (TYP.)

 
 
 
6

:
1

 
M

A

X

5.0' SHOULDER

6

:
1

 
M

A

X

LOT 1 PARKING LOT

5" PCC PAVEMENT

6" MODIFIED SUBBASE

6" COMPACTED SUBGRADE

RELOCATE EXISTING FIBER OPTIC CABLE BY UTILITY PROVIDER AS NEEDED,

AS COORDINATED BY CONTRACTOR. COST OF RELOCATION PAID FOR BY OWNER.

2.0' SHOULDER

HUDSON ROAD SLOPE 3:1 MAX

RIDGEWAY AVENUE 10:1 MAX

PCC TRAIL TYPICAL CROSS SECTION ON HUDSON ROAD

3

TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E

-431-

Item
 G

.2.p. 



TS 926.00

N 8835619.24

E 15441925.04

4
.
2
0
%

1
.5

0
%

TS 925.91

N 8835618.63

E 15441914.95

9
2
0

9
2
1

9
2
2

9
2

3

9
3
0

9

2

7

928

929

9

2

5

1.50%

1.50%

1.50%

1.50%

1
.
0
2
%

0
.
9
3
%

1
.
3
3
%

4
.
2
5
%

TS 931.20

N 8835370.44

E 15441919.21

TS 931.51

N 8835401.80

E 15441919.23

TS 931.82

N 8835440.66

E 15441919.25

TS 931.05

N 8835370.45

E 15441909.21

TS 931.36

N 8835401.81

E 15441909.23

TS 931.67

N 8835440.66

E 15441909.25

TS 931.20

N 8835490.86

E 15441919.28

TS 931.06

N 8835490.80

E 15441909.28

9

2

6

9

2

7

9

2

8

9

2

9

3:1

0.45%

6
.
2
3
%

0
.
9
8
%

6
.
2
7
%

1
.
0
2
%

1.50%

1.50%

1.50%

1.50%

1.50%

4.00%

1
.
9
9
%

1
.
9
7
%

TC 930.17

N 8835320.78

E 15441908.17

GU 929.71

N 8835320.11

E 15441909.17

TS 930.09

N 8835326.78

E 15441909.18

TS 930.24

N 8835326.78

E 15441919.18

GU 929.86

N 8835320.11

E 15441919.17

TS 930.71

N 8835336.78

E 15441909.18

TS 930.86

N 8835336.78

E 15441919.18

TC 930.62

N 8835296.78

E 15441908.16

GU 930.16

N 8835297.45

E 15441909.16

TC 930.85

N 8835296.78

E 15441920.16

TS 930.81

N 8835346.78

E 15441909.19

TC 930.39

N 8835320.78

E 15441920.17

GU 930.31

N 8835297.44

E 15441919.17

TS 931.31

N 8835280.78

E 15441919.18

TS 931.41

N 8835270.78

E 15441919.18

TS 931.26

N 8835270.78

E 15441909.14

TS 931.16

N 8835280.78

E 15441909.15

TS 930.96

N 8835346.78

E 15441919.19

A B C D E F

A B C D E F

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3
1

6
 
S

e
c
o

n
d

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
5

0
0

 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d

a
r
 
R

a
p

i
d

s
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
5

2
4

0
1

3
1

9
.
3

6
4

.
0

2
2

7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a

x
:
 
3

1
9

.
3

6
4

.
4

2
5

1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h

i
v
e

-
h

a
t
t
e

r
y
.
c
o

m

I
o

w
a

 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n

o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n

d
i
a

n
a

INSERT A

1

INSERT B

2

INSERT B.1

3

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L

I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

S.04

T
R

A
I
L
 
P

L
A

N

S
L

O

C
N

H

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

0
5

/
3

1
/
2

0
1

8

2
1

7
1

6
2

0

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

 
I

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E
 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

R
U

S
S

E
L
L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L
L
S

,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L
L
S

,
 
I
A

P
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2
1
7
1
6
2
0
\
D

e
l
i
v
e
r
a
b
l
e
s
\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L
o

t
 
1
\
C

y
b
e

r
 
L
a
n
e
 
I
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
\
S

-
S

h
e
e

t
s
 
f
o
r
 
T

r
a
i
l
.
d
w

g

5
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
8
 
2
:
5
0
:
2
3
 
P

M

MATCH LINE: SEE INSERT B

MATCH LINE: SEE INSERT A

MATCH LINE: SEE INSERT C

TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

EXTENTS OF TRAIL NORTH OF LOT 1 TO

TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY SHALL BE

COORDINATED BY CONTRACTOR IN FIELD.

ISSUES RELATED TO EASEMENTS,

REGRADING, SIGNAGE RELOCATION,

ADJUSTMENTS TO EXISTING UTILITIES AND

SITE FEATURES TO BE COORDINATED WITH

THE CITY AND ADJUSTMENTS PROPERTY

OWNER (SAME OWNER AS GATEWAY

BUSINESS PARK AT CEDAR FALLS PHASE 1).

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF TRAIL SHALL

BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TYPE 1 SHARED USE

PATH DESIGN GUIDELINES FOLLOWING SUDAS

AND ADA REQUIREMENTS.

5' MINIMUM BENCH TO BE PROVIDED FOR

WEST TRAIL EDGE ADJACENT TO HUDSON

ROAD DITCH, TYP.

10.0'

10.0'

-432-

Item
 G

.2.p. 



9

3

3

1
.
9
3
%

1.00%

0
.
9
9
%

1
.
2
2
%

1

.

7

9

%

1.50%

2.30%

1.49%

1
.
0
9
%

1
.
0
9
%

2
.
5
6
%

1
.
2
2
%

TC:GU 934.23

N 8835087.38

E 15441969.63

TC:GU 934.31

E 15441972.20

N 8835139.86

E 15441967.84

N 8835135.86

E 15441971.84

N 8835167.86

E 15441967.84

TC 933.59

GU 933.09

N 8835126.46

E 15441924.84

N 8835027.85

E 15441967.84

N 8835072.85

E 15441967.84

TS 934.44

N 8835027.42

E 15441918.99

TS 932.99

N 8835126.36

E 15441919.05

9

3

1

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

4

1
.
1
9
%

TS 938.50

N 8834740.71

E 15441918.80

TS 938.35

N 8834740.71

E 15441908.80

TS 940.26

N 8834592.95

E 15441918.71

TS 940.11

N 8834592.54

E 15441908.71

9

3

5

9

3

6

9

3

7

9

3

8

3:1

1
.
0

0
%

6
.
3

7
%

1.80%

1.00%

6
.
2

1
%

1
.
5

0
%

0.90%

4.23%

0.50%

1
.
0

0
%

0
.
7

2
%

TC 935.55

GU 935.05

N 8834892.18

E 15441924.84

EOR

TC:GU 934.75

N 8834888.18

E 15441943.84

EOR

TC 935.27

GU 934.77

TS 934.94

N 8834892.18

E 15441939.84

MP

TC:GU 934.76

N 8834891.01

E 15441942.67

TS 935.61

N 8834892.19

E 15441918.90

TS 935.55

N 8834886.18

E 15441918.90

TS 935.42

N 8834883.18

E 15441908.89

TS 935.52

N 8834883.18

E 15441918.89

TS 934.78

N 8834873.18

E 15441908.89

TC 934.88

N 8834867.18

E 15441907.88

TC 935.10

N 8834867.18

E 15441919.88

TS 934.93

N 8834873.18

E 15441918.89

TS 935.13

N 8834886.18

E 15441933.84

TS 935.39

N 8834892.18

E 15441933.84

TC:GU 935.22

N 8834885.18

E 15441943.84

TS 935.11

N 8834843.18

E 15441907.86

TS 935.19

N 8834827.18

E 15441908.86

TS 935.29

N 8834827.18

E 15441918.86

TS 935.34

N 8834817.18

E 15441908.86

TS 935.44

N 8834817.18

E 15441918.85

TS 935.51

N 8834892.19

E 15441908.90

TS 934.67

N 8834837.18

E 15441918.86

TS 934.58

N 8834837.18

E 15441908.86

GU 934.40

N 8834866.51

E 15441908.88

GU 934.58

N 8834866.51

E 15441918.88

TC 935.33

N 8834843.18

E 15441919.88

GU 934.81

N 8834843.85

E 15441918.87

GU 934.63

N 8834843.85

E 15441908.87

A B C D E F

A B C D E F

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3
1

6
 
S

e
c
o

n
d

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
5

0
0

 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d

a
r
 
R

a
p

i
d

s
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
5

2
4

0
1

3
1

9
.
3

6
4

.
0

2
2

7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a

x
:
 
3

1
9

.
3

6
4

.
4

2
5

1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h

i
v
e

-
h

a
t
t
e

r
y
.
c
o

m

I
o

w
a

 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n

o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n

d
i
a

n
a

INSERT C

4

INSERT C.1

5

INSERT D

6

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L

I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

S.05

T
R

A
I
L

 
P

L
A

N

S
L
O

C
N

H

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
8

2
1
7
1
6
2
0

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

 
I

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E
 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
A

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
7

1
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L

o
t
 
1

\
C

y
b

e
r
 
L

a
n

e
 
I
n

f
r
a

s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
e

\
S

-
S

h
e

e
t
s
 
f
o

r
 
T

r
a

i
l
.
d

w
g

5
/
3

1
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

:
4

8
:
2

9
 
P

M

MATCH LINE: SEE INSERT B

MATCH LINE: SEE INSERT D

MATCH LINE: SEE INSERT E

MATCH LINE: SEE INSERT C

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

H
U

D
S

O
N

 
R

O
A

D

10.0'

10.0'

-433-

Item
 G

.2.p. 



E

1
.
5
0
%

1
.
1
9
%

2.44%

2.44%

R

2

2

.

0

'

TS 942.80

N 8834392.47

E 15441952.06

TS 942.65

N 8834382.47

E 15441951.96

TS 942.41

N 8834413.05

E 15441930.34

TS 942.26

N 8834412.40

E 15441920.36

TS 951.25

N 8834388.80

E 15442298.36

TS 951.10

N 8834378.80

E 15442298.26

9

4

0

9

4

1

9
4
1

9

4

1

9

4

5

9

5

0

9

4

3

9

4

4

9

4

6

9

4

7

9

4

8

9

4

9

9

5

1

9

5

2

9

4

5
9

5

0

9

4

2

9

4

2

9

4

3

9

4

4 9

4

6

9

4

7

9

4

8

9

4

9

9

5

1

9

5

2

A B C D E F

A B C D E F

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3
1

6
 
S

e
c
o

n
d

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
5

0
0

 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d

a
r
 
R

a
p

i
d

s
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
5

2
4

0
1

3
1

9
.
3

6
4

.
0

2
2

7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a

x
:
 
3

1
9

.
3

6
4

.
4

2
5

1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h

i
v
e

-
h

a
t
t
e

r
y
.
c
o

m

I
o

w
a

 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n

o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n

d
i
a

n
a

INSERT E

7

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L

I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

S.06

T
R

A
I
L

 
P

L
A

N

S
L
O

C
N

H

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

0
5
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
8

2
1
7
1
6
2
0

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

 
I

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E
 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

,
 
I
A

P
:
\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2

1
7

1
6

2
0

\
D

e
l
i
v
e

r
a

b
l
e

s
\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L

o
t
 
1

\
C

y
b

e
r
 
L

a
n

e
 
I
n

f
r
a

s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
e

\
S

-
S

h
e

e
t
s
 
f
o

r
 
T

r
a

i
l
.
d

w
g

5
/
3

1
/
2

0
1

8
 
1

:
4

8
:
3

8
 
P

M

MATCH LINE: SEE INSERT D

M
A

T
C

H
 
L

I
N

E
:
 
S

E
E

 
I
N

S
E

R
T

 
F

POSSIBLE FUTURE TRAIL EXTENSION, FOR REFERENCE ONLY

CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE ALL

NECESSARY EASEMENTS AND ADJUSTMENTS

TO EXISTING UTILTIES WITH APPLICABLE

JURISDICTIONS AND ENTITIES TO FACILITATE

TRAIL CONSTRUCTION, TYP

GRADES AT EXISTING POWER POLES TO BE

MAINTAINED AND PROTECTED, TYP.

1
0
.
0
'

-434-

Item
 G

.2.p. 



2
0
0
+

0
0

2
0
1
+

0
0

2
0
0
+

0
0

2
0
1
+

0
0

2.44%

1
.
5
0
%

TS 959.30

N 8834385.30

E 15442628.16

TS 959.45

N 8834375.30

E 15442628.05

9

5

4

958.73 TC

958.23 GU

N 8834386.12

E 15442644.67

959.18 TC

958.68 GU

N 8834374.12

E 15442644.56

958.30 TC

957.80 GU

N 8834385.78

E 15442675.67

958.72 TC

958.22 GU

N 8834373.78

E 15442675.57

TS 959.13

N 8834384.67

E 15442687.15

TS 959.18

N 8834384.63

E 15442692.15

TS 959.28

N 8834374.62

E 15442692.07

TS 959.23

N 8834374.67

E 15442687.05

TS 959.14

N 8834385.25

E 15442633.16

TS 959.30

N 8834385.30

E 15442628.16

TS 959.45

N 8834375.30

E 15442628.07

TS 959.48

N 8834375.25

E 15442633.07

3.26%

5.68% 1.00%

0.30%

A B C D E F

A B C D E F

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3
1

6
 
S

e
c
o

n
d

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 
S

E
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
5

0
0

 
 
|
 
 
C

e
d

a
r
 
R

a
p

i
d

s
,
 
I
o

w
a

 
5

2
4

0
1

3
1

9
.
3

6
4

.
0

2
2

7
 
 
|
 
 
f
a

x
:
 
3

1
9

.
3

6
4

.
4

2
5

1
 
 
|
 
 
w

w
w

.
s
h

i
v
e

-
h

a
t
t
e

r
y
.
c
o

m

I
o

w
a

 
 
|
 
 
I
l
l
i
n

o
i
s
 
 
|
 
 
I
n

d
i
a

n
a

INSERT F

8

INSERT F.1

9

D
R

A
W

N
:

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

:

I
S

S
U

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

D
A

T
E

:

F
I
E

L
D

 
B

O
O

K
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

C
L

I
E

N
T

 
N

O
:

P
r
i
n
t
e
d
:

S.07

T
R

A
I
L
 
P

L
A

N

S
L

O

C
N

H

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

0
5

/
3

1
/
2

0
1

8

2
1

7
1

6
2

0

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L

L
S

 
I

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L

A
N

E
 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

R
U

S
S

E
L
L
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

G
A

T
E

W
A

Y
 
B

U
S

I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
 
A

T
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L
L
S

,
 
C

E
D

A
R

 
F

A
L
L
S

,
 
I
A

P
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
C

R
\
2
1
7
1
6
2
0
\
D

e
l
i
v
e
r
a
b
l
e
s
\
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
\
1

_
C

i
v
i
l
\
L
o

t
 
1
\
C

y
b
e

r
 
L
a
n
e
 
I
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
\
S

-
S

h
e
e

t
s
 
f
o
r
 
T

r
a
i
l
.
d
w

g

5
/
3
1
/
2
0
1
8
 
2
:
5
2
:
3
8
 
P

M

M
A

T
C

H
 
L
I
N

E
:
 
S

E
E

 
I
N

S
E

R
T

 
E

RIDGEWAY AVENUE

C
Y

B
E

R
 
L
A

N
E

1
0
.
0
'

GRADES AT EXISTING POWER POLES TO BE

MAINTAINED AND PROTECTED, TYP.

-435-

Item
 G

.2.p. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: May 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I Final Plat 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I Final Plat. 

PETITIONER: 
 

CF Gateway Park, Inc., Owner; Shive-Hattery, Engineer; Russell 
Construction, Contractor 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on approximately 17 acres of land near the northeast 
corner of Hudson Road and W. Ridgeway Avenue. 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to create two (2) lots zoned HWY-1 
Commercial District totaling approximately 14.6 acres in 
size. Lot 1 would be 7.74 acres in size, and is the 
proposed home for a new Holiday Inn and Suites Hotel 
and Conference Center, and Lot 2 would be 4.37 acres in 
size, which would be for a future commercial use. Cyber 
Lane (Tract A) will be a new street that runs alongside the 
two new lots, and will be constructed between Technology 
Parkway to the north and W Ridgeway Avenue to the 
south. Tract B (0.98 acres) and Tract C (1.60 acres) will 
be used for storm water detention purposes. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The entire property is 46 acres in size, and has been 
utilized as farm ground for as far back as City records go. 
The land was purchased by the applicant in the fall of 
2017 with the intent of developing it into lots for potential 
commercial and office uses. A preliminary plat for the 
entire property was approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on January 14, 2018 and approved by the 
City Council on March 5, 2018.  
 

-437-

Item G.2.q. 



 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
The subdivision plat is located on approximately 17 
acres of land between Hudson Road and new Cyber 
Lane, north of W Ridgeway Avenue. The plat 
includes two lots, with lot sizes of 7.74 acres and 
4.37 acres. Lot 1, which is for a proposed Holiday 
Inn and Suites Hotel and Conference Center, will 
have access from both Hudson Road and Cyber 
Lane. Lot 2 would only have access from Cyber 
Lane. There are also two Tracts shown on the plat 
for stormwater detention purposes; Tract “B” is 
located at the north end of Lot 1, and would be the 
primary location to capture the water runoff from Lot 
1 and Cyber Lane, and Tract “C”, which is located at 
the north end of Lot 2 and partially onto the south 
end of Lot 1, and would be the primary location to 
capture the water runoff from Lot 2 and other off site 
areas to the east. Development within this 
subdivision includes a site plan review by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 
since this property is located in the HWY-1, Highway 
Commercial zoning district. As indicated earlier, the 
Holiday Inn and Suites Hotel and Conference Center 
site plan on Lot 1 is under review at this time. 
 
  
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements.  
 
City zoning staff notes that the proposed lots appear to be of sufficient lot area to meet the 
anticipated development plans. The HWY-1 District requires a 20-foot setback along the 
perimeter of the district and interior street network. Buildings and parking lots must be located 
outside this setback area.  
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Gateway Business Park 
and Cedar Falls I Final Plat, subject to the following stipulation: 
 
 
 
 
 

-438-

Item G.2.q. 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
 
Vote 
3/28/2018 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. He explained that the property is located near the corner of West 
Ridgeway Avenue and Hudson Road. He displayed a rendering of the final plat 
with different elements highlighted, as well as street connectivity. 
 
Mr. Arntson made a motion to approve. Mr. Saul seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, 
Hartley, Holst, Leeper, Oberle, Saul and Wingert) and 0 nays. 
 

 

-439-

Item G.2.q. 



S Prairie
Lake

Dry

Run
Cre ek

(S)

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Central
River AEA

Prairie
Lakes
Park

Technology Pkwy

Pr
inc

eto
n A

ve

Richmond St

Montclair St

Scranton St

Columbia St

Concord St

Saratoga St

Camden St

Le
xin

gto
nB

lvd

Ch an cel lorDr

Waterway Ave (Planned)

C yber Ln (Planned)

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

W Ridgeway Ave
R-4

M-1
M-1

PC-2

HWY-1

BR

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
June 4, 2018

Gateway Business Park at
Cedar Falls I Final Plat

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce d a
rH

eig
hts

Dr

University Ave

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

r se
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

-440-

Item G.2.q. 



-441-

Item G.2.q. 



-442-

Item G.2.q. 



-443-

Item G.2.q. 



-444-

Item G.2.q. 



-445-

Item G.2.q. 



-446-

Item G.2.q. 



-447-

Item G.2.q. 



-448-

Item G.2.q. 



-449-

Item G.2.q. 



-450-

Item G.2.q. 



RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING  
THE FINAL PLAT OF 

GATEWAY BUSINESS PARK AT CEDAR FALLS I  
IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK, IOWA 

 
WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, did on the 28th day of March, 2018, at a regular meeting of said Planning and Zoning 
Commission, approve the attached final plat, and recommend acceptance and approval thereof by 
the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, that the attached plat heretofore filed to be known as: 
 

GATEWAY BUSINESS PARK AT CEDAR FALLS I 
 IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 
be and the same is hereby accepted and approved and the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby 
authorized and directed to certify a copy of the Resolution to the County Recorder of Black 
Hawk County, Iowa.  
 
 ADOPTED AND PASSED this ____ day of ______________, 2018. 

 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 

James P. Brown, Mayor of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielson, MMC 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

       

-451-

Item G.2.q. 



2 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
I, Jacqueline Danielson, MMC and City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify 

that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of the Resolution Number 
______________ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said city of the _____ day of 
________________, 2018. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affix the official seal of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ______ day of _______________, 2018 
 

 
            

  Jacqueline Danielson, MMC 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

-452-

Item G.2.q. 



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: May 31, 2018 

 SUBJECT: CDBG – Emergency Repair Project  
  1207 Lantz Avenue – Project No. 2-18-664 
   
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds that supports several programs, including housing rehabilitations or housing 
repairs for income-qualifying residents. This program also encompasses emergency 
repairs for eligible households. As emergency repairs are $10,000 or less, by the City’s 
Purchasing Manual, policy 11.05, we can obtain informal quotes.   
 
A request for an emergency repair, for plumbing and flooring, at 1207 Lantz Ave was 
received by the City and found eligible. INRCOG went through an informal quote 
process and reached out to seven contractors. The lowest quotes were selected. 
Contracts have been drafted with To Jo Construction to address the flooring and Curran 
Plumbing to address the plumbing in the amounts of $1,590.00 and $434.00 
respectively, see attached. These contracts need to be approved by the City Council 
before work on the home can start. Staff recommends City Council enter into the two 
contracts. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.  Thank you. 
 
XC: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 

-453-

Item G.2.r. 



 



-455-

Item G.2.r. 



-456-

Item G.2.r. 



-457-

Item G.2.r. 



-458-

Item G.2.r. 



-459-

Item G.2.r. 



-460-

Item G.2.r. 



-461-

Item G.2.r. 



 



-463-

Item G.2.s. 



-464-

Item G.2.s. 



-465-

Item G.2.s. 



-466-

Item G.2.s. 



-467-

Item G.2.s. 



-468-

Item G.2.s. 



-469-

Item G.2.s. 



 



Community & Economic Development 
Phone: 319-273-8606   

Fax: 319-273-8610  

   DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES 
 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Brown & City Council  
 
 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 
 
 DATE: May 29, 2018 
 

RE: FY 2018-2019 Annual Action Plan for the Community Development Block Grant 
and HOME Program Funding   

  Request to Set Date of Public Hearing 
 
The Department of Planning and Community Services is in the process preparing its Annual 
Action Plan for the period of FY 2018-2019. An Annual Action Plan is a detailed document 
establishing the goals, objectives, priority housing needs, project descriptions, and other 
pertinent information for the upcoming CDBG Program Year. With this plan the City of Cedar 
Falls will be eligible to apply for FY 2018-2019 Community Development Block Grant funds 
(CDGB) from the U.S. Department of Housing (HUD) in the amount of $248,026. The City will 
also receive HOME Investment Partnership funds in the approximate amount of $48,000 in 
accordance with the Consortium with Waterloo. The proposed FY2018-2019 CDBG annual 
allocation is comparable to previous grants received.  All projected activities have been 
recognized as acceptable block grant activities, primarily providing benefit to low and 
moderate income citizens (one of the three HUD national program requirements).  
 
In its Annual Action Plan Cedar Falls seeks to: 

• Provide additional affordable housing to address the growing gap between housing 
costs and local incomes, which leads to rising rates and overcrowding, overpayment, 
and substandard housing conditions for the area lowest income residents,  

• Improve community services, particularly in low income areas and provide a network 
of shelter, housing, and support services to prevent homelessness, moving the 
homeless to permanent housing and independence, and eliminating chronic 
homelessness are community objectives,  

• Promote economic development, create jobs, and increase the job skills of potential 
employees, and 

• Support services that increase the ability of seniors, persons with disabilities, and 
others with special needs to live independently and avoid institutions are supported by 
the City. 

-471-

Item G.2.t. 



Cedar Falls is committed to allocating funds that serve the needs of the lowest income and 
most disadvantaged residents. Households with incomes less than 50% of the area median 
income, particularly those with extremely low incomes are particular priorities. The city has 
also identified special needs individuals as among those who face the greatest challenges 
and who should receive high priority in the expenditure of federal funds, including at-risk 
children and youth, low-income families, the homeless and persons threatened with 
homelessness, the elderly, and persons with disabilities. 
 
The Housing Commission held a public meeting for the consideration of the FY 2018-2019 
Annual Action Plan on May 8th, 2018.  There were no public comments. After discussion, the 
Housing Commission unanimously agreed to recommend approval of the FY 2018-2019 
Annual Action Plan and to forward the Plan to City Council. Following HUD protocol a 30-day 
comment period was opened after the Housing Commission’s recommendation of approval. 
Written comments will continue to be collected by the Community Development Department 
until June 18th, 2018.  No comments have been submitted at this time. 
 
In further accordance with HUD requirements, a public hearing at City Council is required as 
part of the approval of an Annual Action Plan. To meet the requirement, Staff recommends 
that the City Council set a public hearing on Monday, June 18th, 2018 and that the FY 2018-
2019 Annual Action Plan be approved, subject to noting any public comments received or as 
amended by City Council. The FY 2018-2019 Annual Action Plan is available for review at the 
City Clerk’s office. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:   Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-472-

Item G.2.t. 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 21, 2018.
	[180521MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Special Order of Business:
	1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project.
	[PH - PSE - 2018 Sidwalk & Trail.docx]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published May 25, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	2. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Public Sidewalk & Pedestrian Trail Improvement Project.

	F. Old Business:
	1. Pass Ordinance #2923, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located within the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, in the City of Cedar Falls, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the city in connection with the amended Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (Amendment No. 4 to the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan), upon its third & final consideration.
	[Ord. 2923-Amendment 4-CF Unified Hwy 58 UR Plan.docx]

	2. Pass Ordinance #2924, amending Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to sanitary sewer rates, upon its third & final consideration.
	[Ord. 2924-Sewer Rates.doc]

	3. Pass Ordinance #2925, amending Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to storm water management rates, upon its third & final consideration.
	[Ord. 2925-Storm water Rates.doc]

	4. Pass Ordinance #2926, providing that general property taxes levied and collected each year on all property located within the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, Cedar Falls Community School District, Hudson Community School District, and other taxing districts, be paid to a special fund for payment of principal and interest on loans, monies advanced to and indebtedness, including bonds issued or to be issued, incurred by the City in connection with the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Area, upon its second consideration.

	[Ord. 2926-South Cedar Falls UR Area.docx]

	5. Pass Ordinance #2927, amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing a 35 miles per hour speed limit on Greenhill Road from Hudson Road to West 27th Street, upon its second consideration.
	[Ord. 2927-Greenhill Speed Limit.docx]


	G. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of MaraBeth Soneson to the Utilities Board of Trustees, term ending 08/31/2024.
	[1-Appts 6-04.docx]
	[2-Utilities - Soneson 4-9-18.pdf]

	b. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of May 21, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Utilities Board of Trustees Interview - MaraBeth Soneson. 
(2) Visitors & Tourism Initiatives/Update.
(3) Speed limit on South Main Street-University Avenue to Greenhill Road.
(4) Bills & Payroll.
	[Comm of the Whole 05 21 18.doc]

	c. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of May 14, 2018.
	[Council Work Session 05 14 18.doc]

	d. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of April 2018.
	[Monthly Report - April 2018.pdf]

	e. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits: 
(1) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street.
(2) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard.
(3) SUDS, 2223 1/2 College Street.
(4) Up In Smoke, 2218 College Street.
	[06042018 Tobacco Applications.pdf]

	f. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:
(1) Dollar General Store, 2921 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.
(2) Kwik Star, 2019 College Street, Class C beer - renewal.
(3) Kwik Star, 7500 Nordic Drive, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal.
(4) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal.
(5) Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal.
(6) Los Cabos Mexican Restaurant, 112-114 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(7) Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal.
(8) Target, 214 Viking Plaza Drive, Class E liquor - renewal.
(9) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (June 22-24, 2018)
	[Liquor Beer 5-30-18.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution directing the advertisement for sale of $6,585,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2018, and approving electronic bidding procedures and Official Statement.
	[1-bond sale council sale & OS.mem.doc]
	[2-project list_001.pdf]
	[3-Cedar Falls IA_GO_2018_Preliminary_Official_Statement_06_04_18.pdf]
	[4-Cedar Falls - res directing advertisement (01486767x7F7E1).docx]

	b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Engagement Letter with Eide Bailly, LLP to perform the audit of FY18 financial statements and programs compliance.
	[1-ENG LETTER COUNCIL.MEM.doc]
	[2-EideBailly_001.pdf]

	c. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Actuarial Services Agreement with SilverStone Group, Incorporated relative to Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 75.
	[1-GASB 75 CONTRACT COUNCIL.MEM.doc]
	[2-City of Cedar Falls IA - ASA 2018 (GASB 75 only).pdf]

	d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC relative to a Job Classification Review, in conjunction with the City’s pay plan study.
	[1-job classifications contract council.mem.doc]
	[2-City of Cedar Falls PSA 051018 - JD.pdf]

	e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Carlson Dettmann Consulting, LLC relative to a Performance Development Program, in conjunction with the City’s pay plan study.
	[1-performance review contract council.mem.doc]
	[2-City of Cedar Falls PSA 051418 - Performance.pdf]

	f. Resolution designating the dates and locations for the annual Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin Jazz Festival Inc.
	[Designating Sturgis Dates.pdf]

	g. Resolution approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the purchase of two dump trucks.
	[Dump truck purchases.pdf]

	h. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Municipal Pipe Tool Company, LLC for the 2017 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project.
	[Cert of Comp - 2017 Sanitary Sewer.docx]

	i. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Maintenance and Repair Agreement with CF Gateway Park, Inc. relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan on Lots 1 and 2 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I.
	[1. Gateway MRA Memo.docx]
	[2. Gateway MRA.pdf]

	j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 7 with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. relative to the Downtown Levee Improvements Project.
	[1. Memo Levee AECOM SA7.docx]
	[2. Levee AECOM SA7.pdf]

	k. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of K. Cunningham Construction Co. Inc. for the Center Street Recreational Trail Project.
	[1. Contract Memo Center St Trail.docx]
	[2. Contract.pdf]
	[3. Bonds.pdf]
	[4. Insurance.pdf]

	l. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of Improvements with CF Gateway Park, Inc. relative to the final plat of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I.
	[1. Memo-Contract for Completion Gateway Business Park.docx]
	[1a. Contract for Comp.pdf]
	[2. Exhibit A.PDF]
	[3. Exhibit B.pdf]
	[4. Exhibit C - Performance and Payment Bond.pdf]
	[5. Exhibit D - Maintenance Bond.pdf]

	m. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates for 2018 construction observation and testing services relative to new subdivisions.
	[1. Memo-Consulant Contract.docx]
	[2. PSA.pdf]
	[3. Attachment A-Scope of Services.pdf]
	[4. Attachment B-FINAL-Insurance Requirements.pdf]
	[5. Attachment C.pdf]
	[6. Attachment D 2018 CGA Rate Schedule.pdf]

	n. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates for construction observation and testing services relative to Gateway Business Park. (Contingent upon approval of Item G-2.m.)
	[1. Memo-Consulant Contract.docx]
	[2. SA#1 Gateway Business Park.pdf]

	o. Resolution approving a Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay Zoning District development site plan for construction of a hotel and conference center on Lot 1, Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I.
	[Site Plan - Holiday Inn-ALL.pdf]

	p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Developmental Procedures Agreement with CF Gateway Park, Inc. relative to public improvements in Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I.
	[1_City Council Memo for Developmental Procedures Agreement on 06-04-18.docx]
	[2_FINAL Dev Procedures Agreement Gateway Bus Park at Cedar Falls.docx]
	[3_Exhibit A - Oversizing Costs.pdf]
	[4_Dev. Procedures Agreement Map.pdf]
	[5_Exhibit B - Sanitary Sewer.pdf]
	[6_Exhibit C - Recreational Trail.pdf]

	q. Resolution approving the final plat of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls I.
	[Final Plat - Gateway Business Park-ALL.pdf]

	r. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Rehabilitation Contract with To Jo Construction Inc., relative to a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) emergency repair project.
	[1. Council memo-Emergency repair.docx]
	[2. 1207 Lantz - Contract with ToJo.pdf]

	s. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Rehabilitation Contract with Curran Plumbing Inc., relative to a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) emergency repair project.
	[3. 1207 Lantz - Contract with Curran.pdf]

	t. Resolution setting June 18, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the City's FY18-19 Consolidated Annual Plan for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) & HOME Program.
	[1. Memo-To Council Requesting PH.docx]



	H. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	I. City Council Referrals.
	J. City Council Updates.
	K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	L. Adjournment.



